
CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
May 13, 2024
AGENDA

The regular open public meeting of the Central Union School District Board of Trustees will be
held on Monday, May 13, 2024 at District Presentation Center, 15783 18th Avenue, Lemoore,
CA 93245. The Board meeting will begin with a preliminary open session at 5:10 p.m. and
adjourn into closed session. After the closed session the general open session will be called to
order at 6:00 p.m.

Any individual who requires a translator, disability-related accommodations or modifications
including auxiliary aids and services in order to participate in the Board meeting should contact
the Superintendent or designee in writing no later than 8:00 a.m. the day of the meeting.

Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majority of the
governing board regarding an open session item on this agenda are available for public
inspection and may be accessed under the Board Agenda and backup information housed on
the District website at www.central.k12.ca.us.

CUSD Mission Statement ~
Central Union School District seeks to be an exemplary learning community. We build the foundation of this
community through meaningful relationships, relevant and engaging learning, effective communication, and providing
a safe atmosphere. Each student will be treated as an individual, given the tools to be a lifelong learner, and taught
to function as a member of a group and as a productive member of society. We challenge ourselves to be better than
we think we can be, and advocate for the greater good of our community. Our success in this mission will build
lifelong, confident learners, who have the tools necessary for success in a changing world.

1. OPEN PUBLIC SESSION:

a. Call to Order

b. Roll Call

c. Flag Salute

Trustees:
Dale Davidson, Jeffrey Gilcrease, Ceil Howe III, and Sarah Strait

District Administration: Site Administration:

Tom Addington Akers: Heiko Sweeney, Darin Denney
Traci Fullerton Central: Anne Gonzales, David Pilcher
Jared Johnson Neutra: Elizabeth Alvarado, Brittany Gately
Karla Burgos-Rodriquez Stratford: Christina Gonzales, Tara Taylor



Teresa Santamaria
Davinder Sidhu

CUSD Employee Associations' Representatives and others in attendance

2. PROCEDURE FOR VISITORS WHO WISH TO ADDRESS THE BOARD:

The Board invites and welcomes your comments. Your input is important. Most
questions asked of the Board require research and/or investigation. Therefore, the
Board may respond to your questions in writing. However, if the comments involve a
District employee or a student, the President will, at that time, explain the rights of the
Speaker and the rights of the employee and/or student. In accordance with Board
Bylaw 9323, The Board shall limit the individual speakers to no more than five minutes in
length with no more than thirty minutes per item.

3. PRESENTATION(S):
a. Stratford Elementary School

4. DISTRICT REPORTS
a. Business Services (ts)
b. Superintendent Update (ta)

ENROLLMENT

BEG. OF
YEAR
2022-2023

BEG. OF
YEAR
2023-2024

April
2022-23

April
2023-24 Inter Districts TOTAL

AKERS 672 651 676 628 LESD 30

CENTRAL 226 227 250 220 HANFORD 10

NEUTRA 413 428 425 417 OTHER 2

STRATFORD 283 278 298 305 Intra-District 4

TOTAL 1594 1584 1649 1570 TOTAL 46

5. COURTESY TO VISITORS:

6. CORRESPONDENCE AND BOARD INFORMATION:
a. Impact Spring 2024 Update
b. KCOE certification of second interim report
c. Office of Local Defense Community Cooperation – Notice of Award and Executed

agreement
d. School Newsletters



e. Kings County Investment Pool Quarterly Compliance Report ending March 31,
2024

f. 8th Grade Ceremonies
i. Tuesday, June 4 2024

1. Central School – 5:00 PM
2. Stratford School – 6:00 PM

ii. Wednesday, June 5, 2024
1. Akers School - 6:00 PM

7. CONSENT:
(at this time board members may request that an item or items be removed from the
consent agenda and placed as ‘new business’)

a. Approve minutes of the regular board meeting of April 8, 2024
b. Approve separations:

i. 32-4/24
ii. 33-4/24
iii. 34-4/24
iv. 35-5/24

c. Approve CUESD cost coverage for general liability insurance with SISC for
School Connected organizations for Akers, Central, and Stratford parent
organizations (ta)

d. Approve 2024-25 Agreement with Tulare County Office of Education for Library
Media Services-Educational Resource Center (ta)

e. Approve 2023-24 Agreement with Kings County Office of Education for
fingerprinting services (ta)

f. Accept piano donation for Akers School (hs)
g. Approve 2024-25 Agreement with Kings County Office of Education for Preschool

(ta)
h. Approve 2024-25 Agreement with CODESP for HR testing services and material

(ta)
i. Approve 2024-25 Agreement with Lozano Smith Attorneys at Law (ta)

Approve items a) through i)

8. OLD BUSINESS
a. None

9. NEW BUSINESS
a. Announce out any closed session decisions (ta)
b. Approve April 2024 District warrants (ts)
c. Approve April 2024 Fiscal Position Reports for General Fund and Cafeteria Fund



(ts)
d. Approve the opening of the hearing on 2024 Developer Fee Study (ta)
e. Approve the closing of the hearing on the 2024 Developer Fee study (ta)
f. Approve Resolution #H-05-13-2024 Developer Fee Justification Study and

Adoption of Developer Fees (ta)
g. Approve Site Single Plans for Student Achievement for the 2024-25 school year

(ta)
h. Approve Resolution #I-05-13-2024 Election Order Specification (ta)

10. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS:

11. CLOSED SESSION:
The closed session of the Board of Trustees will be held to consider the following:

a. Student Discipline and Other Confidential Student Matters - Consider expulsion
of case #G-05-13-2024 (Gov. Code §35146)

b. Student Discipline and Other Confidential Student Matters - Consider expulsion
of case #H-05-13-2024 (Gov. Code §35146)

c. Labor Negotiations (Gov. Code §54957.6)
Agency designated representatives:

Employee organization: CUETA and CUCEA



1

In mid-March, the NAFIS Family united in the Nation’s Capital to explore “Building a Better Future.” 
Together we delved into the many forms of “building” essential for student success, including the need 
to construct safe, modern educational facilities; build nurturing school climates that engage students; 

and foster relationships to enhance student and staff connections to school, among other topics.

The conference also provided attendees the opportunity to expand their professional networks and con-
nect with other leaders in Impact Aid-recipient school districts from across the nation. In addition, we 
built our knowledge of Impact Aid and the federal 
policy landscape to strengthen advocacy efforts 
and secure the resources needed to help students 
shape the future they aspire to achieve.

Building a Positive Culture

The opening general session featured an energiz-
ing presentation from keynote speaker Dr. Deb-
bie Silver. A Texas native and former Louisiana 
Teacher of the Year, Silver filled the room with 
laughter with her wild recounting of her time as 
a teacher and the struggles she overcame work-
ing in the profession that called to her. She started 
with an activity asking attendees to rise and then 
sit down when they could relate to a prompt on 
screen. These prompts ranged from the hilarious “occasionally thinking the best thing about your job 
is that your chair spins” to the honest “belief that learners come in all shapes and sizes and you do your 
best to give students a reasonable chance at success.” She used this activity to build connections with and 
between attendees and help them see they are not alone in the stress that comes with being an educator. 

Silver suggested students of this generation have not have changed as much as one may think and that “kids 
today want what kids have always wanted – the undivided, focused attention of the adults in their lives.” Her 
presentation was moving and engaging (and it included lighting a piece of paper on fire on stage!).

She ended by urging NAFIS attendees to engage in “Deliberate Optimism” to control what you can and to 
do it positively, offering suggestions on how to actualize the concept. Silver empathized with educators, 
many of whom do not have the time to do everything they would like, and she reminded the audience 
that doing one small positive thing can make an impact on a child and is worth the effort. What if you 
don’t have the time to give every student personalized feedback? Just give it to one or two students a day. 
What if you don’t have time to contact all of the parents you need to talk to? Call one. Can’t face learning 
all of this new technology? Choose to learn one thing. She encouraged everyone in the room to “Com-
mit yourself to loyalty – to your class, your team, your administrators and the school. You are seen as the 
‘authority’ in your community - build optimism, not defeatism.”

Building Knowledge

To lay the foundation for success both in school districts and in advocacy on Capitol Hill, the general 
session stage and conference breakout sessions built knowledge on a variety of topics. See our "Breakout IM
PA

C
T

NAFIS Spring Conference 
Lays Foundation for Success

National Association of 
Federally Impacted Schools
400 N. Capitol Street, NW
Suite 290
Washington, DC 20001
P: 202.624.5455
W: www.nafisdc.org

: @NAFISschools

Sp
ri

ng
 2

02
4

Continued on page 4...

Photo by Architect of the Capitol

www.nafisdc.org
www.nafisdc.org


2

Nicole’s Notes

A Hail and Farewell
There's a special event in the military called 
a "hail and farewell." These celebrations both 
welcome those new to a base and honor 
those departing.

If there was ever a time the term could apply 
to NAFIS, it was our successful 2024 Spring 
Conference, chronicled in these pages. 

This year has been marked with NAFIS staff 
transitions. First, we welcomed our new-
est team member, Jayson Schimmenti, who 
fills the much-anticipated role of Director 
of Policy and Advocacy. Then, we wished a 
Happy Retirement to long-time Director of 
Operations and Conference Services Lynn 
Watkins, who has served NAFIS in a mul-
titude of ways for 35 years. In this quarterly 
issue of IMPACT, you can read Jayson’s first 
"Legislative Update" and Lynn’s last "Mem-
bership Corner." Please welcome Jayson and 
send best wishes to Lynn in her next chapter.  

If you were one of the 320+ attendees who 
joined us for the conference, you helped us 
celebrate Lynn’s dedication to NAFIS and 
you were introduced to Jayson. The confer-
ence program included a keynote from the 
great Dr. Debbie Silver, as well as breakout 
sessions in which coalition partners and 
NAFIS members discussed attracting and 
retaining teachers, school infrastructure and 
chronic absenteeism. Read summaries of 

those and other breakout ses-
sions in this issue. 

Our newest team member 
Jayson has already strength-
ened our advocacy efforts. 
He hit the ground running 
in February and attended his 
first NAFIS conference just 
two weeks into the job. Jayson 
has strong Capitol Hill expe-
rience - he worked for many 
years for a New Jersey con-
gressman who represented 
Impact Aid-recipient school 
districts and then went on to work for a key 
education appropriator from Michigan. Jay-
son has worked on Impact Aid legislation 
and K-12 education policy in Congress and 
now brings that knowledge and professional 
network to NAFIS. 

On the conference Hill Day, Jayson and I 
joined the NAFIS Family in meeting with 
congressional offices, just like we do year-
round to advocate for Impact Aid and 
NAFIS policy priorities. One of my favorite 
things about Hill Day is running into NAFIS 
members in the halls of Congress, and I was 
so pleased to see many of you taking advan-
tage of this time to educate your congressio-
nal delegation about Impact Aid and urge 
them to support legislation benefiting the 

program. A highlight was the opportu-
nity to visit the Speaker of the House’s 
balcony and listen to Speaker Johnson 
between congressional votes. Please 
connect with Jayson on any legislative 
and policy matters, as we work every 
day for our NAFIS members just steps 
from the Capitol. He can be reached at 
jschimmenti@nafisdc.org.   

Our conferences bring folks together 
from all over the country twice a year 
and are dedicated to protecting and in-
creasing funds for Impact Aid. Our col-
lective efforts make a difference, and 

this conference happened at a crucial time, 
with FY 2024 appropriations still not settled. 
Shortly after our conference Congress finally 
came to an agreement. We can say farewell to 
FY 2024 at last! NAFIS successfully secured 
another increase to the Impact Aid program 
in a tough budget environment when many 
education programs were anticipating cuts 
(and the U.S. Department of Education over-
all did see a decrease in funding). Our bipar-
tisan congressional support, strong advocacy 
and passionate members made this possible 
- thank you for your efforts! 

NAFIS never rests, and we’re already pivot-
ing to focus on FY 2025 funding, advocating 
for an even bigger increase in another tough 
funding year. We also continue our advocacy 
to bolster support for our priority legislation 
on full funding for Impact Aid and school 
infrastructure funding. 

Please save the date for our fall conference, 
September 22-24, as FY 2025 appropriations 
and other factors will throw obstacles our 
way. We’ll need you, NAFIS Family, knocking 
on the doors of Congress to remind them how 
vital Impact Aid is to the approximately 1,100 
public schools that receive it. We have to stay 
together, united in our collective mission to 
advance Impact Aid. We are ONE FAMILY, 
in ONE FIGHT for the protection of funds 
owed to federally impacted schools. • 

Nicole’s Bookshelf
Currently on my nightstand:
• Deliberate Optimism: Still Reclaiming the Joy in Education by Debbie Silver and Jack C. Berckemeyer
• Free Agent Learning: Leveraging Students’ Self-Directed Learning to Transform K-12 Education by Julie A. Evans
• Remarkably Bright Creatures by Shelby Van Pelt

mailto:%20jschimmenti%40nafisdc.org?subject=


3

FY 2025 Applications
For FY 2025, the Impact Aid Program (IAP) 
Office successfully launched an Impact Aid 
Grant System (IAGS) home page redesign. 

For Section 7003, 1,005 applications were 
submitted (three of them late). Forty-seven 
percent were submitted between January 29 
and January 31. For Section 7002, 206 ap-
plications were submitted (none were late). 

There were 202 LEAs selected for moni-
toring. Of those, 17 were using Electronic 
Data Collection for the first time and 64 
did not have an eligible FY 2024 applica-
tion (including new applicants). Both of 
those conditions automatically trigger a 
monitoring review.

FY 2024 Payments
As of the conference, 945 LEAs had re-
ceived 7003 funds at a 50% LOT proration, 
with 831 also receiving 7003(d) Children 
with Disabilities (CWD) funds at $500 per 
weighted student unit (WSU), and 200 LEAs 
had received a 7002 foundation payment. 

CONFERENCE UPDATE

Now that FY 2024 appropriations are final, 
IAP staff will process additional payments. 
However, it takes several weeks for appro-
priated funds to make their way through the 
Department of Treasury and Office of Man-
agement and Budget (OMB) to the Depart-
ment of Education, where they will be allot-
ted to the IAP account for distribution.

IAP staff have started making Section 7003 
interim payments at a proration of 100% 
using an “above the continuing resolution” 
increase of $397 million that OMB granted 
Impact Aid in mid-March. This is a higher 
proration than the usual 90% interim rate 
because the FY 2024 maximum payment 
data is close to final, and 7003 received an 
increase in appropriated funds.

IAP will finish sending out the remainder 
of interim payments as soon as the full-
year funds are available. At that time, they 
will also raise the rate for 7003(d) payments 
to send out additional CWD funds. They 
expect all interim 7003 payments to be re-
leased before the end of April.

Section 7008 Facilities
On December 19, 2023, the Impact Aid 
Director signed the Transfer of Owner-
ship package for the new Randolph Field 
Elementary School, which is located on 
Joint Base San Antonio, Texas. Congratula-
tions to the Randolph Field School District!  

There are now only four Department of Ed-
ucation-owned school buildings on military 
installations. IAP expects two of the remain-
ing facilities to transfer to LEAs in FY 2024.

Grantee Satisfaction Survey
The Department of Education is ramping 
up its FY 2024 Grantee Satisfaction Survey.  
All 7002 applicants will be surveyed, and 
20% of Section 7003 applicants will be ran-
domly selected to participate. The launch 
date was slated for April 1, 2024.

Questions?
Please contact your Impact Aid state analyst 
directly with questions and for assistance. 
Find their name and contact information at 
impactaid.ed.gov/iap_staff/. •

At the 2024 NAFIS Spring Conference, Impact Aid Program Office Director Faatimah 
Muhammad shared an update from the U.S. Department of Education. Below, find key 
information from that presentation, as well as insights from her most recent "Direc-
tor's Update" and "News You Can Use" newsletters (both distributed by the Depart-
ment). In addition to Impact Aid information, she provided updates from the Office 
of Indian Education and an overview of Education Secretary Miguel Cardona's "Raise 
the Bar" initiative. To learn more, download the presentation slides.

Impact Aid Program staff also presented a breakout session on application monitoring 
(see page 9 for a brief overview).

FY 2024 Trend Data
Muhammad shared several interesting trends related to preliminary data from FY 2024 and FY 2025 Impact Aid applications, including:

Big Increase in Local Contribution Rate (LCR): The LCR estimates the local share of the cost of elementary and secondary education. It 
is multiplied by a school district's weighted federal student count to determine the district's maximum Section 7003 payment. LCR data is 
based on per-pupil expenditures (PPE) and lags by three years. That means the FY 2024 LCR is based on data from school year 2020-2021 
- the first year COVID relief funds were included in the calculation. As a result, the LCR jumped dramatically, with the "1/2 the National 
Average PPE" LCR going up by more than 7%. It is possible that pandemic spending will cause a similar jump again in FY 2025.

Big Decrease in Student Count: For FY 2022 and FY 2023, student count numbers held steady due to Impact Aid COVID relief legisla-
tion. FY 2024 is the first year since the pandemic began that enrollment changes are truly seen in the student count - and they appear to 
be significant. Early data shows a drop of approximately 139,000 federally connected students (more than 16%) between FY 2023 and FY 
2024 applications, with 70% of applicants experiencing a decrease in weighted student units. 

Big Increase in Hold Harmless: Even with the increase in LCR, IAP predicts that a decreased student count will drive the final payment 
rate and significantly increase the number of school districts that qualify for 7003(e), a Hold Harmless provision that prevents a 7003 school 
district from experiencing a payment drop of more than 20% in one year. For FY 2023, 9% of school districts qualified; for FY 2024, an 
estimated 35% will, impacting the funds available for other school districts in the program.

https://impactaid.ed.gov/iap_staff/
https://impactaid.ed.gov/wp-content/uploads/2024/03/IAP-Directors-Quarterly-Newsletter-Q2-FY24.pdf
https://impactaid.ed.gov/wp-content/uploads/2024/03/IAP-Directors-Quarterly-Newsletter-Q2-FY24.pdf
https://impactaid.ed.gov/april-2024-news-you-can-use/
https://www.nafisdc.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Spring-2024-IAP-Program-Updates.pdf


4

Foundation for Success, cont.

Session Round-Up" on pages 6-9 for more on what was discussed 
during the smaller group sessions.

On the general session stage, POLITICO reporter Daniel Lippman 
shared his thoughts on the political landscape and upcoming presi-
dential election in an off-the-record presentation; Impact Aid Pro-
gram Office Director Faatimah Muhammad gave an update from the 
U.S. Department of Education (see page 3 for details); and an off-the-
record congressional staff panel discussed current issues on the Hill, 
congressional priorities and how to hold successful Hill meetings.

Building a Better NAFIS

NAFIS also shared an update on the work we’ve been doing to build 
a better NAFIS, as we will soon finalize a new strategic direction. The 
multi-stage strategic planning process, under the direction of Brian 
Riggs, co-founder and CEO of Riggs Enterprise, included back-
ground research, member surveys, interviews with key stakehold-

...from page 1

ers and working 
sessions with the 
NAFIS Board 
to build a path 
forward that 
strengthens the 
NAFIS voice, 
improves mem-
ber services 
and ensures the 
organization is 
sustainable in the 
long-term. Riggs 
took to the gen-
eral session stage 
to outline the vision for NAFIS. He shared four focus areas for the 
organization: voice, community, awareness and sustainability, along 
with the rationale behind each and strategies to achieve our objectives. 

Moving Forward

School districts face challenges on multiple fronts, in-
cluding community issues like educator recruitment 
and chronic absenteeism. In addition,  policy hurdles 
like congressional gridlock and polarizing political 
views impact the day-to-day work of schools.  

We hope the information you heard at this confer-
ence lays a strong foundation as you work in your 
communities and advocate to Congress on behalf 
of your students. We look forward to continuing to 
work together to build a better future. •

Dr. Burnie Roper Elected to NAFIS Board
NAFIS is pleased to announce that Dr. Burnie Roper, Superintendent of Lackland Independent School District (Texas), has been 
elected to the NAFIS Board of Directors. The election took place at the 2024 NAFIS Spring Conference. As a member of the Board, 
Roper assumes a key leadership role in championing the interests of school districts benefiting from Impact Aid nationwide. He will 
also help guide NAFIS public policy work and oversee association plans. 

Roper has been involved with Impact Aid for 20 years, since joining Lackland ISD in 2004. He was named the district’s superintendent 
in 2009 after serving five years as high school principal. The school district boundaries are co-
terminous with Lackland Air Force Base, and its students live on or are otherwise connected 
to the installation.

“For Lackland ISD, Impact Aid is a critical source of income, as it comprises almost 50% of 
the district’s annual budget,” said Roper. “I am excited to be a part of the NAFIS Board of 
Directors to continue advocacy efforts and support all NAFIS subgroups in achieving the 
goals of the organization.”

Roper has served as president of the Texas Association of Federally Impacted Schools (TAFIS) 
since 2014. He is also a member of the Board of Directors of the Military Impacted Schools 
Associations (MISA, a NAFIS subgroup). He brings a military perspective to the NAFIS 
Board, having been commissioned as a second lieutenant in the U.S. Army in 1989, retiring at 
the rank of colonel from the U.S. Army Reserves after 35 years of service.

Join us in welcoming Dr. Roper to the Board! •

Riggs



5

Legislative Update
Final FY 2024 Appropriations
After a flurry of last-minute action into the 
early hours of March 23, Congress passed 
and President Biden signed the second pack-
age of six fiscal year (FY) 2024 appropriations 
bills – including the Labor-HHS-Education 
bill – to avert a partial government shutdown. 
Congress then began a two-week recess. 

Impact Aid received a modest $7.039 mil-
lion increase, with funding levels of:

• $1,474,000,000 for 7003 Basic Support, an 
increase of $5,758,000 from FY 2023 

• $79,000,000 for 7002 Federal Property, an 
increase of $687,000 

• $48,316,000 for 7003(d) Children with 
Disabilities, level funded

• $19,000,000 for 7007 Construction, an  
increase of $594,000 

• $4,835,000 for 7008 Facilities, level funded 

NAFIS is very pleased with this increase, 
which shows that Congress continues to rec-
ognize the importance of Impact Aid and pri-
oritize it in funding decisions, even in chal-
lenging fiscal environments. However, it is a 
long way until the program is fully funded.

Overall, the bill provides $79.1 billion for 
U.S. Department of Education programs, 
a very slight cut from FY 2023. Compar-
ing apples to apples, the bill cuts funding by 
almost $200 million (0.2%). This essential 
freeze is because FY 2024 non-defense dis-
cretionary funding is effectively frozen at 
the FY 2023 level due to spending caps that 
Congress enacted last summer. 

The bill provides increases of $20 million 
each for Title I and IDEA state grants, the 
smallest annual increase for both programs 
since FY 2013, when automatic sequestra-
tion cut all eligible programs after Congress 
had already enacted funding.

FY 2025 Appropriations 
Congress has moved quickly to begin the 
FY 2025 appropriations cycle, with budget 
hearings already underway in the House. As 
such, NAFIS has sent the House and Senate 

Appropriations Committees our funding re-
quest letter for Impact Aid and worked with 
our allies in Congress to begin circulating 
Dear Colleague letters in both the House and 
Senate. Members of Congress can sign on to 
these letters to express their support for the 
program to Committee leadership.

In FY 2025, NAFIS is requesting at least 
$1,695,151,000 for the Impact Aid Program, 
a $70 million increase over FY 2024 enacted 
levels. Specifically, we request $81 million for 
7002 Federal Property (a $2 million increase), 

$1,539,000,000 billion for 7003 Basic Support 
(a $65 million increase), $20.5 million for 
7007 Construction (a $1.5 million increase), 
and $49,816,000 million for 7003(d) Children 
with Disabilities (a $1.5 million increase). 

GOP Leadership Changes
McConnell Stepping Down – Sen. Mitch 
McConnell (R-KY) has announced that this 
will be his final term as Senate Republican 
Leader. He will be stepping down from his 
leadership position in November but says he 
plans to serve the remainder of his term in the 

Senate, which ends in 2027. Sen. McConnell 
became the longest-serving Senate leader in 
history at the start of this Congress, surpass-
ing Sen. Mike Mansfield of Montana. Possible 
successors include:

• “The Two Johns” – Sen. John Thune of 
South Dakota and Sen. John Cornyn of 
Texas have entered the race to serve as the 
new leader of the GOP in the Senate. Both 
have long been viewed as natural succes-
sors to McConnell. 

• Darkhorse Candidates – Other names be-
ing floated include Sen. Steve Daines of 
Montana (currently NRSC Chair), Sen. 
Tom Cotton of Arkansas and Sen. Rick 
Scott of Florida.

Granger Stepping Down as House Appro-
priations Committee Chair – In late March, 
House Appropriations Committee Chair Kay 
Granger (R-TX) wrote to Speaker Mike John-
son (R-LA) asking that he start the process of 
choosing a new Committee Chair for the rest 
of this Congress. Rep. Tom Cole (R-OK) and 
Rep. Robert Aderholt (R-AL) have since an-
nounced their candidacy for the position. 

NAFIS Priority Legislation
NAFIS continues to work closely with the 
sponsors of our two key pieces of legislation 
to build congressional support. We are happy 
to welcome the following new cosponsors:

• Impact Aid Infrastructure Partnership 
Act (S.2808/H.R.6698) - Rep. Andy Kim 
(D-NJ), Rep. Jill Tokuda (D-HI), Rep. Kim 
Schrier (D-WA)

• Advancing Toward Impact Aid Full Fund-
ing Act (S.3855/H.R.1591) - Rep. Raul Gri-
jalva (D-AZ), Rep. Mary Peltola (D-AK)

 
Impact Aid Coalitions
NAFIS is also working with the House and 
Senate Co-Chairs of the Impact Aid Coali-
tions to bolster the roster of Members who 
serve as our key allies in Congress. We have 
recently welcomed Sen. Tammy Duckworth 
(D-IL), Sen. Markwayne Mullin (R-OK), Rep. 
Michelle Steel (R-CA) and Rep. Pat Ryan (D-
NY) to the coalition. •

Connect with NAFIS on Social Media

Facebook: http://www.facebook.com/nafisschools 

 

X (formerly Twitter): @NAFISschools

(L to R) Mark Cross (Superintendent, Cass School 
District 63, IL); Mike Rocks (Director of Opera-
tions, Belle Chasse Academy, LA); Nicole Russell 

(NAFIS Executive Director); Charlie Kyle (Superin-
tendent, Burr Ridge CCSD 180, IL) 

https://www.nafisdc.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/NAFIS-FY25-Appropriations-Request-Letter.pdf
https://www.nafisdc.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/NAFIS-FY25-Appropriations-Request-Letter.pdf
https://www.facebook.com/nafisschools
https://twitter.com/NAFISschools


6

Keynote speaker Dr. Debbie Silver made a lasting impression 
throughout the conference with her exceptional sense of hu-
mor, storytelling skills and ability to connect with individuals 

from diverse backgrounds. In her breakout session on practicing "safe 
stress," she emphasized the importance of mental health for teachers, 
highlighting their crucial role in fostering a safe and nurturing envi-
ronment within schools. Educators engage with numerous individu-
als each day, which can be emotionally and mentally draining.

Silver offered practical suggestions to attendees to enhance their daily 
interactions both within and outside of work. One tip: become not 
only an active but also a productive listener by asking a simple ques-
tion, "Do you need to be helped, heard or hugged?" This straightfor-
ward inquiry can significantly improve communication and under-
standing, facilitating more meaningful and supportive interactions.

Moreover, she emphasized the vital role of humor, which she said 
has the ability to relax the body, boost immunity, foster a positive 
outlook on life and strengthen relationships. She shared a heartfelt 
anecdote from her own family experience, illustrating how humor 
served as a coping mechanism during challenging times, conveying 

the unspoken message 
a small chuckle holds: 
"I promise, you'll get 
through this." 

In addition, she gave 
attendees practical tips 
for integrating stress-
relief strategies into 
daily routines. While 
each suggestion is valu-
able for destressing and 
cultivating healthy re-
lationships, key take-
aways include: prioritize 
healthy eating and sleep habits, cultivate a support network, mod-
erate alcohol intake, engage with your community, employ humor 
to navigate challenging situations, make time for daily enjoyment, 
manage time effectively, advocate for yourself and, above all, priori-
tize mental well-being and mindfulness. She also shared a digital 
handout for conference attendees. •

Spring Conference Breakout Session Round-Up
Practicing "Safe Stress!" Building Resiliency in Educators

Many federally impacted school districts across the coun-
try face a common challenge: updating infrastructure 
with limited funding. This well-attended breakout session 

shared the story of a school district able to complete a major modern-
ization project, highlighted proposed legislation to increase funding 
for the Impact Aid Construction program and provided an overview 
of the general landscape on federal funding for school infrastructure.

Briggs Public School (OK) Superintendent Stephen Haynes shared 
how his district braided funds from a variety of sources, including 
Impact Aid and ESSER, to renovate and build facilities. He also 
provided a cautionary note, explaining that since they used ESSER 
funds, there is a “federal interest” in the project (which means in part 
that if an event like a fire or tornado causes damages, the federal gov-
ernment would be entitled to their portion of the insurance money).

Then, Brent Gish, Executive Director of the National Indian Im-
pacted Schools Association (NIISA), reviewed the Impact Aid Con-

struction program (Section 7007 of the Impact Aid law), which for 
FY 2024 will provide $19 million in funds for construction to feder-
ally impacted school districts that meet eligibility criteria. He also 
provided insights into the Impact Aid Infrastructure Partnership 
Act (IAIPA), which would provide $1 billion to Impact Aid Con-
struction over four years ($250 million/year). It would also expand 
eligibility for the program and make teacher housing an allowable 
use of funds. Building support for this legislation is a NAFIS priority.  

In addition, Ally Talcott, Executive Director of the [Re]Build Amer-
ica’s School Infrastructure Coalition (BASIC, of which NAFIS is a 
member), gave an overview of the federal landscape on school con-
struction funds. She noted that it was disappointing schools were not 
included in the bipartisan infrastructure legislation signed into law in 
2021 but that advocacy for the Rebuild America’s Schools Act, which 
has been introduced in multiple congresses, continues. She also re-
ported progress that shows school construction is gaining traction 
as a federal issue, including a recent grant to establish a National 

Center on School Infrastructure (NCSI) and the Sup-
porting America’s School Infrastructure (SASI) grant 
program in the U.S. Department of Education (ED), 
which provides funds to states to help high-need schools 
and districts leverage federal, state and local resources to 
improve school facilities and environments.  

She then shared opportunities for schools to get fed-
eral funds outside of ED to meet infrastructure needs, 
including the Clean School Bus Rebates program run 
through the Environmental Protection Agency and the 
Renew America’s Schools program through the Depart-
ment of Energy. •

Building Knowledge on School Infrastructure

(L to R) Haynes, Gish, Talcott Round-up continues on page 7...

https://www.nafisdc.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Practicing-Safe-Stress-Debbie-Silver.pdf
https://www.nafisdc.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Practicing-Safe-Stress-Debbie-Silver.pdf
https://www.nafisdc.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/02/Issue-Brief_Construction-Revised-2.7.24.pdf
https://www.nafisdc.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/02/Issue-Brief_Construction-Revised-2.7.24.pdf
https://www.nafisdc.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/03/IAIPA-One-Page-Overview-Spring-2024.pdf
https://www.nafisdc.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/03/IAIPA-One-Page-Overview-Spring-2024.pdf
https://oese.ed.gov/offices/school-infrastructure-programs-sip/national-center-on-school-infrastructure-ncsi/
https://oese.ed.gov/offices/school-infrastructure-programs-sip/national-center-on-school-infrastructure-ncsi/
https://oese.ed.gov/offices/school-infrastructure-programs-sip/supporting-americas-school-infrastructure-grant-program-sasi/
https://oese.ed.gov/offices/school-infrastructure-programs-sip/supporting-americas-school-infrastructure-grant-program-sasi/
https://www.epa.gov/cleanschoolbus/clean-school-bus-program-rebates
https://www.energy.gov/scep/renew-americas-schools


7

Every Day Matters: Strategies to Reduce Chronic Absenteeism

Membership Corner - Farewell to the NAFIS Family!
Thank you for 35 Years at NAFIS

If you attended the March 2024 NAFIS Spring Conference, you experienced a treat. The conference had great 
speakers, breakouts, awards presentations and something for everyone. I hope you enjoyed it and gleaned 
several takeaways to use in your school districts. This newsletter recaps and showcases the March confer-

ence, which will be my last at NAFIS. This is also my last "Membership Corner" - I am retired as of April 1!

Throughout the conference I received several special awards, recognizing my 35 years of service to NAFIS. I 
was truly honored to receive the many gifts, cards and well wishes from the different segments within NAFIS. 
My deepest heartfelt thank you to everyone, including Impact Schools of South Dakota (ISSD), MISA, NIISA, 
FLISA, LO~ISA, the Oklahoma Association Serving Impacted Schools (OASIS) and all of those who wished 
me well on my retirement.

I will miss you all – you’ve been my extended family for all these years. I looked forward to every conference in 
Washington, DC, and was excited to see all you, both new and returning attendees, each time. I will miss that as 

well. My decision to retire was bittersweet; however, I’m moving on to the next exciting chapter in my life. So, this is not a “goodbye,” it’s 
just, “I’ll see you around!” I wish all of you the best for the future! •

Lynn Watkins

Chronic absenteeism has surged since the pandemic. 
In this session, Education Week's Evie Blad shared 
insights and moderated a panel examining atten-

dance trends post-COVID and strategies to address ab-
senteeism. Voyd St. Pierre (Superintendent, Rocky Boy 
Schools, MT) and Christine Walker (Superintendent, Hue-
neme Elementary School District, CA) each shared their 
district context, both highlighting concerning attendance 
rates among the youngest students. They also identified 
shifting reasons for absences, including families keeping 
students home for minor illnesses, a rise in student anxi-
ety and access to digital tools enabling remote schoolwork, 
making some families perceive attendance as less critical.

In Hueneme, attendance has been added to Multi-Tiered Systems 
of Support (MTSS) goals. It is now everyone’s responsibility, a shift 
from past practice, when it was managed by a small administrative 
team. Another strategy Walker shared is home visits, during which 
staff stress the vital social aspects of school life and explain return-to 
school policies to address changing norms regarding illness. 

Rocky Boy also employs an all-hands-on-deck approach on atten-
dance. St. Pierre agreed that re-educating families on return-from-
illness policies is important and added the importance of re-educat-
ing staff on these policies, both so they can inform families and so 
they themselves do not miss school unnecessarily. 

The panel also featured the student perspective. Ursula Myron-
Salvata, a Tuba City Unified School District (AZ) student, offered 

insights on why students do or do not attend school. She noted that 
the pandemic was a very difficult time and that schools need more 
counselors and avenues to help students deal with grief. In response 
to the question, “What can teachers do [to get students to come to 
school]?” she explained the importance of teachers who get to know 
their students on a personal, one-on-one level.

Other strategies mentioned during the panel and audience Q&A in-
cluded gathering student input on attendance, reassessing responses 
to unexcused absences, prioritizing educators' cultural understand-
ing, integrating physical and mental health services into schools. and 
leveraging sports and coaches to boost attendance. The consensus 
from the session? Chronic absenteeism is a multifaceted challenge 
that no one has solved, but there are promising practices that districts 
can adapt to their needs. •

(L to R) St. Pierre, Walker, Myron-Salvata

With Hyatt Staff (Ending Reception) Receiving a Handmade Quilt (ISSD Dinner) Onstage (Conference Luncheon)

Round-up continues on page 8...

mailto:lynn%40nafisdc.org?subject=NAFIS%20Inquiry


8

In this session, Robin Vitucci of the American Federation of 
Teachers (AFT) dove into a report on revitalizing the educa-
tor and staff pipeline and restructuring schools to create posi-

tive working conditions. The report finds that teachers and school 
staff are exhausted and fed up with the conditions under which they 
work, though not the students they teach. Recommendations high-
lighted by the report include allowing teachers and staff time for col-
laboration and professional development; respecting their opinion 
on policy issues affecting the classroom; increasing salaries and ben-
efits; lowering class sizes; increasing planning time; turning schools 
into hubs for the community; curbing the “test-and-punish” obses-
sion; reducing endless paperwork; and ensuring the teacher work-
force is as diverse as the students they serve. 

Next, Susan Kemper Patrick, a Senior Researcher on the Educator 
Quality team at the Learning Policy Institute (LPI), discussed “The 
State of the Teacher Workforce,” an interactive map compiled from 
national data sources that reflect the supply and demand for teachers 
in each state, including conditions of teachers’ work and equitable 
access to qualified teachers. Based on this data, each state is assigned 
two ratings on: 

• Teaching attractiveness, based on teacher compensation, work-
ing conditions, school resources, qualifications and teacher turn-
over to indicate how supportive each state appears to be of teacher 
recruitment and retention

• Teacher equity, indicating the extent to which students have equi-
table access to a well-qualified teaching workforce within a given 
state based on school composition of student race/ethnicity and 
family income

In addition, the tool summarizes other factors influencing teacher 
supply and demand in each state, including information about the 
teacher pipeline, current teacher workforce, student enrollment and 
teacher financial strain.

Download the AFT report and visit the LPI website to explore the 
resources discussed. •

Attracting and Retaining Teachers and Staff

Hill Meetings 101 provided an opportunity for both begin-
ner and seasoned Impact Aid advocates to review strategies 
on successful and productive Hill meetings. Led by NAFIS 

leaders Tom Schneider (Executive Director, FLISA), Kyle Fairbairn 
(Executive Director, MISA) and Billie Jordan (Executive Director, 
OASIS), the session offered practical advice, personal anecdotes and 
other resources to enhance understanding of Hill meetings and suc-
cessful advocacy techniques.

Schneider discussed the similarities between sales and Hill meet-
ings. In both cases, one must know the product they are selling. It is 
essential to be prepared to answer very specific questions about your 
school district, as congressional staff often conduct background re-
search prior to meetings. Likewise, before going to a Hill meeting, it 
is crucial to research the congressperson's positions on education, 
military and other relevant issues. Just as it is important to know 

what you are selling, it is equally important to know to whom you 
are selling this product.

He also emphasized that hundreds of people go to congressional of-
fices asking for various things, so there must be something that sets 
you apart from others. Therefore, Schneider suggests incorporating 
the MERIT system - which stands for Memorable, Emotional, Relat-
able, Immersive and Tangible - into your advocacy.

According to Fairbairn, it is also important to distinguish yourself 
from other Impact Aid recipients, as every school district and state 
has its own unique issues and concerns. He delved into practical tips 
and advice. An advocate must use time well and not get sidetracked; 
sometimes congressional staff kill time, and you realize after the 
meeting that you have not asked what you wanted to ask. When go-
ing to a meeting with a group, each participant should explain how 
Impact Aid is used in their district and not monopolize other peo-
ple's speaking time.

Jordan offered advice on organizing logistics as well as content.  
OASIS provides handouts to advocates that include information such 
as the legislator's name, contact details, office location, group number 
and meeting time. This sheet is a guide to navigating large delegations 
and ensures clarity on group assignments. By preparing beforehand, 
the Hill meetings are less stressful and more likely to go smoothly.

The major takeaway from the session: effective Hill meetings demand 
thorough preparation, attention to detail and a compelling advocacy 
strategy to convey the interests of your schools effectively. •

Hill Meetings 101

(L to R) Jordan, Schneider, Fairbairn

(L to R) Vitucci, Patrick

Round-up continues on page 9...

https://www.aft.org/sites/default/files/media/2022/taskforcereport0722.pdf
https://learningpolicyinstitute.org/product/state-of-teacher-workforce-interactive
https://www.aft.org/press-release/aft-unveils-report-teacher-and-school-staff-shortages
https://learningpolicyinstitute.org/product/state-of-teacher-workforce-interactive


9

One breakout session featured a student panel discussion on 
the importance of cultural acceptance and appreciation in 
schools. The panel was moderated by Angela DiLeo, NAFIS 

Policy & Communications Assistant, with students Teia Saunsoci 
and Desma Walker from Umoⁿhoⁿ Nation Public School in Ne-
braska along with Skylar Ringo and Haylee Fort from Waynesville 
School District in Missouri participating.

The students offered insights on how their schools incorporate culture 
into their environments and the positive effect that has on students’ 
well-being and education. All panelists agreed that having teachers 
understand your culture, whether military or Native, is important 
in order for them to connect with students and to teach students 
about their peers. Fort, who is not a military student, is affected by 
the transient nature of the military and has seen peers and teachers 
come and go throughout her time at Waynesville. She highlighted the 
importance of strong connections between staff and students that start 
with knowing students’ names and greeting them at the door in the 
morning. Saunsoci agreed, noting that teachers in her district have 
begun to make these connections by responding to their titles in the 
native Omaha language. 

Saunsoci also talked about the culturally relevant extracurriculars 
her school provides, such as hand game team and the White Eagle 
Club. She and Walker are a part of these activities and enjoy learning 
about the Omaha culture in school. Ringo, a daughter of military 
parents, praised her school for their diversity panels and national 

events that bring together students of different backgrounds to learn 
more about each other and share cultural practices.  

The session ended with students giving advice to the school leaders 
in the room on how to better support Native and military impacted 
students. The Umoⁿhoⁿ Nation students expressed interest in learning 
more about current events surrounding Native people and the truth, 
whether pleasant or hard to hear, about students like them. Waynesville 
students suggested schools could incorporate programs of diversity 
and student mentors like their district has done. 

NAFIS is grateful to these students for participating in the panel and 
this insightful and well-received conference session. •

Supporting Students’ Educational, Emotional and Cultural Needs

Student Panelists

Conference attendees also had the chance to hear directly from 
the U.S. Department of Education on best practices on moni-
toring reviews. Program analysts Chad Eggleston and Robin 

Gregory provided an overview of monitoring requirements. 

If selected for a monitoring review, a school district must submit ad-
ditional documentation for four sections of the application: mem-
bership, the federally connected student count, financial informa-
tion on Special Education and Construction and Indian Policies and 
Procedures (IPP) implementation. The Department recommends 
holding on to all Impact Aid application documentation for up to 
five years after it is collected. Eggleston and Gregory also reminded 
the audience of the enrollment information needed for the applica-
tion: current year student enrollment on the survey date (including 

preschool students if eligible), along with the district’s tuition-in and 
tuition-out children, which are used in determining the overall total. 

Regarding IPPs: there is a lot of data that needs to be collected, but 
the Department simplifies the goal of the exercise down to two main 
questions: “Is your LEA following the required procedures?” and 
“Are Tribes and parents participating?” 

The next step is organizing documents. Organize first by application 
section, then by category of federally connected students, then by 
property, then alphabetically by child’s last name. Eggleston notes 
that although this may seem like a lot of work, the good news is, 
“Sometimes monitoring reviews lead to higher payments!”

Gregory warned of common mistakes to avoid, including incomplete 
Parent Pupil Survey forms, incorrect Source Checks, IEP signatures 
dated after the survey date, missing National Guard and reservists 
orders, or missing any other necessary documents. Also, districts 
should note that LEAs selected for monitoring cannot submit an 
amended application; however, they may continue to add federally 
connected students until June 30. 

They end with the reminder that the Impact Aid Grant System is a 
useful tool for looking up Impact Aid payments by state or district, as 
well as for finding reference documents, sample forms and slide decks. 

If you missed the session, download the session slides, or visit the 
Department website for FAQs on application monitoring. •

Application Monitoring Fiscal Year 2025:  Tips for Success

(L to R) Gregory, Eggleston

https://www.nafisdc.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/2024-Spring-IAP-Breakout-Session-Monitoring.pdf
https://impactaid.ed.gov/faqs/


10

The 2024 NAFIS Spring Conference Survey was complet-
ed by 56 of the more than 320 attendees that joined us 
in Washington, DC. Of those respondents, 98% found the 

conference material to be useful in their work. One respondent 
commented that the conference was “very invigorating and in-
formative." Many noted that they enjoyed the keynote speaker, 
Dr. Debbie Silver, with 98% rating her general session presenta-
tion as “good” or “excellent.” 

Compared to past events, this conference featured an additional 
day of breakout sessions, which more than 70% of respondents 
would like to see again. Attendees rated many of the breakout 
sessions highly, including a new “Hill Day 101,” which 95% of re-
spondents rated as “good” or “excellent.” In addition to her keynote, 
Dr. Silver presented a breakout session on "safe stress" to a packed 
room that more than 95% of respondents said was “good” or “excel-
lent.” Many noted that both Dr. Silver’s sessions were very engaging, 
with one saying “Debbie Silver’s out of this world performance never 
lost sight of [the goal] and stayed in tune.” Suggestions for this fall 
include hearing more from speakers like Dr. Silver and incorporat-
ing more student participation.

Another change from past events was a shift in the Tuesday end-
ing reception time, which was moved forward an hour as suggested 
in previous conference survey responses. Attendees were asked for 
feeedback on the change and the future timing of this reception, and 
57% would prefer to keep it on Tuesday evening versus 35%  Monday 
evening (7% had other suggestions). The ending reception was highly 
rated, with 26 of 28 respondents saying it was “good” or “excellent.” 

Attendees Share Feedback on the 2024 NAFIS Spring Conference

NAFIS staff takes survey feedback into consideration when planning 
conferences, and as suggested previously, this spring there were mul-
tiple instances of student participation both on the general session 
stage and in two breakout sessions. Attendees “loved having students 
as part of the conference...Hearing firsthand accounts from their ex-
periences is important.” Additionally, 92% of respondents thought 
the general session student presentation was “good” or “excellent.” 
Ideas for future conferences include incorporating “shared stories 
from other schools on what’s working in their school,” “offering the 
same breakout sessions on Sunday and Monday,” “more conversation 
about special education” and “ways to measure student success that 
are not tied to test scores.” 

The survey also identified areas and topics that NAFIS members 
would like to continue. For example, attendees appreciate “having 
the time to collaborate and network with others.” Respondents were 
thankful for the “up-to-date status on political landscape,” “ways we 
could advocate for our needs in our Hill visits,” “conference materials 
[that] help simplify Impact Aid" and more. They also rated the con-
ference registration website and conference emails highly.

Thank you to those who completed the conference survey. We will 
continue to consider these results as we move forward in planning 
future conferences, using them to develop new resources and bring 
new ideas to our events. Also, know that you do not need to wait for 
the conference evaluation to share your thoughts with staff. Please 
reach out any time with suggestions or questions we can answer. 

We hope to see you at the 2024 Fall Conference, September 22-24, 
in DC! Be on the lookout for registration to open mid-summer. •

Did the conference cover material that will be useful in your work?

We Asked, You Answered!

“We currently hold school in a 
117-year-old building. Our campus is 
spread across multiple buildings and 
holds many safety issues that need 
improvement. We do great work in a 
building that is literally crumbling, so 
it’d be amazing to see what we would do 
in a functional building!”
- Superintendent, Nebraska

“As a district that hosts a large installa-
tion, we don’t have the bonding capacity 
to build new schools. Some of our school 
buildings are over 70 years old and 
desperately in need of replacement. We 
will need infrastructure funds to ensure 
students learn in safe environments and 
buildings.”
- Superintendent, California

“We are in the process of updating facilities. 
Our most pressing issue now is roofing fixes 
or replacements”
- CFO, Texas

We asked NAFIS members what infrastructure needs their school district has. Here are some of the responses:

“We need room for a growing student 
population. Expansion and modernization”
- Superintendent, North Dakota

This conference featured two sets of breakout sessions 
(Sunday afternoon/Monday morning). What is your  
preference regarding breakout sessions?



11

Conference in Photos

Thank you to all who attended the 2024 NAFIS Spring Conference, Building a Better Future. It was great to see so many members 
of the NAFIS Family in DC, and we hope those who came enjoyed the experience. While NAFIS conferences are hard to put into 
words, a picture is worth 1,000 of them. Here are a few of our favorite images that – in addition to what is described elsewhere in this 

publication – represent key moments, sentiments and energy from the gathering. Thanks to photographer Eddie Arrossi for documenting 
the event. Check out our Flickr album for more!  

The work at NAFIS conferences is critical to maintaining and strengthening Impact Aid, ensuring students receive the resources they need 
to meet their full potential. We look forward to welcoming you back for the 2024 NAFIS Fall Conference, September 22-24. •

https://www.flickr.com/photos/197940844@N06/albums/72177720315459790/with/53589745923


12

Board of Directors 
President
Keith Mispagel - MISA
kmispagel@usd207.org

Vice President
Quincy Natay - NIISA
quincy@chinleusd.k12.az.us

Secretary
Craig Hutcheson - FLISA
chutches@krhs.net

Treasurer
Chad Blotsky - NIISA
chad.blotsky@k12.sd.us

Director, Region One
Helen Payne - MISA
hpayne@nhanover.com

Director, Region Two
Stephanie Clark - MISA
sclark@liberty.k12.ga.us

Director, Region Three
Wendell Waukau - NIISA
wwaukau@misd.k12.wi.us

Director, Region Four
Trista Olney - MISA
trista.olney@k12.sd.us

Director, Region Five
Stephen Haynes - NIISA
shaynes@briggs.k12.ok.us

Director, Region Six
Thomas Addington - MISA/NIISA
taddingt@central.k12.ca.us

Directors At-Large

Deborah Jackson-Dennison - NIISA
d.dennison@sancarlos.k12.az.us

Rosemarie Kraeger - MISA/LO~ISA
rkraeger@mpsri.net

Voyd St. Pierre - NIISA
voydsp@rockyboy.k12.mt.us

James Sarruda - MISA/LO~ISA
drjas38@gmail.com

School Board Liaison
Brian Gallup - NIISA
gallupbrian@yahoo.com

Immediate Past President
Thomas Schneider - FLISA
schneiderthomasw@hotmail.com
 
IMPACT is published by the National Associa-
tion of Federally Impacted Schools, 400 North 
Capitol St NW, Suite 290, Washington, DC  
20001. (202) 624-5455. Copyright 2024. All 
rights reserved. Content may not be reproduced 
without the express written permission of 
NAFIS. We welcome commentary and letters to 
the editor. Address correspondence to NAFIS at 
the above address. Members receive IMPACT 
as a free membership service. Call or email for 
more information. 

Sarruda Honored for Contributions to
Impact Aid

NAFIS is proud to recognize long-time Impact Aid advocate and NAFIS Board mem-
ber Dr. James (Jim) Sarruda with the Virginia Allred Stacey Founders Award. This 
award is the highest that NAFIS offers.

Sarruda was honored for his leadership, dedication and service to the Impact Aid com-
munity. He has been active with Impact Aid and NAFIS for nearly 30 years, serving on 
the NAFIS Board of Directors since 2007, including as president 2017-2019. His initial en-
gagement stemmed from the federal government’s impact on Northern Burlington County  
Regional School District (NJ), which he served as superintendent for 29 years, retiring in 
2022. The district educates a substantial population of military students connected to Joint 
Base McGuire-Dix-Lakehurst. Over the years, Sarruda has championed the entire Impact 
Aid program, building expertise in and forging connections with districts impacted by Indian 

lands, federal low-income housing and other 
federal properties to ensure a unified message 
and advance the NAFIS agenda.

After retiring from Northern Burlington, he 
remains committed to Impact Aid. He has 
been actively involved in the establishment 
and growth of the Learning Opportunity  
Impacted Schools Association (LO~ISA, a 
NAFIS subgroup), of which he is past presi-
dent and now serves as executive director.

The entire NAFIS Family thanks Jim for his 
commitment to NAFIS and Impact Aid. •

Doebert Receives Inaugural Hilary 
Goldmann Women in Leadership Award

Sarruda (L) with NAFIS President Keith Mispagel

NAFIS has honored Dr. Sandra (Sandy) Doebert with the inaugural Hilary Goldmann 
Women in Leadership Award. Established in memory of the late NAFIS Executive 
Director, the award is presented to women in the NAFIS community who demonstrate 

exceptional leadership in and contributions to Impact Aid and the school districts it serves. 
Recipients are also celebrated for mentoring and empowering women in the NAFIS Family.

Doebert is a trailblazer, retiring after a decade as the first female superintendent in Lemont 
High School District 210 (IL) history. During her tenure, Lemont High School became one of 
the state’s premier high schools. She also oversaw a successful bond referendum and facilities 
construction that continues to benefit Lemont students. In addition, she served as a mentor 
to new and aspiring school district leaders in both her state and the Impact Aid community.  

She is also a NAFIS leader, serving many years on the Board and multiple terms as president 
(the first female president in more than 
30 years and the second in the associa-
tion’s history), steering the organization 
through a seamless leadership transition 
and many legislative victories. She served 
on the Board and as president of the Fed-
eral Lands Impacted Schools Associa-
tion (FLISA, a NAFIS subgroup), while 
engaging in concerted efforts to bring 
together the full Impact Aid community. 

The NAFIS Family thanks Sandy for her 
dedication to NAFIS and Impact Aid and 
for her work nurturing the next genera-
tion of leaders in our community. •

Doebert (center) with NAFIS Past President Tom 
Schneider and Board Member Helen Payne











Stratford Elementary School – May Update 
 

 
 
May/June School Events: 
 
May 1st-24th CAASPP Testing (3-8) 
   ELPAC Summative Assessment (TK-2) 
May 6th-10th  Staff Appreciation Week 
May 7th   Track Meet @LHS 
May 8th  Student Leadership Planning Day  
May 9th  Local SARB Hearings 
   8th Grade Summer Bridge Presentation 
May 13th  Board Presentation- Student Leadership 
May 13th-17th Spring SEL Survey (3-8) 
May 13th-24th iReady Screener (K-2) 
May 22nd   Open House 
May 24th   Spring Color Run 
May 27th   Memorial Day- No School 
May 28th   Preschool Visit to Kinder Classrooms 
June 4th   8th Grade Promotion Ceremony @6PM 
June 5th  Kona Ice Attendance Celebration 
June 6th  8th Grade Wild Water Adventure Trip 
   Play Day (Grades TK-5th) 
June 7th    Trimester Awards 

   Last Day of School/End of Trimester 3 
 



5/2/24, 2:02 PMNeutra Jets | Smore Newsletters for Education

Page 1 of 11https://secure.smore.com/n/ysbvf

Neutra Jets
Weekly Update 4/29/24-5/3/24



5/2/24, 2:02 PMNeutra Jets | Smore Newsletters for Education

Page 2 of 11https://secure.smore.com/n/ysbvf

StateTestingBeginsfor3rd-5thGradeStudents



5/2/24, 2:02 PMNeutra Jets | Smore Newsletters for Education

Page 3 of 11https://secure.smore.com/n/ysbvf



5/2/24, 2:02 PMNeutra Jets | Smore Newsletters for Education

Page 4 of 11https://secure.smore.com/n/ysbvf



5/2/24, 2:02 PMNeutra Jets | Smore Newsletters for Education

Page 5 of 11https://secure.smore.com/n/ysbvf



5/2/24, 2:02 PMNeutra Jets | Smore Newsletters for Education

Page 6 of 11https://secure.smore.com/n/ysbvf

NeutraOpenHouse5/22/24
4:00p.m.-5:00p.m.



5/2/24, 2:02 PMNeutra Jets | Smore Newsletters for Education

Page 7 of 11https://secure.smore.com/n/ysbvf

24/25NEWSTUDENTREGISTRATION

335Share Accessibility

https://secure.smore.com/app?s=logo


5/2/24, 2:02 PMNeutra Jets | Smore Newsletters for Education

Page 8 of 11https://secure.smore.com/n/ysbvf



5/2/24, 2:02 PMNeutra Jets | Smore Newsletters for Education

Page 9 of 11https://secure.smore.com/n/ysbvf

MilitaryandFamilyLifeCounselingProgram

Information about the Consent Form Consent Form



5/2/24, 2:02 PMNeutra Jets | Smore Newsletters for Education

Page 10 of 11https://secure.smore.com/n/ysbvf

Program

ALLIANCEFORA

HEALTHIER
GENERATION

LEADINGTHEWAYFORCHILDREN'SHEALTH
Healthierseneration.ors

HealthySnack&BeverageIdeas*
Water

100%fruitjuicewithnoaddedsugar
Fat-freeorlowfatmilk
Fruitsmoothies(madewithfrozenfruitwithnoaddedsugarandfat-freeorlowfatyogurt)
100%fruitjuiceslusheswithnoaddedsugar
Freshfruit-trays,saladsorkabobs
Freshvegetables-trays,saladsorkabobs
Fat-freeorlowfatyogurt(aloneorasdipforfruitsorvegetables)
Yogurtparfaits(fatfreeorlowfatyogurt,fruitandwholegraincerealorgranolaastopping)
Cannedfruitorfruitcups(inwater,100%fruitjuiceorlightsyrup)
Frozenfruitorfruitcups(inwater,100%fruitjuiceorlightsyrup)
Frostyfruits-freezeyourownfruit(frozengrapesmakeagreatsummertreat!)
Driedfruitwithnoaddedsugar
Wholegraincrackers
Low-fatcheese(servewithfruitorwholegraincrackers)
Hummus(servewithvegetablesorwholegraincrackers)
Smallwholegrainwafflesorpancakestoppedwithfruit
Wholegrainpretzels(softorcrunchy)
Low-fatorair-poppedpopcorn(noaddedbutterorsalt)
Grahamcrackers

SmallwholegrainbagelsorEnglishmuffinsorjelly
Pizza(onwholegraincrustwithlowfatcheeseandleanproteinorvegetabletoppings)
Roll-upsonwholegraintortillas(fillwithaleanproteinsuchashamorturkey,lowfatcheese,
hummus,andjellyorvegetables)
Fat-freeorlowfatpudding
Beanquesadillasorburritosmadewithwholegraintortillaswithsalsa
Wholegraincerealbars
Bakedwholegraintortillachipswithsalsaorbeandip
Bakedchips(smallportions)

*CheckingredientstatementsandnutritioninformationtoensureitemsmeettheUSDASmartSnacksin
Schoolnutritionstandards.Ensurefoodallergiesofanyparticipantsareknownbeforeservinganyfood
tOME

Pairfoodstogetherforanafternoonsnacktopoweryouthupfortheiractivities,whetherthatisphysical
activityoreducationalactivities.Combinealeanproteinwithafruitorvegetable,suchassunflower
seedsdriedraisins.Oralow-fatdairyfoodandwhole-grainrichchoice,likestringcheeseandwhole
graincrackers.Trylow-fatdairyandfruit-yogurtandstrawberries.Pairawhole-grainrichfoodwitha
leanproteinbyspreadinghummusonawholegraintortilla.Orserveawhole-grainrichfoodand
vegetable,suchasawholegraincerealbarandcherrytomatoes.Getcreative!

Formoreinformationonhealthysnackingorfindinghealthysnacksandbeverages,visit
healthiergeneration.org

Upcoming Events
5/7/24- Track League Meet @ LHS (Must qualify) 3:00pm-8:00pm
5/22/24- Open House 4:00pm-5:00pm (Open to the Public)
5/30/24-Zoo To You Assembly- Grades TK, K and 1st (Closed to Public)
6/3/24-6/6/24- Early Out All Week
6/4/24- Kinder Patriotic Performance-12:40pm (Open to Public)



5/2/24, 2:02 PMNeutra Jets | Smore Newsletters for Education

Page 11 of 11https://secure.smore.com/n/ysbvf

Created with

Communicate quickly and effectively with interactive newsletters.
Smore empowers educators to connect with their community, streamline school communications,
and increase engagement.

Create a newsletter

6/5/24- Awards Assembly (Times to be Determined)
6/6/24- Water Olympics for all Students ( Closed to Public)
6/7/24-Last Day of School

Elizabeth Alvarado
Elizabeth is using Smore to create beautiful newsletters

https://secure.smore.com/




















CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
April 8, 2024
MINUTES

The regular open public meeting of the Central Union School District Board of Trustees was
held on Monday, April 8, 2024 at District Presentation Center, 15783 18th Avenue, Lemoore, CA
93245. The Board meeting began with a preliminary open session at 5:10 p.m. and adjourned
into closed session at 5:15 p.m. After the closed session the general open session was called
to order at 6:10 p.m. The meeting adjourned at 6:59 p.m.

Any individual who requires a translator, disability-related accommodations or modifications
including auxiliary aids and services in order to participate in the Board meeting should contact
the Superintendent or designee in writing no later than 8:00 a.m. the day of the meeting.

Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majority of the
governing board regarding an open session item on this agenda are available for public
inspection and may be accessed under the Board Agenda and backup information housed on
the District website at www.central.k12.ca.us.

CUSD Mission Statement ~
Central Union School District seeks to be an exemplary learning community. We build the foundation of this
community through meaningful relationships, relevant and engaging learning, effective communication, and providing
a safe atmosphere. Each student will be treated as an individual, given the tools to be a lifelong learner, and taught
to function as a member of a group and as a productive member of society. We challenge ourselves to be better than
we think we can be, and advocate for the greater good of our community. Our success in this mission will build
lifelong, confident learners, who have the tools necessary for success in a changing world.

1. OPEN PUBLIC SESSION:

a. Call to Order

b. Roll Call

c. Flag Salute

Trustees:
Dale Davidson, Jeffrey Gilcrease, Ceil Howe III, and Sarah Strait were all
present.

District Administration: Site Administration:

Tom Addington Akers: Heiko Sweeney, Darin Denney
Traci Fullerton Central: Anne Gonzales, David Pilcher
Jared Johnson Neutra: Elizabeth Alvarado, Brittany Gately



Karla Burgos-Rodriquez Stratford: Christina Gonzales, Tara Taylor
Teresa Santamaria
Davinder Sidhu

All administration was present with the exception of Teresa Santamaria and Davinder
Sidhu. CUSD Employee Associations' Representatives and others were in attendance.

2. PROCEDURE FOR VISITORS WHO WISH TO ADDRESS THE BOARD:

If any visitor wishes to address the Board, the request form, entitled “Request to Address
the Board” should be filled out as soon as possible. Complete the form in its entirety
and give it to the Superintendent. Persons may speak to any item on the agenda
when it comes up for discussion or persons may speak during the time designated,
“Courtesy to Visitors.” Persons speaking to the board should understand that the Board
invites your comments. Most questions asked of the Board require research and/or
investigation. Therefore, the Board may respond to your questions in writing. Your input
is important. However, if the comments involve a District employee or a student, the
President will, at that time, explain the rights of the Speaker and the rights of the
employee and/or student. Each address to the Board should not exceed five minutes in
length with no more than thirty minutes per item.

3. PRESENTATION(S):
a. Neutra Elementary School

4. DISTRICT REPORTS
a. Business - Teresa Santamaria
b. Superintendent Update provided.

ENROLLMENT

BEG. OF
YEAR
2022-2023

BEG. OF
YEAR
2023-2024

March
2022-23

March
2023-24

Inter
Districts TOTAL

AKERS 672 651 677 634 LESD 30

CENTRAL 226 227 249 221 HANFORD 10

NEUTRA 413 428 422 421 OTHER 2

STRATFORD 283 278 293 304 Intra-District 4

TOTAL 1594 1584 1641 1580 TOTAL 46

5. COURTESY TO VISITORS:



6. CORRESPONDENCE AND BOARD INFORMATION:
a. Spring NAFIS talking point, 2024
b. MISA Newsletter, March 2024
c. 3rd Quarter Williams Compliance Report

7. CONSENT
(at this time board members may request that an item or items be removed from the
consent agenda and placed as ‘new business’)

a. Approved minutes of the regular board meeting of March 11, 2024
b. Approve new hires: None
c. Approved separations:

i. 30-3/24
ii. 31-3/24

d. Approved Agreement w/Fresno Pacific University - student teaching
e. Approved Agreement w/Alliant University - student teaching
f. Approved Letter of Support for Shanley Farms in pursuit of grant application
g. Approved Agreement w/Powerschool renewal of Student Information System
h. Approved Agreement w/Kings County Office of Education re SARB
i. Approved Agreement w/CrisisGo Safety iResponse System
j. Approved renewal agreement w/Super Co-Op Joint Powers Authority
k. Approved Agreement w/Total Compensation Solutions for GASB75 proposal
l. Approved Cafeteria Surplus request
m. Approved update (expenditures) to ELO-G plan
n. Approved Agreement w/Central Valley Steel Structures re new food and dry

storage warehouse

Approve items a) through n):

Motion: Ceil Howe, III Seconded: Sarah Strait

Dale Davidson Vote: AYE Ceil Howe, III Vote: AYE
Jeffrey Gilcrease Vote: AYE Sarah Strait Vote: AYE

8. OLD BUSINESS
a. none

9. NEW BUSINESS
a. Announcements from closed session decisions were made.

Trustee Sarah Strait announced that based upon violation of Education Code Section
48900(c), it was moved that student E-04-08-2024 be expelled from the Central Union



Elementary School District through June 7, 2024.

Further, it was recommended to suspend the expulsion order and permit the student to
return to the site under a Behavior Contract. Upon the student’s return to campus, the
site will develop a Behavior Contract for student E-04-08-2024, including attendance,
appropriate behavior, maintaining grades and academic standing, and participation in
counseling with the District counselor or psychologist. If the student fails to follow any
condition of the Behavior Contract, the expulsion order will be reinstated.

Motion: Sarah Strait Seconded: Ceil Howe, III

Dale Davidson Vote: AYE Ceil Howe, III Vote: AYE
Jeffrey Gilcrease Vote: AYE Sarah Strait Vote: AYE

Trustee Ceil Howe, III announced that based upon violation of Education Code Section
48900(c), it was moved that student F-04-08-2024 be expelled from the Central Union
Elementary School District through June 7, 2024.

Further, it was recommended to suspend the expulsion order and permit the student to
return to the site under a Behavior Contract. Upon the student’s return to campus, the
site will develop a Behavior Contract for student F-04-08-2024, including attendance,
appropriate behavior, maintaining grades and academic standing, and participation in
counseling with the District counselor or psychologist. If the student fails to follow any
condition of the Behavior Contract, the expulsion order will be reinstated.

Motion: Ceil Howe, III Seconded: Sarah Strait

Dale Davidson Vote: AYE Ceil Howe, III Vote: AYE
Jeffrey Gilcrease Vote: AYE Sarah Strait Vote: AYE

b. Approved March 2024 District warrants

Motion: Ceil Howe, III Seconded: Sarah Strait

Dale Davidson Vote: AYE Ceil Howe, III Vote: AYE
Jeffrey Gilcrease Vote: AYE Sarah Strait Vote: AYE

c. Approved March 2024 Fiscal Position Reports for General Fund and Cafeteria
Fund

Motion: Sarah Strait Seconded: Ceil Howe, III



Dale Davidson Vote: AYE Ceil Howe, III Vote: AYE
Jeffrey Gilcrease Vote: AYE Sarah Strait Vote: AYE

d. Approved increase to adult prices for breakfast and lunch meals

Motion: Ceil Howe, III Seconded: Sarah Strait

Dale Davidson Vote: AYE Ceil Howe, III Vote: AYE
Jeffrey Gilcrease Vote: AYE Sarah Strait Vote: AYE

e. Approved Job Description and position creation – Transitional Kindergarten
Instructional Aide

Motion: Sarah Strait Seconded: Ceil Howe, III

Dale Davidson Vote: AYE Ceil Howe, III Vote: AYE
Jeffrey Gilcrease Vote: AYE Sarah Strait Vote: AYE

f. Adopted Resolution G-04-08-2024 - APRIL 2024 Month of the Military Child

Motion: Sarah Strait Seconded: Ceil Howe, III

Dale Davidson Vote: AYE Ceil Howe, III Vote: AYE
Jeffrey Gilcrease Vote: AYE Sarah Strait Vote: AYE

10. CLOSED SESSION:
The closed session of the Board of Trustees was held to consider the following:

a. Student Discipline and Other Confidential Student Matters - Consider expulsion
of case #E-04-08-2024 (Gov. Code §35146)

b. Student Discipline and Other Confidential Student Matters - Consider expulsion
of case #F-04-08-2024 (Gov. Code §35146)

c. Labor Negotiations (Gov. Code §54957.6)
Agency designated representatives:

Employee organization: CUETA and CUCEA
d. Personnel (Gov. Code 54957)

Respectively submitted,

__________________________ _________________________
President Clerk









Thomas Addington, Superintendent

4/10/24

Central Union Elementary School District





Central Union Elementary School District

Thomas Addington, Superintendent

04/10/24



stsc
Self-lnsured Schools
of California

New Appl ication fo r 2024'2025
School Connected Organization (SCO)

General Liability ' Property' HNOA Coverage' Directots & Officers

ALL FIELDS ARE REQIJIRED

Legal Name of Organization
District Afliliation:
School Affiliation:
SCO Legal Mailing Address:

SCO Physical *Location Address:

SCO Contact Person/Title:

SGO ldentification

(A Y1t

meetings are

Y.

Ya

SCO Accounting Contact
SCO Email:

Telephone No.:

District Legal Mailing Address:

District Contact:
District Email:

District Phone:

4/

1 Lemoo
Su rintendent

.ca.us

Select delivery preference for your insurance policy and other legal notices:

SCO: D Paperless y'U.S.lttarl - if indicated will be mailed to the address referenced above

Do you wish copy of policy to be delivered to district? t(Yes tr No

District copy to be sent to Supt. unless otherwise noted below:

1.
2.
3.

Briefly describe the purpose of the g
Does the organization host, sponsor

Name Email

Number of total participants (including members):
'L

f ntsroup:
or organize any special events? D Yes "Ei-No

lf yes, provide the following:

r What is the number of event days with up to 250 attendees?
o How many of these events serve alcohol?

. Whal is the number of event days with 251 - 2,5AO attendees?
o How many of these events serve alcohol?

(Please note: We will exclude events with over 2,500 attendees)

Are minors ever leff alone with only one adult in any program, service, or event who is not a parent or guardian of the

minor? D Yes.t'ruo

Does the organization follow policies or procedures for the proper supervision of employees and volunteers who are in

direct conta6t with minors and other individuals in all on-site or off-site programs, services, events or other activities of

applicanl? dYes tr No

Does the organization have a process for employees and volunteer workers that include questions about whether the

individual hJs ever been convicted of any crime and inplved in any lawsuit, claim or criminal charge involving sexual

abuse, sexual molestation or sexual misconduct? ZI Yes tr No

Does the group sponsor any overnight trips or events? tr Yes tr No4

(Continued next Page)



School Connected Organization (SCO)
Application for Coverage 2024-25

2lPage

5. Group's activities include:

.ZAlhletic Events
tr Carnivals

tr Dinners
D Day Gare
tr Fireworks

LlrT:g"nt Prosrams
O Concert
O Dances
Other (list) S

9 4pproximate gross fund-raising revenues in2O23: $IrA)__
l- Does organization have wriften bylaws specifying meir purFse aF'iiskicupupil support organization? /yes tr Noq. Have the bylaws been gybmitte! to the govemin! ooaro of tne parent districi? Efyes ct No
9: ls the group recognized by district's school board-as a schooFcbnnected organization? Elyes tr No10. Do need you need Professional Liabilig coverage for Directors & Officers oithe organization? o yes Ef Nolf so, additional information will be required.11. Do you desire increased Business persohal property coverage Limit? tr yes ef'tto

lfYes: Limit c

SCO Authorization

S\ra\{lvrd ?nre ^tf
'Fcur}- e n ( Iw!>

Official Name of Organization

1kl ^'t
re of

Name and Title (Please print)
\{-

District Authorization

(^The G" a
listed

has officially recognized the SCO identilied in this application as it is

Dislrict Name
and acknowledges the desire to seek insurance coverage. By signing below, I acknowledge the premium for coverage shall
be due.

Signature of Authorized Agent Date

Name and Title (Please Print)

:

_ Primary: HilarySchwartzler.hilary.schwartzler@lNSURlCA.com
secondary: celestine Henry . celestine.henry@|NSURlcA.com . ph 661 -316-s.t29

Questions? Calt Hilary Schwarizler at 661-316_b126

Central Union Elementary School District

Thomas Addington, Superintendent
04/10/24









April 19, 2024









 
 

Thomas Addington 
Superintendent 

 
15783 18th Avenue 
Lemoore, CA 93245 

Telephone (559) 924-3405 
Fax (559) 924-1153 

 

 
 
 Board Members 

Dale Davidson 
Jeffrey Gilcrease 

Ceil Howe, III 
Sarah Strait 

 

 
To:  Tom Addington 
From: Heiko Sweeney 
Date:  April 17, 2024 
 
For Board Meeting 

X  Action (Consent or New Business) 
 Information 

 
Item: 
Receive donation of a Cramer Upright piano from private individual.   
  
Rationale/Purpose: 
Mr. Ecker was contacted regarding donating a piano to be used for his music and 
band classes at Akers School. The estimated value of the donation is about 
$500.00 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None 
 
Recommendation: 
Accept donation. 

Central Union School District
Lemoore, CA







































CODESP
714-374-8644

20422 Beach Blvd. Suite 325
Huntington Beach, CA  92648

Billed To
Tom Addington
Central Union School District
15783 18th Ave.
Lemoore  93245-9742

Invoice Number
0006436

Amount Due (USD)

$2,575.00

Terms
NET 45 days from July 1
Taxpayer ID No. 54-2166843
No additional fees for taxes required; CODESP is a Public Agency.
Make all checks payable to CODESP.
THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!
Contact us: E: codesp@codesp.com P: (714) 374-8644 W: www.codesp.com
Please note that our address has changed – we are now in Suite 325.
Help us go green - Rather than fax, please scan and email documents to codesp@codesp.com

Date of Issue
03/24/2024

Due Date
09/01/2024

Description Rate Qty Line Total

Annual Membership Fee - 200 or less FTE
Basic products and services beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June
30, 2025 for 200 or less FTE employees.

$2,575.00 1 $2,575.00

Subtotal
Tax

2,575.00
0.00

Total
Amount Paid

2,575.00
0.00

Amount Due (USD) $2,575.00

https://www.codesp.com/














Central Union Elementary School Dishict

rrrant Number Vendor Number

Warrant Register For Warrants
Dated 0410312024

Vendor Name

Page 1 of I

41512024 8:12:47A^M

Amount

12742366
12742367

12742368
12742369

6ll
725

879

766

MADERACOLINTY OFFICE OF ED

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC CO

SISC III
STANDARD LIFE INSURANCE

$25.00

$5,102.03

$267,631.20

$1,557.11

Total Amount of All Warrants: i27 4,315. 34



School District Payment Order

District Name: Central Union Elementary School District

As per the Authorized Signature Permit, the following payments are authorized as listed on the payment register

Warrants 4 $274,315.34
Credit Card Payments 0

Grand Total for Payments Dated: 04/03/2024 $274,315-34

A,tn,r,,*

raBc z vL z

Authorized Offi cer,/Employee

Or

Board Members *

* If this option is chosen, must have a majority of board members authorization (EC 42632)

Date

KCOE Examination and Approval

By Date

{/

tr

This order must be returned to KCOE prior to distribution of payments.



Central Union Elementary School District

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC C( PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0410312024

0100-0000-0-l I l0-8200-550020-323-00-0000

0100-0000-0-1 l l0-8200-5s0020-r20-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0- I l l 0-8200-550020-525-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-1 I I 0-8200-550020-323-00-0000

01 00-0000-0-l l l 0-8200-550020-525-00-0000

0100-0000-0-l I r0-8200-550020-s25-00-0000

0100-0000-0-1 I 10-8200-550020-120-00-0000

0100-0000-0-1 I 10-8200-550020-120-00-0000

0100-0000-0-l I l0-8200-ss0020-222-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- I I I 0-8200-550020-525-00-0000

0100-0000-0-1 l 10-8200-5s0020-323-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-0000-'7 490-37 0200- l 22-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7 I 00-340 I 00- I 2 I -00-0000

0100-0000-0-1 I I 0-1000-370100-122-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-0000-95 l 400-000-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7 1 00-340 1 00- l2 l -00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-0000-95 I 400-000-00-0000

1 300-0000-0-0000-0000-95 1400-000-00-0000

Resource Object

Unrestricted Resources Travel and Conferences

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Retiree Benefits, classified

Unrestricted Resources Health & Welfare Benefits,
certificated

Unrestricted Resources Retiree Benefits, certificated

Unrestricted Resources Health and Welfare

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Unrestricted Resources Health and Welfare

Total For FundNumber: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Health & Welfare Benefits,
certificated

Unrestricted Resources Health and Welfare

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Unrestricted Resources Health and Welfare

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Page I of2
41512024 8:13:09AM

Amount

$2s.00

$2s.00

s25.00

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

12742366 611 MADERACOUNTYOFFTCEO pY - 29375 0100-0000-0-0000-7100-s20000-l2l-00-0000

t2742367

12742368

12742368

12'.742369

12742369

27006

27006

27006

27006

27006

2'.7006

27006

27006

2'1006

27006

27006

725 926.28

$26.28

$26.28

$26.6s

$30.41

$26.28

$651.15

$1,844.58

$2,32s.32

$37.34

$81.46

$s,102.03

$5,102.03

$2,840.26

$7,311.20

$24,809. 1 8

$22s,646.56

$160,607jf/

$7,024.00

$7,024.00

_926r,6;120
$37.32

$1,473.14

$1,510.46

$46.65

$46.65

$1557.rr

879 SISC III PY - 29373

PV - 29371

879

766

766

PY - 29372

PV - 29370

SISC III

STANDARD LIFE INSURANCI PV - 29368

PV - 29369

STANDARD LIFE INSURANCI PV - 29367

pv - 293't4 1300-0000-0-0000-0000-951400-000-00-0000



District: 11 Central Union Elementary School District
Fund

0r00

1300

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0410312024

Total # of Payments: 4

Page I of I

41512024 8:13:09AM

Total# of Payments: 4 Grand Total:

Total

s267,244.69

$7,070.65

$274,315.34

g 274,315.34



Central Union Elementary School District

rrrant Number Vendor Number

Warrant Register For Warrants
Dated 0410512024

Vendor Name

Page 1 of I

41512024 8:13:45AM

Amount

t2'/4'240tJ

12742401

12742402

12742403

12742404
1274240s
12742406
12742407

12742408
12742409

12742410
12742411

12742412
127424t3
12742414
1274241s
12742416

12742417

12742418

12742419

12742420

12742421

12742422

12742423

12742424

12742425

12742426

12742427

12742428

12742429

12742430

2951
4092
4426

153

4988

4920

17 5l
130 I
2864
2800

4595

4739

4473

4473

417

4987

572

575

4839

3537

4989

4236

4s67
882

4469

916
926

4760

4169

4990

l0l3

AKERS PARENT CLUB
AMERICAN BUSINESS MACHINES
BIMBO BAKERIES USAINC
DAVIDA. BUSH INC.

BRYNN CALVERT
ANDREWCASTILLO
CDW-G
CENTRAL LINION PTC

DIGITECH INTEGRATION INC.

CARRIEDOZIER
EMS LINQ INC.
FOOD 4 THOUGHT LLC
GOLD GULCHADVENTURES
GOLD GULCHADVENTURES
CHRISTINA GONZALES
HOME DEPOT PRO

LEMOOREAUTO SUPPLY

LEMOORE HARDWARE
BIANCA LOPEZ
MID VALLEY DISPOSAL
CASSANDRA OVERSTREET
PERFORMANCEAIR
SYLVIA RIOS
SMART& FINAL
NICKOLAS STARNE

STRATFORD PUBLIC UTILITY DIST
SYSCO FOOD SERVICES OF MODESTO

DAVID TOSTE

US SOAP WEST LLC
JONEVAREA
WESTVALLEY SUPPLY

$436.26

$ 15.00

$ 1,863.91

$117,634.56

$7.37

$267.46

$836.ss
$s4l.0s
9s98.27

s110.22

$410.87

$ 1,773.08

$1,954.00

$ 100.00

$ 1,019.06

$70.95

$ l s.s2

$ 1s3.98

$s8.95

$719.70

$14.00

$2,170.34

$87.44

$284.91

$ l3 3.40

$3,736.02

$23,476.55

$77.4s

$2s7.94

$ 14.00

$ 1,058.06

Total Amount of All Warrants: $159,896. a?



School District Payment Order

District Name: Central Union Elementary School District

As per the Authorized Signature Permit, the following payments are authorized as listed on the payment register

Warrants 31 $159,896.87

Credit Card Pavments 0

Grand Total for Payments Dated: 0410512024 $159,896'87

Authorized Offi cer/Employee

Or

Board Members *

* If this option is chosen, must have a majority of board members authorization (EC 42632)

Date

KCOE Examination and Approval

By Date

r4g{, u ur u

!

This order must be returned to KCOE prior to distribution of payments.



Document No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

2951 AKERSPARENTCLUB pv - 29393 0r00-0038-0-1110-1000-430000-424-00-0000

12742401 4092 AMERICAN BUSTNESS MACH PV - 29378 0100-0000-0-0000-7200-430000-121-00-0000

M26 BIMBO BAKERIES USA INC

Central Union Elementary School District

12742400

12742402

12742403

12742403

12142403

12742404

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0410512024

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-370047000 r -000-00-0000

l 300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-47000 r -000-00-0000

l 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470001 -000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-370047000 l -000-00-0000

1300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-47000 I -000-00-0000

r 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470001 -000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-47000 l -000-00-0000

I 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-3700-47000 1 -000-00-0000

l 300-s3 r 0-0-0000-3700-470001 -000-00-0000

Resource Object

Donations Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Total For FundNumber: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Architect Fees

Total For Fund Number: 1400

Unrestricted Resources Architect Fees

Total For Fund Number: 3500

Unrestricted Resources Architect Fees

Total For Fund Number: 4000

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Paymentl

Classroom Standards Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0 I 00

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0 I 00

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Page I of 6
41512024 8:14:02AM

Amount

$436.26

s436.26

s436.26

$1s.00

$r 5.00

$15.00

PV-
PV-
PV-
PV-
PV-
PV-
PV-
PV-
PV-

2940r

29407

29409

29402

29403

2940s

29404

29406

29408

$48.60

$64.80

$62. I 0

$74.70

$17r.93

$500.77

$465.69

$161. l0

$3t4.22

153 BUSH INC., DAVIDA. pv - 29412 1400-0000-0-0000-8500-620010-424-10-7s92

I53 BUSH INC., DAVIDA. pv - 29411 3500-0000-0-0000-8500-620010-424-10-7592

I53 BUSH INC., DAVIDA. pv - 29410 4000-0000-0-0000-8500-620010-424-10-7592

4988 CALVERT,BRYNN pv - 29366 0100-0000-0-0000-2100-520003-121-00-0000

12742405 4920 CASTILLO,ANDREW pv - 29392 0100-0050-0-0000-7700-520003-121-00-0000

12742406 1751 CDW-G po - 27675 0100-0050-0-0000-7700-430000-12l-00-0000

$1,863.91

$1,863.91

$s,881.73

$5,88 1.73

$23,526.91

$23,s26.91

$88,22s.92

988,225.92

$117,634.56

$7.37

$7.37

$7.37

$267.46

s26'1.46

$267.46

$836.55

$836.s5

s836.55

$541.05

$s41.05

s541.05

12742407 I3OI CENTRAL UNION PTC PV - 29394 0100-1100-0-1110-1000-430000-323-00-0000



Central Union Elementary School District Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0410512024

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2 Resource

tzl424tJE 260+ IJIUI I T,LH. II\ I bUKAI TUN INL TV - ZV) I I UIUU-6IJU-U.UUUU-OTUU-JOUUUY-+Z+-UU-UUUU ungolng dr. Nlajor vlalnr. Accr.

po - 27078 0100-81s0-0-0000-8100-s60009-s25-00-0000

Page2 of 6

41512024 8:14:02AM

Amount

$190.00

$408.27

$598.27

s598.27

$1r0.22

$110.22

$r10.22

$275.00

$44.20

$91.67

$4 I 0.87

M10.87

$319.91

$322.29

$4s9.83

$671.05

$1,773.08

s1,773.08

$754.00

$1"200.00

$1,954.00

$1,954.00

$100.00

$100.00

sr00.00

s1,019.06

$1,019.06

$1,019.06

$70.95

$70.9s

s70.9s

$l s.s2

12742409

12'142410

12742411

12742412

t2742413

12742414

4473

28OO DOZIER, CARRIE

4595 EMS LINQ INC,

GOLD CULCH ADVENTURES PV

PV

1 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-3700-5800 l I -000-00-0000

1300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-s800 l l -000-00-0000

1300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-5800 I 1 -000-00-0000

l 3 00-s466-0-0000-3 700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-5466-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

1 300-5466-0-0000-3 700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-5466-0-0000-3 700-470000-000-00-0000

0100-1 100-0-l I l 0-1000430001 -222-00-0000

0I00-I I00-0-I I I0-l000-430021 -222-00-0000

PO

pv - 2936s 0100-0000-0-lll0-3140-520003-12l-00-0000

Object

C)utsider Jervloes

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Outsider Services

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition - School Programs Software License Renewals

Child Nutrition - School Programs Software License Renewals

Child Nutrition - School Programs Software License Renewals

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition: Supply Chain Food
Assistance (SCA) Funds

Child Nutrition: Supply Chain Food
Assistance (SCA) Funds

Child Nutrition: Supply Chain Food
Assistance (SCA) Funds

Child Nutrition: Supply Chain Food
Assistance (SCA) Funds

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery

State Lottery

27632

2"t632

27632

27230

27230

27230

27230

29384

29385

PO

PO

4739 FOOD4THOUGHTLLC PO

PO

PO

PO

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

4473 COLDGULCHADVENTURES PV - 29383 0100-1100-0-lll0-1000-430001-222-00-0000 StateLottery Instructional Materials/Classroom

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

417 GONZALES, CHRISTINA PV - 29388 0100-6762-0-1133-1000-430001-525-39-0000 Arts, Music, & Instructional Instructional Materials/Classroom

l2'742415 4987 HOMEDEPOTPRO pv - 29364 0100-8150-0-0000-8100-430014-323-00-0000

Materials Discretionary Block
Grant

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0 I 00

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0l 00

t2-t42416 572 LEMOOREAUTOSUppLy PO - 27063 0100-8150-0-0000-8100-430014-120-00-0000

$ 1s.s2



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

12742417 575 LEMOORE HARDWARE

12742423

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0410512024

Page 3 of 6
41512024 8:14:02AM

Amount
$15.51

PV-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-

29382

27062

27062

27062

27062

27062

2'7062

27062

27062

27062

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2 Resource Object

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenanca Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0 I 00

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Mileage-Other

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Garbage

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Prof. Serv. & Oper. Exp.
-Fingerprinting

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition - School Programs Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

0 l 00-8 1 50-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 1 4- l 2 1 -00-0000

0l 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 l4-222-00-0000

0 l 00-8 l s0-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 l4-323-00-0000

0 r 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 I 4-424-00-0000

0 1 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 l 4-525-00-0000

0 I 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 1 00-4300 I 4-323-00-0000

01 00-8 I 50-0-0000-81 00-430014-120-00-0000

0l 00-8 I 50-0-0000-81 00-430014-525-00-0000

0 1 00-8 1 50-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 l4 -222-00-0000

0 r 00-8 r s0-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 l 4- l 20-00-0000

0100-1 100-0-l 1 l0-1000-430000-222-00-0000

0100-1 I 00-0-l I l0-1000-430000-222-00-0000

$32. I 5

$26.74

$26.74

$26.74

$26.74

$1.38

$2.14

$2.14

$3.00

$6.21

12742418 4839 LOPEZ, BIANCA pv - 29390 0100-0000-0-1r10-8200-520003-120-00-0000

12742419 3s37 MIDVALLEYDISPOSAL PO - 27783 0100-0000-0-11r0-8200-550050-525-00-0000

t2742420 4989 OVERSTREEICASSANDRA PV - 29386 0100-1100-0-1110-2700-580060-222-00-0000

t2'742421 4236 PERFORMANCEAIR PV - 293',79 1300-5310-0-0000-3700-560000-000-00-0000

t2742422 4567 RIOS, SYLVIA PV - 29400 1300-5310-0-0000-3700-520003-000-00-0000

882 SMART & FINAL

sl s3.98

$153.98

$s8.95

$58.9s

ss8.9s

$719.70

$719.70

$719.70

$14.00

$14.00

$14.00

$2,170.34

$2,t70.34

s2,170.34

$87.44

$87.44

s87.44

$80. l2

s204.79

$28491

s284.91

$133.40

$133.40

$133.40

PV - 29381

PV - 29380

12742424 4469 STARNE, NICKOLAS pv - 29391 0100-00s0-0-0000-7700-520003-l2l-00-0000



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

12742425 vt6
ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-CO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0410512024

U I UU-UUUU.U- I I I U-dZUU.))UUJU-)Z)-UU-UUUU

0 l 00-0000-0- I I l 0-8200-5s0030-s2s-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-1 l 1 0-8200-ss0030-525-00-0000

1 300-53 1 0-0-000 0-37 00-4'7 0002-000-00-0000

l 300-53 1 0-0-000 0-37 00 -47 0002-000-00-0000

r 300-53 r 0-0-0000-3700-47000 l -000-00-0000

1 300-53 1 0-0-0000 -37 00 -47 0002-000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470001 -000-00-0000

l 300-53 r 0-0-0000-3700-47000 l -000-00-0000

1300-s3 1 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470001 -000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470001 -000-00-0000

I 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-47000 I -000-00-0000

1 300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-470002-000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470002-000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470002-000-00-0000

l 300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-470002-000-00-0000

l 300-53 l 0-0-0000-370047000 l -000-00-0000

1 300-53 r 0-0-0000-3700-470004-000-00-0000

l 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-3700-47000 l -000-00-0000

l 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-47000 I -000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-370047000 l -000-00-0000

1 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470004-000-00-0000

l 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470004-000-00-0000

1 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

Resource Object
unrgstrl0tg(l K9s()t[99s watetJewgr

Unrestricted Resources Water/Sewer

Unrestricted Resources Water/Sewer

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Program

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Program

ChildNutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Prograrn

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs A LA Carte

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs A LA Carte

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs A LA Carte

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

STKAIIUKD TUTJLIU U IILII I r,U

PO

PO

z tvu+

27004

27004

Page 4 of 6

41512024 8:14:02AM

Amount

$941.80

$l,018.61

$t,77s.6r

$3,736.02

$3,736.02

$471.3512742426

12742426 2'7233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

z',t233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

27233

29397

29396

926

926

SYSCOFOODSERVICESOFI\ PV '29395 0100-1100-0-lll0-1000-430000-222-00-0000

SYSCO FOOD SERVICES OF I\

$471.35

$2,122.78

$1,399.22

$1,433. r9

$892.96

$2,164.73

$1,041.00

$333.84

$2,731.44

$2,734.65

$688.20

$2, 12 I .38

sl,s46.22

s246.4'1

s2'14.4r

$223.30

$7s.71

$97.28

s14s.92

$2,401.15

$67.12

$44.s6

s37.64

s72.60

$ 109.43

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PV

PV

$23,005.20

$23,476.55

$77.451274242'7 4760 TOSTE, DAVID pv - 29389 0100-0050-0-0000-7700-520003-12l-00-0000

s77.4s



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

12742428 4169 US SOAP WEST LLC

12742429 4990 VAREA,JONE

12742430 1013 WESTVALLEYSUPPLY PV

Commercial Payment Register
X'or Payments Dated: 0410512024

PV

PV

PV

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-Sl-Ll -L2 Resource Object

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Prof. Serv. & Oper. Exp.
-Fingerprinting

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

29398

29399

l 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

l 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

0 I 00-8 1 50-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 r4- l2 I -00-0000

0l 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 l 00-430014-424-00-0000

0 l 00-8 l s0-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 l4-525-00-0000

0 I 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 l4-222-00-0000

0 1 00-8 1 50-0-0000-81 004300 l4-323-00-0000

0l 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 1 00-430014-52s-00-0000

0 I 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 1 00-4300 l4 -222-00-0000

0 l 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 l4-525-00-0000

0 l 00-8 I 50-0-0000-81 00-4300 I 4424-00-0000

Page 5 of 6

41512024 8:14:02AM

Amount
D / /.{f,

$90.09

$167.85

$2s7.94

s2s7.94

s14.00

$14.00

$14.00

2938',1 0 I 00-l I 00-0- I l 1 0-2700-s80060-222-00-0000

29376

27052

27052

270s2

270s2

270s2

270s2

2'1052

27052

$251.64

$93.06

$93.06

$93.07

$93.07

$72.3t

s72.32

$121.34

$168.19

$1,058.06

_qullgq



District: 11 Central Union Elementarv School District
Fund

0100

1300

1400

3s00

4000

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0410512024

Total # of Payments: 31

Page I of I

41512Q24 8:14:02AM

Total # of Payments: 3l Grand Total:

Total

s12,693.53

s29,s68.78

$5,881.73

$23,526.91

$88,225.92

$159,E96.E7

$ 159,896.87



Central Union Elementary School Dishict

rrrant Number Vendor Number

Warrant Register For Warrants
Dated 0411012024

Page I of I

4/1212024 7:33:52AM

AmountVendor Name

12742906
t2742907
12742908
12742909

4347
505

526

1 105

$700.00

$869. l0
$5,989.22

$34.71

IMAGINE U CHILDREN'S MUSEUM
ISLAND WATERPARK
KAPLAN SCHOOL SUPPLY CORP.

MORGAN & SLATES

Total Amount of All Warrants: $7,593. 03



School District Payment Order

District Name: Central Union Elementary School District

As per the Authorized Signature Permit, the following payments are authorized as listed on the payment register

Warrants 4 $7,593.03

Credit Card Payments 0

Grand Total for Payments Dated: 04/1012024 $7'593'03

Authorized Offi cer/Employee

Or

Board Members *

* If this option is chosen, must have a majority of board members authorization (EC 42632)

Date

KCOE Examination and Approval

By Date

rarga L rJL L

tr

This order must be returned to KCOE prior to distribution of payments.



Central Union Elementary School District Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411012024

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2 Resource

12742906 4347 IMAGINE U CHILDREN'S MUi PO - 27842 0100-1100-0-ll10-1000-430001-222-00-0000 StateLottery

Page I of2
4112/2024 7:34'.l2AM

Amount

$700.00

$700.00

$700.00

$869. I 0

$869.10

$869.10

$s,989.22

s5,989.22

$5,989.22

$34.7t

$34.71

s34.71

1274290'l

12742908

12742909

505 ISLANDWATERPARK po - 27104 0100-1100-0-1110-1000-430000-222-00-0000

526 KAPLANSCHOOLSUppLyC( pO - 27'127 0100-6053-0-1110-1000-430000-000-00-0000

IIO5 MORGAN&SLATES po - 27058 0100-81s0-0-0000-8100-430014-120-00-0000

Object

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Dev: CA Prekinder Planning Materials and Supplies
& Implementation Grant Program -

CA Universal

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:



District: 11 Central Union Elementary School District
Fund

0100

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411012024

Total # of Payments: 4

Page I of I

4/12/2024 7:34:l2AM

Total # of Payments: 4 Grand Total:

Total

$7,593.03

$7,593.03

$ 7,593.03



Central Union Elementary School Dishict

rrrant Number Vendor Number

Warrant Register For Warrants
Dated 0411212024

Vendor Name

Page I of I

411212024 7:36:08AM

Amount

t2743046
t2743047
12743048
12743049

12743050
127430s1
12743052
12743053

12743054

127430s5
12743056
12743057

127430s8
12743059

r2743060
12743061
12743062
12743063

12743064
t274306s
12743066
r2743067
12743068
12743069

12743070

12743071

12743072

12743073

12743074
12743075

12743076
r2743077
12743078

12743079

12743080
12743081

12743082
12743083

12743084
r274308s
12743086
12743087

2413
4lL2
4092

63

lll
4833

186

4433

3342

4888

1670

496',7

4719

401

2241

3378
4358

4942
518

4887
542

552

562

1946

4839

3954
4922

4991

4835

3944
430r
3974
4236
1487

761

3989

802
2038

886

935
958

4694

DENISEALLVIN.BONO
ELIZABETH ALVARADO
AMERICAN BUSINESS MACHINES
AT&T
BILLINGSLEYTIRE INC
JAMES BOCHMAN
STACY CARDOZA
JOHN ECKER
ENFINITY
ERICKAFAIR
FIRST CLASS PEST CONTROL
FIRST STRING SPORTS

COLLEEN GODDARD
GOLD STAR FOODS INC.

ANNE GONZALES
CECILIA GONZALEZ
HOME DEPOT PRO

IMPERIAL DADE
JORGENSEN COMPANY
KRISTENE KINDER
KINGS CO OFFICE OF EDUCATION
KINGS WASTE & RECYCLINGAUTHRTY
LATAPATIATORTILLA INC
LEMOORE FOOD LOCKER
BIANCA LOPEZ
MCGRAW HILL EDUCATION
ALEXANDRA MELVIN
JAY M NICHOLAS
RACHELY. NIX
MARIELAOCHOA
OILCHANGER
PBKARCHITECTS INC.
PERFORMANCEAIR
POWERSCHOOL GROUP LLC
PRODUCERS DAIRY
ARACELI RIOS

ROBINSON'S
CHRISTINE SANTOS

SO. CALIF.GAS CO

TERMINIX INTL
TULARE COUNTY OFFICE OF ED

REBECCA UNDERWOOD

$282.49

$129.90

$ 15.00

$46.24

$94.00

$60.30

$ 144.04

$176.50

$23,543.41

$ 14.00

$314.00

$9, I 16.25

$ 107.3 8

$7,895.55

$882.61

$s5.08

$3s'7.47

$4,974.66

$238.26

$16.90

$128,750.00

$440.00

$603.00

$2,819.35

$60.30

$60,706.89

$72.90

$8.71

$8.71

$24.s3

$90. l4
$450.00

s2,326.69

$ I 8,73 8.00

$8,822.97

s70.42

$876.34

s257.37

$4,301.s4

$3,987.00

$26,627.03

$8.04

Total Amount of All Warrants: $308 ,5L3.91



School District Payment Order

District Name: Central Union Elementary School District

As per the Authorized Signature Permit, the following payments are authorized as listed on the payrnent register

Warrants 42 $308,513.97

Credit Card Payments 0

Grand Total for Payments Dated: 04/1212024 $308'513.97

Authorized Offi cer/Employee

Or

Board Members *

* If this option is chosen, must have a majority of board members authorization (EC 42632)

Date

KCOE Examination and Approval

By Date

raBE o ur o

\

This order must be returned to KCOE prior to distribution of payments.



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

12743047

12743050

r274305r 4833 BOCHMAN, JAMES

12743052 I86 CARDOZA, STACY

t2743053 4433 ECKER,JOHN

12743054 3342 ENFINITY

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411212024

12743046 2413 ALLVIN-BONO,DENISE

4112 ALVARADO, ELIZABETH Pv - 29459 0100-0038-0-1110-1000-580000-424-00-0000

12743048 4092 AMERTCAN BUSTNESS MACFj PV - 294t9 0100-0000-0-0000-7200-430000-12l-00-0000

12743049 63 AT&T po - 27014 0100-0000-0-1r10-8200-s90010-424-00-0000

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-Sl-Ll -L2

0 l 00-1 l 00-0- l 1 r 0- l 000-43000r -222-00-0000

0 1 00- l 1 00-0- l l r 0-l 000-43002 l -222-00-0000

Resource Object

State Lottery Instructional Materials/Classroom

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Donations Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

IlI BILLINGSLEYTIRE INC PO

PO

PO

PV - 29Ml

PV - 29420

27084

27084

27084

PO - 27010

PO - 27010

PO - 27010

0 I 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 1 00-4300 l4- 120-00-0000

0 I 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 r 4- 1 20-00-0000

0 1 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 1 4-424-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0- l I l 0-8200-s50020-222-00-0000

0r 00-0000-0- I I I 0-8200-550020-525-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-r l l 0-8200-s50020-323-00-0000

Page 1 of8
411212024 '7'.36:27AM

Amount

$16.28

$266.21

s282.49

s282.49

$129.90

$129.90

s129.90

$1s.00

$ 15.00

$1s.00

s46.24

s46.24

s46.24

$29.s0

$29.s0

$3s.00

$94.00

s94.00

s60.30

$60.30

$60.30

$144.04

$144.04

$144.04

$176.s0

$1 76.50

$176.50

$8,902.07

$6,904.66

s7,'136.68

s23,s43.41

$23,543.41

$14.00

$14.00

$r4.00

pv - 29440 0100-0000-0-1110-8200-520003-120-00-0000

pv - 29438 0r00-1100-0-1110-1000-430021-424-00-0000

PV - 29442 0100-6762-0-1156-1000-430001-222-39-0000 Arts,Music,&Instructional Instructional Materials/Classroom
Materials Discretionary Block
Grant

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Unrestricted Resources Electricity

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Outlawed Warrants All Other Local Revenues

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Pavment:

t2743055 4888 FAIR, ERICKA pv - 294t3 0100-0199-0-0000-0000-869900-000-00-0000



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

12743056

12743059

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 04/1212024

16/0 TIKSI CLASS Pt,SI UUNIKUI. PU

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2 Resource Object
Unrestncted Resources Pest Control

Unrestricted Resources Pest Control

Unrestricted Resources Pest Control

Unrestricted Resources Pest Control

Unrestricted Resources Pest Control

Unrestricted Resources Pest Control

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Elementary & Secondary School Materials and Supplies
Emergency Relief III (ESSER III)
Fund

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Breakfast Program

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food - Lunch Program

Total For FundNumber: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

2t259

27239

27239

2'7239

27239

27239

U I UU-UUUU-U.UUUU-U/UU-])UU /U- II I -UU-UUUU

0 I 00-0000-0- I I 1 0-8200-5 50070-525-00-0000

01 00-0000-0- l r I 0-8200-s50070-222-00-0000

0100-0000-0-l 1 l0-8200-550070-424-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- I l l 0-8200-5s0070-323-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- I l I 0-8200-5s0070-s25-00-0000

1 300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

1 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

1300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

1 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 l 0-0-0000-370047000 I -000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470002-000-00-0000

1 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470002-000-00-0000

I 300-53 r 0-0-0000-3700-470001 -000-00-0000

l 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-470002-000-00-0000

1300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-47000 I -000-00-0000

Page 2 of 8
4/12/2024 7'.36:27AM

Amount

$s0.00

$60.00

$52.00

$s2.00

$s0.00

$50.00

$3 14.00

s314.00

$9,r 16.2s

$9,1 16.2s

$9,116.25

$107.38

$107.38

$107.38

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO12743057 4967 FIRST STRING SPORTS - 27576 0100-3213-0-il10-1000-430000-424-35-0302

t2743058 4719 GODDARD,COLLEEN pv - 29456 0100-0000-0-1110-1000-430000-121-00-0000

4OI GOLD STAR FOODS INC. PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

CM

29430

29427

29428

29426

29431

29429

29434

29433

29435

29437

29436

29432

27232

27232

2'7232

27232

27232

27r20

$l15.3s

$437.s8

$599.20

$172.32

$228.96

$r,s31.72

$527.43

$r,003.30

$208.22

$223.89

s271.24

$412.42

$128.25

$2s7.40

$658.80

$568.s8

$s85.54

-$34.6s

$7,895.s5

$7,895.55



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

r2743060
,2'Z4I UUNZALBS, ANNb

1274306r 3378 GONZALEZ,CECILIA

12743062

12743063 4942 IMPERIAL DADE

12743064

12743065

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2
PV - 2946U UIUU-I IUU-U-I I IU-IUUU-4JUUUI-JIJ-UU.UUUU

0100-45 I l-0-l 1 t0-1000-430001 -323-00-0000

01 00-72 l0-0-1 l I 0-1 000-430000-323-00-0000

0 1 00-72 l 0-0- I l 1 0-1 000430000-323-00-0000

29439 0 1 00- I I 00-0- 1 I I 0- I 000-43002 I -525-00-0000

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411212024

0 l 00-8 l s0-0-0000-8 1 00-4300 l4-222-00-0000

0 I 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 I 4-222-00-0000

01 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 l4-323-00-0000

0 l 00-8 l 5 0-0-0000-8 I 00-43 00 I 4424-00-0000

0 l 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 l4-s2s-00-0000

0 I 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 I 4-424-00-0000

0 1 00-8 r 50-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 I 4424-00-0000

01 00-8 I s0-0-0000-8 l 00-43001 4-323-00-0000

r 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

0l 00-2600-0-1 I 10-1000-580004-525-38-0101

01 00-2600-0-l l I 0-1 000-580004-323-38-01 0 l

0l 00-2600-0-1 I I 0-1000-580004-424-38-01 0r

0l 00-2600-0-l l 10-1000-580004-525-38-01 01

state Lonery

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

American Indian Education Materials and Supplies

American Indian Education Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Outlawed Warrants All Other Local RevenuEs

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Expanded Leaming Opportunities Contract w/County Schools
Program

Expanded Leaming Opportunities Contract w/County Schools
Program

Expanded Leaming Opportunities Contract w/County Schools
Program

Expanded Leaming Opportunities Contract w/County Schools
Program

Resource Object

Instructional Material s/Cl assroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Page 3 of8
4/1212024 '1:36:274M

Amount

$199.42

$87.48

s423.64

$r72.07

$882.61

s882.61

$55.08

$5s.08

$5s.08

$6.03

$9.58

$9.58

$9.58

$9.59

$45.90

$213.92

$53.29

$3s7.47

s3s7.47

$925.48

$4,049.1 8

s4,9r456

s4,914.66

s238.26

$238.26

$238.26

$16.90

$16.90

$16.90

$15,000.00

$22,s00.00

$42,s00.00

$48,7s0.00

PV

PV

PV

PV

29463

29462

29461

4358 HOME DEPOT PRO PV-
PV.
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-

29425

29424

27071

27071

2'1071

2707r

27071

27071

27231

2'1231

KINCSCOOFFICEOFEDUCI PO - 2'7186

PO - 27185

PO - 2718'l

PO - 27041

PO

PO

518 JORGENSENCOMPANY PO - 27068 0100-8r50-0-0000-8100-s80000-424-00-0000

4887 KINDER, KRISTENE PV - 294t4 0100-0199-0-0000-0000-869900-000-00-0000

12743066 542



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

552

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411212024

0 I 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 l4-525-00-0000

0 I 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 l4-525-00-0000

0 I 00-8 1 50-0-0000-8 l 00-5 80000 -222-00 -0000

0 l 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 r 00-580000-424-00-0000

0 1 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 l 00-580000424-00-0000

0 l 00-8 l s0-0-0000-8 l 00-580000-323-00-0000

0 l 00-8 1 50-0-0000-8 l 00-580000-424-00-0000

0 l 00-8 I s0-0-0000-8 I 00-580000-424-00-0000

l 300-5466-0-0000-3 700-47000 l -000-00-0000

1 300-5466-0-0000-3700-47000 1 -000-00-0000

l 300-5466-0-0000-370047000 l -000-00-0000

l 300-5466-0-0000-370047000 I -000-00-0000

Resource Object
lolal r()f rulu l\ulllucl. urvu

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition: Kitchen Materials and Supplies
Infrastructure & Training Funds

2022

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

ChildNutrition: Supply Chain Food - Lunch Program
Assistance (SCA) Funds

ChildNutrition: Supply Chain Food - Lunch Program
Assistance (SCA) Funds

Child Nutrition: Supply Chain Food - Lunch Program
Assistance (SCA) Funds

Child Nutrition: Supply Chain Food - Lunch Program
Assistance (SCA) Funds

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Arts, Music, & Instructional Textbooks
Materials Discretionary Block
Grant

Arts, Music, & Instructional Textbooks
Materials Discretionary Block
Grant

Total For Fund Number: 0 I 00

Total Amount of Payment:

12743067

12743068

12'743069

t27430'70

KINGS WASTE & RECYCLIN( PV

PV

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

29457

29423

27066

27066

27066

27066

27066

2',7066

29443

29446

29445

29444

Page 4 of8
411212024 7:36;27AM

Amount

Dlzd, /)u.uu

$128,750.00

$175.00

$26.9s

$18.8s

$31 .20

$3 r.85

$47.60

$52.65

$5s.90

$,140.00

$440.00

$603.00

$603.00

$603.00

$409. l 8

$648.70

$773.45

$988.02

$2,819.35

s2,819.35

$60.30

$60.30

$6030

-$2,954.25

$63,661. l4

$60,706.89

s60,706.89

562 LATAPATIATORTTLLATNC PV - 29451 0100-7032-0-0000-0000-430000-000-00-0000

1946 LEMOORE FOOD LOCKER PV

PV

PV

PV

4839 LOPEZ, BIANCA PV - 29M8 0100-0000-0-lll0-8200-520003-120-00-0000

39s4 MCGRAWHILLEDUCATTON CM - 27121 0t00-6762-0-1110-1000-410000-12l-31-0101127430'71

po - 27639 0100-6762-0-1r10-1000-410000-121-31-0101



Document No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

12743072 4922 Mt,LVIN,ALI,?(ANL'KA YV . ZY+IO UIUU-UUUU-U-ITTU.JIIU.JZUUUJ-IZI-UU-UUUU

t2743073 4991 NICHOLAS, JAY M pv - 29421 0100-0000-0-0000-2100-s20003-121-00-0000

12743074 4835 NIX, RACHEL Y. pv - 294t't 0100-0000-0-0000-2100-520003-12r-00-0000

r2743075 3944 OCHOA, MARIELA pv - 29449 0100-1100-0-1110-1000-430021-424-00-0000

t2743076 43OI OIL CHANGER pv - 29454 0100-8150-0-0000-8100-580000-222-00-0000

12743077 3974 PBKARCHITECTSINC. pv - 294s0 1400-0000-0-0000-8500-620000-525-00-7s88

Central Union Elementary School District

t2743080 761 PRODUCERS DAIRY

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411212024

0 1 00-8 1 s0-0-0000-8 l 00-560009-424-00-0000

0 l 00-8 l s 0-0-0000-8 I 00-560009 -222-00 -0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

1 300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

r 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-s3 1 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

r 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 r 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

Resource Object
unf€s[luLcg Kgsuuugs Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Mileage-Other

Total For FundNumber: 0100

TotalAmount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Buildings and Improvement of
Buildings

Total For Fund Number: 1400

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Outsider Services

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Outsider Services

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Software License Renewals

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Page 5 of 8

4112/2024 7:36:27AM

Amount

s72.90

s72.90

s12.90

$8.71

$8.71

$8.7r

$8.71

127430'18 4236 PERFORMANCEAIR

t2743079 1487 POWERSCHOOLGROUPLLC pO - 27816 0100-00s0-0-0000-7700-580011-121-00-0000

PV - 294s8

PV - 29447

s24.53

$24 53

s24.s3

$90.14

$90.14

$90.14

$450.00

$450.00

$4s0.00

$24s.00

$2,081.69

$2,326.69

_v$xfi
$l 8,738.00

$1 8,738.00

_q!,?*99

$8.71

$8.71

$300.82

$5 14.15

$390.09

$407.7s

s425.4r

$460.91

$301.27

$318.93

$3s4.51

$194.87

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

2'1235

2723s

27235

2'1235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

12743080 16I PKUIJUUI,KS IJAIKY

12743081 3989 zuOS,ARACELI

t2743082 802 ROBINSON'S

t2743083 2038 SANTOS, CHzuSTINE

12743084 886 SO. CALIF.GAS CO

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN - OB-SI-Ll -L2

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411212024

IJUU.)J I U-U-UUUU-J /UU-4 /UUUU-UUU-UU-UUUU

I 300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 3 00-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3 700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

1 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-s3 l 0-0-0000-3700470000-000-00-0000

1 300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

1 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 I 0-0-0000-3700-470000-000-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- l 1 l 0-8200-ss00 l 0-222-00 -0000

0 I 00-0000-0- l 1 l 0-8200-55001 0-525-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- l 1 I 0-8200-5500 l 0-323-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-l I I 0-8200-55001 0-525-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-1 I I 0-8200-55001 0-424-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- 1 I I 0-8200-5500 l 0-323-00-0000

0r 00-0000-0- I l I 0-8200-55001 0-323-00-0000

Resource Object
Chlld Nutnhon - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs fe6d

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Child Nutrition - School Programs Food

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

ExpandedLeamingOpportunities Mileage-Other
Program

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Gas

Unrestricted Resources Gas

Unrestricted Resources Gas

Unrestricted Resources Gas

Unrestricted Resources Gas

Unrestricted Resources Gas

Unrestricted Resources Gas

Page 6 of 8
4112/2024 7:36;27AM

Amount

rU

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

ztzJ)

2723s

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

2'7235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

27235

2723s

27235

27235

$247.85

s247.85

s247.66

$26s.'.77

$283.43

$283.43

$371.90

$3 18.74

$248.02

$212.44

$619.92

s638. r2

$691.1 0

$176.85

$ 159.37

$106.31

$3s.50

Pv - 29422 0100-2600-0-1110-3140-520003-12l-00-0000

pv - 29452 0100-8150-0-0000-8100430014-222-00-0000

$8,822.97

s8,822.97

s70.42

s70.42

$70.42

$876.34

$876.34

$876.34

s257.37

s257.37

$257.31

$1,935.36

$847.96

$39.76

$6s.97

$589.63

$628.08

$194.78

pv - 29418 0100-0000-0-1110-3t40-430000-323-00-0000

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

27005

27005

2700s

2'7005

27005

27005

2'.7005



Central Union Elementary School District Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411212024

Page 7 of 8
411212024 7;36:27AM

Amount

DZ+,JU t54

_[1J0H1
$3,987.00

$3,987.00

_8,e8299
$26,627.03

$26,627.03

s26,627.03

$8.04

$8.04

s8.04

DocumentNo VendorNo VendorName ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

t2743085 935 TERMINIX INTL pv - 29453 0100-0000-0-1110-8200-550070-323-00-0000

t2743086 958 TULARECOUNTYOFFTCEOf PV - 29455 0100-0000-0-0000-2420-580000-121-00-0000

12743087 4694 UNDERWOOD, REBECCA PV - 29415 0100-0000-0-0000-2100-520003-121-00-0000

Resource Object
touil r()r runu l\ulltogr: uluu

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Pest Control

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:



District: 11 Central Union Elementary School District
Fund

01 00

1300

1400

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411212024

Total # of Payments: 42

Page 1 of 1

411212024 7'.36:27AM

Total # of Payments: 42 Grand Total:

Total

s283,551.44

s24,512.53

$4s0.00

s308,513.97

$ 308,513.97



Central Union Elementary School District

rrrant Number Vendor Number

Warrant Register For Warrants
Dated 0411912024

Vendor Name

Page 1 of I

4/19/2024 ll:12:274M

Amount

12743584
1274358s
12743586
12743587

12743588
12743589
t2743590
12743591
12743592

12743s93
12743594

12743595
12743596
12743597

12743598

12743599
r2743600
12743601

t2743602
12743603

12743604
12743605

t2743606
12743607

12743608
12743609

12743610

12743611

12743612
12743613

t2'7436t4
12743615

r2743616

4862

4092
4568

2796

165

4314

17 5t
4787

45 l5
JJZ

3983

2525

4876

2241

4358

3845

516

544

t3t4
598

616

3954
712

4208

41 08

3624

1498

3232

n26
2601

3773

I 593

t7l0

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC
AMERICAN BUSINESS MACHINES
ARAMARK UNIFORM & CAREERAPPAREL GR

AT&T
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES INC
CDW-G
NICOLECLARK
CWDL CPAS

CURTIS ELIA
BRITTANYGATELY
GOLDEN EAGLE CHARTER INC.

DAVID GOLDSMITH
ANNE GONZALES
HOME DEPOT PRO

BARBARAINFANTE
JONES SCHOOL SUPPLY CO. INC.

KINGS COTROPHY
LAKESHORE 2OO2

LOZANO SMITH
ALICIAMARTELLA
MCGRAW HILL EDUCATION
OFFICE DEPOT INC
DAVID PILCHER
JIM RICKARD
CRYSTAL SHANNON-CUNNINGHAM
NICOLE SMYERS
ANDREA SPRINGER
HEIKO SWEENEY
TOTAL COMPENSATION SYSTEMS

ANNMARIE VANGRONINGEN
VERIZON WIRELESS
JENNIFERWARD

$9,905.06

$30.00

$3,295.83

$ 1,03 5.93

$363.88

$4,923.99

$131.66

$ 151.91

$9,804.60

$ 139.3 s

$83.55

$8s0.00

$ 1,500.00

$486.00

$122.94

$291.79

$701.56

$ 1,469.3 3

$2,269.33

$513.50

$82.66

$169,911.18

$6,367.25

$236.4s

$ 1 84.14

$120.99

$224.88

$303.37

$62.31

$3,150.00

$96.10

$314.38

$3ss.03

Total Amount of AII Warrants: $2L9,478\. 95



School District Payment Order
District Name: Central Union Elementary School District

As per the Authorized Signature Permit, the following payments are authorized as listed on the payment register

Warrants 33 $219,478.95

Credit Card Payments 0

Grand Total for Payments Dated: 04/1912024 5219,478.95

A,rfwr*,

raBE tzut tz

tr Authorized Offi cer/Emp loyee

Or

Board Members *

U

* If this option is chosen, must have a majority of board members authorization (EC 42632)

Date

KCOE Examination and Approval

By Date

This order must be returned to KCOE prior to distribution of payments.



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

r2743584 4862 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICEI

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411912024

Page I of 12

4l19/202411:12:40AM

AmountResource

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Donations

Donations

Donations

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Object

Custodian Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

0100-0000-0-l I l0-8200-430012-222-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200-430000- I 2 I -00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0- I I I 0-3 140-430000-52s-00-0000

01 00-0000-0-r 1 l0-3 140-430000-525-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200-430000- I 2 I -00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0-0000-7200-430000- 1 2 1 -00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-0000-7 1 00-430000- l2 l -00-0000

0 100-0000-0-0000-7 l 00-430000- l 2 1 -00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-0000-7 I 00-430000- l2 l -00-0000

0100-0000-0-0000-7100-430000-l2l-00-0000

01 00-0038-0-l I I 0-1 000-430000-424-00-0000

0l 00-0038-0-l I l0-l 000-430000-424-00-0000

0100-0038-0-1 I 10-1000-430000-424-00-0000

0 1 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000-1 2 I -00-0000

0 I 00-00s0-0-0000-7700-430000- I 2 I -00-0000

0 1 00-00s0-0-0000-7700430000- l2 r -00-0000

0 I 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000- 1 2 1 -00-0000

0 I 00-00s0-0-0000-7700-430000- l2 l -00-0000

01 00-00s0-0-0000-7700-430000- I 2 I -00-0000

0 l 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000- 1 2 1 -00-0000

0 1 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000- l2l -00-0000

0l 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000- I 2 I -00-0000

0 l 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000- 12 1 -00-0000

01 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000- l2 I -00-0000

0 l 00-00s0-0-0000-7700-430000- 12 r -00-0000

0 I 00-00s0-0-0000-7700-430000- r2 I -00-0000

0 r 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000- I 2 I -00-0000

0 l 00-0050-0-0000-7700430000- l2 1 -00-0000

0 I 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000- l2 I -00-0000

01 00-00s0-0-0000-7700-430000- l 2 l -00-0000

0 l 00-00s0-0-0000-7700-430000- I 2 1 -00-0000

01 00-00s0-0-0000-7700-430000-l2l -00-0000

0 I 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000- 12 I -00-0000

0 1 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000-12 l -00-0000

PO - 2'1827

PO - 27802

PO - 27782

PO - 27782

PO - 27794

PV - 29480

PV - 29481

PV - 29482

PV - 29484

PV - 29483

PO - 27805

PO - 2780s

PO - 27805

PO - 27795

PO - 27795

PO - 27795

PO - 2't795

PO - 27795

cM - 2712'l

cM - 27125

PO - 27795

PO - 27795

PO - 27795

cM - 27126

PO - 2779s

PO - 27't95

PO - 27795

PO - 27795

PO - 2779s

PO - 27795

PO - 27795

PO - 27795

PO - 27795

PO - 27795

$24.88

$64.34

$21.M

$123.33

$2,059.19

$13.93

$32.9s

$48.65

$57.38

$40.16

$23. I I

$26.80

$16.08

$16.87

$9.64

$9.64

$1 s.1 8

$10.74

-s9.64

-$116.63

$8.56

s8.57

$8.87

-$4.28

$37.86

$32. I s

$s7.92

$64.30

$39.66

$22. 1 8

$30.00

$21.40

$18.41

$9.99



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

r2743s84 4862

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411912024

Resource Object

Page2 of 12

4119120241l:12:40AM

Amount

AMAZON CAPI IAL SbRVICEI PV

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

CM

PO

PO

PO

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-L1 -L2
- 294't9 U I UU-UU)U.U-UUUUJ/'/UU-4JUUUU- I2 I.UU.UUUU

0 I 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000- I 2 l -00-0000

0100-t I 00-0-1 I 1 0-l 000-430000-525-00-0000

0100-l 100-0-1 I l0-1000430000-323-00-0000

0100-1 100-0-l 1 l0-1000-430000-525-00-0000

0 l 00- l I 00-0- l l r 0- I 000-430000-525-00-0000

0100-l 100-0-1 l 10-1000430001-323-00-0000

0r00-l 100-0-l l l0-l 000430021-323-00-0000

0100-1 100-0-l I l0-1000430021 -323-00-0000

0100-l 100-0-1 l 10-1 000-43002r -323-00-0000

0100-1 100-0-l I l0-1000-430021-323-00-0000

0 l 00-r I 00-0-1 l 1 0-1 000-430021-323-00-0000

0 r 00-l r00-0-l I l0-t 000-430021-323-00-0000

0100-1 100-0-l l l0-1000-430021-323-00-0000

0r 00-l l 00-0-l l l 0-l 000-430021-323-00-0000

01 00-l 100-0-1 l 10-1000-430021-222-00-0000

0l 00-l I 00-0-1 I 10-1 000-430021-525-00-0000

0100-l I 00-0-l l 1 0-1 000-430000-s2s-00-0000

01 00-1 l 00-0-l r I 0-l 000-430000-525-00-0000

01 00-1 I 00-0-l I l0-1 000-430021 -323-00-0000

01 00- 1 l 00-0- I 1 l 0- 1 000-43002 1 -222-00-0000

0 l 00-l 1 00-0- I I I 0- I 000-43002 I -222-00-0000

0100-l 1 00-0-l I l0-1000-430021-222-00-0000

0100-1 I 00-0-l I l0-1000430021-222-00-0000

01 00-l l 00-0-l l l0-1 000-43002 1 -323-00-0000

01 00-l 1 00-0-l r l 0-1000-430021-52s-00-0000

0l 00-l I 00-0-1 l l 0- 1000-430021-s2s-00-0000

0l 00-r 1 00-0-l l 1 0-100043002 l-525-00-0000

0l 00-1 I 00-0-l I I 0-1000-43002 1-323-00-0000

01 00-1 l 00-0-l 1 l0-1000-43002 I -52s-00-0000

0100-r 100-0-l l 10-1000-430000-222-00-0000

0l 00-l 1 00-0-1 l 1 0- 1000-430000-525-00-0000

0l 00-l l 00-0-l I l 0-1000-43002 1-525-00-0000

01 00-1 I 00-0-l I l0-1 000-430000-525-00-0000

01 00-1 I 00-0-l I l0-1 000-430021 -525-00-0000

Matenals and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Allowance

Materials and Supplies

Allowance

CM-

PO-
PO-

2719s

27785

27825

277s9

2',7759

27826

27767

27820

27820

27820

27820

27820

2'7820

27820

27803

27811

27785

27814

27767

27803

27803

27803

27803

27820

27786

2'7',l86

27829

27123

2781t

278r9

27785

27128

27785

27811

ulassroom standards

Classroom Standards

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Loftery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

$447.20

$897.48

$373.62

s222.84

$107.14

$107.14

$119.76

st22.24

$132.98

$132.98

$132.98

$132.98

$132.98

$132.98

$132.98

$13.55

$12.8s

s20.2s

$2r.43

$s7.89

$27.8s

s22.3s

$24.71

$25.95

$57.88

$63.78

$41.76

$9.27

-$2.32

$5.42

$7.99

$8.48

-$10.06

$9.65

$7.50



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411912024

0100-l 1 00-0-1 I I 0-1 000-43002 l-525-00-0000

0100-l 100-0-1 l 10-1 000-430021-525-00-0000

0100-1 100-0-l I l0-1000-430021 -525-00-0000

01 00-45 I I -0-1 I I 0-1 000-430001-323-00-0000

0l 00-45 1 l-0-l I l0-1000-430001 -323-00-0000

01 00-45 l 1 -0-1 l I 0-1000-430001-323-00-0000

0100-45 I l-0-l 1 l0-1000430001-323-00-0000

010045 I l-0-l I 10-1000-430001 -323-00-0000

01 00-45 I I -0-1 I I 0-1 000-430001-323-00-0000

0100-45 1 r -0-l 1 l0-l 000430001 -323-00-0000

01 00-4s I r -0-1 I 10-1 000-430001-323-00-0000

0100-45 I l-0-l I l0-1000430001-323-00-0000

01 00-45 l 1 -0-1 l 10-1000-430001-323-00-0000

0l 004s l l-0-l I l0-1000430001 -323-00-0000

0100-4s r l -0-l l l0-1000-430001 -323-00-0000

01 00-45 l 1 -0-1 l I 0-1 000430001-323-00-0000

0100-45 I l-0-l 1 l0-1000-430001 -323-00-0000

01 00-45 I 1 -0-1 I I 0-1000-430001 -323-00-0000

01004s I l-0-l 1 I 0-1000-430001 -323-00-0000

0100-45 I I -0-1 I l 0-1000-430001-323-00-0000

01 00-4s l 1 -0-1 r l0-1000-430001 -323-00-0000

0100-4s I l-0-1 I I 0-1000-43000 l-323-00-0000

0100-4s l l -0-l l I 0-1 000430001-323-00-0000

0100-45 I l-0-1 I I 0- 1000-430001-323-00-0000

01 00-4s l I -0-l I l0-1 000430001-323-00-0000

Resource

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Mdley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - lndian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Object

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Cl assroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional MaterialsiClassroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Material s/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Page 3 of 12

4119120241l:12:40AM

Amount

$6.42

$8.56

$8.99

$8.57

$8.s8

$8.01

$8.57

$6.68

$s.3s

-$7.98

$12.62

$12.66

$12.08

$12.s4

$12.s8

$16.71

$13.92

$11.s4

$9.90

$ 10.71

$13.93

$13.93

$17. I I

$13.71

s9.26

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

CM

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

27829

27829

2'7811

27763

2782r

27763

27763

27821

2782r

27122

27763

27821

27821

27821

27821

27821

2'182r

27821

27821

27763

27763

27763

27763

27763

27763



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

12743584 4462 AMAZUN UAPIIAL S!,KVIUL,I I'U

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411912024

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

Page 4 of 12

41191202411:12:40AM

AmountResource

JOnnson-u-Malley - Inclan
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - lndian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - lndian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Object

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

lnstructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Material s/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

lnstructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

PO

PO-

zt t6J

27763

27821

2782r

2782r

27763

27'.763

2'7763

27763

27763

27763

27763

27't63

2782t

27821

27't63

27763

27763

2782r

27'762

27762

27762

27762

27762

U I UU.4) I I-U. I I I U- I UUU-4JUUUI-JIJ-UU-UUUU

0100-45 I 1 -0-1 I 10-1 000-430001-323-00-0000

010045 I l-0-l 1 l0-1000-430001 -323-00-0000

0100-4s I 1-0-l l I 0-1 000-430001-323-00-0000

0100-45 1 l-0-l 1 l0-1000-430001 -323-00-0000

0100-451 1-0-l l 10-1000-430001-323-00-0000

01 00-45 I 1 -0-1 I 1 0-1 000-430001-323-00-0000

0l 00-45 I l-0-l I l0-1000-430001-323-00-0000

0100-4s 1 l-0-l 1 l0-l 000-430001-323-00-0000

0100-45 I l -0- l I I 0- l 000-430001-323-00-0000

0100-4s I l-0-l 1 l0-1000-43000r -323-00-0000

0t 00-45 1 l-0-l 1 l0-1000-430001 -323-00-0000

0l 00-4s l 1 -0- l l 1 0-1 000-430001-323-00-0000

0100-45 l l-0-l I l0-100043000r-323-00-0000

0100-45 1 l-0-l I l0-1000-430001 -323-00-0000

0l 0045 l I -0- I I I 0-r 00043000r -323-00-0000

0100-451 l-0-l I l0-1000430001-323-00-0000

01004s l 1-0-1 l I 0-r000-430001 -323-00-0000

0100-4s r l -0-1 l l0-1000-430001-323-00-0000

01 00-4s l 1-0-l l l0- r000-430001 -323-00-0000

0r 00-45 r l-0-1 r 1 0-1000-430001 -323-00-0000

0100-45 1 1 -0-1 I 1 0-1000-430001-323-00-0000

01 00-45 l 1-0-l 1 10-1000-430001 -323-00-0000

01 0045 I t -0-1 I I 0-l 000-430001-323-00-0000

92s.73

$17. r s

$35.38

$2t.M

$22.49

$3 1.s2

$32.66

$38.60

$20. l l

$46.06

$2r.M

$26.79

$26.80

$31.05

$54.05

$r0.71

$14.70

$10.70

$10.70

$11s.77

$96.46

$171.36

$340.82

s342.73

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

12743584 +aoz

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-Sl-Ll -L2
AMAZUN LAI.IIAL JT,I(VILts,I LNT

PV

PO

PO

PO

PO

PV

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411912024

U IUU- /Z IU-U- T T tU- IUUU.+JUUUI.JZJ-UU-UUUU

0100-72 l0-0- l r l 0-r 000-430001-323-00-0000

0100-72r0-0-l l l0-1000-430001-323-00-0000

0100-7210-0-l 1 l0-r000430001-323-00-0000

0 l 00-72 I 0-0- I 1 r 0- l 000-430001 -323-00-0000

0 I 00-8 I s0-0-0000-8 I 00-430014-222-00-0000

0 l 00-8 r s0-0-0000-8 I 00-430000- l 2 l -00-0000

0 I 00-8 I s0-0-0000-8 r 00-4300 l 4-424-00-0000

0 I 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 1 4-323-00-0000

01 00-8 I 50-0-0000-81 00-430014-52s-00-0000

0r 00-8 I 50-0-0000-81 00-430014-52s-00-0000

0l 00-8 I 50-0-0000-81 00-430014-525-00-0000

Page 5 of 12

4/19120241l:12:40AM

AmountResource

1\m9llUitlr rnglan ruuQallon

American Indian Education

American Indian Education

American Indian Education

American Indian Education

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct.

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct.

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct.

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct.

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct.

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct.

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct.

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrostricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Object

lnsrucilonat vlarenals/Ltassroom

Instructional Materials/Cl assroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

lnstructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Maintenance Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Maintenance Supplies

Maintenance Supplies

Maintenance Supplies

Maintenance Supplies

Maintenance Supplies

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapital ized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized lmprovements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapital ized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

t2743585

12743586

4092

zttz+

29478

27775

27775

27775

27776

29477

27776

27776

278r3

27776

2'.77'.76

27083

27083

27083

2'7083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

AMERICAN BUSINESS MACH PO - 27155

PO - 27155

4568 ARAMARK UNIFORM & CAR PO

0100-1 100-0-l I l0-2700-430000-s2s-00-0000

0 I 00- l l 00-0- l l I 0-2700-430000-525-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0- l l I 0-8200-560000-323-00-0000

01 00-0000-0-l 1 l0-8200-560000-323-00-0000

0t 00-0000-0- I I I 0-8200-560000-323-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0- l l l 0-8200-s60000-323-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0- l l I 0-8200-560000-222-00-0000

0100-0000-0-l I l0-8200-s60000-222-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0- l I l 0-8200-s60000-222-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0- I I 1 0-8200-560000-222-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-1 l 1 0-8200-560000- l 20-00-0000

0100-0000-0-l 1 I 0-8200-560000-120-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- l l r 0-8200-560000- 120-00-0000

Total For FundNumber: 0100 $9,905.06

Total Amount of Payment: _Q129199
State Lottery Materials and Supplies $15.00

State Lottery Materials and Supplies $15.00

Total For Fund Number: 0100 $30.00

Total Amount of Payment: $30.00

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

-$6.86

$13s. r4

s240.09

s257.24

$t 88.64

$1 19. l6

$75.65

$119.20

$l19.21

$102.94

$86.74

$49.6s

$s.6s

$s.6s

$6.21

$6.21

$39.88

$39.88

$43.91

$43.91

$4s.95

$s3.21

$4s.9s



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

12743586 456E AKAMAKK UNIf'UKM 
'I, 

UAK
ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411912024

UIUU-UUUU-U-I I IU.EZUU-)OUUUU-ZZZ-UU.UUUU

0100-0000-0-l 1 t0-8200-560000-525-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0- l 1 l 0-8200-s60000-525-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0- I I I 0-8200-560000-525-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0- l 1 l 0-8200-s60000-s25-00-0000

0100-0000-0-1 r r0-8200-s60000-424-00-0000

0100-0000-0-1 l 10-8200-560000-424-00-0000

01 00-0000-0- l 1 l 0-8200-s60000-222-00-0000

0100-0000-0-l l l0-8200-560000-424-00-0000

0100-0000-0-1 I 10-8200-560000424-00-0000

0100-0000-0-1 I 10-8200-560000-424-00-0000

0100-0000-0-1 I 10-8200-560000424-00-0000

0100-0000-0-l I l0-8200-560000-120-00-0000

0100-0000-0-t I 10-8200-560000-222-00-0000

0100-0000-0-1 l r0-8200-560000-222-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0- l 1 l 0-8200-560000-525-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- 1 l r 0-8200-560000-525-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0- I r I 0-8200-560000-52s-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0- 1 l 1 0-8200-560000-525-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0- I I I 0-8200-560000-323-00-0000

01 00-0000-0- 1 l I 0-8200-s60000-323-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-l l I 0-8200-560000-323-00-0000

01 00-0000-0- I l r 0-8200-560000-323-00-0000

PU

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

Z IU6J

27083

2't083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

2'1083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

27083

Page 6 of l2
4119120241l:12:40AM

AmountResource

unresfircteo Kesources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Unrestricted Resources

Object

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapital ized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapital ized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapital ized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapital ized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapital ized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapital ized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvoments

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapital ized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapital ized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapital ized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapital ized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapital ized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

s7r.62

$17.70

$25.89

$2s.89

$2s.89

s77.'17

$77.77

s71.62

sr24.17

$r24.r7

$125.41

$125.41

$ 161.79

s94.62

$94.62

$r 07.69

$ 107.69

$87.78

$87.78

$91.46

$91.46

$91.46

$9r.46



Central Union Elementary School District Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411912024

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2 Resource

45bU AKAMAKKUNITUKIVI'gUAK TU - ZIV63 UIUU-UUUU-U.IIIU.d"ZUU-)OUUUU-4ZI+-UU.UUUU unrgstllgrcu I{.cs()llu95

PO - 27083 0100-0000-0-1110-8200-560000-424-00-0000 UnrestrictedResources

PageT of 12

41191202411: l2:40AM

Amount

$96.77

$96.77

t2743586

12743s86 4568

2',796 AT&T

ARAMARK UNIFORM & CAR PV . 29469

PV - 29470

PV - 29471

PV - 29472

PV - 29465

PV - 29466

PV - 29467

PV - 29468

I 300-53 r 0-0-0000-3700-560000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-560000-000-00-0000

r 300-s3 l0-0-0000-3700-s60000-000-00-0000

I 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-560000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 I 0-0-0000-3700-s60000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 l 0-0-0000-3700-560000-000-00-0000

l 300-53 1 0-0-0000-3700-560000-000-00-0000

I 300-s3 1 0-0-0000-3700-560000-000-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200-s900 l 0- l2 l -00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0- I I 1 0-8200-5900 l 0-222-00-0000

01 00-0000-0-1 l 1 0-8200-s9001 0-525-00-0000

0l 00-0000-0-l 1 r 0-8200-s9001 0-424-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-0000-8200-5900 l 0- r2 l -00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-0000-8200-5900 I 0- l 2 r -00-0000

Object

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapital ized Improvements

Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Child Nutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapital ized Improvements

ChildNutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvements

Child Nutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapital ized Improvements

Child Nutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapital ized Improvements

Child Nutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapital ized Improvements

Child Nutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Child Nutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapital ized Improvements

Child Nutrition - School Programs Rentals, Leases, Repairs and
Noncapitalized Improvemonts

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Interest

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapitalized Improvements

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Software License Renewals

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

$2,s31.07

$94.80

$94.80

$94.80

$94.80

$96.39

$96.39

$96.39

$96.39

12743587

12743588 t65 CALIFORNIADEPARTMENT( pV - 29496 0100-0000-0-0000-0000-866000-000-00-0000

12743589 4314 CANON FINANCIAL SERVTCI PO - 27299 0100-0000-0-0000-7200-560000-121-00-0000

PO - 27012

PO - 27012

PO - 27012

PO - 27012

PO - 27012

PO - 27012

s764.76

$3,295.83

$34.93

$s9.01

$l 13.14

$123.81

s264.6s

$440.39

$r,03s.93

$1,035.93

$363.88

$363.88

$363.88

s4,923.99

$4,923.99

$4B23.99

$131.66

$ 131.66

$r3r.66

12',t43590 r75l cDw-c po - 27743 0r00-0050-0-0000-7700-580011-l2t-00-0000



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

12743591 4I8I ULAKK, NIUULI,

t2743592 4515 CWDL CPAS

t2'143593 332 ELIA, CURTIS

t2743599

12743600

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411912024

YV - ty46y UtUU-ltUU-U-tllU-IUUU-4JUU/l-41.4-UU-UUUU

pv - 29500 0100-0000-0-0000-7190-580070-12l-00-0000

pv - 29491 0100-u00-0-1160-1000-430001-424-00-0000

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

PV

Resource Object
Jrare LoIIery Auowance

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricte d Resources Prof Serv. & Oper. Exp. - Audit
Exp

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Instructional Materials/Classroom

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery

Stat€ Lottery

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Rentals, Leases, Repairs and

Noncapital ized Improvements

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

American Indian Education Materials and Supplies

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Cl assroom

Page 8 of 12

4119120241l:12:40AM

Amount

$ l5l.9l

$ 151.91

s15l.9l

$9,804.60

$9,804.60

$9,804.60

$139.35

$139.35

$r39.3s

$37.45

$46.1 0

$83.5s

$83.55

$8s0.00

$8s0.00

$850.00

$1,500.00

$1,s00.00

$1,500.00

$486.00

s486.00

s486.00

$31.31

$91.63

$122.94

s122.94

s29r.'r9

$291.79

s291.79

$70 l. s6

$701.56

s701.56

$1,469.33

$1,469.33

$r,469.33

12743594 3983 GATELY, BRITTANY

12743595 2525 GOLDENEAGLECHARTERn PV - 29498 0100-1100-0-1156-1000-560000-222-00-0000

r2743596 4876 GOLDSMITH, DAVID po - 27846 0100-00s0-0-0000-7700-580000-121-00-0000

t2743597 2241 GONZALES,ANNE pv - 29476 0100-7210-0-1110-1000-430000-323-00-0000

12743598 4358 HOMEDEPOTPRO

PV

29486

2948'7

PO - 27071

Pv - 29464

01 00-l 100-0-l l s6-1 000-430001 -424-00-0000

01 00-l 100-0-1 l I 0-l 000-430001424-00-0000

0 l 00-8 1 50-0-0000-8 I 004300 I 4-323-00-0000

01 00-81 50-0-0000-81 00430014-222-00-0000

3845 INFANTE, BARBARA pv - 294',74 0100-il00-0-1110-1000-430021-525-00-0000

516 JONESSCHOOLSUpPLyCO.I PO - 27865 0100-1100-0-llt0-1000430021-323-00-0000

12743601 544 KINGS CO TROPHY PV - 29490 0t00-0000-0-0000-7100-430000-121-00-0000



Central Union Elementary School District

DocumentNo VendorNo VendorName
12743602 1314 LAKbSHUKI, ZUUZ

t2743603 598 LOZANO SMITH

12'.743604

12743605

12'743606

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2
2 I 13U UIUU-bU)J-U-I I IU.IUUU-4JUUUU-UUU-UU-UUUU

27760 0 I 00-6053-0- l I 1 0- I 000-430000-000-00-0000

po - 27760 0100-6053-0-1110-1000-430000-000-00-0000

cM - 27t29 0100-7210-0-lll0-1000-430001-323-00-0000

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411912024

0 r 00-0000-0-0000-71 00-5800 I 0- 1 2 1 -00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0-0000-7 l 00-58001 0-12 l -00-0000

0100- l 100-0-r l l0-1000-430021 -323-00-0000

0 l 00- I 1 00-0- I I I 0- I 000-43002 l -222-00-0000

0 I 00- I I 00-0- I I I 0- I 000-43000 I -222-00-0000

0l 00-1 100-0-l 1 l0-1000-430000-222-00-0000

01 00-l 100-0-l I 1 0-1000430001-222-00-0000

0100-1 100-0-1 l 10-1000-430001-222-00-0000

0100-l 1 00-0-1 l 1 0-1000430001424-00-0000

0100-1 100-0-l I l0-1000-430021-222-00-0000

0100-r 100-0-l I l0-1000-430021-222-00-0000

01 00-45 I 1-0-l 1 l0-1 000-430001 -323-00-0000

Resource Object

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

lnstructional Material s/Cl assroom

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Prof Serv & Oper Exp.- Legal

Unrestricted Resourcas Prof. Serv & Oper. Exp.- Legal

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Arts, Music, & Instructional Textbooks
Materials Discretionary Block
Grant

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

State Lottery Allowance

UM

PO

unllo uev: uA tsreKlnoer rlannlng
& Implementation Grant Program -
CA Universal

Child Dev: CA Prekinder Planning
& Implementation Grant Program -
CA Universal

Child Dev: CA Prekinder Planning
& Implementation Grant Program -
CA Universal

American Indian Education

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

State Lottery

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - lndian
Education

Johnson-O-Malley - Indian
Education

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Materials and Supplies

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Allowance

Allowance

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Page9 of 12

4119120241l:12:40AM

Amount

-$77.79

$2,630.53

$145.48

-$428.89

s2,269.33

s2,269.33

$39.s0

$474.00

$5 13.50

$513.50

$82.66

$82.66

$82.66

$169,91 1.18

$169,91 1.1 8

$169,911.18

ss27.02

$139.77

$301.31

$151.57

$808.36

s|,629.77

$r,629.77

$84.28

$71.05

$sl. l2

$s3.60

$333.80

PO - 27025

PO - 2702s

616 MARTELLA,ALICIA pv - 29494 0100-1100-0-1110-2700-430000-424-00-0000

39s4 MCCRAWHTLLEDUCATTON pO - 27639 0100-6762-0-1110-1000-410000-121-31-0101

712 OFFICE DEPOT INC PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-

27769

27764

27780

27804

27780

27780

27787

27764

27823

27'.768

po - 27768 0100-4511-0-1110-1000-430001-323-00-0000

2776s 0 r 00-45 I I -0- I I I 0- 1 000-43000 I -323-00-0000PO

PO 27822 0 l 00-4s 1 I -0- l I I 0- I 000-43000 l -323-00-0000 Instructional Materials/Classroom $127.37



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

12743606 /t2 uhtlut Dtvul INL

12743606 712 OFFICE DEPOT INC

r2743607 4208 PILCHER, DAVID 29495 0 1 00- l 1 00-0-1 l l 0- I 000-43002 l -323-00-0000

t2743608 4IO8 RICKARD, JIM

t2'743609

t2743610 1498 SMYERS, NICOLE

t27436lL 3232 SPRINGER,ANDREA

127436t2 1126 SWEENEY. HEIKO

127436t3 2601 TOTALCOMPENSATTONSyS PV - 294'13 0100-0000-0-0000-7200-s80000-l2l-00-0000

t2'143614

PV

PV

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411912024

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2 Resource Object

vu - 2t t6> uluu-4)ll-u-tllu-ruuu-4Juuur-Jlj-uu-uuuu JOnnson-u-vralley - rnolan
Education

lnstructtonal Matenals/ul assroom

po - 27824 1300-5310-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Total For FundNumber: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

29492 0100-6762-0-1156-1000430001-424-00-0000 Arts, Music, & Instructional Instructional Materials/Classroom

pv - 29499 0100-1100-0-1110-1000-430021-424-00-0000

Materials Discretionary Block
Grant

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0 I 00

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Communications - Telephone

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Communications - Telephone

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Communications - Telephone

Total For FundNumber: 0100

pv - 29493 0100-1100-0-ll10-1000-430021-424-00-0000

pv - 2947s 0100-1100-0-1110-2700-520003-222-00-0000

Total Amount of Payment:

Allowance

Page l0 of l2
4/191202411:12:40AM

Amount

$243.97

$6,r52.76

$214.49

s2r4.49

$6J67.2s

$236.4s

s236.4s

$236.45

$184. l4

$184.14

$r84.r4

$120.99

$r20.99

s120.99

$224.88

s224.88

$224.88

$303.37

$303.37

$303.37

$62.31

$62.31

$623r

$3,1 50.00

$3,1 50.00

s3,150.00

$96. l 0

$96. l 0

$96.10

$231.39

$l.29

$81.70

$314.38

$314.38

3624 SHANNON-CUNNTNGHAM,C pV - 29485 0100-1100-0-1110-1000-430021424-00-0000

3773 VANGRONINGEN,ANNMARII pV - 29488 0100-1100-0-1110-1000-430021-424-00-0000

12743615 1593 VERIZON WIRELESS PO

PO

PO

27003

21003

27003

0100-0000-0-0000-7200-590010-121-00-0000

0l 00-8 l s0-0-0000-8 I 00-5900 l0-424-00-0000

01 00-8 r 50-0-0000-81 00-59001 0- 120-00-0000

12743616 ITIO WARD, JENNIFER PV - 29497 0100-1100-0-lll0-1000-430021-222-00-0000 StateLottery $3ss.03



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411912024

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-Sl-Ll -L2 Resource Object

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Page ll of12
4/19120241l: l2:40AM

Amount

$355.03

s3ss.03



District: 11 Central Union Elementary School District
Fund

0r00

1300

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0411912024

Total # of Payments: 33

Page I ofl
4/1912024 ll:12:40AM

Total # of Payments: 33 Grand Total:

Total

s218,499.70

$979.25

1i219,47E.95

$ 219,478.95



Central Union Elementary School District

rrrant Number Vendor Number

Warrant Register For Warrants
Dated 0412412024

Vendor Name

Page I of I

4/2512024 2:53:49PM

Amount

t2744066
12744067

12744068

12744069

12744070

1274407 I

12744072
12744073

12744074

4085

4358

518

2182
4367
2886
3872
4204
4934

RICARDO GONZALEZ
HOME DEPOT PRO

JORGENSEN COMPANY
KINGS AREA RURAL TRANSIT
KONA ICE OF KINGS COUNTY
LOWE'S
PRISMATIC MAGIC
VANIR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT INC
VASTNETWORKS

$200.00

$304.82

$238.26

$42.00

$937.s0
$458.48

$1,084.00

s63,217.28

$875.00

Total Amount of All Warrants: i61 ,357 .34

W



School District Payment Order

District Name: Central Union Elementary School District

As per the Authorized Signature Permit, the following payments are authorized as listed on the payment register

Warrants 9 $67,357.34

Credit Card Payments 0

Grand Total for Payments Dated: 04/2412024 $67,357.34

faBE J Ur J

tr

Authorized Offi cerlEmployee

Or

Board Members *

4^lrd
U

x If this option is chosen, must have a majority of board members authorization (EC 42632)

Date

KCOE Examination and Approval

By Date

This order must be returned to KCOE prior to distribution of payments.



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

t2'144066 4085 GONZALEZ,RICARDO

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-St-Ll -L2
po - 27788 0100-[00-0-lll0-r000-580000-424-00-0000

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0412412024

0l 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 l4-323-00-0000

0 I 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 l4-323-00-0000

0 I 00-8 1 50-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 14-323-00-0000

0 l 00-8 l s0-0-0000-8 I 00-43001 4-120-00-0000

0 I 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 l4-525-00-0000

0 1 00-8 1 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 14 -222-00-0000

0 1 00-8 1 50-0-0000-8 I 004300 14-323-00-0000

0 I 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 1 00-4300 l4-120-00-0000

0 l 00-8 1 s0-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 l4- 120-00-0000

Resource Object

State Lottery Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

American Rescue Plan- Homeless Other Services and Operating
Children and Youth II (ARP HCY Expenditures
ID

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintsnance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Donations Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Architect Fees

Total For Fund Number: 1400

Unrestricted Resources Architect Fees

Total For Fund Number: 3500

Unrestricted Resources Architect Fees

12744067 4358 HOME DEPOT PRO

t2t44068 sl8 .TORGENSEN COMPANY PV - 29507 0100-8150-0-0000-8100-580000-222-00-0000

t27M069 2182 KTNCSAREARURALTRANST PO - 27"161 0100-5634-0-1110-1000-580000-127-00-0000

r2744070 4367 KONAICE OF KrNGS COUNT' PO - 27877 0100-0000-0-1110-1000-430000-s31-00-0000

t27440'71 2886 LOWE'S

PO - 27071

PO - 2707r

PO - 27071

PV - 29s06

PO - 2706r

PO - 2706r

PO - 27061

PV - 29501

PV - 29502

Page I of 3

412512024 2:53:28PM

Amount

$200.00

$200.00

$200.00

$72.24

s26.24

$196. l7

$10.17

$304.82

$304.82

$238.26

$238.26

s238.26

$42.00

$42.00

$42.00

$937.50

$937.50

$937.50

$76.38

$29.99

$34.s3

$37.66

$279.92

$4s8.48

$4s8.48

$ 1,084.00

$1,084.00

$1,0E4.00

$3,160.86

$3,1 60.86

$12,643.46

$n,64!46

$47,412.96

t2744072 38'72 PRISMATIC MAGIC PO - 21686 0100-0038-0-1110-1000-580000424-00-0000

12744073 4204 VANTRCONSTRUCTIONMAI PV - 29505 1400-0000-0-0000-8500-620010-424-10-7592

12744073 4204 VANIRCONSTRUCTIONMA]. PV - 29504 3500-0000-0-0000-8500-620010-424-10-7592

t2744073 4204 VANTRCONSTRUCTTONMAI pV - 29503 4000-0000-0-0000-8s00-620010-424-t0-7s92



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

12'.t44074 4934 VAST NETWORKS

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0412412024

0l 00-00s0-0-0000-7700-430000-l2l -00-0000

0 I 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000- I 2 I -00-0000

0 100-0050-0-0000-7700430000- 1 2 I -00-0000

01 00-0050-0-0000-7700430000-12 I -00-0000

0l 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000-12 l -00-0000

0 I 00-0050-0-0000-7700-430000- 12 I -00-0000

0 I 00-0050-0-0000-7700430000-1 2 1-00-0000

Resource

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Classroom Standards

Object
lotal lor tuno Number: 4uuu

Total Amount of Payment:

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Page2 of3
412512024 2:53',28PM

Amount

$47,412.96

$63,217.28

$125.00

$125.00

$125.00

$125.00

$125.00

$125.00

$125.00

$875.00

$875.00

PV.
PV-
PV-
PV-
PV-
PV.
PV.

29sr0

29slL

29512

295t3

295t4

29s08

29509



District: 11 Central Union Elementary School District
Fund

0100

1400

3500

4000

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0412412024

Total # of Payments: 9

Page I of 1

412512024 2:53:28PM

Total # of Payments: 9 Grand Total:

Total

$4,140.06

$3,160.86

s12,643.46

s47,412.96

967,357.34

s 67,357.34



Central Union Elementary School District

rrrant Number Vendor Number

Warrant Register For Warrants
Dated 0412612024

Vendor Name

Page I of I

412612024 l:10:39PM

Amount

12744130

12744131

12744132

12744133

t2744134
12744135

r2744136
1274413'./

12744138

12744139

12744140

12744141

12744142

12744143

t2744144
12744145

12744146

12744147

12744148

12744149

12744t50
12744151

12744152

12744t53
12744ts4
12744155

12744156

127441s7

12744158

12744159

12744160

12744161

t2744162
t2744163
127441'64

4tt2
4092
2789
496s
4580

4861

4993

2640
2864

337

3244
3241
2525

2241

4085

1761

4992
4s34
4358

4236

781

4940
802

2737
4ttt
914

1607

936
958

3984
3986

3985

3450
4056
4485

ELIZABETH ALVARADO
AMERICAN BUSINESS MACHINES
LAURIEANDERSON
CENTRAL VALLEY STEEL STRUCTURES LLC
TAYLOR CONOVER
STACEY CORBIERE
CREATIVE GRAPHIX AND THREADS LLC
DARIN DENNEY
DIGITECH INTEGRATION INC.
EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPT

FASTENAL COMPANY
MANUEL GARCIA
GOLDEN EAGLE CHARTER INC.
ANNE GONZALES
RICARDO GONZALEZ
KELLY GOSSCHALK
JUSTENE GUZMAN
HANFORD SENTINEL
HOME DEPOT PRO

PERFORMANCEAIR
PAULARAMOS
REBECCAA REYNOLDS
ROBINSON'S
SANTA ROSA RANCHERIA ED CENTER
KELLI SOWERS
STONEY'S SAND & GRAVEL LLC
SWEETWATER SOLIND INC
LAURENTHAYER
TULARE COUNTY OFFICE OF ED

US BANK (ADDINGTON)

US BANK (FULLERTON)

US BANK (SANTAMARIA)
VINCENT COMMUNICATIONS INC

BARBARAWILLIAMS
ZENDESK GROUP

$391.67

$4s.00
$1"17.82

$12,781.76
$299.88

$3 1.58

$800.00

$523.80

$2,050.88

$2,577.2',7

$2.60

$2,834.81

$5,306.80
$ 140.41

$200.00

$66. I 5

$l17.91
$669. I 6

$ 104.87

$6,053.8 I
$113.62

$ 1,169.63

$954.53

$400.00

$4s4.44
$53.32

$e72.00

$291.83

$s00.00
$3,263.43

$7,612.93

s3,412.08
$2,079.58

$98.72

$4,242.24

$60,194.53Total Amount of All Warrants:

W



School District Payment Order

District Name: Central Union Elementary School District

As per the Authorized Signature Permit, the following payments are authorized as listed on the payment register

Warrants 35 $60,794.53

Credit Card Payments 0

Grand Total for Payments Dated: 04/26/2024 $60'794.53

Authorized Offrcer/Employee

Or

Board Members *

* If this option is chosen, must have a majority of board members authorization (EC 42632)

Date

KCOE Examination and Approval

By Date

raBE o ur u

This order must be returned to KCOE prior to distribution of payments.



Central Union Elementary School District Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0412612024

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2 Resource

12',744130 4112 ALVARADO,ELIZABETH PV - 29522 0100-1100-0-1110-1000-430001-424-00-0000 StateLottery

Page I of 6
412612024 l:09:57PM

Amount

$391.67

$391.67

$391.67

$15.00

$ 1s.00

$r 5.00

$4s.00

s4s.00

$r'17.82

$177.82

s177.82

$12,781.'.76

$t2,78r.76

$12,781.76

$299.88

$299.88

$299.88

$3 1.58

$31.58

$31.58

$800.00

$800.00

s800.00

$s23.80

$523.80

$523.80

$2,050.88

$2,0s0.88

$2,050.88

$2,517.42

$2,517.42

$s9.85

$s9.85

s2,577.21

$2.60

12744131

12744132 2789 ANDERSON, LAURIE pv - 29s23 0100-1100-0-1110-1000-430021-424-00-0000

12744133 496s CENTRALVALLEYSTEELST PO - 275s4 0100-7032-0-0000-8s00-620000-000-00-0000

12744134 4580 CONOVER,TAYLOR pv - 29524 0100-1100-0-1110-1000-430021-424-00-0000

t2744135 4861 CORBIERE, STACEY pv - 29539 0100-1t00-0-1110-1000-430000-222-00-0000

12'.744136 4993 CREATTVEGRAPHIXANDTH pO - 27875 0100-0000-0-1110-1000-430000-531-00-0000

12744t37 2640 DENNEY, DARIN pv - 29s38 0100-r100-0-1110-2700-520003-222-00-0000

12744t38 2864 DIGITECHINTEGRATTONTN( PV - 29543 0100-8150-0-0000-8100-560009-424-00-0000

t2744139 337 EMPLOYMENTDEVELOPME' PV - 29534 0100-0000-0-0000-0000-951500-000-00-0000

127M139 337 EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPME pV - 29535 1300-0000-0-0000-0000-951500-000-00-0000

Object

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition: Kitchen Buildings and Improvement of
Infrastructure & Training Funds Buildings
2022

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Mat€rials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Mileage-Other

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Outsider Services

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources State Unemployment Insurance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Unreshicted Resources State Unemployment Insurance

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

4092 AMERICAN BUSINESS MACH PO . 27664

PO - 27360

PO - 27360

0100-l 100-0-1 I 10-1000-430000-222-00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200-430000-1 2 1 -00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200-430000-12 I -00-0000

12741.l40 3244 FASTENAL COMPANY po - 27076 0100-8150-0-0000-8100-430014-222-00-0000



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

12744141

t2744142

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0412612024

0 1 00-8 I s0-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 1 4- 1 20-00-0000

0l 00-8 l s0-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 l4-222-00-0000

0 l 00-8 l s0-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 l4-525-00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0- I I 1 0-2495-430000-323 -3 1 -020r

0100-7210-0-l I l0-1000-430000-323-00-0000

0l 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 l 00-4300 l4-222-00-0000

01 00-8 1 50-0-0000-81 00-430014-222-00-0000

0l 00-8 l 50-0-0000-81 00-430014-120-00-0000

Resource Object

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

State Lottery Transportation/not School

Total For Fund Number: 0 1 00

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

American Indian Education Materials and Supplies

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of PaYment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Prof. Serv. & Oper. Exp. -
Advertising

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Unrestricted Resources Prof. Serv & Oper. Exp.- Legal

Total For Fund Number: 1400

Unrestricted Resources Prof. Sew & Oper. Exp.- Legal

Total For Fund Number: 3500

Unrestricted Resources Prol Serv & Oper. Exp.- Legal

Total For FundNumber: 4000

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

3241 GARCIA, MANUEL

2525 coLDENEAGLECHARTERn pV - 29525 0100-1100-0-lll0-1000-580007-222-00-0000

PY - 29572

PO - 27202

PO - 2720t

PV 29s36

29537

PV - 29s41

PV - 29540

PV - 29542

Page 2 of 6

412612024 1:09:57PM

Amount

s2.60

$a2.0s

$1,429.83

9782.93

$2,834.81

_t2,834.!1
$5,306.80

$5,306.80

$93.30

M7.11

-5Mo4l

$140.41

s200.00

$200.00

s200.00

$66. l 5

$66.1 5

s66.15

$l r7.91

$117.91

s1l7.9t

$308.98

$308.98

$18.00

$18n0

s'|2.04

$72.04

$270.14

s27014

$669.r6

$6.43

s19.22

$6.42

$5,306.80

t2'744143 2241 GONZALES,ANNE

r2744144 4085 CONZALEZ, RICARDO po - 27891 0100-1100-0-1110-1000-580000-s2s-00-0000

12744145 1761 GOSSCHALK, KELLY pv - 295r9 0r00-1100-0-1110-r000-430021-424-00-0000

tz't44146 4992 GUZMAN,JUSTENE PV - 29532 0100-1100-0-ll10-1000-430021-424-00-0000

12744147 4534 HANFORDSENTINEL pv - 29ss7 0100-0000-0-0000-7100-s80040-l2l-00-0000

12744147 4534 HANFORD SENTINEL pv - 29560 1400-0000-0-0000-8s00-580010-424-10-7s92

12744147 4534 HANFORDSENTINEL pv - 29559 3500-0000-0-0000-8s00-580010-424-r0-7s92

12744147 4534 HANFORDSENTINEL pv - 295s8 4000-0000-0-0000-8500-580010-424-10-'7s92

PV

t2744148 4358 HOME DEPOT PRO



Central Union Elementary School District

DocumentNo VendorNo VendorName
t2144148

4236 PERFORMANCEAIR

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2
YU - ZtVtl

PO - 27071

U I UU.6 I )U-U-UUUU-d I UU-4JUU I I+-)I).UU-UUUU

0 I 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 I 00-4300 l4-525-00-0000

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0412612024

0 l 00-8 l 50-0-0000-8 1 00-s60009-424-00-0000

0 1 00-8 1 s0-0-0000-8 l 00-560009-424-00-0000

0 1 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 I 00-560009-222-00-0000

0l 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 1 00-560009-424-00-0000

0 l 00-8 l s0-0-0000-8 l 00-560009 -222-00-0000

0 I 00-8 I 50-0-0000-8 l 00-560009-424-00-0000

0 I 00-32 1 8-0- 1 I 1 0- l 000-430000- t2t -31 -0203

01 00-0000-0-l I I 0-3 120-430000-l2l -00-0000

Resource Object
vngolng 6. rvrajor rvrarn[. Asst. vlalntenance bupplles

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Outsider Services

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Outsider Services

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Outsider Services

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Outsider Services

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Outsider Services

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Outsider Services

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Elementary & Secondary School Other Services and Operating
Emergency Relieflll (ESSER III) Expenditures
Fund

Elementary & Secondary School Other Services and Operating
Emergency Relieflll (ESSER III) Expenditures
Fund

Elementary & Secondary School Other Services and Operating
Emergency Relieflll (ESSER III) Expenditures
Fund

Elementary & Secondary School Other Services and Operating
Emergency Relieflll (ESSER III) Expenditures
Fund

Total For Fund Number: 0 1 00

Total Amount of Payment:

Child Nutrition: Kitchen Materials and Supplies
Infrastructure & Training Funds
2022

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Other Services and Operating
Expenditures

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

ELO Crant: ESSER III State Materials and Supplies
Reserve Emergency Needs

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

4J]d HUMI, L,T],I,UI l,KU

Page 3 of 6

412612024 1:09:57PM

Amount

$53.58

st9.22

$1043?

$104.87

$900.74

s2,44r.s7

$1,370.00

$39s.00

$701.50

$245.00

$6,053.81

$6,053.81

$l 13.62

$113.62

sll3.62

$210.49

$249.5s

$269.08

$440.s r

$ 1,169.63

$1,169.63

$9s4.53

$954.53

s954.53

$400.00

M00.00

s400.00

$410.94

$43.s0

12744149

t2744t50 781 RAMOS, PAULA - 29521 0100-1100-0-l 110-1000-43002r-424-00-0000

12744151 4940 REYNOLDS.REBECCAA PO - 27625 0100-3213-0-1191-3110-580000-000-35-0302

po - 2762s 0100-3213-0-1191-3110-580000-000-3s-0302

po - 27625 0100-3213-0-119r-3110-580000-000-35-0302

po - 2't62s 0100-3213-0-1191-3110-580000-000-3s-0302

12744152 802 ROBINSON'S po - 27737 0100-7032-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

l2'744153 2737 SANTAROSARANCHERIAET pV - 29571 0100-1100-0-1135-1000-580000-323-00-0000

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

29526

29s27

29529

29528

29s30

29531

PV - 295t7

PV - 29516

12744154 4I1I SOWERS, KELLI



Central Union Elementary School District

12744155

t2744159

12744160

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0412612024

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2

914 STONEY'SSAND&GRAVELt pO - 270s4 0100-8150-0-0000-8100-430014-525-00-0000

12744t56 t60'7 SWEETWATER SOUND tNC PO - 27838 0100-6762-0-1156-1000-430001-222-39-0000

t2'144157 936 THAYER,LAUREN pv - 29533 0100-1100-0-1110-1000430021-424-00-0000

12744158

Resource Object
loral lor runq l\umoer: utuu

Total Amount of Payment:

Ongoing & Major Maint. Acct. Maintenance Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Arts,Music,&Instructional InstuctionalMaterials/Classroom
Materials Discretionary Block
Grant

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Allowance

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Special Education Travel and Conferences

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Travel and Conferences

Unrestricted Resources Travel and Conferences

Unrestricted Resources Travel and Conferences

Unrestricted Resources Travel and Conferences

Unrestricted Resources Travel and Conferences

Unrestricted Resources Travel and Conferences

Unrestricted Resources Travel and Conferences

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Total For FundNumbsr: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

State Lottery Other Supplies

State Lottery Other Supplies

ELO Grant: ESSER III State Travel and Conferences
Reserve Emergency Needs

ELO Grant: ESSER III State Travel and Conferences
Reserve Emergency Needs

ELO Grant: ESSER III State Travel and Conferences
Reserve Emergency Needs

ELO Grant: ESSER III State Travel and Conferences
Reserve Emergency Needs

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

9s8 TULARECOUNTYOFFICEOT pO - 27778 0100-6500-0-s760-ll10-520000-000-00-0000

Page 4 of 6

412612024 1:09:57PM

Amount
s454.44

s4s4.44

$53.32

$53.32

ss3.32

$972.00

$972.00

$972.00

s291.83

$29 1.83

$291.83

$500.00

$500.00

$500.00

3984 US BANK (ADDINCTON) PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

3986 US BANK (FULLERTON) PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PO

29s69

29568

29567

29562

29561

29563

29565

29564

29s66

29570

29s44

29577

29574

29573

29575

29576

27410

0 l 00-0000-0-0000-7 l 00-430000-l2r -00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0-0000-7 l 00-430000-12 I -00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7 I 00-520000-12 I -00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-0000-7 l 00-520000-12 l -00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7 l 00-520000- I 2 I -00-0000

0 1 00-0000-0-0000-7 I 00-s20000- I 2 I -00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-0000-7 l 00-520000-l2l -00-0000

0 r 00-0000-0-0000-7 I 00-520000- l 2 I -00-0000

01 00-0000-0-0000-7 1 00-520000- l2 l -00-0000

01 00-0000-0-0000-7 100-430000- l2l -00-0000

0 I 00- 1 I 00-0- I 1 I 0-2700-430006-222-00-0000

0100-1 100-0-l 1 l0-2700-430006-222-00-0000

0100-321 8-0-1 I I 0-1000-520000-121-00-0000

0100-321 8-0-1 l I 0-1000-s20000-l2l -00-0000

01 00-32 l 8-0-l 1 l0-1000-520000-121 -00-0000

0l 00-321 8-0-1 I I 0-l 000-520000-12 l -00-0000

0100-0000-0-r l I 0-2495-430000-121-00-0000

$547.85

s273.93

$2,162.48

$3.37

$10.01

$19.71

$7.17

$8.96

$90.00

$139.95

$3,263.43

$3,263.43

$57.89

$89.39

$492.62

$2,0s0.00

$2,0s0.00

$2,050.00

$127.78



Central Union Elementary School District

Document No Vendor No Vendor Name

t2744160 Jy6O UJ uAl\l! (tULLbKrUlv

3985 US BANK (SANTAMARIA)

ReferenceNo FD-RE-PY-GO-FN- OB-SI-Ll -L2
Lt6Vl UIUU-UUUU-U-T T IU-OZUU-NJVVVU-IZV-UU-WVU

pv - 29s4s 0100-0000-0-0000-7490-430000-121-00-0000

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 04/2612024

01 00-0000-0-0000-7200430000-l 2 1 -00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-0000-7200-43 0000- I 2 I -00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-0000-7200-430000- l 2 r -00-0000

0 I 00-0000-0-0000-7200-430000- 12 I -00-0000

0100-0038-0-l 1 l0-1000-430000-424-00-0000

0 1 00-0097-0-0000-7600-430000- I 07-00-0000

0 I 00- 1 1 00-0-1 1 l 0-l 000-43000 I -222-00-0000

0100- I 100-0-l 1 l0-1000-430001 -424-00-0000

0100-0000-0-0000-7200-430000-121-00-0000

0 l 00-0000-0-0000-7200-430000- I 2 I -00-0000

0100-0000-0-r l 10-8200-430000-120-00-0000

0l 00-4035-0-1 l 1 0-74 l0-430000-l2l -00-0000

01 00-0000-0-0000-21 00-520003-12 l -00-0000

Resource Object

lYlatcr rarS and Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Unrestricted Rcsources Materials and Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Donations Materials and Supplies

Safety Credits Materials and Supplies

State Lottery

State Lottery

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Instructional Materials/Classroom

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 0100

Child Nutrition - School Programs Materials and Supplies

Total For Fund Number: 1300

Unrestricted Resources Prof- Serv & Oper. Exp.- Legal

Total For Fund Number: 1400

Unrestricted Resources Prof. Serv & Oper. Exp.- Legal

Total For Fund Number: 3500

Unrestricted Resources Prof. Serv & Oper. Exp.- Legal

Total For Fund Number: 4000

Total Amount of Payment:

Safety Credits Materials and Supplies

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Title II Teacher Quality Materials and Supplies

Unrestricted Resources Mileage-Other

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

Classroom Standards Software License Renewals

Total For FundNumber: 0100

Total Amount of Payment:

rU

Page 5 of 6

412612024 l:09:57PM

Amount

$605. I I

$90.14

$7,612.93

$7 t2-93

12',744t61

12744161 3985 USBANK(SANTAMARIA) PO - 27844 1300-5310-0-0000-3700-430000-000-00-0000

t2744r61 3985 US BANK (SANTAMARIA) pV - 29546 1400-0000-0-0000-8500-580010-424-10-7592

12744161 3985 US BANK (SANTAMARTA) PV - 29547 3500-0000-0-0000-8500-580010-424-10-7s92

12744161 398s US BANK (SANTAMARTA) pV - 29s48 4000-0000-0-0000-8s00-580010-424-r0-'7s92

12744t62 34s0 VTNCENTCOMMLTNICATION| pO - 27882 0100-0097-0-0000-7600-430000-107-31-0203

12744163 4056 WILLIAMS, BARBARA

PV-
PV-
PV.
PV-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PV-
PV-
PV.
PV.

29552

29553

29551

29555

27789

27817

2'7841

29549

29556

29554

29550

$481.80

$373.80

$408.00

$431.01

$679.22

$l 75.89

$52.1 0

$40.7s

$48.92

$199.44

$20.36

PV - 29520

PV - 29518

$2,9tr.29

s428.79

s428.79

$3.7s

$3.75

$ 15.00

$1s.00

$s3.2s

$s3.25

_E'412.gq
$2,079.58

$2,079.58

$2,079.58

$66.96

$31.76

$98.72

s98.72

$4,242.24

$42qZU
s4242.24

t2744164 4485 ZENDESK GROUP po - 27881 0100-0050-0-0000-7700-580011-l2l-00-0000



District: 11 Central Union Elementary School District
Fund

0100

r300

1400

3500

4000

Commercial Payment Register
For Payments Dated: 0412612024

Total # of Payments: 35

Page I of I

412612024 l:09:57PM

Total

$59,873.71

s488.64

s21.7s

$87.04

$323.39

Total # of Pavments: 35 Grand Total:

$60,794.53

$ 60,794.53











CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION #H-05-13-2024

BEFORE THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

KINGS COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

IN THE MATTER OF

Adoption of a Fee Justification Study and
Increase in School Facilities Fees and Adoption of CEQA notice of Exemption

WHEREAS, Education Code section 17620 authorizes school districts to levy a fee, charge or
dedication against any new construction within its boundaries for the purpose of funding the
construction or reconstruction of school facilities; and

WHEREAS, the governing board (“Board”) of the Central Union Elementary School District
(“District”) has caused a study to be prepared by SchoolWorks entitled 2024 Developer Fee
Justification Study (incorporated herein by reference and hereinafter referred to as the “Study”),
which identifies the purpose and use for the fee and sets forth a reasonable relationship
between the fee to be imposed, the type of development project on which the fee is to be
imposed, and the increased school facilities made necessary by virtue of the burden imposed by
the development; and

WHEREAS the Central Union Elementary School District (“District”) by agreement with the high
school district[s] sharing geographical territory with the District (“Fee-Sharing Agreement”), may
levy 60% of the total fees permitted pursuant to Government Code Section 65995 for
development in areas in which the District provides school services. The remaining permitted
fees shall be allocated to the high school district(s) within whose boundaries the residential,
commercial, or industrial development shall occur; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Government Code section 65995, subdivision (b)(3),
the fees authorized by Education Code section 17620 have presently been established by the
State Allocation Board (“SAB”) in the amount of $5.17 per square foot for residential
development and $0.84 per square foot for commercial/industrial development; and
WHEREAS based upon the Fee-Sharing Agreement and in accordance with the increased level
of fees permitted by the SAB pursuant to Government Code section 65995, the District may levy
the following fees, which represent a percentage of the SAB Authorized Fee Amounts

1. $3.10 per square foot of residential development (60% of $5.17).
2. $0.50 per square foot of commercial/industrial development (60% of $0.84).

These amounts are justified by the needs of the District alone and do not include the
needs of the high school district[s]; and

Resolution #H-05-13-2024 2024 Adoption of Developer Fees
pg 1



WHEREAS, Education Code section 17621 specifically exempts the adoption, increase, or
imposition of any fee, charge, dedication or other requirement pursuant to Education Code
section 17620 from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”)(Pub.
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.); and

WHEREAS, upon a determination that the imposition of school facilities fees under Education
Code section 17620 is exempt from CEQA, the District is entitled to file a Notice of Exemption
with the County Clerk pursuant to California Code of Regulations, title 14, section 15062.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board makes the following findings:

1. Prior to the adoption of this resolution (“Resolution”), the Board of the District
conducted a public hearing at which oral and/or written presentations were made
as part of the Board’s regularly scheduled meeting. Notice of the time and place
of the meeting, including a general explanation of the matter to be considered
has been published twice in the newspaper in accordance with Government
Code sections 66017 and 66018. Additionally, at least 10 days prior to the
meeting, the District made all relevant information available to the public
indicating the cost, or estimated cost, of the construction or reconstruction of
school facilities made necessary by the residential and/or commercial/industrial
development to which the fee shall apply.

2. The purpose of the fees is to provide adequate school facilities for the students of
the District who will be generated by residential and commercial/industrial
development in the District.

3. The fees are to be used to finance the construction and reconstruction of school
facilities.

4. There is a reasonable relationship between the need for the imposition of the fee
and the types of development projects upon which the fees shall be imposed for
the purpose of the construction or reconstruction of school facilities, in that
residential, commercial and industrial development will generate students who
will attend District schools. These students cannot be housed by the District
without additional school facilities, or the reconstruction of existing school
facilities. The fees will be used to fund all, or a portion of, new school facilities, or
to reconstruct existing school facilities.

5. There is a reasonable relationship between the amount of the fee and the cost of
the additional or reconstructed school facilities attributable to the development
upon which the fee shall be imposed, in that the square footage of these
developments has a direct relationship to the number of students that will be
generated, and thus to the facilities the District must add and/or reconstruct in
order to accommodate the additional students.

6. The District maintains a separate capital facilities account, or fund, as required by
Government Code section 66006.

7. There are no other adequate sources of funds to meet the District’s school
facilities needs occasioned by, and resulting from, the construction of new
residential and/or commercial/industrial development within the District.

Resolution #H-05-13-2024 2024 Adoption of Developer Fees
pg 2



AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board incorporates herein by reference, approves
and adopts the Study entitled 2024 Developer Fee Justification Study, prepared by
SchoolWorks which documents the need for the school facilities fees.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that since the Study justifies fees at or in excess of the SAB
Authorized Fee Amounts, the District, in accordance with Education Code sections 17620, et
seq., and Government Code sections 65995, et seq., and the Fee-Sharing Agreement, hereby
increases fees to the following amounts:

1. $3.10 per square foot of residential development;
2. $0.50 per square foot of commercial or industrial development except for Rental Self
Storage facilities in which a fee of $0.13 per square foot is justified.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the amount collected on behalf of both the District and
the high school district[s] pursuant to this Resolution shall not exceed a total of $5.17 per square
foot for residential development and $0.84 per square foot of commercial or industrial
development.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the increase in fees shall take effect sixty (60) days
after the date of this Resolution.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Superintendent of the District, or his or her
designee, shall give notice of the Board’s action herein to all cities and counties with jurisdiction
over the territory of the District in accordance with the requirements of Education Code section
17620 and 17621, requesting that no building permits (or, for manufactured homes and mobile
homes, certificates of occupancy) be issued on or after the date which is sixty (60) days after
the date of this Resolution, without certification from the District that the fee specified herein
have been paid. Said notice shall specify that collection of the fees is not subject to the
restriction set forth in Government Code section 66007, subdivision (a) but, pursuant to
subdivision (b) of that statute, the fees are to be collected prior to issuance of building permits.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that developers of commercial or industrial development be
provided the opportunity for a hearing to appeal the imposition of the fee on their developments.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that nothing contained or expressed in this Resolution shall
be construed to affect the District’s authority to increase fees, enter into agreements with
developers, or otherwise adopt or impose, to the extent permitted by law, additional fees, to fully
mitigate the impact of residential and/or commercial/industrial development upon the District’s
school facilities.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District’s administration is authorized to make
expenditures and to incur obligations of the fees for the purposes authorized by law.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board hereby finds that the increase in fees
hereunder is statutorily exempt from the requirements of CEQA pursuant to Education Code
section 17621.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Board hereby adopts this Resolution and directs
the Superintendent, or his or her designee, to file a certified copy of this Resolution, together
with all relevant supporting documentation and a map clearly indicating the boundaries of the

Resolution #H-05-13-2024 2024 Adoption of Developer Fees
pg 3



area subject to the fee, to each city and each county in which the District is situated, pursuant to
Education Code section 17621.

The foregoing Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the
Central Union Elementary School District on this 13th day of May, 2024, by the following vote:

AYE NO ABSTAIN ABSENT

Dale Davidson, Area 1

Jeffrey Gilcrease, Area 2

Sarah Strait, Area 3

Vacant, Area 4

Ceil Howe, III, Area 5

I, Sarah Strait, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the Central Union Elementary School District,
do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted
by the Board of Trustees at its meeting held on May 13, 2024.

__________________________________

Sarah Strait, Clerk
Board of Trustees

Central Union Elementary School District
Kings County, California

Resolution #H-05-13-2024 2024 Adoption of Developer Fees
pg 4



2024 DEVELOPER FEE JUSTIFICATION STUDY 
FOR  

CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

THOMAS ADDINGTON, 
SUPERINTENDENT 

PREPARED BY 

SCHOOLWORKS, INC. 
8700 Auburn Folsom Rd., #200 

Granite Bay, CA   95746 

PHONE: (916) 733-0402 
WWW.SCHOOLWORKSGIS.COM 

MARCH 2024 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 Executive Summary ...........................................................................................................1 

 

 Background .......................................................................................................................2 

 

 Purpose and Intent ............................................................................................................3 

  Burden Nexus ................................................................................................................ 3  

  Cost Nexus ..................................................................................................................... 3 

  Benefit Nexus ................................................................................................................ 3 

 

 Enrollment and Impacts .....................................................................................................4 

  Student Generation Factor ............................................................................................ 5 

  New Residential Development Impacts ........................................................................ 6 

 

 Existing Facility Capacity ....................................................................................................7 

  Classroom Loading Standards ........................................................................................ 7 

  Existing Facility Capacity ................................................................................................ 8 

  Unhoused Students by State Housing Standards .......................................................... 9 

 

 Calculation of Development’s Fiscal Impact on Schools .......................................................10 

  Reconstruction/Modernization Costs ............................................................................ 10 

  Impact of New Residential Development ...................................................................... 12 

  Impact of Other Residential Development .................................................................... 13 

  Impact of Commercial/Industrial Development ............................................................ 14 

  Employees per Square Foot of Commercial Development ........................................... 14 

  Students per Employee ................................................................................................. 15 

  School Facilities Cost per Student ................................................................................. 15 

  Residential Offset .......................................................................................................... 15 

  Net Cost per Square Foot .............................................................................................. 17 

  Verifying the Sufficiency of the Development Impact ................................................... 17 

 

 District Map ......................................................................................................................18 

 

 Conclusion.........................................................................................................................19 

  Burden Nexus ................................................................................................................ 19  

  Cost Nexus ..................................................................................................................... 19 

  Benefit Nexus ................................................................................................................ 19 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024  

Appendices 

 

 Census Data 
 

 Use of Developer Fees 
 

 Site Development Costs 
 

 Index Adjustment on the Assessment for Development – State Allocation Board Meeting of 
January 24, 2024 

 

 Annual Adjustment to School Facility Program Grants 

 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

 

Page 1 

 

 

Executive Summary 

 

This Developer Fee Justification Study demonstrates that the Central Union School District requires 

its share of the full statutory impact fee to accommodate impacts from development activity. 

 

A fee of $4.79 per square foot for residential construction and a fee of $0.78 per square foot for 

commercial/industrial construction is currently assessed on applicable permits pulled in the District. 

The new fee amounts are $5.17 per square foot for residential construction and $0.84* per square 

foot for commercial/industrial construction. This proposed increase represents $0.38 per square foot 

and $0.06 per square foot for residential and commercial/industrial construction, respectively. The 

Districts share of the developer fees is 60 percent. 

 

The following table shows the impacts of the new fee amounts: 

 

Table 1 

Central Union School District

Developer Fee Collection Rates

Totals Previous New Change

Residential $4.79 $5.17 $0.38

Commercial/Ind. $0.78 $0.84 $0.06

District Share: 60.00%

Net Impact Previous New Change

Residential $2.87 $3.10 $0.23

Commercial/Ind. $0.47 $0.50 $0.03  

 

 *except for Rental Self Storage facilities in which a fee of $0.13 per square foot is justified. 

 

The total projected number of housing units to be built over the next five years is 10. The average 

area per unit is 2,221 square feet. This Study demonstrates a need of $8.76 per square foot for 

residential construction. 

 

 

 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 2 

 

 

Background 

 
Education Code Section 17620 allows school districts to assess fees on new residential and 

commercial construction within their respective boundaries. These fees can be collected without 

special city or county approval, to fund the construction of new school facilities necessitated by the 

impact of residential and commercial development activity. In addition, these fees can also be used 

to fund the reconstruction of school facilities to accommodate students generated from new 

development projects. Fees are collected immediately prior to the time of the issuance of a building 

permit by the City or the County. 

 

As new development generates students, additional school facilities or modernization of existing 

facilities will be needed to house the new students. Because of the high cost associated with 

constructing school facilities and the District’s limited budget, outside funding sources are required 

for future school construction. State and local funding sources for the construction and/or 

reconstruction of school facilities are limited. 

 

The authority sited in Education Code Section 17620 states in part “… the governing board of any 

school district is authorized to levy a fee, charge, dedication or other form of requirement against 

any development project for the construction or reconstruction of school facilities.” The legislation 

originally established the maximum fee rates at $1.50 per square foot for residential construction 

and $0.25 per square foot for commercial/industrial construction. Government Code Section 65995 

provides for an inflationary increase in the fees every two years based on the changes in the Class B 

construction index. As a result of these adjustments, the fees authorized by Education Code 17620 

are currently $5.17 per square foot of residential construction and $0.84 per square foot of 

commercial or industrial construction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 3 

 

 

Purpose and Intent 

 

Prior to levying developer fees, a district must demonstrate and document that a reasonable 

relationship exists between the need for new or reconstructed school facilities and residential, 

commercial and industrial development. The justification for levying fees is required to address three 

basic links between the need for facilities and new development.  These links or nexus are: 

 

Burden Nexus: A district must identify the number of students anticipated to be generated by 

residential, commercial and industrial development. In addition, the district shall identify the school 

facility and cost impact of these students. 

 

Cost Nexus: A district must demonstrate that the fees to be collected from residential, commercial 

and industrial development will not exceed the cost of providing school facilities for the students to 

be generated from the development. 

 

Benefit Nexus: A district must show that the construction or reconstruction of school facilities to be 

funded by the collection of developer fees will benefit the students generated by residential, 

commercial and industrial development. 

 

The purpose of this Study is to document if a reasonable relationship exists between residential, 

commercial and industrial development and the need for new and/or modernized facilities in the 

Central Union School District. 

 

Following in this Study will be figures indicating the current enrollment and the projected 

development occurring within the attendance boundaries of the Central Union School District. The 

students generated will then be loaded into existing facilities to the extent of available space. 

Thereafter, the needed facilities will be determined and an estimated cost will be assigned. The cost 

of the facilities will then be compared to the area of residential, commercial and industrial 

development to determine the amount of developer fees justified.   



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 4 

 

 

Enrollment and Impacts 

 

In 2023/2024 the District’s total enrollment (CBEDS) was 1,595 students. The enrollment by grade 

level is shown here in Table 2. 

 

Table 2 
 

Central Union School District

CURRENT ENROLLMENT

Grade 2023/2024

TK/K 234

1 179

2 182

3 177

4 175

5 173

6 170

TK-6 Total 1,290

7 161

8 144

7-8 Total 305

TK-8 Total 1,595  
 

 

This data will be the basis for the enrollment impacts which will be presented later after a review of 

the development projections and the student generation factors. 

 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 5 

 

 

Student Generation Factor 

In determining the impact of new development, the District is required to show how many students 

will be generated from the new developments. In order to ensure that new development is paying 

only for the impact of those students that are being generated by new homes and businesses, the 

student generation factor is applied to the number of new housing units to determine development-

related impacts.   

 

The student generation factor identifies the number of students per housing unit and provides a link 

between residential construction projects and projections of enrollment. The State-wide factor used 

by the Office of Public School Construction is 0.50 for grades TK-8. For the purposes of this Study we 

will use the local factors to determine the students generated from new housing developments. This 

was done by comparing the number of housing units in the school district to the number of students 

living in the school district as of the 2020 Census. Table 3 shows the student generation factors for 

the various grade groupings. 

Table 3 
 

Central Union School District

STUDENT GENERATION FACTORS

Grades Students per Household

TK-6 0.50209

7-8 0.12245

Total 0.62454  
 

 

When using the Census data to determine the average district student yield rate, it is not possible to 

determine which students were living in multi-family units versus single family units. Therefore, only 

the total average yield rate is shown. The Census data does indicate that 41.5% of the total housing 

units within the district boundaries are single family units. It is reasonable to assume that the 

construction of new housing units would be similar to the current housing stock, which was 

confirmed by the various planning departments within the school district boundaries, and therefore 

the overall student generation rate will be used to determine student yields from the projected 

developments. 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 6 

 

 

New Residential Development Impacts 

The Central Union School District has experienced an average new residential construction rate of 

approximately two units per year over the past four years. This was determined by reviewing the 

residential permits pulled and school development impact fees paid to the District. After contacting 

the various city planning departments within the school district boundaries, it was determined that 

the residential construction rate over the next five years will average two units per year. Projecting 

the average rate forward, we would expect that 10 units of residential housing will be built within 

the District boundaries over the next five years. 

 

To determine the impact of residential development, a student projection is done. Applying the 

student generation factor of 0.6245 to the projected 10 units of residential housing, we expect that 

six students will be generated from the new residential construction over the next five years. This 

includes five elementary school students and one middle school student.   

 

The following table shows the projected impact of new development. The students generated by 

development will be utilized to determine the facility cost impacts to the school district. 

 

Table 4 
 

Generation Students

Grades Rate Generated

TK to 6 0.5021 5

7 to 8 0.1224 1

Totals 0.6245 6

DEVELOPMENT IMPACT ANALYSIS

Central Union School District

 
 

 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 7 

 

 

Existing Facility Capacity 

 

To determine the need for additional school facilities, the capacity of the existing facilities must be 

identified and compared to current and anticipated enrollments. The District’s existing building 

capacity will be calculated using the State classroom loading standards shown in Table 6. The following 

types of “support-spaces” necessary for the conduct of the District’s comprehensive educational 

program, are not included as “teaching stations,” commonly known as “classrooms” to the public: 

 

Table 5 
List of Core and Support Facilities 

 
Library    Resource Specialist 
Multipurpose Room  Gymnasium 
Office Area   Lunch Room    
Staff Workroom   P.E. Facilities 
 
 

Because the District requires these types of support facilities as part of its existing facility and 

curriculum standards at its schools, new development’s impact must not materially or adversely 

affect the continuance of these standards. Therefore, new development cannot require that the 

District house students in these integral support spaces.   

 

Classroom Loading Standards 

The following maximum classroom loading-factors are used to determine teaching-station 

“capacity,” in accordance with the State legislation and the State School Building Program. These 

capacity calculations are also used in preparing and filing the baseline school capacity statement with 

the Office of Public School Construction.   

 
Table 6 

State Classroom Loading Standards 
 

TK/Kindergarten  25 Students/Classroom 

1st-3rd Grades   25 Students/Classroom 

4th-6th Grades   25 Students/Classroom 

7th-8th Grades   27 Students/Classroom 

Non Severe Special Ed  13 Students/Classroom 

 
 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 8 

 

 

Existing Facility Capacity 

The State determines the baseline capacity by either loading all permanent teaching stations plus a 

maximum number of portables equal to 25% of the number of permanent classrooms or by loading all 

permanent classrooms and only portables that are owned or have been leased for over 5 years. As 

allowed by law and required by the State, facility capacities are calculated by identifying the number of 

teaching stations at each campus. All qualified teaching stations were included in the calculation of the 

capacities at the time the initial inventory was calculated. To account for activity and changes since the 

baseline was established in 1998/99, the student grants (which represent the seats added either by 

new schools or additions to existing schools) for new construction projects funded by OPSC have been 

added. Using these guidelines the District’s current State calculated capacity is shown in Table 7. 

 

Table 7 
 

Central Union School District

Summary of Existing Facility Capacity
Total State State Total

Permanent Portable Chargeable Chargeable Loading Funded State

School Facility Classrooms Classrooms Portables Classrooms Factor Projects Capacity

Grades TK-6 53 40 15 68 25 0 1700

Grades 7-8 12 8 3 15 27 0 405

Special Ed 4 0 0 4 13 0 52

Totals 69 48 18 87 0 2157  
 
 

This table shows a basic summary of the form and procedures used by OPSC (Office of Public School 

Construction) to determine the capacity of a school district. There were a total of 69 permanent 

classrooms in the District when the baseline was established. In addition, there were 48 portable 

classrooms. However, OPSC regulations state that if the number of portables exceeds 25% of the 

permanent classrooms, then the maximum number of portables to be counted in the baseline capacity 

is 25% of the permanent classrooms. Therefore, the chart shows the chargeable portables as 18 which 

is 25% of the permanent classroom count. This results in a total classroom count of 87 and is referred 

to as the chargeable classrooms since it accounts for the fact that some of the portables were not 

included in the total. This is done to account for the fact that portables are typically considered to be 

temporary, especially when the total number exceeds 25% of the permanent classrooms.   

 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 9 

 

 

To determine the total capacity based on State standards, the capacity of the chargeable classrooms 

are multiplied by the State loading. As Table 7 shows, the total State capacity of the District facilities is 

2,157 students. 

 

Unhoused Students by State Housing Standards  

This next table compares the facility capacity with the space needed to determine if there is available 

space for new students from the projected developments. The space needed was determined by 

reviewing the historic enrollments over the past four years along with the projected enrollment in 

five years to determine the number of seats needed to house the students within the existing 

homes. The seats needed were determined individually for each grade grouping. The projected 

enrollment in the space needed analysis did not include the impact of any new housing units.   

 

Table 8 
 

Central Union School District

Summary of Available District Capacity

State Space Available

School Facility Capacity Needed Capacity

Grades TK-6 1,700 1,414 286

Grades 7-8 405 326 79

Special Ed 52 43 9

Totals 2,157 1,783 374  
 
 

The District capacity of 2,157 is more than the space needed of 1,783, assuming the existing facilities 

remain in sufficient condition to maintain existing levels of service. The difference is 374 students.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 10 

 

 

Calculation of Development’s Fiscal Impact on Schools 

 

This section of the Study will demonstrate that a reasonable relationship exists between residential, 

commercial/industrial development and the need for school facilities in the Central Union School 

District. To the extent this relationship exists, the District is justified in levying developer fees as 

authorized by Education Code Section 17620. 

 

Reconstruction/Modernization Costs 

In addition to any new facilities needed, there is also a need to reconstruct or modernize existing 

facilities in order to maintain the existing levels of service as students from new development 

continue to arrive in the District’s facilities. In order to generate capacity, it may also be necessary to 

reopen closed school facilities. Such reopening often requires reconstruction in order to provide the 

District’s existing level of service. For purposes of this report, the analysis of 

modernization/reconstruction includes the possible reopening and refurbishing of closed or unused 

school facilities.   

 

California has made a significant investment in school facilities through grants provided to help extend 

the useful life of public schools. The State’s largest funding source for public school modernization 

projects, the School Facilities Program (SFP), requires a minimum local funding contribution of 40% of 

SFP-eligible costs. The State may provide up to 60% of the eligible costs at those times that State 

funding is available. However, SFP modernization grants frequently, if not usually, fall short of 

providing 60% of the actual costs for major modernizations. In the best cases, developer fees can help 

meet the District’s required 40% local share. In many cases, developer fees may be necessary to 

supplement both the State’s and the school district’s contribution to a project.   

 

Buildings generate eligibility for State reconstruction/modernization funding once they reach an age 

of 25 years old for permanent buildings and 20 years old for portables.   

 

The usable life of school facilities is an important consideration in determining district facility needs 

into the future. The specific time when the projected residential developments will be built cannot 

be precisely predicted. Some new homes may be immediately occupied by families with school aged 

children, while others may be immediately occupied who will have school-aged children in five to ten 

years. As a result of these variables, for each new home, the District must be prepared to house the 

students residing there for an extended period of time. Students generated by the next five years of 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 11 

 

 

development will need to be accommodated in District schools for a significant amount of time that 

could exceed twenty years. Thus, the District will need to ensure that it has facilities in place for 

future decades. 

 

As evidenced by the State Building program’s use of the criteria that buildings older than twenty-five 

years (and portables older than twenty years) are eligible for modernization funds, school buildings 

require reconstruction/modernization to remain in use for students beyond the initial twenty to 

twenty-five years of life of those buildings. To the extent that the District has buildings older than 

twenty to twenty-five years old, the point will be reached without reconstruction/modernization 

that those buildings will no longer be able to provide the existing level of service to students, and 

may, in some circumstances, need to be closed entirely for health and safety reasons. However, 

because of the new development, reconstruction/modernization must occur in order to have 

available school housing for the students generated from development. 

 

The following table shows the District’s eligibility for modernization/reconstruction funding in the 

State Building Program.   

 

Table 9 

Modernization Project Needs

State District Project

School Elem Middle Spec Ed Funding Share Total

Akers Elem 0 29 0 $217,428 $144,952 $362,379

Central Elem 234 62 12 $2,073,134 $1,382,089 $3,455,223

Neutra Elem 475 0 17 $3,260,889 $2,173,926 $5,434,815

Stratford Elem 242 55 0 $1,914,449 $1,276,299 $3,190,748

TOTALS 951 146 29 $7,465,899 $4,977,266 $12,443,165

Eligible Modernization Grants

 
 
 

Table 10 

New Development Share of Modernization Costs

Eligible

Modernization

Grade Grants Students $/Student Amount

TK-6 951 5 $32,106 $160,530

7-8 146 1 $34,038 $34,038

Totals 1,097 6 $194,568

Includes students from new developments not housed in new facilities.

Amounts based on State OPSC allowances for new construction projects.

New Development

 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 12 

 

 

This data is used to show that there are significant needs within the school District to invest in its 

existing facilities. Without modernizing its schools, the District could be forced to begin closing some 

of its buildings and schools. 

 

To accurately account for the amount of the modernization projects attributed to the impact of new 

developments, only the students from new developments that were not already housed in new 

facilities are included in the net needs for modernization projects. As can be seen in the charts, the 

net modernization needs due to new development impacts are much less than the total District 

modernization needs. 

 

Impact of New Residential Development 

This next table compares the development-related enrollment to the available district capacity for 

each grade level and then multiplies the unhoused students by the new school construction costs to 

determine the total school facility costs related to the impact of new residential housing 

developments.   

 

The modernization needs are included for the students not housed in new facilities but who would 

be housed in existing facilities that are eligible for and need to be modernized to provide adequate 

housing and to maintain the existing level of service for the students generated by development.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 13 

 

 

Table 11 
 

Central Union School District

Summary of Residential Impact
Total

School Students Available Net Construction Cost Facility

Facility Generated Space Unhoused Per Student Costs

Elementary 5 286 0 $32,106 $0

Middle 1 79 0 $34,038 $0

Site Purchase:  0.0 acres $0

Site Development: $0

New Construction needs due to development: $0

Modernization needs due to development: $194,568

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT IMPACT: $194,568

Average cost per student: $32,428

Total Residential Sq Ft: 22,210

Residential Fee Justified: $8.76  
 
 

The total need for school facilities based solely on the impact of the 10 new housing units projected 

over the next five years totals $194,568. To determine the impact per square foot of residential 

development, this amount is divided by the total square feet of the projected developments. As 

calculated from the historic Developer Fee Permits, the average size home built has averaged 2,221 

square feet. The total area for 10 new homes would therefore be 22,210 square feet. The total 

residential fee needed to be able to collect $194,568 would be $8.76 per square foot. 

 

Impact of Other Residential Development 

In addition to new residential development projects that typically include new single family homes 

and new multi-family units, the District can also be impacted by additional types of new 

development projects. These include but are not limited to redevelopment projects, additions to 

existing housing units, and replacement of existing housing units with new housing units.   

 

These development projects are still residential projects and therefore it is reasonable to assume 

they would have the same monetary impacts per square foot as the new residential development 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 14 

 

 

projects. However, the net impact is reduced due to the fact that there was a previous residential 

building in its place. Therefore, the development impact fees should only be charged for other 

residential developments if the new building(s) exceed the square footage area of the previous 

building(s). If the new building is larger than the existing building, then it is reasonable to assume 

that additional students could be generated by the project. The project would only pay for the 

development impact fees for the net increase in assessable space generated by the development 

project. Education Code allows for an exemption from development impacts fees for any additions to 

existing residential structures that are 500 square feet or less. 

 

Impact of Commercial/Industrial Development 

There is a correlation between the growth of commercial/industrial firms/facilities within a community 

and the generation of school students within most business service areas. Fees for commercial/ 

industrial can only be imposed if the residential fees will not fully mitigate the cost of providing school 

facilities to students from new development. 

  

The approach utilized in this section is to apply statutory standards, U.S. Census employment statistics, 

and local statistics to determine the impact of future commercial/industrial development projects on the 

District. Many of the factors used in this analysis were taken from the U.S. Census, which remains the 

most complete and authoritative source of information on the community in addition to the “1990 

SanDAG Traffic Generators Report”.   

 

Employees per Square Foot of Commercial Development 

Results from a survey published by the San Diego Association of Governments “1990 San DAG Traffic 

Generators” are used to establish numbers of employees per square foot of building area to be 

anticipated in new commercial or industrial development projects. The average number of workers per 

1,000 square feet of area ranges from 0.06 for Rental Self Storage to 4.79 for Standard Commercial 

Offices. The generation factors from that report are shown in the following table. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 15 

 

 

Table 12 
 

Commercial/Industrial Average Square Foot Employees Per Average

Category Per Employee Square Foot

Banks 354 0.00283

Community Shopping Centers 652 0.00153

Neighborhood Shopping Centers 369 0.00271

Industrial Business Parks 284 0.00352

Industrial Parks 742 0.00135

Rental Self Storage 15541 0.00006

Scientific Research & Development 329 0.00304

Lodging 882 0.00113

Standard Commercial Office 209 0.00479

Large High Rise Commercial Office 232 0.00431

Corporate Offices 372 0.00269

Medical Offices 234 0.00427

Source: 1990 SanDAG Traffic Generators report  

 

Students per Employee 

The number of students per employee is determined by using the S0802: Means of Transportation to 

Work by Selected Characteristics 2018-2022 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates and DP1: 

Profile of General Population and Housing Characteristics 2020: DEC Demographic Profile for the 

District. There were 4,800 employees and 2,584 homes in the District. This represents a ratio of 1.8576 

employees per home. 

 

There were 1613.8 school age children living in the District in 2020. This is a ratio of 0.3362 students 

per employee. This ratio, however, must be reduced by including only the percentage of employees 

that worked in their community of residence (27.9%), because only those employees living in the 

District will impact the District’s school facilities with their children. The net ratio of students per 

employee in the District is 0.0938. 

 

School Facilities Cost per Student 

Facility costs for housing commercially generated students are the same as those used for residential 

construction. The cost factors used to assess the impact from commercial development projects are 

contained in Table 11. 

 

Residential Offset 

When additional employees are generated in the District as a result of new commercial/industrial 

development, fees will also be charged on the residential units necessary to provide housing for the 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 16 

 

 

employees living in the District. To prevent a commercial or industrial development from paying for the 

portion of the impact that will be covered by the residential fee, this amount has been calculated and 

deducted from each category. The residential offset amount is calculated by multiplying the following 

factors together and dividing by 1,000 (to convert from cost per 1,000 square feet to cost per square 

foot). 

 Employees per 1,000 square feet (varies from a low of 0.06 for rental self storage to a high of 

4.79 for office building). 

 Percentage of employees that worked in their community of residence (27.9 percent).  

 Housing units per employee (0.5383). This was derived from the 2018-2022 ACS 5 Year 

Estimates and DP1 data for the District, which indicates there were 2,584 housing units and 

4,800 employees. 

 Percentage of employees that will occupy new housing units (80 percent). 

 Average square feet per dwelling unit (2,221).  

 Residential fee charged by the District ($3.10 (60% of $5.17) per square foot).  

 Average cost per student was determined in Table 11. 

 

The following table shows the calculation of the school facility costs generated by a square foot of new 

commercial/industrial development for each category of development. 

 
Table 13 

 

Central Union School District

Summary of Commercial and Industrial Uses

Employees Students Students Average Cost Residential Net Cost

per 1,000 per per Cost per per offset per per

Type Sq. Ft. Employee 1,000 Sq. Ft. Student Sq. Ft. Sq. Ft. Sq. Ft.

Banks 2.83 0.0938 0.265 $32,428 $8.61 $2.34 $6.27

Community Shopping Centers 1.53 0.0938 0.144 $32,428 $4.65 $1.27 $3.38

Neighborhood Shopping Centers 2.71 0.0938 0.254 $32,428 $8.24 $2.24 $6.00

Industrial Business Parks 3.52 0.0938 0.330 $32,428 $10.71 $2.91 $7.80

Industrial Parks 1.35 0.0938 0.127 $32,428 $4.11 $1.12 $2.99

Rental Self Storage 0.06 0.0938 0.006 $32,428 $0.18 $0.05 $0.13

Scientific Research & Development 3.04 0.0938 0.285 $32,428 $9.25 $2.51 $6.74

Lodging 1.13 0.0938 0.106 $32,428 $3.44 $0.93 $2.51

Standard Commercial Office 4.79 0.0938 0.449 $32,428 $14.57 $3.96 $10.61

Large High Rise Commercial Office 4.31 0.0938 0.404 $32,428 $13.11 $3.57 $9.54

Corporate Offices 2.69 0.0938 0.252 $32,428 $8.18 $2.23 $5.95

Medical Offices 4.27 0.0938 0.401 $32,428 $12.99 $3.53 $9.46

 *Based on 1990 SanDAG Traffic Generator Report  

 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 17 

 

 

Net Cost per Square Foot 

Since the Districts share of the State Maximum Fee is now $0.50 (60% of $0.84) for commercial/ 

industrial construction, the District is justified in collecting the maximum fee for all categories with the 

exception of Rental Self Storage. The District can only justify collection of $0.13 per square foot of 

Rental Self Storage construction. 

 

Verifying the Sufficiency of the Development Impact 

Education Code Section 17620 requires districts to find that fee revenues will not exceed the cost of 

providing school facilities to the students generated by the development paying the fees. This section 

shows that the fee revenues do not exceed the impact of the new development. 

 

The total need for school facilities resulting from new development totals $194,568. The amount the 

District would collect over the five year period at the maximum rate of $3.10 (60% of $5.17) for 

residential and $0.50 (60% of $0.84) for commercial/industrial development would be as follows: 

$3.10 x 10 homes x 2,221 sq ft per home = $68,851 for Residential 

$0.50 x 2,000 sq ft per year x 5 years = $5,000 for Commercial/Industrial  

Total projected 5 year income:  $73,851 

The estimated income is less than the projected facility needs due to the impact of new 

development projects. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 18 

 

 

District Map 

 

The following map shows the extent of the areas for which development fees are applicable to the 

Central Union School District. 

 

  

 

 

 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 19 

 

 

Conclusion 

 

Based on the data contained in this Study, it is found that a reasonable relationship exists between 

residential, commercial/industrial development and the need for school facilities in the Central 

Union School District. The following three nexus tests required to show justification for levying fees 

have been met: 

 

Burden Nexus: New residential development will generate an average of 0.6245 TK-8 grade students 

per unit. Because the District does not have adequate facilities for all the students generated by new 

developments, the District will need to build additional facilities and/or modernize/reconstruct the 

existing facilities in order to maintain existing level of services in which the new students will be 

housed.   

  

Cost Nexus: The cost to provide new and reconstructed facilities is an average of $8.76 per square 

foot of residential development. Each square foot of residential development will generate $3.10 

(60% of $5.17) in developer fees resulting in a shortfall of $5.66 per square foot. 

 

Benefit Nexus: The developer fees to be collected by the Central Union School District will be used 

for the provision of additional and reconstructed or modernized school facilities. This will benefit the 

students to be generated by new development by providing them with adequate educational school 

facilities. 

 

The District’s planned use of the fees received from development impacts will include the following 

types of projects, each of which will benefit students from new developments. 

  

1) New Schools: When there is enough development activity occurring in a single area, the 

District will build a new school to house the students from new developments. 

 

2) Additions to Existing Schools: When infill development occurs, the District will 

accommodate students at existing schools by building needed classrooms and/or support 

facilities such as cafeterias, restrooms, gyms and libraries as needed to increase the school 

capacity. Schools may also need upgrades of the technology and tele-communication 

systems to be able to increase their capacity. 



Central Union School District 

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study 
March 2024 

Page 20 

 

 

3) Portable Replacement Projects: Some of the District’s capacity is in portables and 

therefore may not be included in the State’s capacity calculations. These portables can be 

replaced with new permanent or modular classrooms to provide adequate space for 

students from new developments. These projects result in an increase to the facility 

capacity according to State standards. In addition, old portables that have reached the end 

of their life expectancy, will need to be replaced to maintain the existing level of service. 

These types of projects are considered modernization projects in the State Building 

Program. If development impacts did not exist, the old portables could be removed. 

 

4) Modernization/Upgrade Projects: In many cases, students from new developments are 

not located in areas where new schools are planned to be built. The District plans to 

modernize or upgrade older schools to be equivalent to new schools so students will be 

housed in equitable facilities to those students housed in new schools. These projects may 

include updates to the building structures to meet current building standards, along with 

upgrades to the current fire and safety standards and any access compliance standards.   

 

The District plans to use the developer fees on projects listed in its 2021 Facilities Master Plan Update 

(see appendices). 

 

Per the District's agreement with the High School District, the elementary share of the developer fees 

collected is 60%. The reasonable relationship identified by these findings provides the required 

justification for the Central Union School District to levy the maximum fees of $3.10 (60% of $5.17) per 

square foot for residential construction and $0.50 (60% of $0.84) per square foot for commercial/ 

industrial construction, except for Rental Self Storage facilities in which a fee of $0.13 per square foot 

is justified as authorized by Education Code Section 17620. 

 



 

 

Appendices  

2024 Developer Fee Justification Study  
Central Union School District 

 

 



















SchoolWorks, Inc. 
8700 Auburn Folsom Road, #200 
Granite Bay, CA   95746
916.733.0402 

Use of Developer Fees: 

A School District can use the revenue collected on residential and commercial/industrial 
construction for the purposes listed below: 

 Purchase or lease of interim school facilities to house students generated by new
development pending the construction of permanent facilities.

 Purchase or lease of land for school facilities for such students.
 Acquisition of school facilities for such students, including:

o Construction
o Modernization/reconstruction
o Architectural and engineering costs
o Permits and plan checking
o Testing and inspection
o Furniture, Equipment and Technology for use in school facilities

 Legal and other administrative costs related to the provision of such new facilities
 Administration of the collection of, and justification for, such fees, and
 Any other purpose arising from the process of providing facilities for students

generated by new development.

Following is an excerpt from the Education Code that states the valid uses of the Level 1 
developer fees.  It refers to construction and reconstruction.  The term reconstruction was 
originally used in the Leroy Greene program.  The term modernization is currently used in the 
1998 State Building Program and represents the same scope of work used in the original 
reconstruction projects. 

Ed Code Section 17620.  (a) (1) The governing board of any school district is authorized to levy 
a fee, charge, dedication, or other requirement against any construction within the boundaries of 
the district, for the purpose of funding the construction or reconstruction of school facilities, 
subject to any limitations set forth in Chapter 4.9 (commencing with Section 65995) of Division 
1 of Title 7 of the Government Code.  This fee, charge, dedication, or other requirement may be 
applied to construction only as follows: … 

The limitations referred to in this text describe the maximum amounts that can be charged for 
residential and commercial/industrial projects and any projects that qualify for exemptions.  
They do not limit the use of the funds received. 



SchoolWorks, Inc. 
8700 Auburn Folsom Road, Suite 200 

Granite Bay, CA  95746 

916.733.0402 

  

Determination of Average State allowed amounts for Site Development Costs

Elementary Schools Original 2009 Adjusted

OPSC Site Inflation Site Project 2009

District Project # Acres Development Factor Development Year Cost/Acre

Davis Jt Unified 3 9.05 $532,282 38.4% $1,473,469 2004 $162,814

Dry Creek Jt Elem 2 8.5 $516,347 46.2% $1,509,322 2002 $177,567

Dry Creek Jt Elem 5 11.06 $993,868 20.1% $2,387,568 2006 $215,874

Elk Grove Unified 5 12.17 $556,011 48.2% $1,648,316 2001 $135,441

Elk Grove Unified 10 11 $690,120 48.2% $2,045,888 2001 $185,990

Elk Grove Unified 11 10 $702,127 48.2% $2,081,483 2001 $208,148

Elk Grove Unified 14 10 $732,837 46.2% $2,142,139 2002 $214,214

Elk Grove Unified 16 9.86 $570,198 46.2% $1,666,733 2002 $169,040

Elk Grove Unified 17 10 $542,662 46.2% $1,586,243 2002 $158,624

Elk Grove Unified 20 10 $710,730 43.2% $2,034,830 2003 $203,483

Elk Grove Unified 25 10 $645,923 38.4% $1,788,052 2004 $178,805

Elk Grove Unified 28 10.03 $856,468 24.4% $2,130,974 2005 $212,460

Elk Grove Unified 39 9.91 $1,007,695 20.1% $2,420,785 2006 $244,277

Folsom-Cordova Unified 1 9.79 $816,196 20.1% $1,960,747 2006 $200,281

Folsom-Cordova Unified 4 7.5 $455,908 46.2% $1,332,654 2002 $177,687

Folsom-Cordova Unified 5 8 $544,213 46.2% $1,590,776 2002 $198,847

Folsom-Cordova Unified 8 8.97 $928,197 11.2% $2,063,757 2007 $230,073

Galt Jt Union Elem 2 10.1 $1,033,044 38.4% $2,859,685 2004 $283,137

Lincoln Unified 1 9.39 $433,498 46.2% $1,267,148 2002 $134,947

Lodi Unified 3 11.2 $555,999 46.2% $1,625,228 2002 $145,110

Lodi Unified 10 11.42 $1,245,492 46.2% $3,640,669 2002 $318,798

Lodi Unified 19 9.93 $999,164 11.2% $2,221,545 2007 $223,721

Lodi Unified 22 10 $1,416,212 7.7% $3,051,426 2008 $305,143

Natomas Unified 6 8.53 $685,284 46.2% $2,003,138 2002 $234,834

Natomas Unified 10 9.83 $618,251 43.2% $1,770,061 2003 $180,067

Natomas Unified 12 9.61 $735,211 24.4% $1,829,275 2005 $190,351

Rocklin Unified 8 10.91 $593,056 46.2% $1,733,548 2002 $158,895

Stockton Unified 1 12.66 $1,462,232 7.7% $3,150,582 2008 $248,861

Stockton Unified 2 10.5 $781,675 43.2% $2,237,946 2003 $213,138

Stockton Unified 6 12.48 $1,136,704 20.1% $2,730,703 2006 $218,806

Tracy Jt Unified 4 10 $618,254 46.2% $1,807,204 2002 $180,720

Tracy Jt Unified 10 10 $573,006 38.4% $1,586,202 2004 $158,620

Washington Unified 1 8 $446,161 46.2% $1,304,163 2002 $163,020 2024

Washington Unified 4 10.76 $979,085 7.7% $2,109,575 2008 $196,057 Adjusted

Value

Totals 341.16 $68,791,833 Average $201,641 $339,346

Middle and High Schools Original 2009 Adjusted

OPSC Site Inflation Site Project 2009

District Project # Acres Development Factor Development Year Cost/Acre

Western Placer Unified 4 19.3 $5,973,312 24.4% $7,431,085 2005 $385,030

Roseville City Elem 2 21.6 $1,780,588 48.2% $2,639,311 2000 $122,190

Elk Grove Unified 4 66.2 $8,659,494 48.2% $12,835,704 2000 $193,893

Elk Grove Unified 13 76.4 $9,791,732 48.2% $14,513,986 2001 $189,974

Elk Grove Unified 18 84.3 $13,274,562 43.2% $19,002,626 2003 $225,417

Grant Jt Union High 2 24 $2,183,840 48.2% $3,237,039 2000 $134,877

Center Unified 1 21.2 $1,944,310 46.2% $2,841,684 2002 $134,042

Lodi Unified 2 13.4 $1,076,844 46.2% $1,573,849 2002 $117,451

Lodi Unified 6 13.4 $2,002,164 46.2% $2,926,240 2002 $218,376

Galt Jt Union Elem 1 24.9 $2,711,360 46.2% $3,962,757 2002 $159,147

Tahoe Truckee Unified 2 24 $2,752,632 43.2% $3,940,412 2003 $164,184

Davis Unified 5 23.3 $3,814,302 43.2% $5,460,199 2003 $234,343

Woodland Unified 3 50.2 $8,664,700 46.2% $12,663,792 2002 $252,267

Sacramento City Unified 1 35.2 $4,813,386 46.2% $7,034,949 2002 $199,856

Lodi Unified 4 47 $7,652,176 46.2% $11,183,950 2002 $237,956

Stockton Unified 3 49.1 $8,959,088 43.2% $12,824,996 2003 $261,202

Natomas Unified 11 38.7 $3,017,002 38.4% $4,175,850 2004 $107,903 2024

Rocklin Unified 11 47.1 $11,101,088 24.4% $13,810,282 2005 $293,212 Adjusted

Totals 679.3 $142,058,711 Average $209,125 Value

Middle Schools: 260.7 $49,447,897 Middle $189,704 $319,258

High Schools: 418.6 $92,610,814 High $221,217 $372,291  



 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

State Allocation Board Meeting, January 24, 2024 
 

INDEX ADJUSTMENT ON THE ASSESSMENT 
FOR DEVELOPMENT 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To report the index adjustment on the assessment for development, which may be 
levied pursuant to Education Code Section 17620. 
 

DESCRIPTION 
 

The law requires the maximum assessment for development be adjusted every 
two years by the change in the Class B construction cost index, as determined by 
the State Allocation Board (Board) in each calendar year. This item requests that 
the Board make the adjustment based on the change reflected using the RS 
Means index. 
 

AUTHORITY 
 
Education Code Section 17620(a)(1) states the following: “The governing board of 
any school district is authorized to levy a fee, charge, dedication, or other 
requirement against any construction within the boundaries of the district, for the 
purpose of funding the construction or reconstruction of school facilities, subject to 
any limitations set forth in Chapter 4.9 (commencing with Section 65995) of 
Division 1 of Title 7 of the Government Code.” 
 
Government Code Section 65995(b)(3) states the following: “The amount of the 
limits set forth in paragraphs (1) and (2) shall be increased in 2000, and every two 
years thereafter, according to the adjustment for inflation set forth in the statewide 
cost index for class B construction, as determined by the State Allocation Board at 
its January meeting, which increase shall be effective as of the date of that 
meeting.” 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
There are three levels that may be levied for developer’s fees. The fees are levied 
on a per-square foot basis. The lowest fee, Level I, is assessed if the district 
conducts a Justification Study that establishes the connection between the 
development coming into the district and the assessment of fees to pay for the cost 
of the facilities needed to house future students. The Level II fee is assessed if a 
district makes a timely application to the Board for new construction funding, 
conducts a School Facility Needs Analysis pursuant to Government Code Section 
65995.6, and satisfies at least two of the requirements listed in Government Code 
Section 65995.5(b)(3). The Level III fee is assessed when State bond funds are 
exhausted; the district may impose a developer’s fee up to 100 percent of the 
School Facility Program new construction project cost. 
 

126



 
 

SAB 01-24-2024 
Page 2 

 
STAFF ANALYSIS/STATEMENTS 

 
A historical comparison of the assessment rates for development fees for 2020 and 
2022 are shown below for information. According to the RS Means, the cost index 
for Class B construction increased by 7.84% percent, during the two-year period 
from January 2022 to January 2024, requiring the assessment for development fees 
to be adjusted as follows beginning January 2024: 
 

RS Means Index Maximum Level I Assessment Per Square Foot 
 

     2020  2022  2024 
 

Residential    $4.08  $4.79  $5.17   
Commercial/Industrial $0.66  $0.78  $0.84 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Increase the 2024 maximum Level I assessment for development in the amount of 
7.84 percent using the RS Means Index to be effective immediately. 
 

 
 

127



ATTACHMENT B 

 

ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT TO SCHOOL FACILITY PROGRAM GRANTS 

State Allocation Board Meeting, January 24, 2024 

Grant Amount Adjustments 

New Construction 
SFP 

Regulation 
Section 

Adjusted Grant 
Per Pupil 

Effective 1-1-23 

Adjusted Grant 
Per Pupil 

Effective 1-1-24 

Elementary 1859.71 $15,983 $15,770 
Middle 1859.71 $16,904 $16,679 
High 1859.71 $21,509 $21,223 
Special Day Class – Severe 1859.71.1 $44,911 $44,314 
Special Day Class – Non-Severe 1859.71.1 $30,036 $29,637 
Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm 
System – Elementary 1859.71.2 $19 $19 

Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm 
System – Middle 1859.71.2 $25 $25 
Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm 
System – High 1859.71.2 $43 $42 
Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm 
System – Special Day Class – 
Severe 

1859.71.2 $80 $79 

Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm 
System – Special Day Class – 
Non-Severe 

1859.71.2 $57 $56 

Automatic Sprinkler System – 
Elementary 1859.71.2 $268 $264 

Automatic Sprinkler System – 
Middle 1859.71.2 $319 $315 

Automatic Sprinkler System – 
High 1859.71.2 $331 $327 

Automatic Sprinkler System – 
Special Day Class – Severe 1859.71.2 $846 $835 
Automatic Sprinkler System – 
Special Day Class – Non-Severe 1859.71.2 $567 $559 

  

121



ATTACHMENT B 

 

ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT TO SCHOOL FACILITY PROGRAM GRANTS 

State Allocation Board Meeting, January 24, 2024 

Grant Amount Adjustments 

Modernization 
SFP 

Regulation 
Section 

Adjusted Grant 
Per Pupil 

Effective 1-1-23 

Adjusted Grant 
Per Pupil 

Effective 1-1-24 

Elementary 1859.78 $6,086 $6,005 
Middle 1859.78 $6,436 $6,350 
High 1859.78 $8,427 $8,315 
Special Day Class - Severe 1859.78.3 $19,396 $19,138 
Special Day Class – Non-
Severe 1859.78.3 $12,977 $12,804 

State Special School – Severe 1859.78 $32,330 $31,900 
Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm 
System – Elementary 1859.78.4 $198 $195 

Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm 
System – Middle 1859.78.4 $198 $195 

Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm 
System – High 1859.78.4 $198 $195 

Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm 
System – Special Day Class – 
Severe 

1859.78.4 $544 $537 

Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm 
System – Special Day Class – 
Non- 
Severe 

1859.78.4 $365 $360 

Over 50 Years Old – Elementary 1859.78.6 $8,454 $8,342 
Over 50 Years Old – Middle 1859.78.6 $8,942 $8,823 
Over 50 Years Old – High 1859.78.6 $11,705 $11,549 
Over 50 Years Old – Special 
Day Class – Severe 1859.78.6 $26,948 $26,590 

Over 50 Years Old – Special 
Day Class – Non-Severe 1859.78.6 $18,019 $17,779 

Over 50 Years Old – State 
Special Day School – Severe 1859.78.6 $44,910 $44,313 

  

122



ATTACHMENT B 

 

ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT TO SCHOOL FACILITY PROGRAM GRANTS 

State Allocation Board Meeting, January 24, 2024 

Grant Amount Adjustments 

New Construction / 
Modernization / Facility 

Hardship / Seismic Mitigation / 
Joint Use 

SFP 
Regulation 

Section 

Adjusted Grant 
Amount 

Effective 1-1-23 

Adjusted Grant 
Amount 

Effective 1-1-24 

Therapy/Multipurpose 
Room/Other (per square foot) 

1859.72 
1859.73.2 
1859.77.3 
1859.82.1 
1859.82.2 
1859.125 

1859.125.1 

$262 $259 

Toilet Facilities (per square foot) 1859.72 
1859.73.2 
1859.82.1 
1859.82.2 
1859.125 

1859.125.1 

$470 $464 

Portable Therapy/Multipurpose 
Room/Other (per square foot) 

1859.72 
1859.73.2 
1859.77.3 
1859.82.1 
1859.125 

1859.125.1 

$59 $58 

Portable Toilet Facilities (per 
square foot) 

1859.72 
1859.73.2 
1859.82.1 
1859.125 

1859.125.1 

$152 $150 

 

New Construction Only 
SFP 

Regulation 
Section 

Adjusted Grant 
Amount 

Effective 1-1-23 

Adjusted Grant 
Amount 

Effective 1-1-24 

Parking Spaces (per stall) 1859.76 $20,325 $20,055 
General Site Grant (per acre for 
additional acreage being 
acquired) 

1859.76 $26,016 $25,670 

Project Assistance (for school 
district with less than 2,500 
pupils) 

1859.73.1 $9,775 $9,645 

 

123



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

 
School Year:    2024-25     

SPSA Title Page 
 

 

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) 
 

School Name County-District-School 
(CDS) Code 

Schoolsite Council 
(SSC) Approval Date 

Local Board Approval 
Date 

Admiral Akers School         16 63883 6010292         4/15/2024         5/13/24         
 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a strategic plan that maximizes the resources available to the school 
while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing student achievement. SPSA development should 
be aligned with and inform the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) process.  
 
This SPSA template consolidates all school-level planning efforts into one plan for programs funded through the 
Consolidated Application (ConApp), and for federal Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATSI), pursuant to 
California Education Code (EC) Section 64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) as amended by 
the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). This template is designed to meet schoolwide program planning requirements for 
both the SPSA and federal ATSI planning requirements. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan supports the state’s approach to improving student group performance through the utilization 
of federal resources. Schools use the SPSA to document their approach to maximizing the impact of federal investments in 
support of underserved students. The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate 
with their federally-funded programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the local educational agency 
(LEA) that are being realized under the state’s Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF).  
 
The LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students 
in order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous 
cycles of action, reflection, and improvement. Consistent with EC 64001(g)(1), the Schoolsite Council (SSC) is required to 
develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make modifications to the plan that reflect changing 
needs and priorities, as applicable. 
 
This plan is being used by Admiral Akers School for meeting the following ESSA planning requirements in alignment with 
the LCAP and other federal, state, and local programs: 
 

 Schoolwide Program        
 Continuous Improvement Site Plan        

 
This template is based on the December, 2023 CDE revision of the School Plan for Student Achievement.  Some 
modifications have been made to inform the SPSA development process. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Table of Contents 
 

SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 

Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................2 

Plan Description ................................................................................................................................................4 

Educational Partner Involvement ......................................................................................................................4 

Resource Inequities ..........................................................................................................................................4 

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components ...........................................................................................4 

California School Dashboard (Dashboard) Indicators ...............................................................................4 

Other Needs ..............................................................................................................................................5 

School and Student Performance Data ............................................................................................................6 

Student Enrollment ....................................................................................................................................6 

CAASPP Results .......................................................................................................................................9 

ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................15 

California School Dashboard ..................................................................................................................20 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................34 

Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................34 

Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................38 

Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................41 

Goal 4 ......................................................................................................................................................43 

Goal 5 ......................................................................................................................................................45 

Goal 6 ......................................................................................................................................................47 

Goal 7 ......................................................................................................................................................49 

Goal 8 ......................................................................................................................................................52 

Goal 9 ......................................................................................................................................................54 

Goal 10 ....................................................................................................................................................56 

Budget Summary ............................................................................................................................................58 

Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................58 

Other Federal, State, and Local Funds ...................................................................................................58 

Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan ..............................................................................................59 

Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source .................................................................................59 

Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................59 

Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................59 

Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................59 

Expenditures by Goal ..............................................................................................................................59 

School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................60 

Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................61 

Instructions ......................................................................................................................................................62 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Appendix A: Plan Requirements .....................................................................................................................69 

Appendix B: Plan Requirements for School to CSI/ATSI Planning Requirements .........................................72 

Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs ...........................................................................................75 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Plan Description 
 
Briefly describe your school’s plan for effectively meeting ESSA’s planning requirements in alignment with the Local 
Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and other federal, state, and local programs. 
This plan is being used by Admiral Akers School for meeting the following ESSA planning requirements in alignment with 
the LCAP and other federal, state, and local programs: 
 
 Schoolwide Program        
 Continuous Improvement Site Plan        

 
Our school implements challenging academic standards in reading, language arts, math, social studies and science, 
using state-adopted curriculum that will prepare students to succeed in college and career. These standards apply to all 
students, including those with learning disabilities as well as English Language Learners. State assessments are 
administered annually in ELA, Math, Science (5th & 8th), and English Proficiency; in addition, a variety of local 
assessments in both academics and social/emotional areas are given at least every trimester. Student achievement, 
progress, English language proficiency, discipline rates, attendance, and chronic absenteeism are monitored regularly.         

 

Educational Partner Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did Admiral Akers School consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual 
Review and Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
As part of our review for the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA), data was gathered from student, parent, and 
staff surveys. Parent groups were also consulted during School Site Council (SSC) and Parent Club (PTC) meetings. 
Site leadership teams and staff meetings are two ways in which input is obtained.         

 

Resource Inequities 
 
Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs assessment, as applicable.  
 This section is required for all schools eligible for ATSI and CSI. 
No resource inequities identified.         

 

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components 
 
Identify and describe any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
 
California School Dashboard (Dashboard) Indicators 
Referring to the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), any state indicator for which overall performance was in the 
“Red” or “Orange” performance category. 
N/A         

 
Referring to the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), any state indicator for which performance for any student group 
was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. 
Suspension rate--Hispanic, Socioeconomic Disadvantaged.  English/Language Arts--Students with Disabilities.         

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Other Needs 
In addition to Dashboard data, other needs may be identified using locally collected data developed by the LEA to measure 
pupil outcomes. 
         

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
 
This report displays the annual K-12 public school enrollment by student ethnicity and grade level for Admiral Akers School.  
Annual enrollment consists of the number of students enrolled on Census Day (the first Wednesday in October). This 
information was submitted to the CDE as part of the annual Fall 1 data submission in the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS). 
 

Enrollment By Student Group 
 

Student Enrollment by Subgroup 

Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

American Indian     1.1% 1.09% 0.87% 8 8 6 

African American     11.3% 11.02% 11.14% 83 81 77 

Asian     0.8% 0.82% 0.87% 6 6 6 

Filipino     4.8% 4.22% 4.2% 35 31 29 

Hispanic/Latino     28.1% 27.89% 28.36% 206 205 196 

Pacific Islander     1.0% 0.14% 0.14% 7 1 1 

White     39.0% 38.50% 38.21% 286 283 264 

Multiple/No Response     13.8% 16.19% 16.21% 101 119 112 

 Total Enrollment 733 735 691 
 

Enrollment By Grade Level 
 

Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Number of Students 
Grade 

20-21 21-22 22-23 

Kindergarten        63 92 67 

Grade 1        77 73 73 

Grade 2        77 69 68 

Grade3        51 73 66 

Grade 4        72 59 68 

Grade 5        52 67 55 

Grade 6        118 105 108 

Grade 7        117 101 92 

Grade 8        106 96 94 

Total Enrollment        733 735 691 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Demographics based on ethnicity stay consistent regardless of transient movement of military families.        

2. Enrollment has declined slightly when looking at a three year average.        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

3. Our sixth grade continues to be the largest overall class size. 4th and 5th grade numbers exceed that of other grade 
levels in terms of class size.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

English Learner (EL) Enrollment 
 
This report displays the annual K-12 public school enrollment by English Language Acquisition Status (ELAS).  This 
information was submitted to the CDE as part of the annual Fall 1 data submission in the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS). 
 

English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

English Learners (EL)        15 18 16 2.0% 2.4% 2.3% 

Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        29 27 17 4.0% 3.7% 2.5% 

Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        5   33.3%   
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. We typically have a low number of English Learners at Akers School, this has been consistent over the years.        

2. Approximately 25-30% of our English Learners are reclassified each year.        

3. Because Akers is mostly military families, many of our EL students leave before the end of the year and many of 
them enroll after school is in session.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 

 
The Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for ELA and mathematics are an annual measure of what students know 
and can do using the Common Core State Standards for English language arts/literacy and mathematics. 
 
The purpose of the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments is to assess student knowledge and skills for English 
language arts/literacy (ELA) and mathematics, as well as how much students have improved since the previous year. These 
measures help identify and address gaps in knowledge or skills early so students get the support they need for success in 
higher grades and for college and career readiness. 
 
All students in grades three through eight and grade eleven take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments unless a 
student’s active individualized education program (IEP) designates the California Alternate Assessments. 
 
Visit the California Department of Education’s Smarter Balanced Assessment System web page for more information. 

 
Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 

% of Enrolled Students 
Tested Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3 57 72 66 0 71 65 0 71 65 0.0 98.6 98.5 

Grade 4 74 56 63 0 54 62 0 54 62 0.0 96.4 98.4 

Grade 5 58 72 52 0 71 52 0 71 52 0.0 98.6 100.0 

Grade 6 119 100 106 0 97 105 0 97 105 0.0 97.0 99.1 

Grade 7 114 99 90 0 97 88 0 97 88 0.0 98.0 97.8 

Grade 8 109 94 87 0 92 86 0 92 86 0.0 97.9 98.9 

All Grades 531 493 464 0 482 458 0 482 458 0.0 97.8 98.7 
The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 

 
Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded % Standard Met % Standard Nearly 

Met 
% Standard Not 

Met Grade 
Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  2425.

2 
2455.

5 
 23.94 38.46  26.76 26.15  29.58 23.08  19.72 12.31 

Grade 4  2476.
4 

2481.
0 

 20.37 22.58  29.63 35.48  29.63 24.19  20.37 17.74 

Grade 5  2534.
4 

2515.
8 

 38.03 28.85  25.35 30.77  19.72 17.31  16.90 23.08 

Grade 6  2516.
8 

2515.
3 

 10.31 11.43  38.14 30.48  23.71 32.38  27.84 25.71 

Grade 7  2565.
6 

2546.
2 

 13.40 13.64  45.36 37.50  28.87 19.32  12.37 29.55 

Grade 8  2598.
0 

2605.
9 

 27.17 24.42  38.04 41.86  18.48 26.74  16.30 6.98 

All Grades N/A N/A N/A  21.37 21.62  35.06 34.06  24.69 24.67  18.88 19.65 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/sa/index.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  23.94 33.85  56.34 55.38  19.72 10.77 

Grade 4  11.11 9.68  75.93 82.26  12.96 8.06 

Grade 5  26.76 21.15  69.01 71.15  4.23 7.69 

Grade 6  11.34 18.10  65.98 50.48  22.68 31.43 

Grade 7  19.59 14.77  70.10 67.05  10.31 18.18 

Grade 8  25.00 34.88  60.87 55.81  14.13 9.30 

All Grades  19.71 22.05  65.98 62.01  14.32 15.94 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Writing 

Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  11.27 24.62  69.01 63.08  19.72 12.31 

Grade 4  22.22 16.13  68.52 67.74  9.26 16.13 

Grade 5  22.54 17.31  56.34 50.00  21.13 32.69 

Grade 6  8.25 9.52  53.61 63.81  38.14 26.67 

Grade 7  22.68 15.91  64.95 64.77  12.37 19.32 

Grade 8  20.65 20.93  63.04 68.60  16.30 10.47 

All Grades  17.63 16.81  62.03 63.76  20.33 19.43 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Listening 

Demonstrating effective communication skills 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  11.27 18.46  73.24 66.15  15.49 15.38 

Grade 4  7.41 11.29  79.63 83.87  12.96 4.84 

Grade 5  19.72 15.38  73.24 75.00  7.04 9.62 

Grade 6  18.56 7.62  68.04 83.81  13.40 8.57 

Grade 7  14.43 17.05  76.29 64.77  9.28 18.18 

Grade 8  22.83 18.60  68.48 76.74  8.70 4.65 

All Grades  16.39 14.41  72.61 75.33  11.00 10.26 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  16.90 18.46  66.20 72.31  16.90 9.23 

Grade 4  20.37 19.35  64.81 75.81  14.81 4.84 

Grade 5  26.76 25.00  63.38 63.46  9.86 11.54 

Grade 6  18.56 18.10  68.04 64.76  13.40 17.14 

Grade 7  13.40 17.05  75.26 57.95  11.34 25.00 

Grade 8  34.78 25.58  59.78 67.44  5.43 6.98 

All Grades  21.78 20.31  66.60 66.38  11.62 13.32 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall 55.68% of students met or exceeded standards in English Language Arts Literacy.        

2. Overall 3rd and 8th grades had the highest percentage of students that met or exceeded standard.        

3. Overall 6th grade had the lowest percentage of students meet or exceed standards in English Language arts 
literacy.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 

 
The Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for ELA and mathematics are an annual measure of what students know 
and can do using the Common Core State Standards for English language arts/literacy and mathematics. 
 
The purpose of the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments is to assess student knowledge and skills for English 
language arts/literacy (ELA) and mathematics, as well as how much students have improved since the previous year. These 
measures help identify and address gaps in knowledge or skills early so students get the support they need for success in 
higher grades and for college and career readiness. 
 
All students in grades three through eight and grade eleven take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments unless a 
student’s active individualized education program (IEP) designates the California Alternate Assessments. 
 
Visit the California Department of Education’s Smarter Balanced Assessment System web page for more information. 

 

Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 

% of Enrolled Students 
Tested Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3 57 72 66 0 71 65 0 71 65 0.0 98.6 98.5 

Grade 4 74 56 63 0 54 61 0 54 61 0.0 96.4 96.8 

Grade 5 58 72 52 0 71 52 0 71 52 0.0 98.6 100.0 

Grade 6 119 100 106 0 97 104 0 97 104 0.0 97.0 98.1 

Grade 7 114 99 90 0 97 87 0 97 87 0.0 98.0 96.7 

Grade 8 109 94 87 0 92 86 0 92 86 0.0 97.9 98.9 

All Grades 531 493 464 0 482 455 0 482 455 0.0 97.8 98.1 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 

 

Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded % Standard Met % Standard Nearly 

Met 
% Standard Not 

Met Grade 
Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  2426.

5 
2449.

7 
 15.49 21.54  38.03 35.38  22.54 26.15  23.94 16.92 

Grade 4  2488.
6 

2501.
2 

 18.52 21.31  37.04 47.54  35.19 22.95  9.26 8.20 

Grade 5  2531.
3 

2529.
3 

 28.17 28.85  28.17 25.00  23.94 32.69  19.72 13.46 

Grade 6  2506.
5 

2509.
0 

 11.34 10.58  20.62 23.08  35.05 38.46  32.99 27.88 

Grade 7  2553.
9 

2499.
3 

 20.62 12.64  26.80 6.90  30.93 33.33  21.65 47.13 

Grade 8  2578.
7 

2602.
3 

 30.43 32.56  18.48 23.26  26.09 24.42  25.00 19.77 

All Grades N/A N/A N/A  20.75 20.22  26.97 25.27  29.05 30.33  23.24 24.18 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/sa/index.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  19.72 30.77  59.15 50.77  21.13 18.46 

Grade 4  20.37 27.87  66.67 60.66  12.96 11.48 

Grade 5  32.39 26.92  46.48 61.54  21.13 11.54 

Grade 6  12.37 15.38  55.67 55.77  31.96 28.85 

Grade 7  18.56 9.20  59.79 43.68  21.65 47.13 

Grade 8  28.26 36.05  46.74 48.84  25.00 15.12 

All Grades  21.58 23.30  55.19 52.75  23.24 23.96 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 

Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  22.54 23.08  53.52 55.38  23.94 21.54 

Grade 4  20.37 29.51  62.96 62.30  16.67 8.20 

Grade 5  26.76 23.08  54.93 59.62  18.31 17.31 

Grade 6  13.40 6.73  48.45 63.46  38.14 29.81 

Grade 7  21.65 12.64  58.76 51.72  19.59 35.63 

Grade 8  26.09 31.40  48.91 53.49  25.00 15.12 

All Grades  21.58 19.78  53.94 57.58  24.48 22.64 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Communicating Reasoning 

Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  15.49 23.08  66.20 66.15  18.31 10.77 

Grade 4  14.81 24.59  70.37 65.57  14.81 9.84 

Grade 5  22.54 15.38  69.01 63.46  8.45 21.15 

Grade 6  10.31 12.50  65.98 62.50  23.71 25.00 

Grade 7  15.46 11.49  67.01 66.67  17.53 21.84 

Grade 8  23.91 29.07  58.70 55.81  17.39 15.12 

All Grades  17.01 18.90  65.77 63.08  17.22 18.02 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Grade 7 has the most students below standards in all areas of math.        

2. Approximately 45.5 % of students either met or exceeded standards.        

3. Grade 4 has the highest percentage of students at or exceeding standards.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 
The English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC) system is used to determine and monitor the 
progress of the English language proficiency for students whose primary language is not English. The ELPAC is aligned 
with the 2012 California English Language Development Standards and assesses four domains: listening, speaking, 
reading, and writing. 
 
Visit the California Department of Education’s English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC) web page 
or the ELPAC.org website for more information about the ELPAC. 
 

ELPAC Results 
 

ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 

Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   2    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   3     * *  * *  * *  4 * 

   4    *  * *  * *  * *  5 

   5    * *  * *  * *  * *  

   6    * * * * * * * * * 4 * * 

   7    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades                 17 14 15 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/ep/
https://www.elpac.org/


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   2    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   3     * *  * *  * *  * *  * * 

   4    *  * *  * *  * *  * *  * 

   5    * *  * *  * *  * *  * *  

   6    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   7    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        11.76 42.86 26.67 64.71 21.43 26.67 11.76 28.57 46.67 11.76 7.14 0.00 17 14 15 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Oral Language 

Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   2    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   3     * *  * *  * *  * *  * * 

   4    *  * *  * *  * *  * *  * 

   5    * *  * *  * *  * *  * *  

   6    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   7    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        23.53 50.00 46.67 52.94 42.86 46.67 17.65 7.14 6.67 5.88 0.00 0.00 17 14 15 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   2    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   3     * *  * *  * *  * *  * * 

   4    *  * *  * *  * *  * *  * 

   5    * *  * *  * *  * *  * *  

   6    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   7    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        0.00 14.29 13.33 64.71 35.71 20.00 17.65 35.71 40.00 17.65 14.29 26.67 17 14 15 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Listening Domain 

Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   2    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   3     * *  * *  * *  * * 

   4    *  * *  * *  * *  * 

   5    * *  * *  * *  * *  

   6    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   7    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        23.53 50.00 40.00 70.59 50.00 53.33 5.88 0.00 6.67 17 14 15 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   2    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   3     * *  * *  * *  * * 

   4    *  * *  * *  * *  * 

   5    * *  * *  * *  * *  

   6    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   7    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        41.18 57.14 53.33 52.94 42.86 40.00 5.88 0.00 6.67 17 14 15 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Reading Domain 

Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   2    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   3     * *  * *  * *  * * 

   4    *  * *  * *  * *  * 

   5    * *  * *  * *  * *  

   6    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   7    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        5.88 28.57 20.00 76.47 35.71 40.00 17.65 35.71 40.00 17 14 15 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   2    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   3     * *  * *  * *  * * 

   4    *  * *  * *  * *  * 

   5    * *  * *  * *  * *  

   6    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   7    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        11.76 7.14 20.00 76.47 85.71 80.00 11.76 7.14 0.00 17 14 15 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. In 22/23 approx. 54% of our students scored at a Level 3 or 4 in Overall Language (approx. 94% in Oral Lang., 33% 

in Written Lang.)        
2. In 22/23 approximately 93% of our student scored Well Developed or Somewhat/Moderately in both Listening and 

Speaking and 100% in Writing.        
3. Due to the low number of students and high transitory rate, it is difficult to make any general conclusions.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

California School Dashboard 
Student Population 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 

2022-23 Student Population 

Total 
Enrollment 

691         
Total Number of Students enrolled 
in Admiral Akers School. 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 

27.9         
Students who are eligible for free 
or reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 

English  
Learners 

2.3         
Students who are learning to 
communicate effectively in 
English, typically requiring 
instruction in both the English 
Language and in their academic 
courses. 

Foster 
Youth 

0.3         
Students whose well being is the 
responsibility of a court. 

 
2022-23 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 

Student Group Total Percentage 

English Learners         16 2.3 

Foster Youth         2 0.3 

Homeless           

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         193 27.9 

Students with Disabilities         76 11 
 

Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 

Student Group Total Percentage 

African American        77 11.1 

American Indian        6 0.9 

Asian        6 0.9 

Filipino        29 4.2 

Hispanic        196 28.4 

Two or More Races        112 16.2 

Pacific Islander        1 0.1 

White        264 38.2 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. About 28% of our students are socioeconomically disadvantaged (which is down from 44%), and approximately 

11% (up from 10.3%) have been identified as having disabilities.         
2. The majority of our population at Akers is white 38.2% and Hispanic 28.4%.         

3. English Learners account for approximately 2.3%.         

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Overall Performance 
 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 

2023 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 

Academic Performance 

English Language Arts 

 
Green        

Mathematics 

 
Yellow        

Academic Engagement 

Chronic Absenteeism 

 
Blue        

Conditions & Climate 

Suspension Rate 

 
Green        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Students are performing well in English Language Arts.        

2. Chronic absenteeism is an area of focus with consistent communication with parents.        

3. Math is an area of concern.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 

Red        
0        

Orange        
1        

Yellow        
2        

Green        
3        

Blue        
0        

 
This section provides a view of how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts 
assessment. This measure is based on student performance on either the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment or 
the California Alternate Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and grade 11. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Green         

10.4 points above standard         

Maintained -0.3 points         

426 Students        

English Learners 
38.4 points below standard         

Decreased Significantly -28.2 points         

14 Students        

Foster Youth 
Less than 11 Students          

2 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Yellow         

3.3 points below standard         

Maintained +1 points         

119 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Orange         

57.1 points below standard         

Maintained -2.1 points         

61 Students        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
Green         

2.2 points below standard         

Increased +8.5 points         

51 Students        

American Indian 

Fewer than 11 Students          

4 Students        

Asian     

Fewer than 11 Students          

5 Students        

Filipino 

62.3 points above standard         

Increased +3.6 points         

16 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Yellow         

0.4 points above standard         

Decreased -7.3 points         

112 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
Green         

19.1 points above standard         

Increased +5.8 points         

73 Students        

Pacific Islander 

Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

White     

 
Green         

11 points above standard         

Maintained +0.1 points         

164 Students        

 
This section provides additional information on distance from standard for current English learners, prior or Reclassified 
English learners, and English Only students in English Language Arts. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

Less than 11 Students          

9 Students        

Reclassified English Learners 

Less than 11 Students          

5 Students        

English Only 

11.5 points above standard         

Maintained +1.7 points         

404 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Akers is above standard in all areas of English Language Arts.  In Language Arts we are 10.4 points above standard, 

which is a decrease .2 points over last year.        
2. Our Filipino students score the highest, and our Hispanic and African-American students are the greatest area of 

concern.        
3. Our students with disabilities are 57.1 points below standard.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
Mathematics 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 

Red        
0        

Orange        
2        

Yellow        
4        

Green        
0        

Blue        
0        

 
This section provides a view of how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This 
measure is based on student performance either on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment or the California 
Alternate Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and grade 11. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Yellow         

13.2 points below standard         

Maintained -1.6 points         

423 Students        

English Learners 
90.9 points below standard         

Decreased Significantly -42.2 points         

14 Students        

Foster Youth 
Less than 11 Students          

2 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Orange         

30.1 points below standard         

Maintained +1.3 points         

117 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Yellow         

65.9 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +17.5 points         

61 Students        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

2023 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
Yellow         

29.8 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +19.7 
points         

50 Students        

American Indian 

Less than 11 Students          

4 Students        

Asian     

Less than 11 Students          

5 Students        

Filipino 

73.1 points above standard         

Increased +8.8 points         

16 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Orange         

26.9 points below standard         

Decreased -4 points         

110 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
Yellow         

8.3 points below standard         

Maintained +2.1 points         

73 Students        

Pacific Islander 

Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

White     

 
Yellow         

12.9 points below standard         

Decreased -7.9 points         

164 Students        

 
This section provides additional information on distance from standard for current English learners, prior or Reclassified 
English learners, and English Only students in mathematics 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

Less than 11 Students          

9 Students        

Reclassified English Learners 

Less than 11 Students          

5 Students        

English Only 

11.7 points below standard         

Maintained -1.4 points         

401 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. In Mathematics we are 13.2 points below standard, which is a decrease of last year's 11.6 points below standard.        

2. Our English Learners are 90.9 points below standard, which is a significant decrease as compared to last year's 48.6 
points below standard.        

3. Students with disabilities are 65.9 points below standard, which is an improvement over last year's 83.4 points below 
standard.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 

 English Learner Progress 

81.8 points above standard making 
progress towards English language 

proficiency          
Number of EL Students: 11 Students          
Performance Level: No Performance 

Level        

 

 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 

Decreased  
One ELPI Level 

1         

Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 

1         

Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 

1         

Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 

8         

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. No conclusions based on available data, although progression seems very positive.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
College/Career Report 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 
This section provided information on the percentage of high school graduates who are placed in the "Prepared" level on the 
College/Career Indicator. 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard College/Career Equity Report 

Very High        High        Medium        Low        Very Low        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard College/Career Report for All Students/Student Group 

All Students English Learners Foster Youth 

Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard College/Career Reportby Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 

Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. N/A        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 

Red        
0        

Orange        
0        

Yellow        
0        

Green        
5        

Blue        
2        

 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Blue         

5% Chronically Absent         

Declined Significantly -10.2         

742 Students        

English Learners 
11.1% Chronically Absent         

Declined -16.7         

18 Students        

Foster Youth 
Less than 11 Students          

2 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Green         

5.3% Chronically Absent         

Declined Significantly -12.7         

226 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Green         

5% Chronically Absent         

Declined -14.8         

100 Students        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

2023 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
Green         

6.1% Chronically Absent         

Declined -9.3         

82 Students        

American Indian 

Less than 11 Students          

6 Students        

Asian     

Less than 11 Students          

7 Students        

Filipino 

 
Green         

2.9% Chronically Absent         

Declined -2.9         

34 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Green         

6.7% Chronically Absent         

Declined Significantly -16.9         

209 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
Blue         

2.5% Chronically Absent         

Declined -11.7         

118 Students        

Pacific Islander 

Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

White     

 
Blue         

4.6% Chronically Absent         

Declined Significantly -5.3         

285 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our English Learners are 11.1 % chronically absent, which is an improvement over last year's 27.8%.        

2. Hispanic and African American have similar levels of chronic absenteeism (6.7% and 6.1%, respectively.)        

3. Chronic Absenteeism has declined significantly as compared to last year.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 

Red        Orange        Yellow        Green        Blue        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma. 
 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students English Learners Foster Youth 

Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 

Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. N/A        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 

Red        
0        

Orange        
2        

Yellow        
2        

Green        
2        

Blue        
1        

 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Green         

2.2% suspended at least one day         

Declined -0.3         
759 Students        

English Learners 
5.6% suspended at least one day         

Increased 5.6         
18 Students        

Foster Youth 
Less than 11 Students          

2 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Orange         

2.6% suspended at least one day         

Increased 0.9         
229 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Green         

1% suspended at least one day         

Declined -2         
102 Students        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

2023 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
Yellow         

3.5% suspended at least one 
day         

Declined -1.8         
86 Students        

American Indian 

Less than 11 Students          
6 Students        

Asian     

Less than 11 Students          
7 Students        

Filipino 

 
Blue         

0% suspended at least one 
day         

Maintained 0         
34 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Orange         

2.8% suspended at least one 
day         

Increased 0.6         
217 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
Yellow         

3.3% suspended at least one 
day         

Declined -0.3         
120 Students        

Pacific Islander 

Less than 11 Students          
1 Student        

White     

 
Green         

1.4% suspended at least one 
day         

Declined -0.5         
288 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. In regard to Rac/Ethnicity, African Americans have the highest suspension rate at 3.5%, which is down from 5.3%.        

2. Several groups/ethnicities have 0 or no reported suspensions.        

3. Suspension alternatives and consistent discipline practices have been successful.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 1 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
Implement effective standards-based, 21st century instruction that addresses the needs of all students and providing 
equity in opportunity for all students to meet or exceed grade level standards. In English/Language Arts, each grade 
level will increase number of meeting/exceeding students by 5% including all significant subgroups on the SBAC. 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
Overarching LCAP GOAL #1: 
All Students will be provided the CONDITIONS FOR LEARNING leading to college and career readiness. They will 
receive a broad educational program delivered by qualified staff using standards aligned instructional materials in 
facilities which are well maintained. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
School wide, we had 56% of our students meet or exceed standards on the 2021-22 ELA SBAC.  For the 2022-23 
school year, school wide, we had 55.68% students meet or exceed standards, a decrease .32%.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   

Statewide Assessments        All students distance from standard 
met ELA 10.4 points above standard. 

All Students distance from Standard 
Met 
ELA - Decrease of .32 points above 
standard 
2023 Dashboard 
 

Implementation of Content and 
Performance Standards        

Full Implementation Full Implementation and Sustainability 

Percentage of English Learners who 
made progress towards English 
language proficiency (ELPAC).        

All students proficiency results (11 
students) 
Overall: 
EL's who decreased at least one ELPI 
level - 9.1% 
EL's who maintained ELPI level - 9.1% 
EL's who maintained ELPI level 4 - 
9.1% 
EL's who progressed at least one ELPI 
level - 72.7% 
 

Increase in percentage in students 
moving up proficiency scale. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

1.1 STRATEGY: During the 2023-24 school year, 
Akers will differentiate reading instruction through 
the ExCEL model in grades K-5. This will allow 
students to receive small group, differentiated 
instruction targeting their areas of need. Teacher 
created Units of Study which are cross-curricular 
will be used to guide the order of content and 
standards. ELD instruction will be provided through 
ELD and SDAIE. Reading and Writing interventions 
will be used for target areas of need for students in 
all grades. In grades 6-8, lab classes will provide 
intervention for all students. 
 
Fully implement standards based reading and 
writing instruction incorporating CUESD state-
adopted text and supplemental resources. 
        

All Students  
LCFF 
 
        
 
General Fund 
 
        
 
Lottery:  Instructional 
Materials 
 
        

1.2 Continue school-wide K-8 differentiated small 
group reading and intervention using differentiated 
materials.   ELD instruction will be provided through 
ELD and SDAIE. Reading and Writing interventions 
will be used for target areas of need for students in 
all grades. Continue student access to books and 
school library resources to encourage independent 
reading and literacy skills.        

All Students  
General Fund 
 
        
 
LCFF 
 
        
 
Lottery:  Instructional 
Materials 
 
        

1.3 Akers will differentiate reading instruction through 
the ExCEL model.  This will allow students to 
receive small group, differentiated instruction 
targeting their areas of need. Vocabulary 
development is the focus of academic 
walkthroughs for the 2022 - 23 school year.        

All Students K-5  
General Fund 
 
        
 
LCFF 
 
        
 
Lottery:  Instructional 
Materials 
 
        

1.4 All classrooms have the appropriate time 
allocations for content instruction for all students. 
Teacher created Units of Study which are cross-
curricular will be used to guide the order of content 
and standards. Teachers will use a direct 
instructional model to teach the writing process in 
alignment to the grade level writing standards. 
Intervention electives are assigned to students in 
need, which will allow students to receive small 
group, differentiated instruction targeting their 

All Students 6-8  
LCFF 
 
No Additional Costs        
 
General Fund 
 
        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

areas of need. Continue student access to books 
and school library resources to encourage 
independent reading and literacy skills.        

Lottery:  Instructional 
Materials 
 
        
 
Library General Fund 
 
        

1.5 Teachers will use designated and integrated ELD 
instruction to meet the needs of English Learners. 
Differentiated instruction will be used to target the 
needs of students with disabilities, and other 
underperforming students to ensure access to 
grade level standards and core curriculum.        

Designated English 
Language Learners, 
SWD, and 
underperforming 
students not identified as 
EL or SWD. 

 
Lottery:  Instructional 
Materials 
 
        
 
LCFF 
 
        
 
General Fund 
 
        

1.6 Increase access and use of technology in the 
classroom to support instruction and access to 
grade level standards. Teachers will provide 
students with explicit instruction on the use of 
technology and applications. Provide on-site 
assistance to staff to support the use of technology 
to monitor student progress. 1:1 iPads for all 
students, document cameras and Apple TV in all 
classrooms.        

All Students  
General Fund 
 
        
 
District/Site Funding 
 
        

1.7 Groups of teachers and administrators have 
received and continue to receive training around 
developing and sustaining PLCs and CFAs to 
support the learning of all students.        

All students  
LCFF 
 
No Additional Costs        
 
General Fund 
 
        

1.8 Implement the district assessments in reading 
including iready,  IAB's and FIAB's. Use formative 
assessments to monitor student progress. Follow 
the district adopted testing calendar and include 
site-based assessments to reflect required 
assessments, formative assessments and state 
testing.        

All Students  
None Specified 
 
No Additional Costs        

1.9 Increase number of books in the school library by 
integrating identified literacy library resources. 
Promote independent reading and incentives 
(Accelerated Reading) that will lead to increased 
independent reading and improved literacy skills.        

All Students  
Library General Fund 
 
No Additional Costs        

1.10 Increased student attendance and improve student 
discipline through use of relationship building, 
family connectedness training, Anchored for Life, 
Deployment Club, and student access to school 
counselor as well as district psychologist. 
 
        

All Students  
General Fund 
 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 2 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
Mathematics - Implement effective standards-based, 21st century instruction that addresses the needs of all students 
and providing equity in opportunity for all students to meet or exceed grade level standards. In mathematics, each grade 
level will increase number of meeting/exceeding students by 5% including all significant subgroups on the SBAC. 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
Overarching LCAP Goal #2 
Parents, Students, and the community will be ENGAGED to participate collaboratively in the educational process. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
45.49 of all students in grades 3-8 met or exceeded the standards, a decrease of 2.23% and 13.2 points below 
standards. In math, our English Learners are 90.9 points below standards and our students with disabilities are 65.9 
points below standard. 
 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   

Statewide Assessments - Mathematics        All Students Distance from Standard 
Met 
Math -13.2 points below standards, a 
decrease of 1.6 
2023 Dashboard 
 

All Students Distance from Standard 
Met 
Math - Increase 5 points 
Fall 2024 Dashboard 
 

Implementation of SBE Adopted 
Standards        

Full Implementation Full implementation and sustainability 

 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

2.1 STRATEGY: During the 2023-24 school year, 
Akers will continue to implement the new California 
Standards. Instruction will be differentiated as 
needed to ensure that all students’ needs are met. 

All Students  
General Fund 
 
        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Teacher created Units of Study will be used to 
guide the order of content and standards. 
 
        

LCFF 
 
        

2.2 Common formative assessments will be created in 
math both site and district wide. Math intervention 
will continue for grades 3rd – 8th. Provide 
differentiated mathematics instruction/intervention 
based on identified student need. Follow the district 
adopted testing calendar and include site-based 
assessments to reflect required assessments, 
formative assessments and state testing.        

All Students  
Interventions/ Donation 
Account 
 
        
 
District Funded 
 
        
 
General Fund 
 
        

2.3 Grade level teams will identify basic grade level 
math skills and monitor student progress of these 
skills. Students not meeting expected progress will 
participate in math intervention (such as math lab, 
Focus Period, SAS, homework club, and before, 
during, and after school). Students who have 
mastered the standards will receive 
extension/enrichment.        

All Students  
General Fund 
 
        
 
Interventions/ Donation 
Account 
 
        

2.4 Increase access and use of technology in the 
classroom to support instruction and access to 
grade level standards. 
 
 
        

All Students  
General Fund 
 
        
 
District/Site Funding 
 
        

2.5           
District Funded 
 
No Additional Costs 
 
        
 
General Fund 
 
        

2.6           
 
 
No Additional Costs        

2.7           
General Fund 
 
        

 

Annual Review 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Although the overall scores in math decreased a few points, interventions are proving to be effective as evidenced by 
progress on district iready assessments.        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 3 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
100% of Akers teachers will receive professional development, either through outside opportunities or as part of our 
Professional Learning Communities. 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
Overarching LCAP Goal #3: 
All students will make progress towards proficient ACHIEVEMENT of state adopted standards through data driven 
decision making. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
Akers ADA for the 2022-23 school year averaged approximately 96.74%.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   

School Attendance        Average daily attendance 96.27% 
P2 data Spring 2023 
 

Average daily attendance 97% 
P2 data Spring 2024 
 

Chronic Absenteeism        Chronic absenteeism rate indicator 
5.0% 
Dashboard, 2023 
 

Chronic absenteeism rate indicator to 
maintain below 3.0% 
Dashboard, 2024 
 

Pupil Suspension        Suspension Rate 
2.2% 
Dashboard, 2023 
 

Suspension Rate 
2.0% 
Dashboard Fall 2024 
 

Pupil Expulsion        Expulsion Rate 
0.0% 
 

Expulsion Rate 
0.0% 
 

 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

3.1 School-Wide Behavior Expectations posted and 
reviewed with students, staff, and parents.        

All Students  
General Fund 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

 
        

3.2 Strategic student connectedness activities between 
staff and students.        

All Students  
General Fund 
 
No Additional Costs        

3.3 Counseling services both district provided and 
Navy provided through Military Family Life 
Counselor        

All Students  
District Funded 
 
No Additional Costs        
 
Other 
 
        

3.4 Multi-Tiered Systems of Support        All Students  
LCFF 
 
        

3.5 Attendance Incentives, behavior incentives        All Students  
General Fund 
 
        
 
District Funded 
 
        

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 4 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
100% of English learners will receive designated ELD instruction as well as integrated ELD. Students will be monitored 
on a trimester basis and redesignated as appropriate. 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
Meet the needs of English Learners to acquire English Language Proficiency and academic proficiency.         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
Akers has a small percentage of students identified as English Learners, yet it is important that their needs are met 
through designated and integrated ELD instruction.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   

Programs/Services to enable English 
Learners to access CA and ELD 
standards        

No reported SBAC scores for English 
Learners 
Not a significant subgroup. 
 

English Learners to have a positive 
points above standard 
2024 Dashboard 
 

Percentage of English Learners who 
make English Proficiency progress        

81.8% making progress towards 
English Language proficiency. 

90% of English Learners will make 
progress. 
2024 ELPAC data 
 

English Learner Reclassification Rate        One student was reclassified out of 11 
identified students. 

Continue with positive reclassification 
numbers 

 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

4.1 KCOE ELD coaching for teaching staff and 
adminstration        

English Learners  
LCFF 
 
        

4.2 During school intervention focusing on English 
language acquisition.        

English Learners  
LCFF 
 
        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

4.3 RFEP celebration at the end of the school year.        English Learners  
LCFF 
 
        

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 5 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
100% of teachers will be assigned to teach content they are credentialed to teach. 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
Overarching LCAP GOAL #2: 
Provide all students with equitable access to core program activities, highly qualified staff, as well as safe and well-
maintained schools. 
 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

5.1 STRATEGY: Campus walk-throughs will occur 
monthly to address safety/maintenance concerns. 
We will partner with our school resource officer and 
security to discuss and implement needed safety 
measures. Teacher assignment monitoring will 
continue to be a district function. 
 
Continue to support the district in hiring highly 
qualified teachers by participating in the interview 
process. 

• Ongoing 
 
 

  
 
 
No additional costs        

5.2 Akers has 100% of teaching staff as highly 
qualified. 

• Ongoing 

  
 
 
No additional costs        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

 
 

5.3 Akers has 0% of teaching staff mis-assigned to 
teach specific content areas. 

• Ongoing 
 
 

  
 
 
No additional costs        

5.4 Akers scored exemplary on the Williams Visit at the 
start of the 2023-24 school year. 

• Ongoing 
 
 

  
 
 
No additional costs        

5.5 Every classroom has the required state-adopted 
textbooks and materials for each student. 

• Ongoing 
 
 

  
 
 
No additional costs        

5.6 MTSS implementation 
• Ongoing 

 
 

  
General Fund 
 
        

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 6 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
100% of English learners will receive Designated ELD instruction as well as Integrated ELD.  Students will be monitored 
on a trimester basis and redesignated as appropriate. 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
Overarching LCAP GOAL #3: 
Meet the needs of English Learners to acquire English Proficiency and Academic Proficiency. 
 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
Akers would like to have an improvement in the number of students being reclassified as well as reclassification criteria 
and protocols for EL students who have IEPs.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

6.1 STRATEGY: Teachers will receive ELD 
professional development through the district 
adjusted professional development days. Teachers 
will continue to work together to provide ELD 
instruction. Student progress will be monitored and 
intervention plans will be made for those students 
not making adequate progress. 
 
Implement instructional strategies that provide 
good first instruction and support English learners, 
students with disabilities, and other 
underperforming students in reading, writing, and 
mathematics targeted to the students’ proficiency 
levels in speaking, listening, reading and writing. 

• Ongoing 
 
 

  
General Fund 
 
        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 7 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
Increase ADA to 97%.  We will reduce the number of discipline referral tickets by 10% through improved classroom 
management techniques, trainings, and positive reinforcement. 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
Overarching LCAP GOAL #4: 
Address the social-emotional/behavioral needs of our students leading to attendance issues, suspensions, and bullying. 
 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

7.1 STRATEGY: Attendance will be monitored 
regularly and truancy letters will be sent home as 
needed. Parent intervention/education will take 
place to notify parents of SARB procedures. 
Parents will receive SARB brochures and Saturday 
School notices as needed to improve their child’s 
attendance. In accordance with our bully plan, we 
will continue to have bullying a topic discussed at 
each staff meeting. We will have assemblies that 
address bullying for all grades and teachers will 
implement Second Step Lessons throughout the 
year. Student incident reports will be handled 
immediately and non-structured time during the 
school day will have targeted adult supervision. We 
will partner with our school resource officer as 
needed to ensure a safe learning environment for 
all.  

  
 
 
No additional costs        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

 
Attendance monitoring, truancy letters, and SARB 

• Ongoing 
 
 

7.2 Saturday School remediation offered to all students 
¬-Ongoing 
 
        

  
District Funded 
 
        

7.3 Incentives for attendance through the Eagle Buck 
store 

• Ongoing 
 
 

  
Attendance budget 
 
        

7.4 Trimester reward activities for students with no-
referrals 

• Trimester 
 
 

  
 
 
No additional costs        

7.5 Good behavior rewarded through Student of the 
Month and Student of the Trimester. 

• Monthly 
 
 

  
 
 
No additional costs        

7.6 Promote student attendance and good citizenship 
to support daily access to core instruction and 
services. 

• Ongoing 
 
 

  
General Fund/ attendance 
incentives 
 
        

7.7 Bullying addressed at staff meetings. 
• Ongoing 

 
 

  
 
 
No additional costs        

7.8 School-wide assemblies addressing policies, 
procedures, and rules.  
 
Assemblies that target the issue of bullying. 

• Ongoing Fall and Spring 
 
 

  
General Fund 
 
        

7.9 Teachers will implement Social Emotional Learning 
Lessons in the primary classrooms and Common 
Sense Media lessons in 6th-8th classrooms. 

• Ongoing 
 
 

  
 
 
No additional costs        

7.10 Bully reports and student discipline issues will be 
investigated and processed immediately. 

• Ongoing 
 
 

  
 
 
No additional costs        

7.11 We will participate in Red Ribbon week with a 
focus on being bullied and drug free. 
¬-Week in October 
 
        

  
 
 
No additional costs        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

7.12 Deployment groups will meet regularly to support 
students who have a deployed parent. 

• Ongoing 
 
 

  
District Funded 
 
        

7.13 MTSS – Multi-tiered system of support district and 
site development        

  
 
 
No additional costs for site        

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 8 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 9 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 10 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 57 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 58 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Budget Summary 
 
Complete the Budget Summary Table below. Schools may include additional information, and adjust the table as needed. 
The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the Consolidated Application (ConApp). 
 
Budget Summary 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application $ 

Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA $ 

Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI $ 
 
Other Federal, State, and Local Funds 
 
List the additional Federal programs that the school includes in the schoolwide program. Adjust the table as needed.  
 
Note: If the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program, this section is not applicable and may be 
deleted. 
 

Federal Programs Allocation ($) 

startcollapse  
 
Subtotal of additional federal funds included for this school: $ 
 
List the State and local programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Duplicate the table as needed. 

State or Local Programs Allocation ($) 

startcollapse  
 
Subtotal of state or local funds included for this school: $ 
 
Total of federal, state, and/or local funds for this school: $ 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 59 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan 
 
The tables below are provided to help the school track expenditures as they relate to funds budgeted to the school. 
 

Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 

Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Funding Source  Amount 
 

Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 

Budget Reference  Amount 
 

Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 

 
Expenditures by Goal 
 
startcollapse 

Goal Number  Total Expenditures 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 60 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
X School Principal        
X Classroom Teachers        

X Other School Staff        

X Parent or Community Members        
 
startcollapse 

Name of Members  Role 

Thalia Dabdub-Adames         X Parent or Community Member        

Rachelle Erickson         X Parent or Community Member        

Joshua Norris         X Parent or Community Member        

Terrace Sanders         X Parent or Community Member        

Sharon Shaw-Porter         X Parent or Community Member        

Jennifer Escola         X Classroom Teacher        

Katie Kirby         X Classroom Teacher        

Lauren Thayer         X Classroom Teacher        

Sabrina Vernon         X Other School Staff        

Heiko Sweeney         X Principal        

Darin Denney         X Other School Staff        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 61 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 

Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on 4/15/24. 
 
Attested: 

 

 Principal, Heiko Sweeney on 4/15/24 

 

 SSC Chairperson, Rachelle Erickson on 4/15/24 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 62 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Instructions 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a strategic plan that maximizes the resources 
available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing student 
achievement. SPSA development should be aligned with and inform the Local Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP) process.  
 
This SPSA template consolidates all school-level planning efforts into one plan for programs funded 
through the Consolidated Application (ConApp) pursuant to California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) as amended by the Every Student 
Succeeds Act (ESSA). This template is designed to meet schoolwide program planning requirements.  
 
California’s ESSA State Plan supports the state’s approach to improving student group performance 
through the utilization of federal resources. Schools use the SPSA to document their approach to 
maximizing the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. The implementation of 
ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded programs 
and align them with the priority goals of the school and the local educational agency (LEA) that are being 
realized under the state’s Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF).  
 
The LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the 
needs of students in order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA 
planning process supports continuous cycles of action, reflection, and improvement. Consistent with EC 
64001(g)(1), the Schoolsite Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish 
an annual budget, and make modifications to the plan that reflect changing needs and priorities, as 
applicable. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 63 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

 
For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below. 
 
Instructions: Table of Contents 
 

• Plan Description  
• Educational Partner Involvement 
• Comprehensive Needs Assessment 
• Goals, Strategies/Activities, and Expenditures 
• Annual Review 
• Budget Summary 
• Appendix A: Plan Requirements for Title I Schoolwide Programs 
• Appendix B: Select State and Federal Programs 

 
For additional questions or technical assistance related to LEA and school planning, please contact the 
CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office, at LCFF@cde.ca.gov.  
For programmatic or policy questions regarding Title I schoolwide planning, please contact the LEA, or 
the CDE’s Title I Policy and Program Guidance Office at TITLEI@cde.ca.gov. 
 
Plan Description 
Briefly describe the school’s plan to effectively meet the ESSA requirements in alignment with the LCAP 
and other federal, state, and local programs. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements:  
Schools eligible for CSI must briefly describe the purpose of this plan by stating that this plan will be used 
to meet federal CSI planning requirements. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements:  
Schools eligible for ATSI must briefly describe the purpose of this plan by stating that this plan will be 
used to meet federal ATSI planning requirements.   
 
 
Educational Partner Involvement 
Meaningful involvement of parents, students, and other stakeholders is critical to the development of the 
SPSA and the budget process. Within California, these stakeholders are referred to as educational 
partners. Schools must share the SPSA with school site-level advisory groups, as applicable (e.g., 
English Learner Advisory committee, student advisory groups, tribes and tribal organizations present in 
the community, as appropriate, etc.) and seek input from these advisory groups in the development of the 
SPSA.  
 
The Educational Partner Engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. Describe the process used 
to involve advisory committees, parents, students, school faculty and staff, and the community in the 
development of the SPSA and the annual review and update. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements:  
When completing this section for CSI, the LEA must partner with the school and its educational partners 
in the development and implementation of this plan. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements:  
This section meets the requirements for ATSI. 
 
 
Resource Inequities 

mailto:LCFF@cde.ca.gov
mailto:TITLEI@cde.ca.gov


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 64 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

This section is required for all schools eligible for ATSI and CSI.  
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements:  

• Schools eligible for CSI must identify resource inequities, which may include a review of 
LEA- and school-level budgeting as a part of the required school-level needs 
assessment. 

• Identified resource inequities must be addressed through implementation of the CSI 
plan. 

• Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required 
school-level needs assessment and summarize how the identified resource inequities 
are addressed in the SPSA. 

 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements:  

• Schools eligible for ATSI must identify resource inequities, which may include a review 
of LEA- and school-level budgeting as a part of the required school-level needs 
assessment.   

• Identified resource inequities must be addressed through implementation of the ATSI plan.  
• Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required 

school-level needs assessment and summarize how the identified resource inequities 
are addressed in the SPSA. 

 
Comprehensive Needs Assessment 
Referring to the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), identify: (a) any state indicator for which 
overall performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category AND (b) any state indicator for 
which performance for any student group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” 
performance. In addition to Dashboard data, other needs may be identified using locally collected data 
developed by the LEA to measure pupil outcomes.  
 
SWP Planning Requirements:  
When completing this section for SWP, the school shall describe the steps it is planning to take to 
address these areas of low performance and performance gaps to improve student outcomes. 
 
Completing this section fully addresses all SWP relevant federal planning requirements. 
 
CSI Planning Requirements:  
When completing this section for CSI, the LEA shall describe the steps the LEA will take to address the 
areas of low performance, low graduation rate, and/or performance gaps for the school to improve 
student outcomes. 
 
Completing this section fully addresses all relevant federal planning requirements for CSI. 
 
ATSI Planning Requirements:  
Completing this section fully addresses all relevant federal planning requirements for ATSI. 
 
Goals, Strategies/Activities, and Expenditures 
In this section, a school provides a description of the annual goals to be achieved by the school. This 
section also includes descriptions of the specific planned strategies/activities a school will take to meet 
the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific strategies 
and activities. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 
When completing this section to meet federal planning requirements for CSI, improvement goals must 
also align with the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 65 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
When completing this section to meet federal planning requirements for ATSI, improvement goals must 
also align with the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP. 
 
Goal 
Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to educational partners what the school plans to 
accomplish, what the school plans to do in order to accomplish the goal, and how the school will know 
when it has accomplished the goal. A goal should be specific enough to be measurable in either 
quantitative or qualitative terms. Schools should assess the performance of their student groups when 
developing goals and the related strategies/activities to achieve such goals. SPSA goals should align to 
the goals and actions in the LEA’s LCAP. 
 
A goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
A goal answers the question: What is the school seeking to achieve? 
 
It can be helpful to use a framework for writing goals such the S.M.A.R.T. approach.  
A S.M.A.R.T. goal is:  
 

• Specific,  
• Measurable,  
• Achievable,  
• Realistic, and  
• Time-bound.  

 
A level of specificity is needed in order to measure performance relative to the goal as well as to assess 
whether it is reasonably achievable. Including time constraints, such as milestone dates, ensures a 
realistic approach that supports student success.  
A school may number the goals using the “Goal #” for ease of reference.  
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal CSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal ATSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Identified Need  
Describe the basis for establishing the goal. The goal should be based upon an analysis of verifiable state 
data, including local and state indicator data from the Dashboard and data from the School Accountability 
Report Card, including local data voluntarily collected by districts to measure pupil achievement.  
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal CSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal ATSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that the school will use as a means of evaluating progress 
toward accomplishing the goal. A school may identify metrics for specific student groups. Include in the 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 66 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

baseline column the most recent data associated with the metric or indicator available at the time of 
adoption of the SPSA. The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator includes data reported 
in the annual update of the SPSA. In the subsequent Expected Outcome column, identify the progress 
the school intends to make in the coming year. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 
When completing this section for CSI, the school must include school-level metrics related to the metrics 
that led to the school’s eligibility for CSI. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal ATSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Strategies/Activities Table 
Describe the strategies and activities being provided to meet the goal.  
Complete the table as follows: 
 

• Strategy/Activity #: Number the strategy/activity using the “Strategy/Activity #” for ease of 
reference. 

• Description: Describe the strategy/activity.  
• Students to be Served: Identify in the Strategy/Activity Table either All Students or one 

or more specific student groups that will benefit from the strategies and activities. ESSA 
Section 1111(c)(2) requires the schoolwide plan to identify either “All Students” or one or 
more specific student groups, including socioeconomically disadvantaged students, 
students from major racial and ethnic groups, students with disabilities, and English 
learners. 

• Proposed Expenditures: List the amount(s) for the proposed expenditures. 
Proposed expenditures that are included more than once in a SPSA should be indicated as a 
duplicated expenditure and include a reference to the goal and strategy/activity where the 
expenditure first appears in the SPSA. Pursuant to EC Section 64001(g)(3)(C), proposed 
expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the governing board or governing 
body of the LEA, to address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the state 
priorities including identifying resource inequities which may include a review of the LEA’s 
budgeting, its LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable. 

• Funding Sources: List the funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal, identify the Title and Part, 
as applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 

 
Planned strategies/activities address the findings of the comprehensive needs assessment consistent 
with state priorities and resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of the LEA’s 
budgeting, its LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 

• When completing this section for CSI, this plan must include evidence-based interventions and 
align to the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP.  

• When completing this section for CSI, this plan must address through implementation, identified 
resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of LEA- and school-level 
budgeting.  

Note: Federal school improvement funds for CSI shall not be used in schools identified for TSI or ATSI. In 
addition, funds for CSI shall not be used to hire additional permanent staff. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 

• When completing this section for ATSI, this plan must include evidence-based interventions and 
align with the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP.  



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 67 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

• When completing this section for ATSI, this plan must address through implementation, identified 
resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of LEA- and school-level 
budgeting.  

• When completing this section for ATSI, at a minimum, the student groups to be served shall 
include the student groups that are consistently underperforming, for which the school received 
the ATSI designation. 

 
Note: Federal school improvement funds for CSI shall not be used in schools identified for ATSI.  Schools 
eligible for ATSI do not receive funding but are required to include evidence-based interventions and align 
with the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP. 
 
Annual Review 
In the following Goal Analysis prompts, identify any material differences between what was planned and 
what actually occurred as well as significant changes in strategies/activities and/or expenditures from the 
prior year. This annual review and analysis should be the basis for decision-making and updates to the 
plan.  
 
Goal Analysis 
Using actual outcome data, including state indicator data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the 
planned strategies/activities were effective in achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as instructed. 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal.  
 

● Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the 
articulated goal.  

● Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or material 
difference between the budgeted expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the 
articulated goal. 

● Describe any changes that will be made to the goal, expected annual measurable outcomes, 
metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard, as applicable. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 

 
Note: If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, the Annual Review section is not required 
and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 

• When completing this section for CSI, any changes made to the goals, annual measurable 
outcomes, metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities, shall meet the federal CSI planning 
requirements.   

• CSI planning requirements are listed under each section of the Instructions. For example, as a 
result of the Annual Review and Update, if changes are made to a goal(s), see the Goal section 
for CSI planning requirements. 

 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 

• When completing this section for ATSI, any changes made to the goals, annual measurable 
outcomes, metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities, shall meet the federal ATSI planning 
requirements.   

• ATSI planning requirements are listed under each section of the Instructions. For example, as a 
result of the Annual Review and Update, if changes are made to a goal(s), see the Goal section 
for ATSI planning requirements. 

 
 
Budget Summary 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 68 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

In this section, a school provides a brief summary of the funding allocated to the school through the 
ConApp and/or other funding sources as well as the total amount of funds for proposed expenditures 
described in the SPSA. The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. 
 
Note: If the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program, this section is not applicable and may be 
deleted. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 

• From its total allocation for CSI, the LEA may distribute funds across its schools that are 
eligible for CSI to support implementation of this plan. In addition, the LEA may retain a 
portion of its total allocation to support LEA-level expenditures that are directly related to 
serving schools eligible for CSI. 

Note: CSI funds may not be expended at or on behalf of schools not eligible for CSI. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
Note: Federal funds for CSI shall not be used in schools eligible for ATSI. 
 
Budget Summary Table 
A school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp should complete the Budget Summary Table as 
follows: 

● Total Funds Provided to the School Through the ConApp: This amount is the total amount of 
funding provided to the school through the ConApp for the school year. The school year means 
the fiscal year for which a SPSA is adopted or updated.  

● Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA: This amount is the total 
of the proposed expenditures from all sources of funds associated with the strategies/activities 
reflected in the SPSA. To the extent strategies/activities and/or proposed expenditures are listed 
in the SPSA under more than one goal, the expenditures should be counted only once. 

 
A school receiving funds from its LEA for CSI should complete the Budget Summary Table as 
follows:  

• Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI: This amount is 
the total amount of funding provided to the school from the LEA for the purpose of 
developing and implementing the CSI plan for the school year set forth in the CSI LEA 
Application for which funds were received. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 69 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Appendix A: Plan Requirements  
 
Schoolwide Program Requirements 
This School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) template meets the requirements of a schoolwide 
program plan. The requirements below are for planning reference.  
A school that operates a schoolwide program and receives funds allocated through the ConApp is 
required to develop a SPSA. The SPSA, including proposed expenditures of funds allocated to the school 
through the ConApp, must be reviewed annually and updated by the Schoolsite Council (SSC). The 
content of a SPSA must be aligned with school goals for improving student achievement.  
Requirements for Development of the Plan 

I. The development of the SPSA shall include both of the following actions: 
A. Administration of a comprehensive needs assessment that forms the basis of the 

school’s goals contained in the SPSA. 
1. The comprehensive needs assessment of the entire school shall: 

a. Include an analysis of verifiable state data, consistent with all state 
priorities as noted in Sections 52060 and 52066, and informed by 
all indicators described in Section 1111(c)(4)(B) of the federal 
Every Student Succeeds Act, including pupil performance against 
state-determined long-term goals. The school may include data 
voluntarily developed by districts to measure pupil outcomes 
(described in the Identified Need). 

b. Be based on academic achievement information about all 
students in the school, including all groups under §200.13(b)(7) 
and migratory children as defined in section 1309(2) of the ESEA, 
relative to the State's academic standards under §200.1 to: 

i. Help the school understand the subjects and skills for 
which teaching and learning need to be improved. 

ii. Identify the specific academic needs of students and 
groups of students who are not yet achieving the State's 
academic standards. 

iii. Assess the needs of the school relative to each of the 
components of the schoolwide program under §200.28. 

iv. Develop the comprehensive needs assessment with the 
participation of individuals who will carry out the 
schoolwide program plan. 

v. Document how it conducted the needs assessment, the 
results it obtained, and the conclusions it drew from those 
results.  

B. Identification of the process for evaluating and monitoring the implementation of 
the SPSA and progress towards accomplishing the goals set forth in the SPSA 
(described in the Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and Annual Review 
and Update).  
 

Requirements for the Plan 
II. The SPSA shall include the following:  

A. Goals set to improve pupil outcomes, including addressing the needs of student 
groups as identified through the needs assessment.  

B. Evidence-based strategies, actions, or services (described in Strategies and 
Activities) 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 70 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

1. A description of the strategies that the school will be implementing to 
address school needs, including a description of how such strategies 
will: 

a. Provide opportunities for all children including each of the 
subgroups of students to meet the challenging state academic 
standards 

b. Use methods and instructional strategies that: 
i. Strengthen the academic program in the school,  
ii. Increase the amount and quality of learning time, and  
iii. Provide an enriched and accelerated curriculum, which 

may include programs, activities, and courses necessary 
to provide a well-rounded education. 

c. Address the needs of all children in the school, but particularly 
the needs of those at risk of not meeting the challenging State 
academic standards, so that all students demonstrate at least 
proficiency on the State’s academic standards through activities 
which may include: 

i. Strategies to improve students’ skills outside the 
academic subject areas;  

ii. Preparation for and awareness of opportunities for 
postsecondary education and the workforce;  

iii. Implementation of a schoolwide tiered model to prevent 
and address problem behavior;  

iv. Professional development and other activities for 
teachers, paraprofessionals, and other school personnel 
to improve instruction and use of data; and 

v. Strategies for assisting preschool children in the transition 
from early childhood education programs to local 
elementary school programs. 

C. Proposed expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the 
governing board or body of the LEA (may include funds allocated via the 
ConApp, federal funds, and any other state or local funds allocated to the 
school), to address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the 
state priorities, including identifying resource inequities, which may include a 
review of the LEAs budgeting, it’s LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if 
applicable (described in Proposed Expenditures and Budget Summary). 
Employees of the schoolwide program may be deemed funded by a single cost 
objective.  

D. A description of how the school will determine if school needs have been met 
(described in the Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and the Annual 
Review and Update). 

1. Annually evaluate the implementation of, and results achieved by, the 
schoolwide program, using data from the State's annual assessments and 
other indicators of academic achievement; 

2. Determine whether the schoolwide program has been effective in 
increasing the achievement of students in meeting the State's academic 
standards, particularly for those students who had been furthest from 
achieving the standards; and 

3. Revise the plan, as necessary, based on the results of the evaluation, to 
ensure continuous improvement of students in the schoolwide program. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 71 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

E. A description of how the school will ensure parental involvement in the planning, 
review, and improvement of the schoolwide program plan (described in 
Educational Partner Involvement and/or Strategies/Activities). 

F. A description of the activities the school will include to ensure that students who 
experience difficulty attaining proficient or advanced levels of academic 
achievement standards will be provided with effective, timely additional support, 
including measures to: 

1. Ensure that those students' difficulties are identified on a timely basis; and 
2. Provide sufficient information on which to base effective assistance to 

those students. 
G. For an elementary school, a description of how the school will assist preschool 

students in the successful transition from early childhood programs to the school. 
H. A description of how the school will use resources to carry out these components 

(described in the Proposed Expenditures for Strategies/Activities). 
I. A description of any other activities and objectives as established by the SSC 

(described in the Strategies/Activities). 
Authority Cited: Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations (34 CFR), sections 200.25-26, and 
200.29, and sections-1114(b)(7)(A)(i)-(iii) and 1118(b) of the ESEA. EC sections 64001 et. seq. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 72 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Appendix B: Plan Requirements for School to 
CSI/ATSI Planning Requirements 
For questions or technical assistance related to meeting federal school improvement planning 
requirements, please contact the CDE’s School Improvement and Support Office at SISO@cde.ca.gov. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
The LEA shall partner with educational partners (including principals and other school leaders, teachers, 
and parents) to locally develop and implement the CSI plan for the school to improve student outcomes, 
and specifically address the metrics that led to eligibility for CSI (Educational Partner Involvement).   

The CSI plan shall:   

1. Be informed by all state indicators, including student performance against state-
determined long-term goals (Sections: Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual 
Measurable Outcomes, Annual Review and Update, as applicable); 

2. Include evidence-based interventions (Sections: Strategies/Activities, Annual Review 
and Update, as applicable) (For resources related to evidence-based interventions, see 
the U.S. Department of Education’s “Using Evidence to Strengthen Education 
Investments” at https://www2.ed.gov/fund/grant/about/discretionary/2023-non-regulatory-
guidance-evidence.pdf); 

Non-Regulatory Guidance: Using Evidence to Strengthen Education Investments 

3. Be based on a school-level needs assessment (Sections: Goal, Identified Need, 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Annual Review and Update, as applicable); 
and 

4. Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level 
budgeting, to be addressed through implementation of the CSI plan (Sections: Goal, 
Identified Need, Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities; 
and Annual Review and Update, as applicable). 

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(A), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(1) of the ESSA. 

Single School Districts and Charter Schools Eligible for ESSA School 
Improvement 
Single school districts (SSDs) or charter schools that are eligible for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, shall develop a 
SPSA that addresses the applicable requirements above as a condition of receiving funds (EC Section 
64001[a] as amended by Assembly Bill 716, effective January 1, 2019). 

However, a SSD or a charter school may streamline the process by combining state and federal 
requirements into one document which may include the LCAP and all federal planning requirements, 
provided that the combined plan is able to demonstrate that the legal requirements for each of the plans 
is met (EC Section 52062[a] as amended by AB 716, effective January 1, 2019). 

Planning requirements for single school districts and charter schools choosing to exercise this option are 
available in the LCAP Instructions. 

mailto:SISO@cde.ca.gov
https://www2.ed.gov/fund/grant/about/discretionary/2023-non-regulatory-guidance-evidence.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/fund/grant/about/discretionary/2023-non-regulatory-guidance-evidence.pdf


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 73 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Authority Cited: EC sections 52062(a) and 64001(a), both as amended by AB 716, effective January 1, 
2019. 

CSI Resources 
For additional CSI resources, please see the following links: 

• CSI Planning Requirements (see Planning Requirements tab): 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csi.asp 

• CSI Webinars: https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csiwebinars.asp 

• CSI Planning Summary for Charters and Single-school Districts: 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csiplansummary.asp 

  

https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csi.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csiwebinars.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csiplansummary.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 74 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Additional Targeted Support and Improvement 
A school eligible for ATSI shall: 

1. Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting, which 
will be addressed through implementation of its TSI plan (Sections: Goal, Identified Need, 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities, and Annual Review and 
Update, as applicable). 

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(B), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(2)(c) of the ESSA. 

Single School Districts and Charter Schools Eligible for ESSA School 
Improvement 
Single school districts (SSDs) or charter schools that are eligible for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, shall develop a 
SPSA that addresses the applicable requirements above as a condition of receiving funds (EC Section 
64001[a] as amended by Assembly Bill [AB] 716, effective January 1, 2019). 

However, a SSD or a charter school may streamline the process by combining state and federal 
requirements into one document which may include the local control and accountability plan (LCAP) and 
all federal planning requirements, provided that the combined plan is able to demonstrate that the legal 
requirements for each of the plans is met (EC Section 52062[a] as amended by AB 716, effective January 
1, 2019). 

Planning requirements for single school districts and charter schools choosing to exercise this option are 
available in the LCAP Instructions. 

Authority Cited: EC sections 52062(a) and 64001(a), both as amended by AB 716, effective January 1, 
2019. 

ATSI Resources: 
For additional ATSI resources, please see the following CDE links: 

• ATSI Planning Requirements (see Planning Requirements tab): 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/tsi.asp 

• ATSI Planning and Support Webinar: 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/documents/atsiplanningwebinar22.pdf  

• ATSI Planning Summary for Charters and Single-school Districts: 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/atsiplansummary.asp 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/tsi.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/documents/atsiplanningwebinar22.pdf
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/atsiplansummary.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 75 of 75 Admiral Akers School 

Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs 
For a list of active programs, please see the following links:  

• Programs included on the ConApp: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/  
• ESSA Title I, Part A: School Improvement: https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/schoolsupport.asp  
• Available Funding: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/af/  

Updated by the California Department of Education, October 2023 
 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/schoolsupport.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/af/


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 75 Central Elementary School 

 
School Year:    2024-25     

SPSA Title Page 
 

 

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) 
 

School Name County-District-School 
(CDS) Code 

Schoolsite Council 
(SSC) Approval Date 

Local Board Approval 
Date 

Central Elementary 
School         

16-63883-6010300         5/3/2024                  

 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a strategic plan that maximizes the resources available to the school 
while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing student achievement. SPSA development should 
be aligned with and inform the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) process.  
 
This SPSA template consolidates all school-level planning efforts into one plan for programs funded through the 
Consolidated Application (ConApp), and for federal Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATSI), pursuant to 
California Education Code (EC) Section 64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) as amended by 
the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). This template is designed to meet schoolwide program planning requirements for 
both the SPSA and federal ATSI planning requirements. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan supports the state’s approach to improving student group performance through the utilization 
of federal resources. Schools use the SPSA to document their approach to maximizing the impact of federal investments in 
support of underserved students. The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate 
with their federally-funded programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the local educational agency 
(LEA) that are being realized under the state’s Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF).  
 
The LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students 
in order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous 
cycles of action, reflection, and improvement. Consistent with EC 64001(g)(1), the Schoolsite Council (SSC) is required to 
develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make modifications to the plan that reflect changing 
needs and priorities, as applicable. 
 
This plan is being used by Central Elementary School for meeting the following ESSA planning requirements in alignment 
with the LCAP and other federal, state, and local programs: 
 

 Schoolwide Program        

 
This template is based on the December, 2023 CDE revision of the School Plan for Student Achievement.  Some 
modifications have been made to inform the SPSA development process. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Table of Contents 
 

SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 

Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................2 

Plan Description ................................................................................................................................................4 

Educational Partner Involvement ......................................................................................................................4 

Resource Inequities ..........................................................................................................................................5 

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components ...........................................................................................5 

California School Dashboard (Dashboard) Indicators ...............................................................................5 

Other Needs ..............................................................................................................................................5 

School and Student Performance Data ............................................................................................................6 

Student Enrollment ....................................................................................................................................6 

CAASPP Results .......................................................................................................................................9 

ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................15 

California School Dashboard ..................................................................................................................20 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................35 

Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................35 

Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................38 

Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................41 

Goal 4 ......................................................................................................................................................44 

Goal 5 ......................................................................................................................................................46 

Goal 6 ......................................................................................................................................................48 

Goal 7 ......................................................................................................................................................50 

Goal 8 ......................................................................................................................................................52 

Goal 9 ......................................................................................................................................................54 

Goal 10 ....................................................................................................................................................56 

Budget Summary ............................................................................................................................................58 

Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................58 

Other Federal, State, and Local Funds ...................................................................................................58 

Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan ..............................................................................................59 

Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source .................................................................................59 

Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................59 

Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................59 

Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................59 

Expenditures by Goal ..............................................................................................................................59 

School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................60 

Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................61 

Instructions ......................................................................................................................................................62 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Appendix A: Plan Requirements .....................................................................................................................69 

Appendix B: Plan Requirements for School to CSI/ATSI Planning Requirements .........................................72 

Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs ...........................................................................................75 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Plan Description 
 
Briefly describe your school’s plan for effectively meeting ESSA’s planning requirements in alignment with the Local 
Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and other federal, state, and local programs. 
This plan is being used by Central Elementary School for meeting the following ESSA planning requirements in alignment 
with the LCAP and other federal, state, and local programs: 
 
 Schoolwide Program        

 
The School-Wide Plan meets the ESSA (Every Student Succeeds Act) requirements through: A comprehensive needs 
assessment of the entire school that includes information on the academic achievement of students in relation to the 
challenging state academic standards, particularly the needs of those students who are failing, or are at risk of failing, to 
meet the challenging state academic standards through evidence-based strategies and actions. Our school implements 
challenging academic standards in reading, math, and science, using state-adopted curriculum that will prepare students 
to succeed in college and career. These standards apply to all students, including those with learning disabilities. State 
assessments are administered annually in ELA, Math, Science, and English Proficiency. Student achievement, progress, 
English language proficiency, discipline rates, and chronic absenteeism are monitored regularly.Throughout the year, 
multiple educational partners discuss available data and share their thoughts on areas for improvement in student 
achievement as well as focused on student groups that are areas of focus. 
 
The site continually analyzes our local data and the California Dashboard during Professional Learning Community 
meetings, District Advisory Committee meetings,  School Site Council Meetings, District Instructional Leadership Team 
meetings, Site Leadership Team meetings, Staff Meetings, Student Leadership Teams, English Learner Advisory 
Counsel (ELAC), and various other forums. Through the process of developing this plan, we carefully aligned with the 
LCAP and with specific actions to meet the needs of our student groups. The current LCAP Plan goals are as follows: 
 
Goal 1:  All students provided CONDITIONS FOR LEARNING leading to college and career readiness. 
 
Goal 2:  Parents, Students, and the community will be ENGAGED to participate collaboratively in the educational 
process. 
 
Goal 3:  All students will make progress towards proficient ACHIEVEMENT of state adopted standards through data 
driven decision making 
 
Central's plan to meet the Every Student Succeeds Act and align with all appropriate agencies includes the following 
focus areas: 
Decrease chronic absenteeism 
Decrease suspension rates 
Strengthen campus culture/student connectedness, to ensure a safe and healthy campus 
Increase ELA Academic Performance 
Increase Math Academic Performance 
 
         

 

Educational Partner Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did Central Elementary School consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual 
Review and Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
Educational Partners are crucial to SPSA development, review, and update. The site engages is students, parents and 
staff individually through surveys and regular conversations. Partners are also involved in the SPSA process through a 
variety of staff, parent, and other partners committees and meetings. The Continuous Cycle of Improvement is the 
framework for these opportunities to share relevant data, analyze with educational partners, and seek input. 
 
 
School Site Council - 10/5/23, 11/3/23, 4/4/24 & 5/3/24 
Indian Education Council - 9/19/23, 10/19/23, 11/16/23, 2/4/24, 3/19/24, & 4/16/24 
Staff Meetings -8/14/23, 9/14/23, 10/26/23, 11/9/23, 12/14/23, 1/25/24 and 4/25/24 
Site Leadership Team Meetings - 8/17/23, 10/19/23, 1/18/24, 2/15/24, & 3/14/24 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 75 Central Elementary School 

P3CC Team Meetings and Convenings - 9/21/23-9/22/23, 10/30/23, 12/4/23,1/22/24, 2/8/24-2/9/24, 3/5/24, 4/18/24, 
5/9/24-5/10/24 & 5/20/24 
After School Program (KCOE) - 9/6/23 and 3/16/24 
         

 

Resource Inequities 
 
Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs assessment, as applicable.  
 This section is required for all schools eligible for ATSI and CSI. 
No resource inequites were identified as a result of the required needs assessment.         

 

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components 
 
Identify and describe any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
 
California School Dashboard (Dashboard) Indicators 
Referring to the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), any state indicator for which overall performance was in the 
“Red” or “Orange” performance category. 
         

 
Referring to the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), any state indicator for which performance for any student group 
was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. 
         

 
Other Needs 
In addition to Dashboard data, other needs may be identified using locally collected data developed by the LEA to measure 
pupil outcomes. 
         

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 75 Central Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
 
This report displays the annual K-12 public school enrollment by student ethnicity and grade level for Central Elementary 
School.  Annual enrollment consists of the number of students enrolled on Census Day (the first Wednesday in October). 
This information was submitted to the CDE as part of the annual Fall 1 data submission in the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS). 
 

Enrollment By Student Group 
 

Student Enrollment by Subgroup 

Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

American Indian     28.5% 28.99% 25.6% 74 80 64 

African American     0.4% % 0.4% 1 0 1 

Asian     % % 0%  0 0 

Filipino     % % 0%  0 0 

Hispanic/Latino     56.5% 58.33% 60% 147 161 150 

Pacific Islander     % % 0%  0 0 

White     6.5% 4.35% 6% 17 12 15 

Multiple/No Response     8.1% 8.33% 8% 21 23 20 

 Total Enrollment 260 276 250 
 

Enrollment By Grade Level 
 

Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Number of Students 
Grade 

20-21 21-22 22-23 

Kindergarten        22 22 23 

Grade 1        24 24 25 

Grade 2        24 31 26 

Grade3        34 28 36 

Grade 4        29 38 26 

Grade 5        39 30 29 

Grade 6        28 39 29 

Grade 7        32 28 31 

Grade 8        28 36 25 

Total Enrollment        260 276 250 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall, student enrollment continues to slightly decline.        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 75 Central Elementary School 

2. Based upon this data, the two dominant populations (Hispanic and American Indian) have not remained consistent.  
The American Indian population is underreported due to Hispanic ethnicity being a primary indicator during 
enrollment.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 75 Central Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

English Learner (EL) Enrollment 
 
This report displays the annual K-12 public school enrollment by English Language Acquisition Status (ELAS).  This 
information was submitted to the CDE as part of the annual Fall 1 data submission in the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS). 
 

English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

English Learners (EL)        17 22 23 6.5% 8.0% 9.2% 

Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        18 19 9 6.9% 6.9% 3.6% 

Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        14 15  0.0% 5.4%  
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The EL enrollment has increased slightly over the last 3 years.        

2. By looking at this data and moving more students into the RFEP category, it is evident that our ELD instructional 
strategies are working        

3. There continues to be an increase in the reclassification rate of the EL population.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 75 Central Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 

 
The Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for ELA and mathematics are an annual measure of what students know 
and can do using the Common Core State Standards for English language arts/literacy and mathematics. 
 
The purpose of the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments is to assess student knowledge and skills for English 
language arts/literacy (ELA) and mathematics, as well as how much students have improved since the previous year. These 
measures help identify and address gaps in knowledge or skills early so students get the support they need for success in 
higher grades and for college and career readiness. 
 
All students in grades three through eight and grade eleven take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments unless a 
student’s active individualized education program (IEP) designates the California Alternate Assessments. 
 
Visit the California Department of Education’s Smarter Balanced Assessment System web page for more information. 

 
Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 

% of Enrolled Students 
Tested Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3 35 30 35 0 29 35 0 29 35 0.0 96.7 100.0 

Grade 4 29 36 26 0 35 26 0 35 26 0.0 97.2 100.0 

Grade 5 41 30 27 0 29 26 0 29 26 0.0 96.7 96.3 

Grade 6 28 38 28 0 36 28 0 36 28 0.0 94.7 100.0 

Grade 7 31 31 30 0 29 30 0 29 30 0.0 93.5 100.0 

Grade 8 30 37 27 0 36 27 0 36 27 0.0 97.3 100.0 

All Grades 194 202 173 0 194 172 0 194 172 0.0 96.0 99.4 
The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 

 
Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded % Standard Met % Standard Nearly 

Met 
% Standard Not 

Met Grade 
Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  2359.

5 
2389.

5 
 10.34 17.14  13.79 17.14  13.79 28.57  62.07 37.14 

Grade 4  2391.
5 

2390.
3 

 5.71 7.69  11.43 11.54  17.14 23.08  65.71 57.69 

Grade 5  2434.
8 

2473.
6 

 6.90 11.54  13.79 30.77  24.14 15.38  55.17 42.31 

Grade 6  2478.
0 

2448.
6 

 0.00 3.57  22.22 17.86  44.44 25.00  33.33 53.57 

Grade 7  2534.
1 

2540.
7 

 10.34 0.00  24.14 43.33  34.48 36.67  31.03 20.00 

Grade 8  2497.
2 

2488.
0 

 2.78 7.41  25.00 14.81  22.22 25.93  50.00 51.85 

All Grades N/A N/A N/A  5.67 8.14  18.56 22.67  26.29 26.16  49.48 43.02 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/sa/index.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  * 17.14  * 60.00  * 22.86 

Grade 4  8.57 *  48.57 *  42.86 * 

Grade 5  * *  * *  * * 

Grade 6  0.00 *  58.33 *  41.67 * 

Grade 7  * 10.00  * 80.00  * 10.00 

Grade 8  8.33 *  44.44 *  47.22 * 

All Grades  6.19 6.98  58.25 63.37  35.57 29.65 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Writing 

Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  * 8.57  * 48.57  * 42.86 

Grade 4  5.71 *  34.29 *  60.00 * 

Grade 5  * *  * *  * * 

Grade 6  2.78 *  55.56 *  41.67 * 

Grade 7  * 13.33  * 70.00  * 16.67 

Grade 8  8.33 *  41.67 *  50.00 * 

All Grades  5.67 9.30  46.39 48.84  47.94 41.86 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Listening 

Demonstrating effective communication skills 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  * 5.71  * 65.71  * 28.57 

Grade 4  11.43 *  68.57 *  20.00 * 

Grade 5  * *  * *  * * 

Grade 6  8.33 *  75.00 *  16.67 * 

Grade 7  * 10.00  * 83.33  * 6.67 

Grade 8  2.78 *  69.44 *  27.78 * 

All Grades  6.70 6.40  70.62 71.51  22.68 22.09 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  * 17.14  * 51.43  * 31.43 

Grade 4  0.00 *  57.14 *  42.86 * 

Grade 5  * *  * *  * * 

Grade 6  8.33 *  77.78 *  13.89 * 

Grade 7  * 13.33  * 66.67  * 20.00 

Grade 8  5.56 *  63.89 *  30.56 * 

All Grades  7.73 10.47  61.86 58.72  30.41 30.81 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Increases were made for all grade levels in the majority of performance indicators in areas tested.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 75 Central Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 

 
The Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for ELA and mathematics are an annual measure of what students know 
and can do using the Common Core State Standards for English language arts/literacy and mathematics. 
 
The purpose of the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments is to assess student knowledge and skills for English 
language arts/literacy (ELA) and mathematics, as well as how much students have improved since the previous year. These 
measures help identify and address gaps in knowledge or skills early so students get the support they need for success in 
higher grades and for college and career readiness. 
 
All students in grades three through eight and grade eleven take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments unless a 
student’s active individualized education program (IEP) designates the California Alternate Assessments. 
 
Visit the California Department of Education’s Smarter Balanced Assessment System web page for more information. 

 

Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 

% of Enrolled Students 
Tested Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3 35 30 35 0 29 35 0 29 35 0.0 96.7 100.0 

Grade 4 29 36 26 0 35 26 0 35 26 0.0 97.2 100.0 

Grade 5 41 30 27 0 29 26 0 29 26 0.0 96.7 96.3 

Grade 6 28 38 28 0 36 28 0 36 28 0.0 94.7 100.0 

Grade 7 31 31 30 0 30 30 0 30 30 0.0 96.8 100.0 

Grade 8 30 37 27 0 37 27 0 37 27 0.0 100.0 100.0 

All Grades 194 202 173 0 196 172 0 196 172 0.0 97.0 99.4 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 

 

Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded % Standard Met % Standard Nearly 

Met 
% Standard Not 

Met Grade 
Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  2400.

1 
2407.

2 
 3.45 22.86  31.03 17.14  20.69 20.00  44.83 40.00 

Grade 4  2426.
2 

2391.
8 

 5.71 0.00  8.57 7.69  37.14 38.46  48.57 53.85 

Grade 5  2422.
9 

2473.
2 

 0.00 0.00  6.90 34.62  20.69 19.23  72.41 46.15 

Grade 6  2470.
9 

2418.
4 

 2.78 0.00  13.89 10.71  41.67 14.29  41.67 75.00 

Grade 7  2430.
7 

2520.
5 

 3.33 10.00  3.33 10.00  20.00 53.33  73.33 26.67 

Grade 8  2473.
4 

2445.
1 

 2.70 0.00  8.11 3.70  29.73 11.11  59.46 85.19 

All Grades N/A N/A N/A  3.06 6.40  11.73 13.95  29.08 26.16  56.12 53.49 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/sa/index.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  * 25.71  * 37.14  * 37.14 

Grade 4  5.71 *  48.57 *  45.71 * 

Grade 5  * *  * *  * * 

Grade 6  2.78 *  44.44 *  52.78 * 

Grade 7  3.33 16.67  23.33 40.00  73.33 43.33 

Grade 8  0.00 *  51.35 *  48.65 * 

All Grades  3.06 9.88  45.92 37.79  51.02 52.33 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 

Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  * 22.86  * 40.00  * 37.14 

Grade 4  2.86 *  51.43 *  45.71 * 

Grade 5  * *  * *  * * 

Grade 6  0.00 *  58.33 *  41.67 * 

Grade 7  0.00 10.00  46.67 73.33  53.33 16.67 

Grade 8  2.70 *  54.05 *  43.24 * 

All Grades  2.04 6.98  53.57 48.84  44.39 44.19 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Communicating Reasoning 

Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  * 14.29  * 60.00  * 25.71 

Grade 4  11.43 *  54.29 *  34.29 * 

Grade 5  * *  * *  * * 

Grade 6  11.11 *  52.78 *  36.11 * 

Grade 7  0.00 10.00  56.67 73.33  43.33 16.67 

Grade 8  5.41 *  67.57 *  27.03 * 

All Grades  7.14 6.40  56.63 57.56  36.22 36.05 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. At this time, there is no data over multi-periods of time that provides a clear conclusion of growth or a decrease in 

any area, however there are some slight improvement areas noted.        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 75 Central Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 
The English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC) system is used to determine and monitor the 
progress of the English language proficiency for students whose primary language is not English. The ELPAC is aligned 
with the 2012 California English Language Development Standards and assesses four domains: listening, speaking, 
reading, and writing. 
 
Visit the California Department of Education’s English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC) web page 
or the ELPAC.org website for more information about the ELPAC. 
 

ELPAC Results 
 

ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 

Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * 4 * 

   1    * * * * * * * * * * * 5 

   2    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   3    * * * * * * * * * 5 * 4 

   4    * * * * * * * * * * 4 * 

   5    * * * * * * * * * 5 * * 

   6    * * * * * * * * * * 4 * 

   7     * *  * *  * *  * 4 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades                 21 24 24 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/ep/
https://www.elpac.org/


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   2    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   3    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   4    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   5    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   6    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   7     * *  * *  * *  * *  * * 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        19.05 16.67 16.67 28.57 20.83 33.33 33.33 33.33 37.50 19.05 29.17 12.50 21 24 24 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Oral Language 

Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   2    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   3    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   4    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   5    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   6    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   7     * *  * *  * *  * *  * * 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        23.81 25.00 37.50 47.62 33.33 37.50 9.52 20.83 12.50 19.05 20.83 12.50 21 24 24 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   2    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   3    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   4    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   5    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   6    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   7     * *  * *  * *  * *  * * 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        4.76 12.50 4.17 19.05 16.67 25.00 47.62 25.00 37.50 28.57 45.83 33.33 21 24 24 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Listening Domain 

Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   2    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   3    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   4    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   5    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   6    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   7     * *  * *  * *  * * 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        19.05 12.50 37.50 66.67 70.83 37.50 14.29 16.67 25.00 21 24 24 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   2    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   3    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   4    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   5    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   6    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   7     * *  * *  * *  * * 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        38.10 33.33 54.17 47.62 50.00 37.50 14.29 16.67 8.33 21 24 24 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Reading Domain 

Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   2    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   3    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   4    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   5    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   6    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   7     * *  * *  * *  * * 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        4.76 12.50 4.17 61.90 33.33 54.17 33.33 54.17 41.67 21 24 24 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   2    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   3    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   4    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   5    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   6    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   7     * *  * *  * *  * * 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        14.29 16.67 4.17 52.38 54.17 79.17 33.33 29.17 16.67 21 24 24 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Because of the small population of English Learners, summative data in this area does not provide adequate 

information        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 75 Central Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

California School Dashboard 
Student Population 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 

2022-23 Student Population 

Total 
Enrollment 

250         
Total Number of Students enrolled 
in Central Elementary School. 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 

61.2         
Students who are eligible for free 
or reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 

English  
Learners 

9.2         
Students who are learning to 
communicate effectively in 
English, typically requiring 
instruction in both the English 
Language and in their academic 
courses. 

Foster 
Youth 

2.8         
Students whose well being is the 
responsibility of a court. 

 
2022-23 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 

Student Group Total Percentage 

English Learners         23 9.2 

Foster Youth         7 2.8 

Homeless         1 0.4 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         153 61.2 

Students with Disabilities         29 11.6 
 

Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 

Student Group Total Percentage 

African American        1 0.4 

American Indian        64 25.6 

Hispanic        150 60 

Two or More Races        20 8 

White        15 6 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. One student was identified as homeless on this campus during the 22/23 school year.         

2. A total of 61.2% of students are Socioeconomically disadvantaged which is a slight decease from the previous 
school year (62.7%).         



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 75 Central Elementary School 

3. A total of 11.6% of students have been identified as students with disabilities which is a slight increase from 11.2% 
from the 21/22 school year.         

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 75 Central Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Overall Performance 
 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 

2023 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 

Academic Performance 

English Language Arts 

 
Yellow        

Mathematics 

 
Yellow        

Academic Engagement 

Chronic Absenteeism 

 
Yellow        

Conditions & Climate 

Suspension Rate 

 
Yellow        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Due to the small population of English Learners, no performance color has been assigned.        

2. Performance indicators in chronic absenteeism and suspension rates decreased from Very High for all students in 
the 21/22 school year to Medium or Yellow results in both areas.        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 75 Central Elementary School 

3. Performance indicators improved to a Yellow for the 22/23 school year from Low levels the previous year in the 
areas of ELA and Math for all students tested.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 75 Central Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 

Red        
0        

Orange        
0        

Yellow        
3        

Green        
0        

Blue        
0        

 
This section provides a view of how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts 
assessment. This measure is based on student performance on either the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment or 
the California Alternate Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and grade 11. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Yellow         

52 points below standard         

Increased +6.6 points         

164 Students        

English Learners 
81.2 points below standard         

Decreased Significantly -30.4 points         

15 Students        

Foster Youth 
Less than 11 Students          

6 Students        

Homeless 
Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Yellow         

49.6 points below standard         

Increased +10.8 points         

108 Students        

Students with Disabilities 
98.8 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +25.7 points         

25 Students        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 75 Central Elementary School 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

American Indian 

 
Yellow         

66.5 points below standard         

Increased +10.9 points         

38 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Yellow         

44.6 points below standard         

Increased +7.8 points         

98 Students        

Two or More Races 

76.4 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +26.6 
points         

14 Students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

White     

32.7 points below standard         

13 Students        

 
This section provides additional information on distance from standard for current English learners, prior or Reclassified 
English learners, and English Only students in English Language Arts. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

103.1 points below standard         

Decreased Significantly -48.1 points         

12 Students        

Reclassified English Learners 

Less than 11 Students          

3 Students        

English Only 

51.8 points below standard         

Increased +10.9 points         

143 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. A total of 164 students who tested in 2023 scored within the "Yellow" indicator level.  This is a 6.6 point increase from 

the previous year and movement from a "Low" to a "Medium" level.        
2. American Indian students moved from an indicator of "Very Low or Red" for the 2022 school year to a "Medium or 

Yellow" for the 2023 school year as they increased by 10.9 points.        
3. Hispanic students moved from an indicator of  "Low or Orange" for the 2022 school year to a "Medium or Yellow or" 

for the 2023 school year as they increased by 7.8 points.        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 75 Central Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
Mathematics 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 

Red        
0        

Orange        
0        

Yellow        
3        

Green        
0        

Blue        
0        

 
This section provides a view of how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This 
measure is based on student performance either on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment or the California 
Alternate Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and grade 11. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Yellow         

76.8 points below standard         

Increased +8.7 points         

164 Students        

English Learners 
79.7 points below standard         

Increased +4 points         

15 Students        

Foster Youth 
Less than 11 Students          

6 Students        

Homeless 
Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Yellow         

70.7 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +21.6 points         

108 Students        

Students with Disabilities 
133.9 points below standard         

Increased +3.2 points         

25 Students        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 75 Central Elementary School 

2023 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

American Indian 

 
Yellow         

89.4 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +21.3 
points         

38 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Yellow         

71.9 points below standard         

Increased +6 points         

98 Students        

Two or More Races 

85.6 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +16.6 
points         

14 Students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

White     

53.9 points below standard         

13 Students        

 
This section provides additional information on distance from standard for current English learners, prior or Reclassified 
English learners, and English Only students in mathematics 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

82.5 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +18.8 points         

12 Students        

Reclassified English Learners 

Less than 11 Students          

3 Students        

English Only 

78.5 points below standard         

Increased +9.9 points         

143 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. A total of 164 students who tested in 2023 scored within the "Yellow" indicator level.  This is a 8.7 point increase from 

the previous year and movement from a "Low" to a "Medium or Yellow" level.        
2. American Indian students moved from an indicator of "Very Low or Red" for the 2022 school year to a "Medium or 

Yellow" for the 2023 school year as they increased by 21.3 points.        
3. Socioeconomically disadvantaged students moved from an indicator of "Low or Orange" for the 2022 school year to 

a "Medium or Yellow" for the 2023 school year as they increased by 21.6 points.        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 75 Central Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 

 English Learner Progress 

60.9 points above standard making 
progress towards English language 

proficiency          
Number of EL Students: 23 Students          
Performance Level: No Performance 

Level        

 

 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 

Decreased  
One ELPI Level 

5         

Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 

4         

Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 

1         

Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 

13         

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. There was an increase of EL students over the past year.  Current total is 23 and up from 17 students.        

2. The 23 students scored 60.9 points above standard and progress toward English language proficiency        

3. Due to the small population, there is no performance level assigned to this group.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 75 Central Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
College/Career Report 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 
This section provided information on the percentage of high school graduates who are placed in the "Prepared" level on the 
College/Career Indicator. 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard College/Career Equity Report 

Very High        High        Medium        Low        Very Low        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard College/Career Report for All Students/Student Group 

All Students English Learners Foster Youth 

Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard College/Career Reportby Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 

Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 

 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 75 Central Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 

Red        
0        

Orange        
1        

Yellow        
3        

Green        
0        

Blue        
0        

 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Yellow         

17.2% Chronically Absent         

Declined Significantly -46.6         

261 Students        

English Learners 
14.3% Chronically Absent         

Declined -49.7         

28 Students        

Foster Youth 
7.1% Chronically Absent         

Declined -40.2         

14 Students        

Homeless 
Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Yellow         

19.2% Chronically Absent         

Declined Significantly -44.6         

167 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Orange         

20.6% Chronically Absent         

Declined -59.4         

34 Students        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 75 Central Elementary School 

2023 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

American Indian 

 
Yellow         

13.2% Chronically Absent         

Declined -59.6         

68 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Yellow         

22.9% Chronically Absent         

Declined Significantly -42.1         

157 Students        

Two or More Races 

0% Chronically Absent         

Declined -52.2         

20 Students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

White     

0% Chronically Absent         

Declined -29.4         

15 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. A total of 34 Students with Disabilities accounted for a "Orange or Low" indicator score in the area of Chronic 

Absenteeism for the 2022/23 school year. An improvement from a "Very High or Red" from the 21/22 school year. 
This is a 20.6% decline of chronic absenteeism for Students with Disabilities population who have improved their 
attendance.        

2. A total of 157 Hispanic students accounted for a "Yellow or Medium" indicator score in the area of Chronic 
Absenteeism for the 2022/23 school year. An improvement from a "Very High or Red" from the 21/22 school year. 
This is a 22.9.% decline of chronic absenteeism for the Hispanic student population who have improved their 
attendance.        

3. A total of 68 American Indian students accounted for a "Yellow or Medium" indicator score in the area of Chronic 
Absenteeism for the 2022/23 school year. An improvement from a "Very High or Red" from the 21/22 school year. 
This is a 13.2% decline of chronic absenteeism for the American Indian student population who have improved their 
attendance.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 75 Central Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 

Red        Orange        Yellow        Green        Blue        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma. 
 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students English Learners Foster Youth 

Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 

Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 

 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 75 Central Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 

Red        
0        

Orange        
0        

Yellow        
3        

Green        
1        

Blue        
0        

 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Yellow         

6.4% suspended at least one day         

Declined Significantly -2.3         
264 Students        

English Learners 
3.6% suspended at least one day         

Declined -0.3         
28 Students        

Foster Youth 
6.7% suspended at least one day         

Declined -19.6         
15 Students        

Homeless 
Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Yellow         

5.9% suspended at least one day         

Declined Significantly -5.2         
170 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Green         

2.9% suspended at least one day         

Declined -2.8         
34 Students        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 75 Central Elementary School 

2023 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

Less than 11 Students          
1 Student        

American Indian 

 
Yellow         

5.7% suspended at least one 
day         

Declined -5.3         
70 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Yellow         

7% suspended at least one 
day         

Declined Significantly -1.1         
157 Students        

Two or More Races 

4.8% suspended at least one 
day         

Declined -8.3         
21 Students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

White     

6.7% suspended at least one 
day         

Increased 6.7         
15 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. American Indian, Hispanic and Socio-economic disadvantaged populations indicated decreases in suspension rates 

for the 22/23 school year. Indicators reported the following declines in 22/23: American Indian a 5.3%, Hispanic 1.1%, 
and SES 5.2%. All indicators moved from a "Very High or Red" suspension rate in 21/22 to a "Medium or Yellow" 
suspension rate in 22/23.        

2. Students with Disabilities demonstrated a "High or Orange" suspension rate in the 21/22 school year and have moved 
to a "Medium or Yellow" during the 22/23 school year. 
 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 1 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
Continue to provide all students with the CONDITIONS FOR LEARNING (broad educational program, qualified staff, 
standards aligned instructional materials, and well maintained facilities) due to no identified need. 
 
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
Overarching LCAP GOAL #1: 
All Students will be provided the CONDITIONS FOR LEARNING leading to college and career readiness. They will 
receive a broad educational program delivered by qualified staff using standards aligned instructional materials in 
facilities which are well maintained. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
No need identified at this time. 
 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   

1A Teachers appropriately assigned & 
fully credentialed 
 
1B Pupil Access to standards-aligned 
Instructional Materials 
 
1C Facilities maintained in good repair 
        

1A Teachers - Goal Met 
100% Teachers appropriately assigned 
100% Teachers fully credentialed. 
(2023 SARC) 
 
1B Instructional Materials 
Instructional Materials 100% 
(Sufficiency of Materials Fall 2023) 
 
1C Facilities - Goal Met 
Exemplary 
(FIT Tool Fall 2023) 
 

1A Teachers appropriately assigned & 
fully credentialed. 
100% Teachers appropriately assigned 
100% Teachers fully credentialed 
 
1B Instructional Materials 
Instructional Materials 100% 
 
1C Facilities 
Facilities Good or Better 
 

2A Implementation of SBE adopted 
content and performance standards 
Pending Tool from Cindee 
        

  

2B Programs/Services enable ELs to 
access CA and ELD  Standards        

100% ELs access and enrollment in 
courses aligned to CA State 
Standards. 

100% ELs access and enrollment in 
courses aligned to CA State 
Standards. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 75 Central Elementary School 

 
100% ELs access and enrollment in 
ELD. 
(Master Schedule) 
 

 
100% ELs access and enrollment in 
ELD. 
(Master Schedule) 
 

7A Broad Course of study        100% Students have access to ELA, 
Math, Science, HSS, Physical 
Education/Health and Integrated Visual 
and Performing Arts 
100% ELD for ELs 
(Master Schedule) 
 

100% Students have access to ELA, 
Math, Science, HSS, Physical 
Education/Health and Integrated Visual 
and Performing Arts 
100% ELD for ELs 
(Master Schedule) 
 

7B Programs/Services Unduplicated 
Students        

100% Unduplicated Students have 
access to ELA, Math, Science, HSS, 
Physical Education/Health and 
Integrated Visual and Performing Arts 
100% ELD for ELs 
(Master Schedule) 
 

100% Unduplicated Students have 
access to ELA, Math, Science, HSS, 
Physical Education/Health and 
Integrated Visual and Performing Arts 
100% ELD for ELs 
(Master Schedule) 
 

7C Programs/Services Students with 
exceptional needs        

100% Students with exceptional needs 
have access to ELA, Math, Science, 
HSS, Physical Education/Health and 
Integrated Visual and Performing Arts 
100% ELD for ELs 
(Master Schedule) 
 

100% Students with exceptional needs 
have access to ELA, Math, Science, 
HSS, Physical Education/Health and 
Integrated Visual and Performing Arts 
100% ELD for ELs 
(Master Schedule) 
 

 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

1.1 Regular facility walks with site head custodian to 
identify and rectify identified needs. (as evidenced 
by metric 1C)        

All Students 0 
None Specified 
 
        

1.2 Monitor the use of State Adopted materials and 
implementation of State Standards through regular 
classroom walkthroughs and ongoing 
conversations with staff. (as evidenced by metric 
2A)        

All Students 0 
None Specified 
 
        

1.3 Develop Master Schedule which provides access 
to all students and ensure that all students are 
enrolled in appropriate courses of study through 
regular monitoring. (as evidenced by metrics 7A, 
7B, and 7C)        

All Students 0 
None Specified 
 
        
 
None Specified 
 
        

1.4           
None Specified 
 
        

1.5           
LCFF 
 
        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 75 Central Elementary School 

1.6           
LCFF 
 
        

1.7           
None Specified 
 
        
 
None Specified 
 
        

1.8           
None Specified 
 
        

1.9           
None Specified 
 
        

1.10           
None Specified 
 
        

1.11           
None Specified 
 
        

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Regular facility walks with site head custodian to identify and rectify identified needs continue take place and assist in 
maintaining the site's ability to meet all Williams Review requirements        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 2 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
Central Elementary will reduce the Chronic Absenteeism Rate of Native American Students to 13% and Students with 
Disabilities to 17% as measured by the 2023 CA Schools Dashboard. 
 
Central Elementary will reduce the Suspension Rate of Native American Students to 7% and Students with Disabilities to 
5% as measured by the 2023 CA Schools Dashboard. 
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
Overarching LCAP Goal #2: 
Parents, Students, and the community will be ENGAGED to participate collaboratively in the educational process. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
Although the 2023 CA Schools Dashboard data demonstrated improvement in the areas of Chronic Absenteeism and 
Suspension Rates for Native American students and Students With Disabilities, continued effort needs to be made to 
decrease the trend for these specific populations. 
 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   

5A School Attendance Rates        94.0% 
Spring 2023 P2 Data 
 

96.5% 
Spring 2024 P2 Data 
 

5B Chronic Absenteeism 
 
5C Site Attendance Plan 
        

CA Schools Dashboard 2023 
Chronic Absenteeism Indicator 
All Students 
Yellow -  17.2% 
 
American Indian 
13.2% 
 
SWD 
20.6% 
 
Hispanic 
22.9% 
 

CA Schools Dashboard 2024 
Chronic Absenteeism Rate Indicator 
All Students 
12.5% 
 
American Indian 
10% 
 
SWD 
15% 
 
Hispanic 
15% 
 

6A Pupil Suspension        CA Schools Dashboard 2023 CA Schools Dashboard 2024 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Suspension Rate Indicator 
All Students 
Yellow 6.4% 
 
American Indian 
5.7% 
 
SWD 
2.9% 
 

Suspension Rate Indicator 
All Students 
5% 
 
American Indian 
3.5% 
 
SWD 
2.5% 
 

6B Local Measures – Sense of Safety 
and School Connectedness 
 
        

Local data Winter 2023 (Panorama) 
Sense of Safety 54% 
 
School Belonging/Connectedness 66% 
 
 

Local data Winter 2024 (Panorama) 
Sense of Safety 60% 
 
School Belonging/Connectedness 70% 
 
 

 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

2.1 Continue to utilize site attendance plan to address 
attendance concerns through tiered levels systems 
of intervention and support for all students. (as 
evidenced by metric 5C)        

All Students 0 
General Fund/ attendance 
incentives 
 
        

2.2 Utilize school wide expectations for student 
behavior and conduct to help guide disciplinary and 
corrective measures for student behaviors.        

All Students  
None Specified 
 
        

2.3 Develop and enhance activities to assist in 
reaching out to students experiencing 
academic/social issues that are barriers to fully 
engaging in the school setting.        

American Indian 
Students 

60,000 
Other 
 
        

2.4 Continue to utilize support staff personnel 
(Counselor, Psychologist, LMFT, Tribal Social 
Services, After School Program, and Santa Rosa 
Rancheria Education Dept. and Recreation Dept. 
as support systems for student engagement and 
learning.        

All Students  
None Specified 
 
        

2.5 Parent Engagement Activities and Parent Teacher 
Club to support parental involvement - National 
Parent Involvement Day and Family Academic 
Walkthroughs in the Fall and Spring, Morning 
Events - Grandparents Day, Muffins and Moms, 
Donuts and Dads, etc., Family Literacy Night - 
Parents, Phonics and Pizza        

All Grade Levels  
None Specified 
 
        

2.6           
None Specified 
 
        

2.7           
None Specified 
 
        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 75 Central Elementary School 

2.8           
None Specified 
 
        

2.9           
None Specified 
 
        

2.10           
None Specified 
 
        

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
School safety was made the greatest increase as students responded more favorably about their sense of safety while 
at school.        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
There was no significant change or difference from year to year impacting these outcomes.        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
There will be a continued effort made and exploration of services and resources to address the changing needs of 
students to feel connected and safe at school.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 3 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
Central Elementary will aim to close the gap in ELA and Math.  
 

• Decrease All Students ELA from 52 points below standard to 42 points below standard using evidence based 
curriculum as measured by the 2024 Dashboard ELA Indicator. 

• Decrease All Students Math from 76.8 points below standard to 65 points below standard using evidence 
based curriculum as measured by the 2024 Dashboard Math Indicator. 

 
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
Overarching LCAP Goal #3: 
All students will make progress towards proficient ACHIEVEMENT of state adopted standards through data driven 
decision making. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
Based on 2022 CA Schools Dashboard, all students are low in both ELA and Math. American Indian (AI) students and 
Students with Disabilities (SWD) are Very Low in both ELA and Math.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   

4A Statewide Assessments 
English Language Arts 
        

CA Schools Dashboard 2023 
Academic Performance indicator: ELA 
All Students 
52 points below standard 
 
 
Native American Students 
66.5 points below standard 
 
Students w/Disabilities 
98.8 points below standard 
 
 

CA Schools Dashboard 2024 
Academic Performance Indicator: ELA 
ALL Students 
42 points below standard 
 
 
Native American Students 
55 points below standard 
 
Students w/Disabilities 
85 points below standard 
 
 

4A Statewide Assessments 
Mathematics 
        

CA Schools Dashboard 2023 
Academic Performance indicator Math 
All Students 
76.8 points below standard 
 
Native American Students 

CA Schools Dashboard 2024 
Academic Performance Indicator: Math 
ALL Students 
65 Points below Standard 
 
Native American Students 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 75 Central Elementary School 

89.4 points below standard 
 
Students w/Disabilities 
133.9 points below standard 
 
 
 

70 points below standard 
 
Students w/Disabilities 
125 points below standard 
 
 
 

Pupil Outcomes        Learning in Broad Course of Study 
 
 
ELA 99% 
Math 100% 
Science 100% 
Social Studies 100% 
PE/Health 100% 
Arts 100% 
(Visual/Performing) 
ELD for ELs 100% 
(T2 Data) 
 
At least 1 Performance or Exhibit 
including Visual and/or Performing Arts 
 

Learning in Broad Course of Study 
 
 
ELA 100% 
Math 100% 
Science 100% 
Social Studies 100% 
PE/Health 100% 
Arts 100% 
(Visual/Performing) 
ELD for ELs 100% 
 
At least 1 Performance or Exhibit 
including Visual and/or Performing Arts 
 

 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

3.1 Continue to deliver a broad course of study for all 
students.        

All Students 0 
None Specified 
 
        

3.2 Students will receive differentiated instruction 
based on students' strengths and needs aligned to 
rigorous grade level State Standards. Use of 
current assessments show students are making 
steady academic progress (Lexia, Accelerated 
Reading, Wonders, BPST's, Frys Word List, ESGI, 
IReady)        

All Students 0 
None Specified 
 
        

3.3 Students will participate in tiered intervention 
services to increase skills and proficiency of grade 
level standards in Math and ELA.  Intervention 
groups focusing on listening and speaking 
standards are offered to support student learning.        

All Students 0 
None Specified 
 
        

3.4 Continue to make progress towards English 
Language development, proficiency and increase 
the Reclassification rate.        

All EL students 0 
None Specified 
 
        

3.5 Staff will continue to focus on data that drives and 
develops school wide tiered levels of intervention 
(i.e. deployment and ongoing cycles of 
assessment) that aim toward improvement for 
understanding essential standards and learning 
targets.        

All Students  
None Specified 
 
        

3.6           
None Specified 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 75 Central Elementary School 

 
        

3.7           
None Specified 
 
        

3.8           
None Specified 
 
        

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Overall, students made improvements in both ELA and Math as they demonstrated increases of 6.6 and 8.7 points in 
both areas.        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
There will be a continuance of current services with the allotted budget for the 24-25 school year.        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
No changes.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 4 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

4.1           
None Specified 
 
(Parent Involvement)        
 
None Specified 
 
        

4.2           
None Specified 
 
        

4.3           
None Specified 
 
        

4.4           
None Specified 
 
        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 75 Central Elementary School 

4.5           
None Specified 
 
        

4.6           
None Specified 
 
        

4.7           
None Specified 
 
        

4.8           
None Specified 
 
        

4.9           
None Specified 
 
        

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 5 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

5.1           
None Specified 
 
        

5.2           
None Specified 
 
        

5.3           
None Specified 
 
        

5.4           
None Specified 
 
        

5.5           
None Specified 
 
        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 75 Central Elementary School 

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 6 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
 
 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

6.1           
None Specified 
 
        

6.2           
None Specified 
 
        

6.3           
None Specified 
 
        

6.4           
None Specified 
 
        

6.5           
None Specified 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 75 Central Elementary School 

 
Teachers will be making a 
focused effort to increase the 
EL students’ exposure to print 
and language. Ongoing.        

6.6           
None Specified 
 
        

6.7           
None Specified 
 
        

6.8           
None Specified 
 
        

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 7 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

7.1           
None Specified 
 
        

7.2           
None Specified 
 
        

7.3           
None Specified 
 
        

7.4           
None Specified 
 
        

7.5           
None Specified 
 
        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 75 Central Elementary School 

7.6           
None Specified 
 
        

7.7           
None Specified 
 
        

7.8           
None Specified 
 
        

7.9           
None Specified 
 
        

7.10           
None Specified 
 
        

7.11           
None Specified 
 
        

7.12           
None Specified 
 
        

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 8 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 75 Central Elementary School 

        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 9 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 75 Central Elementary School 

        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 10 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 57 of 75 Central Elementary School 

        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 58 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Budget Summary 
 
Complete the Budget Summary Table below. Schools may include additional information, and adjust the table as needed. 
The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the Consolidated Application (ConApp). 
 
Budget Summary 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application $0 

Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA $60,000.00 

Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI $0 
 
Other Federal, State, and Local Funds 
 
List the additional Federal programs that the school includes in the schoolwide program. Adjust the table as needed.  
 
Note: If the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program, this section is not applicable and may be 
deleted. 
 

Federal Programs Allocation ($) 

startcollapse  
 
Subtotal of additional federal funds included for this school: $ 
 
List the State and local programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Duplicate the table as needed. 

State or Local Programs Allocation ($) 

startcollapse  

General Fund/ attendance incentives       $0.00 

None Specified       $0.00 

Other       $60,000.00 
 
Subtotal of state or local funds included for this school: $60,000.00 
 
Total of federal, state, and/or local funds for this school: $60,000.00 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 59 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan 
 
The tables below are provided to help the school track expenditures as they relate to funds budgeted to the school. 
 

Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 

Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Funding Source  Amount 

General Fund/ attendance incentives         0.00 

None Specified         0.00 

Other         60,000.00 
 

Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 

Budget Reference  Amount 
 

Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 

         General Fund/ attendance incentives  0.00 

         None Specified  0.00 

         Other  60,000.00 

 
Expenditures by Goal 
 
startcollapse 

Goal Number  Total Expenditures 

Goal 1  0.00 

Goal 2  60,000.00 

Goal 3  0.00 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 60 of 75 Central Elementary School 

School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
3 Classroom Teachers        

1 Other School Staff        

5 Parent or Community Members        
 
startcollapse 

Name of Members  Role 

Anne Gonzales         X Principal        

Alyssa Camara         X Classroom Teacher        

Nicole Rocha         X Classroom Teacher        

Stephanie Billingsley         X Classroom Teacher        

Martha Maciel         X Other School Staff        

Kim Hernandez         X Parent or Community Member        

Kristene Kinder         X Parent or Community Member        

Vanessa Varela         X Parent or Community Member        

Esperanza Ortiz         X Parent or Community Member        

Yanet Vargas         X Parent or Community Member        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 61 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 

Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 

 

X English Learner Advisory Committee        

 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on . 
 
Attested: 

 

 Principal, Anne Gonzales on 5/3/2024 

 

 SSC Chairperson, Esperanza Ortiz on 5/3/24 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 62 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Instructions 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a strategic plan that maximizes the resources 
available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing student 
achievement. SPSA development should be aligned with and inform the Local Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP) process.  
 
This SPSA template consolidates all school-level planning efforts into one plan for programs funded 
through the Consolidated Application (ConApp) pursuant to California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) as amended by the Every Student 
Succeeds Act (ESSA). This template is designed to meet schoolwide program planning requirements.  
 
California’s ESSA State Plan supports the state’s approach to improving student group performance 
through the utilization of federal resources. Schools use the SPSA to document their approach to 
maximizing the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. The implementation of 
ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded programs 
and align them with the priority goals of the school and the local educational agency (LEA) that are being 
realized under the state’s Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF).  
 
The LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the 
needs of students in order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA 
planning process supports continuous cycles of action, reflection, and improvement. Consistent with EC 
64001(g)(1), the Schoolsite Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish 
an annual budget, and make modifications to the plan that reflect changing needs and priorities, as 
applicable. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 63 of 75 Central Elementary School 

 
For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below. 
 
Instructions: Table of Contents 
 

• Plan Description  
• Educational Partner Involvement 
• Comprehensive Needs Assessment 
• Goals, Strategies/Activities, and Expenditures 
• Annual Review 
• Budget Summary 
• Appendix A: Plan Requirements for Title I Schoolwide Programs 
• Appendix B: Select State and Federal Programs 

 
For additional questions or technical assistance related to LEA and school planning, please contact the 
CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office, at LCFF@cde.ca.gov.  
For programmatic or policy questions regarding Title I schoolwide planning, please contact the LEA, or 
the CDE’s Title I Policy and Program Guidance Office at TITLEI@cde.ca.gov. 
 
Plan Description 
Briefly describe the school’s plan to effectively meet the ESSA requirements in alignment with the LCAP 
and other federal, state, and local programs. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements:  
Schools eligible for CSI must briefly describe the purpose of this plan by stating that this plan will be used 
to meet federal CSI planning requirements. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements:  
Schools eligible for ATSI must briefly describe the purpose of this plan by stating that this plan will be 
used to meet federal ATSI planning requirements.   
 
 
Educational Partner Involvement 
Meaningful involvement of parents, students, and other stakeholders is critical to the development of the 
SPSA and the budget process. Within California, these stakeholders are referred to as educational 
partners. Schools must share the SPSA with school site-level advisory groups, as applicable (e.g., 
English Learner Advisory committee, student advisory groups, tribes and tribal organizations present in 
the community, as appropriate, etc.) and seek input from these advisory groups in the development of the 
SPSA.  
 
The Educational Partner Engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. Describe the process used 
to involve advisory committees, parents, students, school faculty and staff, and the community in the 
development of the SPSA and the annual review and update. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements:  
When completing this section for CSI, the LEA must partner with the school and its educational partners 
in the development and implementation of this plan. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements:  
This section meets the requirements for ATSI. 
 
 
Resource Inequities 

mailto:LCFF@cde.ca.gov
mailto:TITLEI@cde.ca.gov


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 64 of 75 Central Elementary School 

This section is required for all schools eligible for ATSI and CSI.  
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements:  

• Schools eligible for CSI must identify resource inequities, which may include a review of 
LEA- and school-level budgeting as a part of the required school-level needs 
assessment. 

• Identified resource inequities must be addressed through implementation of the CSI 
plan. 

• Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required 
school-level needs assessment and summarize how the identified resource inequities 
are addressed in the SPSA. 

 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements:  

• Schools eligible for ATSI must identify resource inequities, which may include a review 
of LEA- and school-level budgeting as a part of the required school-level needs 
assessment.   

• Identified resource inequities must be addressed through implementation of the ATSI plan.  
• Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required 

school-level needs assessment and summarize how the identified resource inequities 
are addressed in the SPSA. 

 
Comprehensive Needs Assessment 
Referring to the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), identify: (a) any state indicator for which 
overall performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category AND (b) any state indicator for 
which performance for any student group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” 
performance. In addition to Dashboard data, other needs may be identified using locally collected data 
developed by the LEA to measure pupil outcomes.  
 
SWP Planning Requirements:  
When completing this section for SWP, the school shall describe the steps it is planning to take to 
address these areas of low performance and performance gaps to improve student outcomes. 
 
Completing this section fully addresses all SWP relevant federal planning requirements. 
 
CSI Planning Requirements:  
When completing this section for CSI, the LEA shall describe the steps the LEA will take to address the 
areas of low performance, low graduation rate, and/or performance gaps for the school to improve 
student outcomes. 
 
Completing this section fully addresses all relevant federal planning requirements for CSI. 
 
ATSI Planning Requirements:  
Completing this section fully addresses all relevant federal planning requirements for ATSI. 
 
Goals, Strategies/Activities, and Expenditures 
In this section, a school provides a description of the annual goals to be achieved by the school. This 
section also includes descriptions of the specific planned strategies/activities a school will take to meet 
the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific strategies 
and activities. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 
When completing this section to meet federal planning requirements for CSI, improvement goals must 
also align with the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 65 of 75 Central Elementary School 

 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
When completing this section to meet federal planning requirements for ATSI, improvement goals must 
also align with the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP. 
 
Goal 
Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to educational partners what the school plans to 
accomplish, what the school plans to do in order to accomplish the goal, and how the school will know 
when it has accomplished the goal. A goal should be specific enough to be measurable in either 
quantitative or qualitative terms. Schools should assess the performance of their student groups when 
developing goals and the related strategies/activities to achieve such goals. SPSA goals should align to 
the goals and actions in the LEA’s LCAP. 
 
A goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
A goal answers the question: What is the school seeking to achieve? 
 
It can be helpful to use a framework for writing goals such the S.M.A.R.T. approach.  
A S.M.A.R.T. goal is:  
 

• Specific,  
• Measurable,  
• Achievable,  
• Realistic, and  
• Time-bound.  

 
A level of specificity is needed in order to measure performance relative to the goal as well as to assess 
whether it is reasonably achievable. Including time constraints, such as milestone dates, ensures a 
realistic approach that supports student success.  
A school may number the goals using the “Goal #” for ease of reference.  
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal CSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal ATSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Identified Need  
Describe the basis for establishing the goal. The goal should be based upon an analysis of verifiable state 
data, including local and state indicator data from the Dashboard and data from the School Accountability 
Report Card, including local data voluntarily collected by districts to measure pupil achievement.  
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal CSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal ATSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that the school will use as a means of evaluating progress 
toward accomplishing the goal. A school may identify metrics for specific student groups. Include in the 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 66 of 75 Central Elementary School 

baseline column the most recent data associated with the metric or indicator available at the time of 
adoption of the SPSA. The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator includes data reported 
in the annual update of the SPSA. In the subsequent Expected Outcome column, identify the progress 
the school intends to make in the coming year. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 
When completing this section for CSI, the school must include school-level metrics related to the metrics 
that led to the school’s eligibility for CSI. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal ATSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Strategies/Activities Table 
Describe the strategies and activities being provided to meet the goal.  
Complete the table as follows: 
 

• Strategy/Activity #: Number the strategy/activity using the “Strategy/Activity #” for ease of 
reference. 

• Description: Describe the strategy/activity.  
• Students to be Served: Identify in the Strategy/Activity Table either All Students or one 

or more specific student groups that will benefit from the strategies and activities. ESSA 
Section 1111(c)(2) requires the schoolwide plan to identify either “All Students” or one or 
more specific student groups, including socioeconomically disadvantaged students, 
students from major racial and ethnic groups, students with disabilities, and English 
learners. 

• Proposed Expenditures: List the amount(s) for the proposed expenditures. 
Proposed expenditures that are included more than once in a SPSA should be indicated as a 
duplicated expenditure and include a reference to the goal and strategy/activity where the 
expenditure first appears in the SPSA. Pursuant to EC Section 64001(g)(3)(C), proposed 
expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the governing board or governing 
body of the LEA, to address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the state 
priorities including identifying resource inequities which may include a review of the LEA’s 
budgeting, its LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable. 

• Funding Sources: List the funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal, identify the Title and Part, 
as applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 

 
Planned strategies/activities address the findings of the comprehensive needs assessment consistent 
with state priorities and resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of the LEA’s 
budgeting, its LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 

• When completing this section for CSI, this plan must include evidence-based interventions and 
align to the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP.  

• When completing this section for CSI, this plan must address through implementation, identified 
resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of LEA- and school-level 
budgeting.  

Note: Federal school improvement funds for CSI shall not be used in schools identified for TSI or ATSI. In 
addition, funds for CSI shall not be used to hire additional permanent staff. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 

• When completing this section for ATSI, this plan must include evidence-based interventions and 
align with the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP.  



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 67 of 75 Central Elementary School 

• When completing this section for ATSI, this plan must address through implementation, identified 
resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of LEA- and school-level 
budgeting.  

• When completing this section for ATSI, at a minimum, the student groups to be served shall 
include the student groups that are consistently underperforming, for which the school received 
the ATSI designation. 

 
Note: Federal school improvement funds for CSI shall not be used in schools identified for ATSI.  Schools 
eligible for ATSI do not receive funding but are required to include evidence-based interventions and align 
with the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP. 
 
Annual Review 
In the following Goal Analysis prompts, identify any material differences between what was planned and 
what actually occurred as well as significant changes in strategies/activities and/or expenditures from the 
prior year. This annual review and analysis should be the basis for decision-making and updates to the 
plan.  
 
Goal Analysis 
Using actual outcome data, including state indicator data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the 
planned strategies/activities were effective in achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as instructed. 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal.  
 

● Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the 
articulated goal.  

● Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or material 
difference between the budgeted expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the 
articulated goal. 

● Describe any changes that will be made to the goal, expected annual measurable outcomes, 
metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard, as applicable. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 

 
Note: If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, the Annual Review section is not required 
and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 

• When completing this section for CSI, any changes made to the goals, annual measurable 
outcomes, metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities, shall meet the federal CSI planning 
requirements.   

• CSI planning requirements are listed under each section of the Instructions. For example, as a 
result of the Annual Review and Update, if changes are made to a goal(s), see the Goal section 
for CSI planning requirements. 

 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 

• When completing this section for ATSI, any changes made to the goals, annual measurable 
outcomes, metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities, shall meet the federal ATSI planning 
requirements.   

• ATSI planning requirements are listed under each section of the Instructions. For example, as a 
result of the Annual Review and Update, if changes are made to a goal(s), see the Goal section 
for ATSI planning requirements. 

 
 
Budget Summary 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 68 of 75 Central Elementary School 

In this section, a school provides a brief summary of the funding allocated to the school through the 
ConApp and/or other funding sources as well as the total amount of funds for proposed expenditures 
described in the SPSA. The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. 
 
Note: If the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program, this section is not applicable and may be 
deleted. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 

• From its total allocation for CSI, the LEA may distribute funds across its schools that are 
eligible for CSI to support implementation of this plan. In addition, the LEA may retain a 
portion of its total allocation to support LEA-level expenditures that are directly related to 
serving schools eligible for CSI. 

Note: CSI funds may not be expended at or on behalf of schools not eligible for CSI. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
Note: Federal funds for CSI shall not be used in schools eligible for ATSI. 
 
Budget Summary Table 
A school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp should complete the Budget Summary Table as 
follows: 

● Total Funds Provided to the School Through the ConApp: This amount is the total amount of 
funding provided to the school through the ConApp for the school year. The school year means 
the fiscal year for which a SPSA is adopted or updated.  

● Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA: This amount is the total 
of the proposed expenditures from all sources of funds associated with the strategies/activities 
reflected in the SPSA. To the extent strategies/activities and/or proposed expenditures are listed 
in the SPSA under more than one goal, the expenditures should be counted only once. 

 
A school receiving funds from its LEA for CSI should complete the Budget Summary Table as 
follows:  

• Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI: This amount is 
the total amount of funding provided to the school from the LEA for the purpose of 
developing and implementing the CSI plan for the school year set forth in the CSI LEA 
Application for which funds were received. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 69 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Appendix A: Plan Requirements  
 
Schoolwide Program Requirements 
This School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) template meets the requirements of a schoolwide 
program plan. The requirements below are for planning reference.  
A school that operates a schoolwide program and receives funds allocated through the ConApp is 
required to develop a SPSA. The SPSA, including proposed expenditures of funds allocated to the school 
through the ConApp, must be reviewed annually and updated by the Schoolsite Council (SSC). The 
content of a SPSA must be aligned with school goals for improving student achievement.  
Requirements for Development of the Plan 

I. The development of the SPSA shall include both of the following actions: 
A. Administration of a comprehensive needs assessment that forms the basis of the 

school’s goals contained in the SPSA. 
1. The comprehensive needs assessment of the entire school shall: 

a. Include an analysis of verifiable state data, consistent with all state 
priorities as noted in Sections 52060 and 52066, and informed by 
all indicators described in Section 1111(c)(4)(B) of the federal 
Every Student Succeeds Act, including pupil performance against 
state-determined long-term goals. The school may include data 
voluntarily developed by districts to measure pupil outcomes 
(described in the Identified Need). 

b. Be based on academic achievement information about all 
students in the school, including all groups under §200.13(b)(7) 
and migratory children as defined in section 1309(2) of the ESEA, 
relative to the State's academic standards under §200.1 to: 

i. Help the school understand the subjects and skills for 
which teaching and learning need to be improved. 

ii. Identify the specific academic needs of students and 
groups of students who are not yet achieving the State's 
academic standards. 

iii. Assess the needs of the school relative to each of the 
components of the schoolwide program under §200.28. 

iv. Develop the comprehensive needs assessment with the 
participation of individuals who will carry out the 
schoolwide program plan. 

v. Document how it conducted the needs assessment, the 
results it obtained, and the conclusions it drew from those 
results.  

B. Identification of the process for evaluating and monitoring the implementation of 
the SPSA and progress towards accomplishing the goals set forth in the SPSA 
(described in the Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and Annual Review 
and Update).  
 

Requirements for the Plan 
II. The SPSA shall include the following:  

A. Goals set to improve pupil outcomes, including addressing the needs of student 
groups as identified through the needs assessment.  

B. Evidence-based strategies, actions, or services (described in Strategies and 
Activities) 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 70 of 75 Central Elementary School 

1. A description of the strategies that the school will be implementing to 
address school needs, including a description of how such strategies 
will: 

a. Provide opportunities for all children including each of the 
subgroups of students to meet the challenging state academic 
standards 

b. Use methods and instructional strategies that: 
i. Strengthen the academic program in the school,  
ii. Increase the amount and quality of learning time, and  
iii. Provide an enriched and accelerated curriculum, which 

may include programs, activities, and courses necessary 
to provide a well-rounded education. 

c. Address the needs of all children in the school, but particularly 
the needs of those at risk of not meeting the challenging State 
academic standards, so that all students demonstrate at least 
proficiency on the State’s academic standards through activities 
which may include: 

i. Strategies to improve students’ skills outside the 
academic subject areas;  

ii. Preparation for and awareness of opportunities for 
postsecondary education and the workforce;  

iii. Implementation of a schoolwide tiered model to prevent 
and address problem behavior;  

iv. Professional development and other activities for 
teachers, paraprofessionals, and other school personnel 
to improve instruction and use of data; and 

v. Strategies for assisting preschool children in the transition 
from early childhood education programs to local 
elementary school programs. 

C. Proposed expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the 
governing board or body of the LEA (may include funds allocated via the 
ConApp, federal funds, and any other state or local funds allocated to the 
school), to address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the 
state priorities, including identifying resource inequities, which may include a 
review of the LEAs budgeting, it’s LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if 
applicable (described in Proposed Expenditures and Budget Summary). 
Employees of the schoolwide program may be deemed funded by a single cost 
objective.  

D. A description of how the school will determine if school needs have been met 
(described in the Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and the Annual 
Review and Update). 

1. Annually evaluate the implementation of, and results achieved by, the 
schoolwide program, using data from the State's annual assessments and 
other indicators of academic achievement; 

2. Determine whether the schoolwide program has been effective in 
increasing the achievement of students in meeting the State's academic 
standards, particularly for those students who had been furthest from 
achieving the standards; and 

3. Revise the plan, as necessary, based on the results of the evaluation, to 
ensure continuous improvement of students in the schoolwide program. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 71 of 75 Central Elementary School 

E. A description of how the school will ensure parental involvement in the planning, 
review, and improvement of the schoolwide program plan (described in 
Educational Partner Involvement and/or Strategies/Activities). 

F. A description of the activities the school will include to ensure that students who 
experience difficulty attaining proficient or advanced levels of academic 
achievement standards will be provided with effective, timely additional support, 
including measures to: 

1. Ensure that those students' difficulties are identified on a timely basis; and 
2. Provide sufficient information on which to base effective assistance to 

those students. 
G. For an elementary school, a description of how the school will assist preschool 

students in the successful transition from early childhood programs to the school. 
H. A description of how the school will use resources to carry out these components 

(described in the Proposed Expenditures for Strategies/Activities). 
I. A description of any other activities and objectives as established by the SSC 

(described in the Strategies/Activities). 
Authority Cited: Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations (34 CFR), sections 200.25-26, and 
200.29, and sections-1114(b)(7)(A)(i)-(iii) and 1118(b) of the ESEA. EC sections 64001 et. seq. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 72 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Appendix B: Plan Requirements for School to 
CSI/ATSI Planning Requirements 
For questions or technical assistance related to meeting federal school improvement planning 
requirements, please contact the CDE’s School Improvement and Support Office at SISO@cde.ca.gov. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
The LEA shall partner with educational partners (including principals and other school leaders, teachers, 
and parents) to locally develop and implement the CSI plan for the school to improve student outcomes, 
and specifically address the metrics that led to eligibility for CSI (Educational Partner Involvement).   

The CSI plan shall:   

1. Be informed by all state indicators, including student performance against state-
determined long-term goals (Sections: Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual 
Measurable Outcomes, Annual Review and Update, as applicable); 

2. Include evidence-based interventions (Sections: Strategies/Activities, Annual Review 
and Update, as applicable) (For resources related to evidence-based interventions, see 
the U.S. Department of Education’s “Using Evidence to Strengthen Education 
Investments” at https://www2.ed.gov/fund/grant/about/discretionary/2023-non-regulatory-
guidance-evidence.pdf); 

Non-Regulatory Guidance: Using Evidence to Strengthen Education Investments 

3. Be based on a school-level needs assessment (Sections: Goal, Identified Need, 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Annual Review and Update, as applicable); 
and 

4. Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level 
budgeting, to be addressed through implementation of the CSI plan (Sections: Goal, 
Identified Need, Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities; 
and Annual Review and Update, as applicable). 

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(A), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(1) of the ESSA. 

Single School Districts and Charter Schools Eligible for ESSA School 
Improvement 
Single school districts (SSDs) or charter schools that are eligible for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, shall develop a 
SPSA that addresses the applicable requirements above as a condition of receiving funds (EC Section 
64001[a] as amended by Assembly Bill 716, effective January 1, 2019). 

However, a SSD or a charter school may streamline the process by combining state and federal 
requirements into one document which may include the LCAP and all federal planning requirements, 
provided that the combined plan is able to demonstrate that the legal requirements for each of the plans 
is met (EC Section 52062[a] as amended by AB 716, effective January 1, 2019). 

Planning requirements for single school districts and charter schools choosing to exercise this option are 
available in the LCAP Instructions. 

mailto:SISO@cde.ca.gov
https://www2.ed.gov/fund/grant/about/discretionary/2023-non-regulatory-guidance-evidence.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/fund/grant/about/discretionary/2023-non-regulatory-guidance-evidence.pdf


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 73 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Authority Cited: EC sections 52062(a) and 64001(a), both as amended by AB 716, effective January 1, 
2019. 

CSI Resources 
For additional CSI resources, please see the following links: 

• CSI Planning Requirements (see Planning Requirements tab): 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csi.asp 

• CSI Webinars: https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csiwebinars.asp 

• CSI Planning Summary for Charters and Single-school Districts: 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csiplansummary.asp 

  

https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csi.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csiwebinars.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csiplansummary.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 74 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Additional Targeted Support and Improvement 
A school eligible for ATSI shall: 

1. Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting, which 
will be addressed through implementation of its TSI plan (Sections: Goal, Identified Need, 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities, and Annual Review and 
Update, as applicable). 

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(B), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(2)(c) of the ESSA. 

Single School Districts and Charter Schools Eligible for ESSA School 
Improvement 
Single school districts (SSDs) or charter schools that are eligible for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, shall develop a 
SPSA that addresses the applicable requirements above as a condition of receiving funds (EC Section 
64001[a] as amended by Assembly Bill [AB] 716, effective January 1, 2019). 

However, a SSD or a charter school may streamline the process by combining state and federal 
requirements into one document which may include the local control and accountability plan (LCAP) and 
all federal planning requirements, provided that the combined plan is able to demonstrate that the legal 
requirements for each of the plans is met (EC Section 52062[a] as amended by AB 716, effective January 
1, 2019). 

Planning requirements for single school districts and charter schools choosing to exercise this option are 
available in the LCAP Instructions. 

Authority Cited: EC sections 52062(a) and 64001(a), both as amended by AB 716, effective January 1, 
2019. 

ATSI Resources: 
For additional ATSI resources, please see the following CDE links: 

• ATSI Planning Requirements (see Planning Requirements tab): 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/tsi.asp 

• ATSI Planning and Support Webinar: 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/documents/atsiplanningwebinar22.pdf  

• ATSI Planning Summary for Charters and Single-school Districts: 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/atsiplansummary.asp 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/tsi.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/documents/atsiplanningwebinar22.pdf
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/atsiplansummary.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 75 of 75 Central Elementary School 

Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs 
For a list of active programs, please see the following links:  

• Programs included on the ConApp: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/  
• ESSA Title I, Part A: School Improvement: https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/schoolsupport.asp  
• Available Funding: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/af/  

Updated by the California Department of Education, October 2023 
 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/schoolsupport.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/af/


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

 
School Year:    2024-25     

SPSA Title Page 
 

 

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) 
 

School Name County-District-School 
(CDS) Code 

Schoolsite Council 
(SSC) Approval Date 

Local Board Approval 
Date 

R. J. Neutra Elementary 
School         

16-63883-6010318         4/29/24                  

 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a strategic plan that maximizes the resources available to the school 
while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing student achievement. SPSA development should 
be aligned with and inform the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) process.  
 
This SPSA template consolidates all school-level planning efforts into one plan for programs funded through the 
Consolidated Application (ConApp), and for federal Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATSI), pursuant to 
California Education Code (EC) Section 64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) as amended by 
the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). This template is designed to meet schoolwide program planning requirements for 
both the SPSA and federal ATSI planning requirements. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan supports the state’s approach to improving student group performance through the utilization 
of federal resources. Schools use the SPSA to document their approach to maximizing the impact of federal investments in 
support of underserved students. The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate 
with their federally-funded programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the local educational agency 
(LEA) that are being realized under the state’s Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF).  
 
The LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students 
in order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous 
cycles of action, reflection, and improvement. Consistent with EC 64001(g)(1), the Schoolsite Council (SSC) is required to 
develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make modifications to the plan that reflect changing 
needs and priorities, as applicable. 
 
This plan is being used by R. J. Neutra Elementary School for meeting the following ESSA planning requirements in 
alignment with the LCAP and other federal, state, and local programs: 
 

 Schoolwide Program        
X Additional Targeted Support and Improvement        
 Neutra Elementary has been identified for ATSI for the following student groups: 

African American (AA) Students - Suspension Rate Very High 
Students with Disabilities (SWD) - Chronic Absenteeism Very high. 
 
Both of these student groups were identified based on criteria 2. All indicators at the lowest status level but one 
indicator at another status level. 
        

 
This template is based on the December, 2023 CDE revision of the School Plan for Student Achievement.  Some 
modifications have been made to inform the SPSA development process. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Table of Contents 
 

SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 

Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................2 

Plan Description ................................................................................................................................................4 

Educational Partner Involvement ......................................................................................................................4 

Resource Inequities ..........................................................................................................................................5 

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components ...........................................................................................5 

California School Dashboard (Dashboard) Indicators ...............................................................................5 

Other Needs ..............................................................................................................................................6 

School and Student Performance Data ............................................................................................................7 

Student Enrollment ....................................................................................................................................7 

CAASPP Results .......................................................................................................................................9 

ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................14 

California School Dashboard ..................................................................................................................18 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................33 

Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................33 

Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................37 

Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................40 

Goal 4 ......................................................................................................................................................44 

Goal 5 ......................................................................................................................................................46 

Goal 6 ......................................................................................................................................................48 

Goal 7 ......................................................................................................................................................50 

Goal 8 ......................................................................................................................................................53 

Goal 9 ......................................................................................................................................................55 

Goal 10 ....................................................................................................................................................57 

Budget Summary ............................................................................................................................................59 

Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................59 

Other Federal, State, and Local Funds ...................................................................................................59 

Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan ..............................................................................................60 

Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source .................................................................................60 

Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................60 

Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................60 

Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................60 

Expenditures by Goal ..............................................................................................................................60 

School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................61 

Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................62 

Instructions ......................................................................................................................................................63 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Appendix A: Plan Requirements .....................................................................................................................70 

Appendix B: Plan Requirements for School to CSI/ATSI Planning Requirements .........................................73 

Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs ...........................................................................................76 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Plan Description 
 
Briefly describe your school’s plan for effectively meeting ESSA’s planning requirements in alignment with the Local 
Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and other federal, state, and local programs. 
This plan is being used by R. J. Neutra Elementary School for meeting the following ESSA planning requirements in 
alignment with the LCAP and other federal, state, and local programs: 
 
 Schoolwide Program        
X Additional Targeted Support and Improvement        
 Neutra Elementary has been identified for ATSI for the following student groups: 

African American (AA) Students - Suspension Rate Very High 
Students with Disabilities (SWD) - Chronic Absenteeism Very high. 
 
Both of these student groups were identified based on criteria 2. All indicators at the lowest status level but one 
indicator at another status level. 
        

 
The School-Wide Plan meets the ESSA (Every Student Succeeds Act) requirements through: A comprehensive needs 
assessment of the entire school that includes information on the academic achievement of students in relation to the 
challenging state academic standards, particularly the needs of those students who are failing, or are at risk of failing, to 
meet the challenging state academic standards through evidence-based strategies and actions. Our school implements 
challenging academic standards in reading, math, and science, using state-adopted curriculum that will prepare students 
to succeed in college and career. These standards apply to all students, including those with learning disabilities. State 
assessments are administered annually in ELA, Math, Science, and English Proficiency. Student achievement, progress, 
English language proficiency, discipline rates, and chronic absenteeism are monitored regularly.Throughout the year, 
multiple educational partners discuss available data and share their thoughts on areas for improvement in student 
achievement as well as focused on student groups that are areas of focus. 
 
The site continually analyzes our local data and the California Dashboard during Professional Learning Community 
meetings, District Advisory Committee meetings,  School Site Council Meetings, District Leadership meeting, Site Lead 
Leadership meetings, Staff Meeting, Student Leadership Team, and various other forums. Through the process of 
developing this plan, we carefully aligned with the LCAP and with specific actions to meet the needs of our student 
groups. The current LCAP School Plan goals are as follows: 
 
Goals 1: 
All students provided CONDITIONS FOR LEARNING leading to college and career readiness. 
 
All Students will be provided the CONDITIONS FOR LEARNING leading to college and career readiness. 
 
Goals 2: 
Parents, Students, and the community will be ENGAGED to participate collaboratively in the educational process. 
 
Goal 3: 
All students will make progress towards proficient ACHIEVEMENT of state adopted standards through data driven 
decision making 
 
Neutra's plan to meet the Every Student Succeeds Act and align with all appropriate agencies includes focus areas to: 
Decrease chronic absenteeism 
Decrease suspension rates 
Strengthen campus culture/student connectedness, to ensure a safe and healthy campus 
         

 

Educational Partner Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did R. J. Neutra Elementary School consult as part of the planning process for this 
SPSA/Annual Review and Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
As part of our review for the 2023-24 School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA), data was gathered from student, 
parent, and staff surveys. Parent groups were also consulted during School Site Council (SSC), Grade Level Leads 
Meetings, Staff Meetings, and Site ILT Meetings. 
 
School Site Leads Meeting 
8/15/24 
9/19/24 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

10/17/24 
12/19/24 
1/16/25 
2/20/25 
3/20/25 
4/17/25 
5/15/25 
 
 
 
School Site Council (SSC) 
 
 
Staff Meetings 
8/22/24 
9/12/24 
9/26/24 
10/10/24 
10/24/24 
11/7/24 
11/28/24 
12/12/24 
1/9/25 
1/23/25 
2/13/25 
2/27/25 
3/13/25 
3/17/25 
4/10/25 
4/24/25 
5/8/25 
5/22/25 
 
 
         

 

Resource Inequities 
 
Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs assessment, as applicable.  
 This section is required for all schools eligible for ATSI and CSI. 
Neutra: Red Dashboard Indictor, suspensions, African American Students.  In order to meet the need of all students a 
designed SEL block has been built into the master schedule from 8:00-8:30 each morning.  Teachers use this time to 
provide lessons regarding students social and emotional needs.  Teachers have created and clearly communicated 
classroom expectations and positive behavior incentives for all students.         
 

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components 
 
Identify and describe any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
 
California School Dashboard (Dashboard) Indicators 
Referring to the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), any state indicator for which overall performance was in the 
“Red” or “Orange” performance category. 
         

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Referring to the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), any state indicator for which performance for any student group 
was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. 
         

 
Other Needs 
In addition to Dashboard data, other needs may be identified using locally collected data developed by the LEA to measure 
pupil outcomes. 
         

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
 
This report displays the annual K-12 public school enrollment by student ethnicity and grade level for R. J. Neutra 
Elementary School.  Annual enrollment consists of the number of students enrolled on Census Day (the first Wednesday in 
October). This information was submitted to the CDE as part of the annual Fall 1 data submission in the California 
Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS). 
 

Enrollment By Student Group 
 

Student Enrollment by Subgroup 

Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

American Indian     % % 0%  0 0 

African American     8.2% 9.83% 7.08% 40 45 31 

Asian     1.4% 0.87% 2.28% 7 4 10 

Filipino     4.7% 5.24% 3.88% 23 24 17 

Hispanic/Latino     25.2% 23.36% 27.85% 123 107 122 

Pacific Islander     0.6% 0.87% 0.68% 3 4 3 

White     42.7% 43.67% 44.29% 209 200 194 

Multiple/No Response     17.2% 16.16% 13.93% 84 74 61 

 Total Enrollment 489 458 438 
 

Enrollment By Grade Level 
 

Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Number of Students 
Grade 

20-21 21-22 22-23 

Kindergarten        108 115 126 

Grade 1        81 73 72 

Grade 2        72 82 60 

Grade3        84 70 59 

Grade 4        70 63 59 

Grade 5        74 55 62 

Total Enrollment        489 458 438 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Although we have a high transient population, our student subgroups remain fairly consistent year to year.        

2. We have had a drop in student enrollment from 608 in the 19-20 school year to currently 458..        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

English Learner (EL) Enrollment 
 
This report displays the annual K-12 public school enrollment by English Language Acquisition Status (ELAS).  This 
information was submitted to the CDE as part of the annual Fall 1 data submission in the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS). 
 

English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

English Learners (EL)        7 8 8 1.4% 1.7% 1.8% 

Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        7 6 7 1.4% 1.3% 1.6% 

Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        4 0  0.0% 0.0%  
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our number of students who are identified as English Learners has decreased from the 19-20 school year.        

2. We have a very low percentage of EL students enrolled during the 21-22 school year at 1.7%.        

3. Of the 1.7% of students 1.3% were Fluent English Proficient.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 

 
The Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for ELA and mathematics are an annual measure of what students know 
and can do using the Common Core State Standards for English language arts/literacy and mathematics. 
 
The purpose of the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments is to assess student knowledge and skills for English 
language arts/literacy (ELA) and mathematics, as well as how much students have improved since the previous year. These 
measures help identify and address gaps in knowledge or skills early so students get the support they need for success in 
higher grades and for college and career readiness. 
 
All students in grades three through eight and grade eleven take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments unless a 
student’s active individualized education program (IEP) designates the California Alternate Assessments. 
 
Visit the California Department of Education’s Smarter Balanced Assessment System web page for more information. 

 
Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 

% of Enrolled Students 
Tested Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3 86 73 56 0 70 56 0 70 56 0.0 95.9 100.0 

Grade 4 70 63 61 0 61 59 0 61 59 0.0 96.8 96.7 

Grade 5 74 48 61 0 46 59 0 46 59 0.0 95.8 96.7 

All Grades 230 184 178 0 177 174 0 177 174 0.0 96.2 97.8 
The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 

 
Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded % Standard Met % Standard Nearly 

Met 
% Standard Not 

Met Grade 
Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  2451.

2 
2452.

1 
 30.00 32.14  27.14 32.14  30.00 16.07  12.86 19.64 

Grade 4  2537.
1 

2514.
3 

 57.38 38.98  22.95 30.51  14.75 13.56  4.92 16.95 

Grade 5  2543.
5 

2536.
2 

 30.43 38.98  45.65 25.42  10.87 20.34  13.04 15.25 

All Grades N/A N/A N/A  39.55 36.78  30.51 29.31  19.77 16.67  10.17 17.24 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/sa/index.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  27.14 32.14  54.29 51.79  18.57 16.07 

Grade 4  34.43 38.98  62.30 50.85  3.28 10.17 

Grade 5  26.09 35.59  67.39 50.85  6.52 13.56 

All Grades  29.38 35.63  60.45 51.15  10.17 13.22 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Writing 

Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  25.71 25.00  61.43 50.00  12.86 25.00 

Grade 4  37.70 35.59  55.74 52.54  6.56 11.86 

Grade 5  23.91 22.03  69.57 64.41  6.52 13.56 

All Grades  29.38 27.59  61.58 55.75  9.04 16.67 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Listening 

Demonstrating effective communication skills 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  11.43 16.07  78.57 71.43  10.00 12.50 

Grade 4  36.07 20.34  62.30 69.49  1.64 10.17 

Grade 5  10.87 20.34  80.43 72.88  8.70 6.78 

All Grades  19.77 18.97  73.45 71.26  6.78 9.77 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Research/Inquiry 

Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  20.00 26.79  65.71 60.71  14.29 12.50 

Grade 4  26.23 20.34  68.85 57.63  4.92 22.03 

Grade 5  26.09 25.42  65.22 61.02  8.70 13.56 

All Grades  23.73 24.14  66.67 59.77  9.60 16.09 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Neutra has consistently had more than 50% of our students score in the area of "at or near standard" or "above 

standard" in ELA  on the CAASPP assessment for 2021-2022 school year.        
2. According to the 2021-22 CAASPP data, our 5th grade students struggle the most with Listening.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 

 
The Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for ELA and mathematics are an annual measure of what students know 
and can do using the Common Core State Standards for English language arts/literacy and mathematics. 
 
The purpose of the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments is to assess student knowledge and skills for English 
language arts/literacy (ELA) and mathematics, as well as how much students have improved since the previous year. These 
measures help identify and address gaps in knowledge or skills early so students get the support they need for success in 
higher grades and for college and career readiness. 
 
All students in grades three through eight and grade eleven take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments unless a 
student’s active individualized education program (IEP) designates the California Alternate Assessments. 
 
Visit the California Department of Education’s Smarter Balanced Assessment System web page for more information. 

 

Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 

% of Enrolled Students 
Tested Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3 86 73 56 0 69 56 0 69 56 0.0 94.5 100.0 

Grade 4 70 63 61 0 61 59 0 61 59 0.0 96.8 96.7 

Grade 5 74 48 61 0 46 59 0 46 59 0.0 95.8 96.7 

All Grades 230 184 178 0 176 174 0 176 174 0.0 95.7 97.8 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 

 

Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded % Standard Met % Standard Nearly 

Met 
% Standard Not 

Met Grade 
Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  2460.

2 
2463.

9 
 26.09 28.57  40.58 44.64  21.74 14.29  11.59 12.50 

Grade 4  2530.
6 

2517.
0 

 36.07 30.51  45.90 37.29  14.75 27.12  3.28 5.08 

Grade 5  2539.
0 

2536.
7 

 34.78 33.90  30.43 28.81  23.91 16.95  10.87 20.34 

All Grades N/A N/A N/A  31.82 31.03  39.77 36.78  19.89 19.54  8.52 12.64 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/sa/index.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  39.13 33.93  47.83 51.79  13.04 14.29 

Grade 4  55.74 54.24  37.70 38.98  6.56 6.78 

Grade 5  36.96 38.98  52.17 44.07  10.87 16.95 

All Grades  44.32 42.53  45.45 44.83  10.23 12.64 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 

Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  31.88 25.00  56.52 58.93  11.59 16.07 

Grade 4  26.23 20.34  67.21 69.49  6.56 10.17 

Grade 5  26.09 25.42  65.22 50.85  8.70 23.73 

All Grades  28.41 23.56  62.50 59.77  9.09 16.67 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Communicating Reasoning 

Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  34.78 39.29  53.62 51.79  11.59 8.93 

Grade 4  27.87 25.42  67.21 67.80  4.92 6.78 

Grade 5  13.04 25.42  73.91 64.41  13.04 10.17 

All Grades  26.70 29.89  63.64 61.49  9.66 8.62 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Based on the data above, the percentage of students who met/exceeded standard increased from previous two 

years.        
2. Based on the data above, concepts and procedures are a strength, especially in 4th grade.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 
The English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC) system is used to determine and monitor the 
progress of the English language proficiency for students whose primary language is not English. The ELPAC is aligned 
with the 2012 California English Language Development Standards and assesses four domains: listening, speaking, 
reading, and writing. 
 
Visit the California Department of Education’s English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC) web page 
or the ELPAC.org website for more information about the ELPAC. 
 

ELPAC Results 
 

ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 

Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * 4 4 

   1     * *  * *  * *  * * 

   2    *  * *  * *  * *  * 

   3    * *  * *  * *  * *  

   5    *  * *  * *  * *  * 

All Grades                 7 7 8 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Overall Language 

Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1     * *  * *  * *  * *  * * 

   2    *  * *  * *  * *  * *  * 

   3    * *  * *  * *  * *  * *  

   5    *  * *  * *  * *  * *  * 

All Grades        * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/ep/
https://www.elpac.org/


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1     * *  * *  * *  * *  * * 

   2    *  * *  * *  * *  * *  * 

   3    * *  * *  * *  * *  * *  

   5    *  * *  * *  * *  * *  * 

All Grades        * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Written Language 

Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1     * *  * *  * *  * *  * * 

   2    *  * *  * *  * *  * *  * 

   3    * *  * *  * *  * *  * *  

   5    *  * *  * *  * *  * *  * 

All Grades        * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Listening Domain 

Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1     * *  * *  * *  * * 

   2    *  * *  * *  * *  * 

   3    * *  * *  * *  * *  

   5    *  * *  * *  * *  * 

All Grades        * * * * * * * * * * * * 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1     * *  * *  * *  * * 

   2    *  * *  * *  * *  * 

   3    * *  * *  * *  * *  

   5    *  * *  * *  * *  * 

All Grades        * * * * * * * * * * * * 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Reading Domain 

Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1     * *  * *  * *  * * 

   2    *  * *  * *  * *  * 

   3    * *  * *  * *  * *  

   5    *  * *  * *  * *  * 

All Grades        * * * * * * * * * * * * 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Writing Domain 

Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   1     * *  * *  * *  * * 

   2    *  * *  * *  * *  * 

   3    * *  * *  * *  * *  

   5    *  * *  * *  * *  * 

All Grades        * * * * * * * * * * * * 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. We do not have enough reportable data to draw conclusions due to our low number of English Learner students.        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

California School Dashboard 
Student Population 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 

2022-23 Student Population 

Total 
Enrollment 

438         
Total Number of Students enrolled 
in R. J. Neutra Elementary School. 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 

36.3         
Students who are eligible for free 
or reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 

English  
Learners 

1.8         
Students who are learning to 
communicate effectively in 
English, typically requiring 
instruction in both the English 
Language and in their academic 
courses. 

Foster 
Youth 

Students whose well being is the 
responsibility of a court. 

 
2022-23 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 

Student Group Total Percentage 

English Learners         8 1.8 

Foster Youth           

Homeless           

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         159 36.3 

Students with Disabilities         58 13.2 
 

Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 

Student Group Total Percentage 

African American        31 7.1 

Asian        10 2.3 

Filipino        17 3.9 

Hispanic        122 27.9 

Two or More Races        61 13.9 

Pacific Islander        3 0.7 

White        194 44.3 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 44% of our student population comes from socioeconomically disadvantaged households.         



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

2. Our largest ethnicity subgroup is white at almost 44%         

3. Almost 10% of our student population has been identified to be a student with a disability.         

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Overall Performance 
 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 

2023 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 

Academic Performance 

English Language Arts 

 
Green        

Mathematics 

 
Green        

Academic Engagement 

Chronic Absenteeism 

 
Green        

Conditions & Climate 

Suspension Rate 

 
Orange        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. We are doing a good job addressing our students' academic needs in English Language Arts and Mathematics as 

reported on the Dashboard.        
2. Suspension rate has a high indicator.        

3. Chronic Absenteeism has a high indicator.        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 

Red        
0        

Orange        
0        

Yellow        
0        

Green        
2        

Blue        
1        

 
This section provides a view of how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts 
assessment. This measure is based on student performance on either the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment or 
the California Alternate Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and grade 11. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Green         

38.6 points above standard         

Maintained -2.1 points         

153 Students        

English Learners 
Less than 11 Students          

3 Students        

Foster Youth 
Less than 11 Students          

0 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Green         

17.4 points above standard         

Decreased Significantly -19.8 points         

57 Students        

Students with Disabilities 
48.9 points below standard         

Decreased Significantly -40.3 points         

27 Students        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

6 points above standard         

Decreased Significantly -
31.1 points         

17 Students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Asian     

Less than 11 Students          

4 Students        

Filipino 

Less than 11 Students          

5 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Blue         

56.5 points above standard         

Increased +14.3 points         

41 Students        

Two or More Races 

33.5 points above standard         

Decreased Significantly -
15.2 points         

18 Students        

Pacific Islander 

Less than 11 Students          

2 Students        

White     

 
Green         

32 points above standard         

Maintained -1.4 points         

66 Students        

 
This section provides additional information on distance from standard for current English learners, prior or Reclassified 
English learners, and English Only students in English Language Arts. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

Reclassified English Learners 

Less than 11 Students          

2 Students        

English Only 

40 points above standard         

Maintained -1.6 points         

146 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All students reported on the Academic Performance for English Language Arts Scored at least high or very high.        

2. All student groups were above standard.        

3. Students with disabilities were 8.6 points below standard but No performance level was indicated as there were not 
enough students to create a group (only 7 students).        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
Mathematics 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 

Red        
0        

Orange        
0        

Yellow        
0        

Green        
2        

Blue        
1        

 
This section provides a view of how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This 
measure is based on student performance either on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment or the California 
Alternate Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and grade 11. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Green         

29.3 points above standard         

Maintained -0.8 points         

153 Students        

English Learners 
Less than 11 Students          

3 Students        

Foster Youth 
Less than 11 Students          

0 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Green         

14.2 points above standard         

Decreased -7.2 points         

57 Students        

Students with Disabilities 
28.7 points below standard         

Decreased -3.8 points         

27 Students        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

2023 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

12.6 points above standard         

Decreased -9.8 points         

17 Students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Asian     

Less than 11 Students          

4 Students        

Filipino 

Less than 11 Students          

5 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Blue         

36.5 points above standard         

Increased Significantly +24.8 
points         

41 Students        

Two or More Races 

18.8 points above standard         

Decreased Significantly -
16.4 points         

18 Students        

Pacific Islander 

Less than 11 Students          

2 Students        

White     

 
Green         

29.7 points above standard         

Decreased -4.1 points         

66 Students        

 
This section provides additional information on distance from standard for current English learners, prior or Reclassified 
English learners, and English Only students in mathematics 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

Reclassified English Learners 

Less than 11 Students          

2 Students        

English Only 

28.7 points above standard         

Maintained -1.4 points         

146 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All students reported for academic performance in mathematics scored high or very high.        

2. All student groups that had a performance level score above standard.        

3. Students with disciplines didn't have enough to make a performance level indicator; however, they scored 25.0 points 
below standard.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 

 English Learner Progress 

 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          

Number of EL Students: 4 Students          
Performance Level: No Performance 

Level        

 

 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 

Decreased  
One ELPI Level 

Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 

Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 

Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Not enough students to make a EL performance level indicator group.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
College/Career Report 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 
This section provided information on the percentage of high school graduates who are placed in the "Prepared" level on the 
College/Career Indicator. 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard College/Career Equity Report 

Very High        High        Medium        Low        Very Low        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard College/Career Report for All Students/Student Group 

All Students English Learners Foster Youth 

Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard College/Career Reportby Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 

Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 

 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 

Red        
0        

Orange        
0        

Yellow        
3        

Green        
3        

Blue        
0        

 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Green         

8.1% Chronically Absent         

Declined Significantly -9.4         

494 Students        

English Learners 
27.3% Chronically Absent         

0          

11 Students        

Foster Youth 
Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Yellow         

10.1% Chronically Absent         

Declined Significantly -12.5         

169 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Yellow         

11.4% Chronically Absent         

Declined -10.8         

79 Students        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

2023 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
Green         

5% Chronically Absent         

Declined -12         

40 Students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Asian     

Less than 11 Students          

10 Students        

Filipino 

5% Chronically Absent         

Declined -11         

20 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Yellow         

12.7% Chronically Absent         

Declined -5.1         

134 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
Green         

7.2% Chronically Absent         

Declined -21         

69 Students        

Pacific Islander 

Less than 11 Students          

5 Students        

White     

 
Green         

5.6% Chronically Absent         

Declined Significantly -8.3         

216 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 17.5% of all students were considered chronically absent in 2021-22        

2. Our Social Economically Disadvantaged reported group had the highest chronic absenteeism rate of 22.6% followed 
by Students with Disabilities at 22.2%.        

3. Our hispanic sub group had the highest chronic absenteeism rate of 17.8%.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 

Red        Orange        Yellow        Green        Blue        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma. 
 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students English Learners Foster Youth 

Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 

Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 

 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 

Red        
1        

Orange        
4        

Yellow        
0        

Green        
1        

Blue        
0        

 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Orange         

3.8% suspended at least one day         

Increased 0.5         
506 Students        

English Learners 
0% suspended at least one day         

Maintained 0         
11 Students        

Foster Youth 
Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Orange         

4.1% suspended at least one day         

Increased 1.2         
170 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Orange         

5% suspended at least one day         

Increased 2.1         
80 Students        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

2023 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
Red         

9.5% suspended at least one 
day         

Increased 3.3         
42 Students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Asian     

Less than 11 Students          
10 Students        

Filipino 

0% suspended at least one 
day         

Maintained 0         
22 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Green         

1.4% suspended at least one 
day         

Declined -1.7         
138 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
Orange         

4.3% suspended at least one 
day         

Increased 0.6         
69 Students        

Pacific Islander 

Less than 11 Students          
5 Students        

White     

 
Orange         

4.1% suspended at least one 
day         

Increased 1.1         
220 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. In 2022, our African American subgroup had a very high indicator for suspension rates at 6.3%.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 1 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
Continue to provide the students with the Conditions for Learning by ensuring they receive a broad educational program 
delivered by qualify staff, our educational programs, facilities and materials. 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
Overarching LCAP GOAL #1: 
All Students will be provided the CONDITIONS FOR LEARNING leading to college and career readiness. They will 
receive a broad educational program delivered by qualified staff using standards aligned instructional materials in 
facilities which are well maintained. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
No identified need at this time.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   

1A Teachers appropriately assigned & 
fully credentialed 
 
1B Pupil Access to standards-aligned 
Instructional Materials 
 
1C Facilities maintained in good repair 
        

1A Teachers - Goal Met 
96% Teachers appropriately assigned 
92% Teachers fully credentialed. 
( SARC) 
 
1B Instructional Materials 
Instructional Materials 100% 
(Sufficiency of Materials 
 
1C Facilities - Goal Met 
Exemplary 
 
 

1A Teachers appropriately assigned & 
fully credentialed. 
100% Teachers appropriately assigned 
100% Teachers fully credentialed 
(SARC) 
 
1B Instructional Materials 
Instructional Materials 100% 
(Sufficiency of Materials) 
 
1C Facilities 
Facilities Good or Better 
(FIT Tool) 
 

2A Implementation of SBE adopted 
content and performance standards        

  

2B Programs/Services enable ELs to 
access CA and ELD  Standards        

100% ELs access and enrollment in 
courses aligned to CA State 
Standards. 
 
100% ELs access and enrollment in 
ELD. 
(Master Schedule) 
 

100% ELs access and enrollment in 
courses aligned to CA State 
Standards. 
 
100% ELs access and enrollment in 
ELD. 
(Master Schedule) 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

7A Broad Course of study        100% Students have access to ELA, 
Math, Science, HSS, Physical 
Education/Health and Integrated Visual 
and Performing Arts 
100% ELD for ELs 
(Master Schedule) 
 

100% Students have access to ELA, 
Math, Science, HSS, Physical 
Education/Health and Integrated Visual 
and Performing Arts 
100% ELD for ELs 
(Master Schedule) 
 

7B Programs/Services Unduplicated 
Students        

100% Unduplicated Students have 
access to ELA, Math, Science, HSS, 
Physical Education/Health and 
Integrated Visual and Performing Arts 
100% ELD for ELs 
(Master Schedule) 
 

100% Unduplicated Students have 
access to ELA, Math, Science, HSS, 
Physical Education/Health and 
Integrated Visual and Performing Arts 
100% ELD for ELs 
(Master Schedule) 
 

7C Programs/Services Students with 
exceptional needs        

100% Students with exceptional needs 
have access to ELA, Math, Science, 
HSS, Physical Education/Health and 
Integrated Visual and Performing Arts 
100% ELD for ELs 
(Master Schedule) 
 

100% Students with exceptional needs 
have access to ELA, Math, Science, 
HSS, Physical Education/Health and 
Integrated Visual and Performing Arts 
100% ELD for ELs 
(Master Schedule) 
 

 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

1.1           
None Specified 
 
        
 
None Specified 
 
        

1.2           
None Specified 
 
        
 
None Specified 
 
        

1.3           
None Specified 
 
        
 
None Specified 
 
        

1.4           
None Specified 
 
        

1.5           
None Specified 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

 
        
 
None Specified 
 
        
 
None Specified 
 
        

1.6           
None Specified 
 
        
 
None Specified 
 
        

1.7           
None Specified 
 
        
 
None Specified 
 
        

1.8           
None Specified 
 
        
 
None Specified 
 
        

1.9           
None Specified 
 
        
 
None Specified 
 
        

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 2 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
Ensure that there are opportunities for parents, students, and the community to engage and participate collaboratively in 
the educational process. 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
Overarching LCAP Goal #2: 
Parents, Students, and the community will be ENGAGED to participate collaboratively in the educational process. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
Decrease chronic absenteeism 
Decrease suspension rates 
Strengthen campus culture/student connectedness, to ensure a safe and healthy campus 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   

Parent input in decision making and 
participation is adequately sought.        

92% of parents agree Spring 2023 
Parent LCAP Survey 
 
 

94% of parents agree Spring 2023 
Parent LCAP Survey 
 
 

5A School Attendance Rates        95.5% 
Spring 2023 P2 Data 
 

96% 
Spring 2024 P2 Data 
 

5B Chronic Absenteeism        Chronic Absenteeism rate 17.5% Chronic Absenteeism Rate 3.0 

6A Pupil Suspension (Decrease in 
African American Suspension)        

Suspension Rate Indicator 
3.8% 
African American Suspension Rate 
Indicator 
9.5% 
 
 

Suspension Rate Indicator 
2.0% 
African American Suspension Rate 
Indicator 
2.0% 
 
 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

2.1 School-Wide Behavior Expectations (Tier 1, Tier 2, 
Tier 3 for social emotional, academics, behavioral).        

All Students  
None Specified 
 
        
 
None Specified 
 
        

2.2 Strategic student connectedness activities between 
staff, students, and community (Color Run, Family 
Engagement Opportunities,  Spirit Assemblies, 
Kestrel/Student of the Month awards).        

All Students  
None Specified 
 
        

2.3 Counseling Services , MFLC, & Behavior 
Intervention Aide        

All Students  
None Specified 
 
        

2.4 Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (SOAR Academy, 
SOAR Club)        

All students  
None Specified 
 
        
 
None Specified 
 
        
 
None Specified 
 
        

2.5 Attendance incentives and acknowledgments 
(SOAR Attendance, Announcing perfect 
attendance, attendance trophy, attendance 
magnets, attendance flags, attendance rally for TK-
K students)        

All Students  
None Specified 
 
        
 
None Specified 
 
        

2.6 Administration to regularly monitor attendance, 
contact parents, and coordinate SART/SARB as 
needed.        

All Students  
None Specified 
 
        

2.7 Positive Behavior Incentives        All Students  
 

Annual Review 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
The implementation of the strategies and activities are improving student connectedness and improving chronic 
absenteeism as well as discipline.        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
The intended implementation is showing improvement at this time.        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
No changes will be made at this time.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 3 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
Students will continue to make progress toward proficient achievement of state adopted standards. 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
Overarching LCAP Goal #3: 
All students will make progress towards proficient ACHIEVEMENT of state adopted standards through data driven 
decision making. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
Students will continue to make growth toward meeting a proficiency level in iReady.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   

4A Statewide Assessments 
English Language Arts 
        

CA Schools Dashboard 2023 
Academic Performance Indicator 
Reading 
All Students 
High, 38.6 points above standard 
 
 
 
Socioeconomically Disadvantage 
17.4 Above Standard 
57 Students 
 
 
English Learners 
(Data not displayed - 2 students) 
 
Local Data - Winter iReady ELA 
All Students 
54% Proficient 
 
Socioeconomically Disadvantage 
27% Proficient 
SWD 
25% Proficient 
 

Academic Performance Indicator: ELA 
ALL Students 
Continue to score high on the 
performance index. 
 
American Indian 
Continue to score high on the 
performance index. 
 
Students with Disabilities 
Gain 10 points in this category on the 
performance level index. 
(Dashboard: 2023-24 data) 
 

4A Statewide Assessments CA Schools Dashboard 2023 Academic Performance Indicator: Math 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Mathematics 
        

Academic Performance Indicator Math 
All Students 
High, 29.3 points above standard 
 
 
Socio-economically Disadvantaged 
4.2%  Above Standard 
57 Students 
 
English Learners 
(Data not displayed - 2 students) 
 
Local Data - Spring iReady Math 
All Students 
34 % Proficient 
 
Socio-economically Disadvantaged 
41% Above Standard 
57 Students 
 
SWD 
10% Proficient 
 

ALL Students 
Continue to score high on the 
performance index. 
 
American Indian 
Continue to score high on the 
performance index. 
 
Students with Disabilities 
Gain 10 points in this category on the 
performance level index. 
 
(Dashboard: 2023-24 data) 
 

4C Percentage of ELs making 
progress towards English Proficiency 
 
4D English Learner Reclassification 
Rate 
        

4C Percentage of ELs making 
progress towards English Language 
Proficiency 
Data Not Displayed - less than 11 
students 
CA Schools Dashboard 2023 
 
4D English Learner Reclassification 
Rate 
0% 
 
 

4C Percentage of ELs making 
progress toward English language 
proficiency 
Not enough students to make an 
indicator. 
(2023 Dashboard) 
 
4D English Learner Reclassification 
Rate 
Not enough students to make an 
indicator. 
 
 

8 Pupil Outcomes        Learning in Broad Course of Study 
 
 
ELA 99% 
Math 94% 
Science 99% 
Social Studies 99% 
PE/Health 100% 
Arts 100% 
(Visual/Performing) 
ELD for ELs 100% 
(T2 Data) 
 
At least 1 Performance or Exhibit 
including Visual and/or Performing Arts 
 

Learning in Broad Course of Study 
 
 
ELA 100% 
Math 100% 
Science 100% 
Social Studies 100% 
PE/Health 100% 
Arts 100% 
(Visual/Performing) 
ELD for ELs 100% 
 
At least 1 Performance or Exhibit 
including Visual and/or Performing Arts 
 

 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

3.1 Monitor all student state/district assessments and 
provide interventions when necessary.  Continue 
using small group reading to provide additional 
reading instruction to all students at their 
instructional learning level.        

All Students  
None Specified 
 
        

3.2 Neutra continues to implement a 
intervention/enrichment program to supplement 
Neutra students in reading success.  The small 
group reading instruction program created by 
Neutra staff continues to be the staple of reading 
instruction. It allows  students to work at a skill 
level/group level that benefits each student. 
Student movement from group to group depends 
on skill need and is fluid.        

All Students  
None Specified 
 
        

3.3 The focus this year during Team Time Tier 2 
Intervention was mathematics to support students 
at their level.        

All Students  
None Specified 
 
        

3.4 Teachers and classified staff provide before and 
after school tutoring.        

All Students  
None Specified 
 
        

3.5 iReady will continue to be utilized for interventions. 
Students will meet the recommended 30-40 weekly 
minutes on their learning path.        

All Students  
None Specified 
 
        

3.6           
None Specified 
 
        
 
None Specified 
 
        

3.7           
None Specified 
 
        

3.8           
None Specified 
 
        

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 4 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

4.1           
None Specified 
 
        

4.2           
None Specified 
 
        

4.3           
None Specified 
 
        

4.4           
None Specified 
 
        

 

Annual Review 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 5 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
 
 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

5.1           
 
 
No additional costs        

5.2           
 
 
No additional costs 
 
        

5.3           
 
 
No additional costs        

 

Annual Review 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 6 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
 
 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

6.1  
 
        

  
None Specified 
 
        

6.2           
None Specified 
 
        

6.3           
None Specified 
 
        

 

Annual Review 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 7 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
 
 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

7.1           
None Specified 
 
        
 
None Specified 
 
        

7.2  
 
        

  
 
 
No additional costs 
 
        

7.3  
 
        

  
None Specified 
 
        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

7.4  
 
        

  
 
 
No additional costs        

7.5           
None Specified 
 
        

7.6           
None Specified 
 
        

7.7  
 
        

  
 
 
Principal 
Assistant Principal 
Teachers 
 
        

7.8  
 
        

  
 
 
No additional costs        

7.9           
None Specified 
 
        

7.10           
 
 
No additional costs        

7.11           
None Specified 
 
        

7.12           
None Specified 
 
        
 
None Specified 
 
        

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 8 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 9 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 57 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 10 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
          
 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   
 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 58 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 59 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Budget Summary 
 
Complete the Budget Summary Table below. Schools may include additional information, and adjust the table as needed. 
The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the Consolidated Application (ConApp). 
 
Budget Summary 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application $ 

Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA $ 

Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI $ 
 
Other Federal, State, and Local Funds 
 
List the additional Federal programs that the school includes in the schoolwide program. Adjust the table as needed.  
 
Note: If the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program, this section is not applicable and may be 
deleted. 
 

Federal Programs Allocation ($) 

startcollapse  
 
Subtotal of additional federal funds included for this school: $ 
 
List the State and local programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Duplicate the table as needed. 

State or Local Programs Allocation ($) 

startcollapse  
 
Subtotal of state or local funds included for this school: $ 
 
Total of federal, state, and/or local funds for this school: $ 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 60 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan 
 
The tables below are provided to help the school track expenditures as they relate to funds budgeted to the school. 
 

Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 

Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Funding Source  Amount 
 

Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 

Budget Reference  Amount 
 

Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 

 
Expenditures by Goal 
 
startcollapse 

Goal Number  Total Expenditures 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 61 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
3 Classroom Teachers        

1 Other School Staff        

3 Parent or Community Members        

0 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 

Name of Members  Role 

Elizabeth Alvarado         X Principal        

Taylor Conover         X Classroom Teacher        

Bev Parker         X Classroom Teacher        

Jeff Shimmon         X Classroom Teacher        

Merri Marriano         X Other School Staff        

Ginny Grady Steele         X Parent or Community Member        

Ashley Lemaster         X Parent or Community Member        

Alexandria   Parker         X Parent or Community Member        

Joshua Steel         X Parent or Community Member        

Chris Lehn         X Parent or Community Member        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 62 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 

Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on Apri 20, 2023. 
 
Attested: 

 

 Principal, Elizabeth Alvarado on April 20, 2023 

 

 SSC Chairperson, Chris Lehn on Apri 20, 2023 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 63 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Instructions 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a strategic plan that maximizes the resources 
available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing student 
achievement. SPSA development should be aligned with and inform the Local Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP) process.  
 
This SPSA template consolidates all school-level planning efforts into one plan for programs funded 
through the Consolidated Application (ConApp) pursuant to California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) as amended by the Every Student 
Succeeds Act (ESSA). This template is designed to meet schoolwide program planning requirements.  
 
California’s ESSA State Plan supports the state’s approach to improving student group performance 
through the utilization of federal resources. Schools use the SPSA to document their approach to 
maximizing the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. The implementation of 
ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded programs 
and align them with the priority goals of the school and the local educational agency (LEA) that are being 
realized under the state’s Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF).  
 
The LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the 
needs of students in order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA 
planning process supports continuous cycles of action, reflection, and improvement. Consistent with EC 
64001(g)(1), the Schoolsite Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish 
an annual budget, and make modifications to the plan that reflect changing needs and priorities, as 
applicable. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 64 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

 
For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below. 
 
Instructions: Table of Contents 
 

• Plan Description  
• Educational Partner Involvement 
• Comprehensive Needs Assessment 
• Goals, Strategies/Activities, and Expenditures 
• Annual Review 
• Budget Summary 
• Appendix A: Plan Requirements for Title I Schoolwide Programs 
• Appendix B: Select State and Federal Programs 

 
For additional questions or technical assistance related to LEA and school planning, please contact the 
CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office, at LCFF@cde.ca.gov.  
For programmatic or policy questions regarding Title I schoolwide planning, please contact the LEA, or 
the CDE’s Title I Policy and Program Guidance Office at TITLEI@cde.ca.gov. 
 
Plan Description 
Briefly describe the school’s plan to effectively meet the ESSA requirements in alignment with the LCAP 
and other federal, state, and local programs. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements:  
Schools eligible for CSI must briefly describe the purpose of this plan by stating that this plan will be used 
to meet federal CSI planning requirements. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements:  
Schools eligible for ATSI must briefly describe the purpose of this plan by stating that this plan will be 
used to meet federal ATSI planning requirements.   
 
 
Educational Partner Involvement 
Meaningful involvement of parents, students, and other stakeholders is critical to the development of the 
SPSA and the budget process. Within California, these stakeholders are referred to as educational 
partners. Schools must share the SPSA with school site-level advisory groups, as applicable (e.g., 
English Learner Advisory committee, student advisory groups, tribes and tribal organizations present in 
the community, as appropriate, etc.) and seek input from these advisory groups in the development of the 
SPSA.  
 
The Educational Partner Engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. Describe the process used 
to involve advisory committees, parents, students, school faculty and staff, and the community in the 
development of the SPSA and the annual review and update. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements:  
When completing this section for CSI, the LEA must partner with the school and its educational partners 
in the development and implementation of this plan. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements:  
This section meets the requirements for ATSI. 
 
 
Resource Inequities 

mailto:LCFF@cde.ca.gov
mailto:TITLEI@cde.ca.gov


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 65 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

This section is required for all schools eligible for ATSI and CSI.  
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements:  

• Schools eligible for CSI must identify resource inequities, which may include a review of 
LEA- and school-level budgeting as a part of the required school-level needs 
assessment. 

• Identified resource inequities must be addressed through implementation of the CSI 
plan. 

• Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required 
school-level needs assessment and summarize how the identified resource inequities 
are addressed in the SPSA. 

 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements:  

• Schools eligible for ATSI must identify resource inequities, which may include a review 
of LEA- and school-level budgeting as a part of the required school-level needs 
assessment.   

• Identified resource inequities must be addressed through implementation of the ATSI plan.  
• Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required 

school-level needs assessment and summarize how the identified resource inequities 
are addressed in the SPSA. 

 
Comprehensive Needs Assessment 
Referring to the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), identify: (a) any state indicator for which 
overall performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category AND (b) any state indicator for 
which performance for any student group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” 
performance. In addition to Dashboard data, other needs may be identified using locally collected data 
developed by the LEA to measure pupil outcomes.  
 
SWP Planning Requirements:  
When completing this section for SWP, the school shall describe the steps it is planning to take to 
address these areas of low performance and performance gaps to improve student outcomes. 
 
Completing this section fully addresses all SWP relevant federal planning requirements. 
 
CSI Planning Requirements:  
When completing this section for CSI, the LEA shall describe the steps the LEA will take to address the 
areas of low performance, low graduation rate, and/or performance gaps for the school to improve 
student outcomes. 
 
Completing this section fully addresses all relevant federal planning requirements for CSI. 
 
ATSI Planning Requirements:  
Completing this section fully addresses all relevant federal planning requirements for ATSI. 
 
Goals, Strategies/Activities, and Expenditures 
In this section, a school provides a description of the annual goals to be achieved by the school. This 
section also includes descriptions of the specific planned strategies/activities a school will take to meet 
the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific strategies 
and activities. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 
When completing this section to meet federal planning requirements for CSI, improvement goals must 
also align with the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 66 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
When completing this section to meet federal planning requirements for ATSI, improvement goals must 
also align with the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP. 
 
Goal 
Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to educational partners what the school plans to 
accomplish, what the school plans to do in order to accomplish the goal, and how the school will know 
when it has accomplished the goal. A goal should be specific enough to be measurable in either 
quantitative or qualitative terms. Schools should assess the performance of their student groups when 
developing goals and the related strategies/activities to achieve such goals. SPSA goals should align to 
the goals and actions in the LEA’s LCAP. 
 
A goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
A goal answers the question: What is the school seeking to achieve? 
 
It can be helpful to use a framework for writing goals such the S.M.A.R.T. approach.  
A S.M.A.R.T. goal is:  
 

• Specific,  
• Measurable,  
• Achievable,  
• Realistic, and  
• Time-bound.  

 
A level of specificity is needed in order to measure performance relative to the goal as well as to assess 
whether it is reasonably achievable. Including time constraints, such as milestone dates, ensures a 
realistic approach that supports student success.  
A school may number the goals using the “Goal #” for ease of reference.  
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal CSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal ATSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Identified Need  
Describe the basis for establishing the goal. The goal should be based upon an analysis of verifiable state 
data, including local and state indicator data from the Dashboard and data from the School Accountability 
Report Card, including local data voluntarily collected by districts to measure pupil achievement.  
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal CSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal ATSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that the school will use as a means of evaluating progress 
toward accomplishing the goal. A school may identify metrics for specific student groups. Include in the 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 67 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

baseline column the most recent data associated with the metric or indicator available at the time of 
adoption of the SPSA. The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator includes data reported 
in the annual update of the SPSA. In the subsequent Expected Outcome column, identify the progress 
the school intends to make in the coming year. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 
When completing this section for CSI, the school must include school-level metrics related to the metrics 
that led to the school’s eligibility for CSI. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal ATSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Strategies/Activities Table 
Describe the strategies and activities being provided to meet the goal.  
Complete the table as follows: 
 

• Strategy/Activity #: Number the strategy/activity using the “Strategy/Activity #” for ease of 
reference. 

• Description: Describe the strategy/activity.  
• Students to be Served: Identify in the Strategy/Activity Table either All Students or one 

or more specific student groups that will benefit from the strategies and activities. ESSA 
Section 1111(c)(2) requires the schoolwide plan to identify either “All Students” or one or 
more specific student groups, including socioeconomically disadvantaged students, 
students from major racial and ethnic groups, students with disabilities, and English 
learners. 

• Proposed Expenditures: List the amount(s) for the proposed expenditures. 
Proposed expenditures that are included more than once in a SPSA should be indicated as a 
duplicated expenditure and include a reference to the goal and strategy/activity where the 
expenditure first appears in the SPSA. Pursuant to EC Section 64001(g)(3)(C), proposed 
expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the governing board or governing 
body of the LEA, to address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the state 
priorities including identifying resource inequities which may include a review of the LEA’s 
budgeting, its LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable. 

• Funding Sources: List the funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal, identify the Title and Part, 
as applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 

 
Planned strategies/activities address the findings of the comprehensive needs assessment consistent 
with state priorities and resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of the LEA’s 
budgeting, its LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 

• When completing this section for CSI, this plan must include evidence-based interventions and 
align to the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP.  

• When completing this section for CSI, this plan must address through implementation, identified 
resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of LEA- and school-level 
budgeting.  

Note: Federal school improvement funds for CSI shall not be used in schools identified for TSI or ATSI. In 
addition, funds for CSI shall not be used to hire additional permanent staff. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 

• When completing this section for ATSI, this plan must include evidence-based interventions and 
align with the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP.  



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 68 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

• When completing this section for ATSI, this plan must address through implementation, identified 
resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of LEA- and school-level 
budgeting.  

• When completing this section for ATSI, at a minimum, the student groups to be served shall 
include the student groups that are consistently underperforming, for which the school received 
the ATSI designation. 

 
Note: Federal school improvement funds for CSI shall not be used in schools identified for ATSI.  Schools 
eligible for ATSI do not receive funding but are required to include evidence-based interventions and align 
with the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP. 
 
Annual Review 
In the following Goal Analysis prompts, identify any material differences between what was planned and 
what actually occurred as well as significant changes in strategies/activities and/or expenditures from the 
prior year. This annual review and analysis should be the basis for decision-making and updates to the 
plan.  
 
Goal Analysis 
Using actual outcome data, including state indicator data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the 
planned strategies/activities were effective in achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as instructed. 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal.  
 

● Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the 
articulated goal.  

● Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or material 
difference between the budgeted expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the 
articulated goal. 

● Describe any changes that will be made to the goal, expected annual measurable outcomes, 
metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard, as applicable. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 

 
Note: If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, the Annual Review section is not required 
and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 

• When completing this section for CSI, any changes made to the goals, annual measurable 
outcomes, metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities, shall meet the federal CSI planning 
requirements.   

• CSI planning requirements are listed under each section of the Instructions. For example, as a 
result of the Annual Review and Update, if changes are made to a goal(s), see the Goal section 
for CSI planning requirements. 

 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 

• When completing this section for ATSI, any changes made to the goals, annual measurable 
outcomes, metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities, shall meet the federal ATSI planning 
requirements.   

• ATSI planning requirements are listed under each section of the Instructions. For example, as a 
result of the Annual Review and Update, if changes are made to a goal(s), see the Goal section 
for ATSI planning requirements. 

 
 
Budget Summary 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 69 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

In this section, a school provides a brief summary of the funding allocated to the school through the 
ConApp and/or other funding sources as well as the total amount of funds for proposed expenditures 
described in the SPSA. The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. 
 
Note: If the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program, this section is not applicable and may be 
deleted. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 

• From its total allocation for CSI, the LEA may distribute funds across its schools that are 
eligible for CSI to support implementation of this plan. In addition, the LEA may retain a 
portion of its total allocation to support LEA-level expenditures that are directly related to 
serving schools eligible for CSI. 

Note: CSI funds may not be expended at or on behalf of schools not eligible for CSI. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
Note: Federal funds for CSI shall not be used in schools eligible for ATSI. 
 
Budget Summary Table 
A school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp should complete the Budget Summary Table as 
follows: 

● Total Funds Provided to the School Through the ConApp: This amount is the total amount of 
funding provided to the school through the ConApp for the school year. The school year means 
the fiscal year for which a SPSA is adopted or updated.  

● Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA: This amount is the total 
of the proposed expenditures from all sources of funds associated with the strategies/activities 
reflected in the SPSA. To the extent strategies/activities and/or proposed expenditures are listed 
in the SPSA under more than one goal, the expenditures should be counted only once. 

 
A school receiving funds from its LEA for CSI should complete the Budget Summary Table as 
follows:  

• Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI: This amount is 
the total amount of funding provided to the school from the LEA for the purpose of 
developing and implementing the CSI plan for the school year set forth in the CSI LEA 
Application for which funds were received. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 70 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Appendix A: Plan Requirements  
 
Schoolwide Program Requirements 
This School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) template meets the requirements of a schoolwide 
program plan. The requirements below are for planning reference.  
A school that operates a schoolwide program and receives funds allocated through the ConApp is 
required to develop a SPSA. The SPSA, including proposed expenditures of funds allocated to the school 
through the ConApp, must be reviewed annually and updated by the Schoolsite Council (SSC). The 
content of a SPSA must be aligned with school goals for improving student achievement.  
Requirements for Development of the Plan 

I. The development of the SPSA shall include both of the following actions: 
A. Administration of a comprehensive needs assessment that forms the basis of the 

school’s goals contained in the SPSA. 
1. The comprehensive needs assessment of the entire school shall: 

a. Include an analysis of verifiable state data, consistent with all state 
priorities as noted in Sections 52060 and 52066, and informed by 
all indicators described in Section 1111(c)(4)(B) of the federal 
Every Student Succeeds Act, including pupil performance against 
state-determined long-term goals. The school may include data 
voluntarily developed by districts to measure pupil outcomes 
(described in the Identified Need). 

b. Be based on academic achievement information about all 
students in the school, including all groups under §200.13(b)(7) 
and migratory children as defined in section 1309(2) of the ESEA, 
relative to the State's academic standards under §200.1 to: 

i. Help the school understand the subjects and skills for 
which teaching and learning need to be improved. 

ii. Identify the specific academic needs of students and 
groups of students who are not yet achieving the State's 
academic standards. 

iii. Assess the needs of the school relative to each of the 
components of the schoolwide program under §200.28. 

iv. Develop the comprehensive needs assessment with the 
participation of individuals who will carry out the 
schoolwide program plan. 

v. Document how it conducted the needs assessment, the 
results it obtained, and the conclusions it drew from those 
results.  

B. Identification of the process for evaluating and monitoring the implementation of 
the SPSA and progress towards accomplishing the goals set forth in the SPSA 
(described in the Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and Annual Review 
and Update).  
 

Requirements for the Plan 
II. The SPSA shall include the following:  

A. Goals set to improve pupil outcomes, including addressing the needs of student 
groups as identified through the needs assessment.  

B. Evidence-based strategies, actions, or services (described in Strategies and 
Activities) 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 71 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

1. A description of the strategies that the school will be implementing to 
address school needs, including a description of how such strategies 
will: 

a. Provide opportunities for all children including each of the 
subgroups of students to meet the challenging state academic 
standards 

b. Use methods and instructional strategies that: 
i. Strengthen the academic program in the school,  
ii. Increase the amount and quality of learning time, and  
iii. Provide an enriched and accelerated curriculum, which 

may include programs, activities, and courses necessary 
to provide a well-rounded education. 

c. Address the needs of all children in the school, but particularly 
the needs of those at risk of not meeting the challenging State 
academic standards, so that all students demonstrate at least 
proficiency on the State’s academic standards through activities 
which may include: 

i. Strategies to improve students’ skills outside the 
academic subject areas;  

ii. Preparation for and awareness of opportunities for 
postsecondary education and the workforce;  

iii. Implementation of a schoolwide tiered model to prevent 
and address problem behavior;  

iv. Professional development and other activities for 
teachers, paraprofessionals, and other school personnel 
to improve instruction and use of data; and 

v. Strategies for assisting preschool children in the transition 
from early childhood education programs to local 
elementary school programs. 

C. Proposed expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the 
governing board or body of the LEA (may include funds allocated via the 
ConApp, federal funds, and any other state or local funds allocated to the 
school), to address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the 
state priorities, including identifying resource inequities, which may include a 
review of the LEAs budgeting, it’s LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if 
applicable (described in Proposed Expenditures and Budget Summary). 
Employees of the schoolwide program may be deemed funded by a single cost 
objective.  

D. A description of how the school will determine if school needs have been met 
(described in the Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and the Annual 
Review and Update). 

1. Annually evaluate the implementation of, and results achieved by, the 
schoolwide program, using data from the State's annual assessments and 
other indicators of academic achievement; 

2. Determine whether the schoolwide program has been effective in 
increasing the achievement of students in meeting the State's academic 
standards, particularly for those students who had been furthest from 
achieving the standards; and 

3. Revise the plan, as necessary, based on the results of the evaluation, to 
ensure continuous improvement of students in the schoolwide program. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 72 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

E. A description of how the school will ensure parental involvement in the planning, 
review, and improvement of the schoolwide program plan (described in 
Educational Partner Involvement and/or Strategies/Activities). 

F. A description of the activities the school will include to ensure that students who 
experience difficulty attaining proficient or advanced levels of academic 
achievement standards will be provided with effective, timely additional support, 
including measures to: 

1. Ensure that those students' difficulties are identified on a timely basis; and 
2. Provide sufficient information on which to base effective assistance to 

those students. 
G. For an elementary school, a description of how the school will assist preschool 

students in the successful transition from early childhood programs to the school. 
H. A description of how the school will use resources to carry out these components 

(described in the Proposed Expenditures for Strategies/Activities). 
I. A description of any other activities and objectives as established by the SSC 

(described in the Strategies/Activities). 
Authority Cited: Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations (34 CFR), sections 200.25-26, and 
200.29, and sections-1114(b)(7)(A)(i)-(iii) and 1118(b) of the ESEA. EC sections 64001 et. seq. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 73 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Appendix B: Plan Requirements for School to 
CSI/ATSI Planning Requirements 
For questions or technical assistance related to meeting federal school improvement planning 
requirements, please contact the CDE’s School Improvement and Support Office at SISO@cde.ca.gov. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
The LEA shall partner with educational partners (including principals and other school leaders, teachers, 
and parents) to locally develop and implement the CSI plan for the school to improve student outcomes, 
and specifically address the metrics that led to eligibility for CSI (Educational Partner Involvement).   

The CSI plan shall:   

1. Be informed by all state indicators, including student performance against state-
determined long-term goals (Sections: Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual 
Measurable Outcomes, Annual Review and Update, as applicable); 

2. Include evidence-based interventions (Sections: Strategies/Activities, Annual Review 
and Update, as applicable) (For resources related to evidence-based interventions, see 
the U.S. Department of Education’s “Using Evidence to Strengthen Education 
Investments” at https://www2.ed.gov/fund/grant/about/discretionary/2023-non-regulatory-
guidance-evidence.pdf); 

Non-Regulatory Guidance: Using Evidence to Strengthen Education Investments 

3. Be based on a school-level needs assessment (Sections: Goal, Identified Need, 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Annual Review and Update, as applicable); 
and 

4. Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level 
budgeting, to be addressed through implementation of the CSI plan (Sections: Goal, 
Identified Need, Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities; 
and Annual Review and Update, as applicable). 

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(A), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(1) of the ESSA. 

Single School Districts and Charter Schools Eligible for ESSA School 
Improvement 
Single school districts (SSDs) or charter schools that are eligible for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, shall develop a 
SPSA that addresses the applicable requirements above as a condition of receiving funds (EC Section 
64001[a] as amended by Assembly Bill 716, effective January 1, 2019). 

However, a SSD or a charter school may streamline the process by combining state and federal 
requirements into one document which may include the LCAP and all federal planning requirements, 
provided that the combined plan is able to demonstrate that the legal requirements for each of the plans 
is met (EC Section 52062[a] as amended by AB 716, effective January 1, 2019). 

Planning requirements for single school districts and charter schools choosing to exercise this option are 
available in the LCAP Instructions. 

mailto:SISO@cde.ca.gov
https://www2.ed.gov/fund/grant/about/discretionary/2023-non-regulatory-guidance-evidence.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/fund/grant/about/discretionary/2023-non-regulatory-guidance-evidence.pdf


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 74 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Authority Cited: EC sections 52062(a) and 64001(a), both as amended by AB 716, effective January 1, 
2019. 

CSI Resources 
For additional CSI resources, please see the following links: 

• CSI Planning Requirements (see Planning Requirements tab): 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csi.asp 

• CSI Webinars: https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csiwebinars.asp 

• CSI Planning Summary for Charters and Single-school Districts: 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csiplansummary.asp 

  

https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csi.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csiwebinars.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csiplansummary.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 75 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Additional Targeted Support and Improvement 
A school eligible for ATSI shall: 

1. Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting, which 
will be addressed through implementation of its TSI plan (Sections: Goal, Identified Need, 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities, and Annual Review and 
Update, as applicable). 

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(B), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(2)(c) of the ESSA. 

Single School Districts and Charter Schools Eligible for ESSA School 
Improvement 
Single school districts (SSDs) or charter schools that are eligible for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, shall develop a 
SPSA that addresses the applicable requirements above as a condition of receiving funds (EC Section 
64001[a] as amended by Assembly Bill [AB] 716, effective January 1, 2019). 

However, a SSD or a charter school may streamline the process by combining state and federal 
requirements into one document which may include the local control and accountability plan (LCAP) and 
all federal planning requirements, provided that the combined plan is able to demonstrate that the legal 
requirements for each of the plans is met (EC Section 52062[a] as amended by AB 716, effective January 
1, 2019). 

Planning requirements for single school districts and charter schools choosing to exercise this option are 
available in the LCAP Instructions. 

Authority Cited: EC sections 52062(a) and 64001(a), both as amended by AB 716, effective January 1, 
2019. 

ATSI Resources: 
For additional ATSI resources, please see the following CDE links: 

• ATSI Planning Requirements (see Planning Requirements tab): 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/tsi.asp 

• ATSI Planning and Support Webinar: 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/documents/atsiplanningwebinar22.pdf  

• ATSI Planning Summary for Charters and Single-school Districts: 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/atsiplansummary.asp 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/tsi.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/documents/atsiplanningwebinar22.pdf
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/atsiplansummary.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 76 of 76 R. J. Neutra Elementary School 

Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs 
For a list of active programs, please see the following links:  

• Programs included on the ConApp: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/  
• ESSA Title I, Part A: School Improvement: https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/schoolsupport.asp  
• Available Funding: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/af/  

Updated by the California Department of Education, October 2023 
 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/schoolsupport.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/af/


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

 
School Year:    2024-25     

SPSA Title Page 
 

 

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) 
 

School Name County-District-School 
(CDS) Code 

Schoolsite Council 
(SSC) Approval Date 

Local Board Approval 
Date 

Stratford Elementary 
School         

16-63883-6010326         April 17, 2024         May 13, 2024         

 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a strategic plan that maximizes the resources available to the school 
while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing student achievement. SPSA development should 
be aligned with and inform the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) process.  
 
This SPSA template consolidates all school-level planning efforts into one plan for programs funded through the 
Consolidated Application (ConApp), and for federal Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATSI), pursuant to 
California Education Code (EC) Section 64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) as amended by 
the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). This template is designed to meet schoolwide program planning requirements for 
both the SPSA and federal ATSI planning requirements. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan supports the state’s approach to improving student group performance through the utilization 
of federal resources. Schools use the SPSA to document their approach to maximizing the impact of federal investments in 
support of underserved students. The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate 
with their federally-funded programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the local educational agency 
(LEA) that are being realized under the state’s Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF).  
 
The LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students 
in order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous 
cycles of action, reflection, and improvement. Consistent with EC 64001(g)(1), the Schoolsite Council (SSC) is required to 
develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make modifications to the plan that reflect changing 
needs and priorities, as applicable. 
 
This plan is being used by Stratford Elementary School for meeting the following ESSA planning requirements in alignment 
with the LCAP and other federal, state, and local programs: 
 

X Schoolwide Program        

 
This template is based on the December, 2023 CDE revision of the School Plan for Student Achievement.  Some 
modifications have been made to inform the SPSA development process. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Table of Contents 
 

SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 

Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................2 

Plan Description ................................................................................................................................................3 

Educational Partner Involvement ......................................................................................................................3 

Resource Inequities ..........................................................................................................................................3 

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components ...........................................................................................3 

California School Dashboard (Dashboard) Indicators ...............................................................................3 

Other Needs ..............................................................................................................................................4 

School and Student Performance Data ............................................................................................................5 

Student Enrollment ....................................................................................................................................5 

CAASPP Results .......................................................................................................................................8 

ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................14 

California School Dashboard ..................................................................................................................19 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................32 

Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................32 

Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................34 

Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................36 

Budget Summary ............................................................................................................................................39 

Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................39 

Other Federal, State, and Local Funds ...................................................................................................39 

Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan ..............................................................................................40 

Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source .................................................................................40 

Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................40 

Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................40 

Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................40 

Expenditures by Goal ..............................................................................................................................40 

School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................41 

Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................42 

Instructions ......................................................................................................................................................43 

Appendix A: Plan Requirements .....................................................................................................................50 

Appendix B: Plan Requirements for School to CSI/ATSI Planning Requirements .........................................53 

Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs ...........................................................................................56 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Plan Description 
 
Briefly describe your school’s plan for effectively meeting ESSA’s planning requirements in alignment with the Local 
Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and other federal, state, and local programs. 
This plan is being used by Stratford Elementary School for meeting the following ESSA planning requirements in alignment 
with the LCAP and other federal, state, and local programs: 
 
X Schoolwide Program        

 
Stratford School implements challenging academic standards in reading, math and science, using state-adopted 
curriculum that will prepare students to succeed in college and career paths. These standards apply to all students, 
including those with learning disabilities. State assessments are administered annually in English/Language Arts, Math, 
Science, and English Proficiency. Student achievement, progress, English language proficiency, discipline rates, and 
chronic absenteeism are regularly monitored. 
 
 
 
 
         

 

Educational Partner Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did Stratford Elementary School consult as part of the planning process for this SPSA/Annual 
Review and Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
As part of our review for the 2024-2025 Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA), data was gathered from students, 
parents, and staff members through surveys. Parent groups were also consulted during School Site Council (SSC) and 
English Learner Advisory Committee (ELAC) meetings. Staff meetings are held twice per month, and leadership 
meetings once per month, for the purpose of gathering and sharing data.         

 

Resource Inequities 
 
Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs assessment, as applicable.  
 This section is required for all schools eligible for ATSI and CSI. 
No resource inequities were identified from the required needs assessment.         

 

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components 
 
Identify and describe any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
 
California School Dashboard (Dashboard) Indicators 
Referring to the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), any state indicator for which overall performance was in the 
“Red” or “Orange” performance category. 
No state indicators were in the "red" or "orange" category for overall performance.         

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Referring to the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), any state indicator for which performance for any student group 
was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. 
No student groups scored two or more performance levels below the "all student" performance level.         

 
Other Needs 
In addition to Dashboard data, other needs may be identified using locally collected data developed by the LEA to measure 
pupil outcomes. 
No other needs were noted.         

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
 
This report displays the annual K-12 public school enrollment by student ethnicity and grade level for Stratford Elementary 
School.  Annual enrollment consists of the number of students enrolled on Census Day (the first Wednesday in October). 
This information was submitted to the CDE as part of the annual Fall 1 data submission in the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS). 
 

Enrollment By Student Group 
 

Student Enrollment by Subgroup 

Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

American Indian     1.3% 1.76% 3.73% 4 5 11 

African American     1.0% 1.76% 1.69% 3 5 5 

Asian     0.7% 0.70% 0.34% 2 2 1 

Filipino     0.7% 0.35% 0.34% 2 1 1 

Hispanic/Latino     88.4% 88.73% 87.8% 266 252 259 

Pacific Islander     1.0% 1.06% 1.02% 3 3 3 

White     5.7% 3.17% 3.05% 17 9 9 

Multiple/No Response     1.3% 2.46% 2.03% 4 7 6 

 Total Enrollment 301 284 295 
 

Enrollment By Grade Level 
 

Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Number of Students 
Grade 

20-21 21-22 22-23 

Kindergarten        39 33 33 

Grade 1        33 29 27 

Grade 2        35 28 28 

Grade3        36 32 30 

Grade 4        39 33 33 

Grade 5        30 40 36 

Grade 6        38 31 47 

Grade 7        21 34 28 

Grade 8        30 24 33 

Total Enrollment        301 284 295 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. For the 2024-2025 school year, we will need two 8th grade teachers due to a large class size.        

2. For the 2024-2025 school year, we will no longer need a 4/5 combination class due to smaller class sizes.        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

3. For the 2024-2025 school year, we will continue to need two 6th grade classes based on a large class size.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

English Learner (EL) Enrollment 
 
This report displays the annual K-12 public school enrollment by English Language Acquisition Status (ELAS).  This 
information was submitted to the CDE as part of the annual Fall 1 data submission in the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS). 
 

English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

English Learners (EL)        72 95 106 23.9% 33.5% 35.9% 

Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        62 46 39 20.6% 16.2% 13.2% 

Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        57 42  6.9% 14.8%  
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Very few students were reclassified as fluent English proficient during the 2022-2023 school year.        

2. The number of students identified as English Learners increased significantly during the 2022-2023 school year.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 

 
The Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for ELA and mathematics are an annual measure of what students know 
and can do using the Common Core State Standards for English language arts/literacy and mathematics. 
 
The purpose of the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments is to assess student knowledge and skills for English 
language arts/literacy (ELA) and mathematics, as well as how much students have improved since the previous year. These 
measures help identify and address gaps in knowledge or skills early so students get the support they need for success in 
higher grades and for college and career readiness. 
 
All students in grades three through eight and grade eleven take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments unless a 
student’s active individualized education program (IEP) designates the California Alternate Assessments. 
 
Visit the California Department of Education’s Smarter Balanced Assessment System web page for more information. 

 
Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 

% of Enrolled Students 
Tested Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3 36 32 29 0 32 29 0 32 29 0.0 100.0 100.0 

Grade 4 38 33 32 0 33 32 0 33 32 0.0 100.0 100.0 

Grade 5 30 41 33 0 41 33 0 41 33 0.0 100.0 100.0 

Grade 6 37 31 44 0 30 44 0 30 44 0.0 96.8 100.0 

Grade 7 22 32 32 0 32 32 0 32 32 0.0 100.0 100.0 

Grade 8 29 24 34 0 24 34 0 24 34 0.0 100.0 100.0 

All Grades 192 193 204 0 192 204 0 192 204 0.0 99.5 100.0 
The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 

 
Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded % Standard Met % Standard Nearly 

Met 
% Standard Not 

Met Grade 
Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  2368.

2 
2445.

4 
 6.25 24.14  25.00 31.03  18.75 34.48  50.00 10.34 

Grade 4  2411.
9 

2410.
7 

 9.09 0.00  15.15 9.38  18.18 50.00  57.58 40.63 

Grade 5  2424.
1 

2443.
8 

 7.32 6.06  4.88 27.27  31.71 15.15  56.10 51.52 

Grade 6  2455.
0 

2451.
8 

 3.33 2.27  10.00 13.64  30.00 29.55  56.67 54.55 

Grade 7  2515.
1 

2481.
7 

 6.25 6.25  34.38 18.75  21.88 15.63  37.50 59.38 

Grade 8  2511.
5 

2535.
2 

 4.17 8.82  25.00 29.41  29.17 29.41  41.67 32.35 

All Grades N/A N/A N/A  6.25 7.35  18.23 21.08  25.00 28.92  50.52 42.65 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  6.25 *  68.75 *  25.00 * 

Grade 4  9.09 0.00  63.64 71.88  27.27 28.13 

Grade 5  4.88 6.06  56.10 69.70  39.02 24.24 

Grade 6  6.67 2.27  36.67 50.00  56.67 47.73 

Grade 7  3.13 6.25  71.88 53.13  25.00 40.63 

Grade 8  * 5.88  * 58.82  * 35.29 

All Grades  6.25 5.88  57.81 61.76  35.94 32.35 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Writing 

Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  6.25 *  56.25 *  37.50 * 

Grade 4  6.06 0.00  45.45 65.63  48.48 34.38 

Grade 5  2.44 3.03  36.59 57.58  60.98 39.39 

Grade 6  3.33 4.55  46.67 38.64  50.00 56.82 

Grade 7  6.25 3.13  56.25 43.75  37.50 53.13 

Grade 8  * 8.82  * 67.65  * 23.53 

All Grades  5.73 6.37  46.88 55.88  47.40 37.75 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Listening 

Demonstrating effective communication skills 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  0.00 *  65.63 *  34.38 * 

Grade 4  3.03 3.13  75.76 62.50  21.21 34.38 

Grade 5  9.76 6.06  58.54 72.73  31.71 21.21 

Grade 6  0.00 4.55  86.67 72.73  13.33 22.73 

Grade 7  12.50 9.38  75.00 78.13  12.50 12.50 

Grade 8  * 5.88  * 79.41  * 14.71 

All Grades  5.21 6.37  71.88 74.02  22.92 19.61 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  0.00 *  62.50 *  37.50 * 

Grade 4  0.00 3.13  75.76 68.75  24.24 28.13 

Grade 5  7.32 9.09  60.98 45.45  31.71 45.45 

Grade 6  10.00 4.55  63.33 68.18  26.67 27.27 

Grade 7  9.38 12.50  62.50 56.25  28.13 31.25 

Grade 8  * 14.71  * 55.88  * 29.41 

All Grades  6.25 9.80  63.54 61.76  30.21 28.43 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. According to 2022-23 CAASPP data, 28% of our students performed at or above standard in English/Language 

Arts.        
2. According to 2022-23 CAASPP data, 32% of our students performed below standard in the reading domain.        

3. According to 2022-23 CAASPP data, almost 38% of our students performed below standard in the writing domain.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 

 
The Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for ELA and mathematics are an annual measure of what students know 
and can do using the Common Core State Standards for English language arts/literacy and mathematics. 
 
The purpose of the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments is to assess student knowledge and skills for English 
language arts/literacy (ELA) and mathematics, as well as how much students have improved since the previous year. These 
measures help identify and address gaps in knowledge or skills early so students get the support they need for success in 
higher grades and for college and career readiness. 
 
All students in grades three through eight and grade eleven take the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments unless a 
student’s active individualized education program (IEP) designates the California Alternate Assessments. 
 
Visit the California Department of Education’s Smarter Balanced Assessment System web page for more information. 

 

Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 

% of Enrolled Students 
Tested Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3 36 32 29 0 32 29 0 32 29 0.0 100.0 100.0 

Grade 4 38 33 32 0 33 32 0 33 32 0.0 100.0 100.0 

Grade 5 30 41 33 0 41 33 0 41 33 0.0 100.0 100.0 

Grade 6 37 31 44 0 30 44 0 30 44 0.0 96.8 100.0 

Grade 7 22 32 32 0 32 32 0 32 32 0.0 100.0 100.0 

Grade 8 29 24 34 0 24 34 0 24 34 0.0 100.0 100.0 

All Grades 192 193 204 0 192 204 0 192 204 0.0 99.5 100.0 
* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 

 

Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded % Standard Met % Standard Nearly 

Met 
% Standard Not 

Met Grade 
Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  2402.

3 
2439.

1 
 15.63 24.14  25.00 24.14  18.75 27.59  40.63 24.14 

Grade 4  2407.
2 

2430.
3 

 3.03 3.13  12.12 12.50  18.18 46.88  66.67 37.50 

Grade 5  2421.
9 

2463.
0 

 2.44 3.03  4.88 12.12  24.39 45.45  68.29 39.39 

Grade 6  2413.
7 

2443.
0 

 0.00 4.55  6.67 4.55  10.00 25.00  83.33 65.91 

Grade 7  2480.
7 

2451.
5 

 9.38 3.13  12.50 6.25  25.00 18.75  53.13 71.88 

Grade 8  2458.
3 

2508.
8 

 0.00 14.71  12.50 14.71  20.83 20.59  66.67 50.00 

All Grades N/A N/A N/A  5.21 8.33  11.98 11.76  19.79 30.39  63.02 49.51 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  18.75 *  43.75 *  37.50 * 

Grade 4  3.03 3.13  33.33 59.38  63.64 37.50 

Grade 5  2.44 9.09  36.59 57.58  60.98 33.33 

Grade 6  0.00 4.55  10.00 36.36  90.00 59.09 

Grade 7  9.38 9.38  46.88 31.25  43.75 59.38 

Grade 8  * 11.76  * 41.18  * 47.06 

All Grades  5.73 11.27  34.38 42.16  59.90 46.57 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 

Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  25.00 *  40.63 *  34.38 * 

Grade 4  3.03 3.13  42.42 40.63  54.55 56.25 

Grade 5  2.44 0.00  29.27 57.58  68.29 42.42 

Grade 6  3.33 0.00  23.33 36.36  73.33 63.64 

Grade 7  9.38 3.13  53.13 37.50  37.50 59.38 

Grade 8  * 14.71  * 52.94  * 32.35 

All Grades  7.81 7.35  39.58 46.08  52.60 46.57 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Communicating Reasoning 

Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  6.25 *  65.63 *  28.13 * 

Grade 4  3.03 9.38  51.52 62.50  45.45 28.13 

Grade 5  0.00 0.00  46.34 72.73  53.66 27.27 

Grade 6  0.00 2.27  40.00 45.45  60.00 52.27 

Grade 7  0.00 3.13  68.75 56.25  31.25 40.63 

Grade 8  * 17.65  * 41.18  * 41.18 

All Grades  1.56 9.31  57.81 55.88  40.63 34.80 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. According to 2022-23 CAASPP data, almost 47% of our students performed below standard in the math domain of 

concepts and procedures.        
2. According to 2022-23 CAASPP data, almost 47% of our students performed below standard in the math domain of 

problem solving and modeling.        
3. According to 2022-23 CAASPP data, almost 35% of our students performed below standard in the math domain of 

communicating reasoning.        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 
The English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC) system is used to determine and monitor the 
progress of the English language proficiency for students whose primary language is not English. The ELPAC is aligned 
with the 2012 California English Language Development Standards and assesses four domains: listening, speaking, 
reading, and writing. 
 
Visit the California Department of Education’s English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC) web page 
or the ELPAC.org website for more information about the ELPAC. 
 

ELPAC Results 
 

ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 

Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    1407.2 1436.2 1423.4 1419.7 1435.2 1431.9 1377.9 1438.3 1403.1 18 13 17 

   1    1435.4 1415.1 * 1439.8 1421.1 * 1430.3 1408.9 * 13 16 9 

   2    * 1472.2 1465.2 * 1467.3 1473.6 * 1476.7 1456.2 10 15 13 

   3    * 1468.6 1472.3 * 1470.0 1484.6 * 1466.8 1459.6 6 11 13 

   4    * * 1494.2 * * 1501.5 * * 1486.4 10 8 11 

   5    * 1511.4 * * 1516.6 * * 1505.6 * 7 13 8 

   6    * * 1525.3 * * 1525.9 * * 1524.4 7 10 14 

   7    * * 1547.2 * * 1570.0 * * 1523.6 6 8 11 

   8    * * * * * * * * * 6 7 6 

All Grades                 83 101 102 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    16.67 15.38 23.53 11.11 30.77 35.29 44.44 46.15 29.41 27.78 7.69 11.76 18 13 17 

   1    7.69 0.00 * 15.38 25.00 * 61.54 43.75 * 15.38 31.25 * 13 16 * 

   2    * 13.33 7.69 * 33.33 23.08 * 46.67 61.54 * 6.67 7.69 * 15 13 

   3    * 0.00 0.00 * 18.18 61.54 * 72.73 15.38 * 9.09 23.08 * 11 13 

   4    * * 0.00 * * 45.45 * * 36.36 * * 18.18 * * 11 

   5    * 7.69 * * 30.77 * * 53.85 * * 7.69 * * 13 * 

   6    * * 14.29 * * 35.71 * * 42.86 * * 7.14 * * 14 

   7    * * 9.09 * * 72.73 * * 9.09 * * 9.09 * * 11 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        9.64 8.00 10.78 25.30 32.00 41.18 50.60 46.00 34.31 14.46 14.00 13.73 83 100 102 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Oral Language 

Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    5.56 23.08 17.65 50.00 23.08 52.94 16.67 46.15 17.65 27.78 7.69 11.76 18 13 17 

   1    15.38 6.25 * 69.23 25.00 * 7.69 50.00 * 7.69 18.75 * 13 16 * 

   2    * 26.67 15.38 * 40.00 38.46 * 20.00 46.15 * 13.33 0.00 * 15 13 

   3    * 0.00 38.46 * 54.55 38.46 * 36.36 0.00 * 9.09 23.08 * 11 13 

   4    * * 36.36 * * 45.45 * * 9.09 * * 9.09 * * 11 

   5    * 15.38 * * 76.92 * * 0.00 * * 7.69 * * 13 * 

   6    * * 21.43 * * 71.43 * * 7.14 * * 0.00 * * 14 

   7    * * 72.73 * * 18.18 * * 9.09 * * 0.00 * * 11 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        24.10 21.00 31.37 48.19 39.00 44.12 16.87 28.00 17.65 10.84 12.00 6.86 83 100 102 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    16.67 15.38 5.88 11.11 23.08 35.29 44.44 61.54 35.29 27.78 0.00 23.53 18 13 17 

   1    7.69 0.00 * 15.38 18.75 * 23.08 50.00 * 53.85 31.25 * 13 16 * 

   2    * 13.33 0.00 * 20.00 15.38 * 46.67 61.54 * 20.00 23.08 * 15 13 

   3    * 0.00 0.00 * 9.09 23.08 * 45.45 46.15 * 45.45 30.77 * 11 13 

   4    * * 0.00 * * 9.09 * * 36.36 * * 54.55 * * 11 

   5    * 0.00 * * 15.38 * * 46.15 * * 38.46 * * 13 * 

   6    * * 14.29 * * 21.43 * * 28.57 * * 35.71 * * 14 

   7    * * 0.00 * * 9.09 * * 63.64 * * 27.27 * * 11 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        6.02 6.00 4.90 9.64 14.00 18.63 50.60 53.00 47.06 33.73 27.00 29.41 83 100 102 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Listening Domain 

Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    16.67 23.08 17.65 72.22 76.92 70.59 11.11 0.00 11.76 18 13 17 

   1    46.15 18.75 * 46.15 62.50 * 7.69 18.75 * 13 16 * 

   2    * 20.00 15.38 * 66.67 84.62 * 13.33 0.00 * 15 13 

   3    * 27.27 38.46 * 54.55 38.46 * 18.18 23.08 * 11 13 

   4    * * 27.27 * * 63.64 * * 9.09 * * 11 

   5    * 15.38 * * 84.62 * * 0.00 * * 13 * 

   6    * * 7.14 * * 92.86 * * 0.00 * * 14 

   7    * * 9.09 * * 90.91 * * 0.00 * * 11 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        24.10 19.00 19.61 61.45 68.00 72.55 14.46 13.00 7.84 83 100 102 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    11.11 7.69 17.65 55.56 76.92 70.59 33.33 15.38 11.76 18 13 17 

   1    0.00 6.25 * 92.31 62.50 * 7.69 31.25 * 13 16 * 

   2    * 20.00 23.08 * 66.67 69.23 * 13.33 7.69 * 15 13 

   3    * 18.18 23.08 * 72.73 53.85 * 9.09 23.08 * 11 13 

   4    * * 36.36 * * 45.45 * * 18.18 * * 11 

   5    * 61.54 * * 30.77 * * 7.69 * * 13 * 

   6    * * 64.29 * * 35.71 * * 0.00 * * 14 

   7    * * 90.91 * * 9.09 * * 0.00 * * 11 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        27.71 32.00 39.22 61.45 51.00 50.98 10.84 17.00 9.80 83 100 102 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Reading Domain 

Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    5.56 15.38 5.88 66.67 76.92 76.47 27.78 7.69 17.65 18 13 17 

   1    15.38 6.25 * 38.46 50.00 * 46.15 43.75 * 13 16 * 

   2    * 6.67 0.00 * 73.33 84.62 * 20.00 15.38 * 15 13 

   3    * 0.00 0.00 * 27.27 53.85 * 72.73 46.15 * 11 13 

   4    * * 0.00 * * 45.45 * * 54.55 * * 11 

   5    * 0.00 * * 61.54 * * 38.46 * * 13 * 

   6    * * 7.14 * * 35.71 * * 57.14 * * 14 

   7    * * 9.09 * * 36.36 * * 54.55 * * 11 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        7.23 6.00 5.88 43.37 51.00 56.86 49.40 43.00 37.25 83 100 102 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    27.78 23.08 29.41 16.67 69.23 29.41 55.56 7.69 41.18 18 13 17 

   1    15.38 0.00 * 38.46 81.25 * 46.15 18.75 * 13 16 * 

   2    * 20.00 7.69 * 66.67 69.23 * 13.33 23.08 * 15 13 

   3    * 9.09 0.00 * 72.73 92.31 * 18.18 7.69 * 11 13 

   4    * * 0.00 * * 90.91 * * 9.09 * * 11 

   5    * 7.69 * * 61.54 * * 30.77 * * 13 * 

   6    * * 21.43 * * 64.29 * * 14.29 * * 14 

   7    * * 9.09 * * 81.82 * * 9.09 * * 11 

   8    * * * * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        9.64 10.00 11.76 61.45 74.00 69.61 28.92 16.00 18.63 83 100 102 
In order to protect student privacy, an asterisk (*) will be displayed for enrolled and tested counts for fewer than 4 students 
and for assessment results for fewer than 11 students. "N/A" will be displayed instead of a number on test results where 
no data is found for the specific report. 

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. According to 2022-23 ELPAC data, our English Learners performed highest overall in the speaking domain.        

2. During the 2022-23 school year, a larger number of incoming TK and kindergarten students were identified as 
English learners than the previous year.        

3. According to 2022-23 ELPAC data, our English Learners struggled most overall in the reading domain.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

California School Dashboard 
Student Population 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 

2022-23 Student Population 

Total 
Enrollment 

295         
Total Number of Students enrolled 
in Stratford Elementary School. 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 

86.8         
Students who are eligible for free 
or reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 

English  
Learners 

35.9         
Students who are learning to 
communicate effectively in 
English, typically requiring 
instruction in both the English 
Language and in their academic 
courses. 

Foster 
Youth 

1         
Students whose well being is the 
responsibility of a court. 

 
2022-23 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 

Student Group Total Percentage 

English Learners         106 35.9 

Foster Youth         3 1 

Homeless         7 2.4 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         256 86.8 

Students with Disabilities         15 5.1 
 

Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 

Student Group Total Percentage 

African American        5 1.7 

American Indian        11 3.7 

Asian        1 0.3 

Filipino        1 0.3 

Hispanic        259 87.8 

Two or More Races        6 2 

Pacific Islander        3 1 

White        9 3.1 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 87% of our students come from socioeconomically disadvantaged households.         

2. 35.9% of our students are currently identified as English Learners.         

3. 5.1% of our students have been diagnosed with a learning disability. This includes students receiving services for 
speech only.         

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Overall Performance 
 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 

2023 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 

Academic Performance 

English Language Arts 

 
Yellow        

Mathematics 

 
Yellow        

English Learner Progress 

 
Green        

Academic Engagement 

Chronic Absenteeism 

 
Green        

Conditions & Climate 

Suspension Rate 

 
Yellow        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. During the 2022-23 school year, our chronic absenteeism rate decreased significantly from the previous year.        

2. During the 2022-23 school year, our English Learner progress increased significantly from the previous year.        

3. We need to continue to make growth in the areas of English/Language Arts, Mathematics, and English Learner 
progress.        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 

Red        
0        

Orange        
1        

Yellow        
2        

Green        
0        

Blue        
0        

 
This section provides a view of how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts 
assessment. This measure is based on student performance on either the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment or 
the California Alternate Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and grade 11. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Yellow         

47.8 points below standard         

Increased +12.9 points         

188 Students        

English Learners 

 
Orange         

72.3 points below standard         

Increased +3.3 points         

63 Students        

Foster Youth 
Less than 11 Students          

4 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Yellow         

48.4 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +19.5 points         

164 Students        

Students with Disabilities 
102.1 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +42.4 points         

14 Students        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

Less than 11 Students          

2 Students        

American Indian 

Less than 11 Students          

6 Students        

Asian     

Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

Filipino 

Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

Hispanic 

 
Yellow         

46.4 points below standard         

Increased +13.5 points         

163 Students        

Two or More Races 

Less than 11 Students          

4 Students        

Pacific Islander 

Less than 11 Students          

3 Students        

White     

Less than 11 Students          

8 Students        

 
This section provides additional information on distance from standard for current English learners, prior or Reclassified 
English learners, and English Only students in English Language Arts. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

82.9 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +21.7 points         

55 Students        

Reclassified English Learners 

Less than 11 Students          

8 Students        

English Only 

48.3 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +15.9 points         

95 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. According to 2023 fall dashboard, our students with disabilities increased by 42.4 points in English/Language Arts.        

2. According to 2023 fall dashboard, our students scored 47.8 points below standard in English/Language Arts overall. 
This is an increase of 12.9 points from the previous year.        

3. According to 2023 fall dashboard, our socioeconomically disadvantaged students increased by 19.5 points overall in 
English/Language Arts.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
Mathematics 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 

Red        
0        

Orange        
0        

Yellow        
3        

Green        
0        

Blue        
0        

 
This section provides a view of how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This 
measure is based on student performance either on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment or the California 
Alternate Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and grade 11. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Yellow         

68.4 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +24.4 points         

188 Students        

English Learners 

 
Yellow         

88.6 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +22.3 points         

63 Students        

Foster Youth 
Less than 11 Students          

4 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Yellow         

71.8 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +25.4 points         

164 Students        

Students with Disabilities 
140.3 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +45.3 points         

14 Students        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

2023 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

Less than 11 Students          

2 Students        

American Indian 

Less than 11 Students          

6 Students        

Asian     

Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

Filipino 

Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

Hispanic 

 
Yellow         

67.2 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +25.2 
points         

163 Students        

Two or More Races 

Less than 11 Students          

4 Students        

Pacific Islander 

Less than 11 Students          

3 Students        

White     

Less than 11 Students          

8 Students        

 
This section provides additional information on distance from standard for current English learners, prior or Reclassified 
English learners, and English Only students in mathematics 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

95.5 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +43.2 points         

55 Students        

Reclassified English Learners 

Less than 11 Students          

8 Students        

English Only 

68.2 points below standard         

Increased Significantly +20.3 points         

95 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. According to 2023 fall dashboard, our English Learner students increased by 22.3 points in mathematics.        

2. According to 2023 fall dashboard, our students with disabilities increased by 45.3 points in mathematics.        

3. According to 2023 fall dashboard, our students scored 68.4 points below standard in mathematics. This is an overall 
increase of 24.4 points.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language proficiency 
or maintaining the highest level. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 

 English Learner Progress 

 
Green         

54.8 points above standard making 
progress towards English language 

proficiency          
Number of EL Students: 84 Students          

Performance Level: 3        

 

 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 

Decreased  
One ELPI Level 

13         

Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 

25         

Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 

1         

Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 

45         

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. According to 2023 fall dashboard, 15% of our English Learners decreased one ELPI level from the previous year.        

2. According to 2023 fall dashboard, 54% of our English Learners progressed at least one ELPI level from the previous 
year.        

3. According to 2023 fall dashboard, our English Learner progress increased significantly overall from the previous year.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 

Red        
0        

Orange        
0        

Yellow        
0        

Green        
2        

Blue        
1        

 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Green         

6% Chronically Absent         

Declined Significantly -21.1         

316 Students        

English Learners 

 
Blue         

1.8% Chronically Absent         

Declined -23         

113 Students        

Foster Youth 
Less than 11 Students          

9 Students        

Homeless 
Less than 11 Students          

7 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Green         

5.8% Chronically Absent         

Declined Significantly -20.6         

277 Students        

Students with Disabilities 
4.8% Chronically Absent         

Declined -21.6         

21 Students        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

2023 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

Less than 11 Students          

5 Students        

American Indian 

9.1% Chronically Absent         

0          

11 Students        

Asian     

Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

Filipino 

Less than 11 Students          

1 Student        

Hispanic 

 
Green         

6.5% Chronically Absent         

Declined Significantly -20         

278 Students        

Two or More Races 

Less than 11 Students          

6 Students        

Pacific Islander 

Less than 11 Students          

3 Students        

White     

0% Chronically Absent         

Declined -27.3         

11 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. According to 2023 fall dashboard, our overall chronic absenteeism rate declined significantly from the previous year.        

2. According to 2023 fall dashboard, our overall chronic absenteeism rate was 6%. This is a 21% decline from the 
previous school year.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 

 
The 2023 California School Dashboard provides parents and educators with meaningful information on school and district 
progress so they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. 
 
The California School Dashboard goes beyond test scores alone to provide a more complete picture of how schools and 
districts are meeting the needs of all students.  To help parents and educators identify strengths and areas for improvement, 
California reports how districts, schools (including alternative schools), and student groups are performing across state and 
local measures. 
 
Performance on state measures, using comparable statewide data, is represented by one of five colors. The performance 
level (color) is not included when there are fewer than 30 students in any year. This is represented using a greyed out color 
dial with the words “No Performance Color.” 
 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2023 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 

Red        
0        

Orange        
0        

Yellow        
3        

Green        
0        

Blue        
0        

 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 
 

2023 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Yellow         

1.5% suspended at least one day         

Maintained 0.2         
328 Students        

English Learners 

 
Yellow         

1.7% suspended at least one day         

Maintained -0.2         
116 Students        

Foster Youth 
Less than 11 Students          

10 Students        

Homeless 
Less than 11 Students          

7 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Yellow         

1.7% suspended at least one day         

Maintained 0.2         
288 Students        

Students with Disabilities 
0% suspended at least one day         

Maintained 0         
22 Students        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

2023 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

Less than 11 Students          
5 Students        

American Indian 

0% suspended at least one 
day         

11 Students        

Asian     

Less than 11 Students          
2 Students        

Filipino 

Less than 11 Students          
1 Student        

Hispanic 

 
Yellow         

1% suspended at least one 
day         

Increased 0.3         
289 Students        

Two or More Races 

Less than 11 Students          
6 Students        

Pacific Islander 

Less than 11 Students          
3 Students        

White     

9.1% suspended at least one 
day         

Increased 9.1         
11 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. According to 2023 fall dashboard, our overall suspension rate remained the same overall from the previous year.        

2. According to 2023 fall dashboard, 1.5% of our students were suspended at least once.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 1 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
Equitable Access to Core Programs          
Continue to provide all students access to Basic Services, ie: appropriately assigned and credentialed teachers, their 
own copy of standards-aligned materials, and facilities that meet the standard of "good repair." 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
Overarching LCAP GOAL #1: 
All Students will be provided the CONDITIONS FOR LEARNING leading to college and career readiness. They will 
receive a broad educational program delivered by qualified staff using standards aligned instructional materials in 
facilities which are well maintained. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
English Learners will be provided both Designated and Integrated ELD as part of the core curriculum to enable access to 
the CA content standards.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   

Implementation of SBE adopted 
standards        

full implementation full implementation and sustainability 

Pupil Access to Instructional Materials        100% of students have access to 
instructional materials. 
 
Williams Review Fall 2023 
 

100% of students have access to 
instructional materials. 
 
Williams Review Fall 2024 
 

Teachers appropriately assigned and 
fully credentialed        

100% of teachers are fully credentialed 
and appropriately assigned. 

100% of teachers are fully credentialed 
and appropriately assigned. 

Facilities maintained appropriately        Facilities are rated good or better in all 
areas. 
 
Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT) Fall 
2023 
 

Facilities are rated good or better in all 
areas. 
 
Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT) Fall 
2024 
 

Broad Course of Study        100% of students have access to ELA, 
science, history, math, PE, and 
integrated visual and performing arts. 
 
Site Master Schedule 2023-24 
 

100% of students have access to ELA, 
science, history, math, PE, and 
integrated visual and performing arts. 
 
Site Master Schedule 2024-25 
 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

1.1 Goal is fully supported through Centralized 
Services provided through the District's LCAP.        

All Students  

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
All students have access to fully credentialed teachers, standards-aligned materials, and facilities that are in good repair.        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
No major changes were made between the intended implementation and/or budgeted expenditures.        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
No changes will be made to this goal.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 2 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
School Connectedness          
Stratford School will maintain a chronic absenteeism rate below 3% during the 2024-25 school year. 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
Overarching LCAP Goal #2: 
Parents, Students, and the community will be ENGAGED to participate collaboratively in the educational process. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
The pandemic had a significant negative impact on student attendance. Students and parents are now adjusting to 
regular mandatory school attendance. Stratford's chronic absenteeism rate from the 2023 dashboard was 6%.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   

Parent input in decision making and 
participation is adequately sought.        

94% of parents agree 
Spring 2023 Parent LCAP Survey 
 
 

95% of parents will agree 
Spring 2024 Parent LCAP survey 
 
 

School Attendance        Average daily attendance 97.1% 
P2 data Spring 2023 
 

Average daily attendance greater than 
97.3% 
P2 data Spring 2024 
 

Local Measures- Sense of Safety and 
School Connectedness        

Sense of Safety 63% 
 
Sense of Belonging 65% 
 
Student SEL Survey Winter 2023 
 

Sense of Safety 65% 
 
Sense of Belonging 67% 
 
Student SEL Survey Winter 2024 
 

Chronic Absenteeism        Chronic Absenteeism rate 6% 
Dashboard Fall 2023 
 

Chronic Absenteeism rate below 3% 
Dashboard Fall 2024 
 

Pupil Suspension        Suspension Rate 1.5% 
Dashboard Fall 2023 
 

Suspension Rate below 3% 
Dashboard Fall 2024 
 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

2.1 2.1 Parent Involvement Activities        All Students 5,000 
Title I 
 
        

2.2 2.2 Systematic plan to develop school 
connectedness for students and increase student 
attendance        

All Students 5,000 
Title I 
 
        

2.3 2.3 School wide behavior expectations        All Students 5,000 
Title I 
 
        

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
With a conscious effort to keep students engaged and connected to school, our chronic absenteeism rate decreased 
significantly compared to the previous school year.        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
No major differences are noted between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement 
strategies/activities.        

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
We will continue to focus on implementing strategies to increase school connectedness for all students.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 3 
 
Title and Description of School Goal 
Broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
English Learner Progress          
Stratford school will increase the percentage of English Learner students progressing at least one ELPI level by 5%, 
from 54% to 59%, on the annual ELPAC assessment. 

 
LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned 
LCAP goal to which this school goal is aligned. 
Overarching LCAP Goal #3: 
All students will make progress towards proficient ACHIEVEMENT of state adopted standards through data driven 
decision making. 
         

 
Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including 
any areas of low performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any 
steps taken to address those areas. 
School wide, our students performed 47.8 points below standard in ELA and 68.4 points below standard in Math on state 
assessments.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that your school will use as a means of evaluating progress toward 
accomplishing the goal. 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

startcollapse   

Programs/Services to enable English 
Learners to access CA and ELD 
standards        

English Learners Distance from 
Standard Met 
 
ELA      72.3 points below standard 
 
Math     88.6 points below standard 
 
 
Fall 2023 Dashboard (Spring 2023 
SBAC) 
 

English Learners Distance from 
Standard Met 
 
ELA      Increase 15 points, 
57.3 points below standard 
 
Math     Increase 15 points 
73.6 points below standard 
 
Fall 2024 Dashboard (Spring 2024 
SBAC) 
 

Statewide Assessments – English 
Language Arts        

All Students Distance from Standard 
Met 
 
ELA     47.8 points below standard 
 
 
Fall 2023 Dashboard (Spring 2023 
SBAC) 
 

All Students Distance from Standard 
Met 
 
ELA     Increase 15 points 
32.8 points below standard 
 
Fall 2024 Dashboard (Spring 2024 
SBAC) 
 

Statewide Assessments – 
Mathematics        

All Students Distance from Standard 
Met 
 

All Students Distance from Standard 
Met 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Math     68.4 points below standard 
 
 
Fall 2023 Dashboard (Spring 2023 
SBAC) 
 

ELA     Increase 15 points 
53.4 points below standard 
 
Fall 2024 Dashboard (Spring 2024 
SBAC) 
 

Percentage of English Learners who 
make English Proficiency progress        

54% of EL students making progress. 
 
Spring 2023 ELPAC Data 
 

69% of English Learners will make 
progress. 
 
Spring 2024 ELPAC data 
 

English Learner Reclassification Rate        3% reclassification rate for English 
Learners. 
 
Dataquest 2022-23 RFEP data 
 

6% reclassification rate for English 
Learners. 
 
Dataquest 2023-24 RFEP data 
 

 
Strategies/Activities 
Complete the Strategy/Activity Table with each of your school’s strategies/activities. Add additional rows as necessary. 

Strategy/ 
Activity # 

Description Students to be Served Proposed Expenditures 

startcolla
pse 

   

3.1 3.1 Tier 3 Reading Specialist & Support Staff        Targeted Students in 
need of intensive 
intervention in reading 

250,034.00 
Title I 
 
        

3.2 3.2 English Language Arts Intervention, 
Enrichment, and Differentiation based on student 
needs        

All students 20,000 
Title I 
 
        

3.3 3.3 Math Intervention, Enrichment, and 
Differentiation based on student needs        

All students 12,000 
Title I 
 
        

3.4 3.4 Hands-on Science Experiences        All students 1,934 
Title I 
 
        

 

Annual Review 
 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24 
 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, an analysis 
is not required, and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 

Analysis 
Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
According to 2023 fall dashboard, 54% of our English Learner students progressed at least one ELPI level from the 
previous year on the annual ELPAC assessment.        

 
Describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement the 
strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
No major differences are noted between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to implement 
strategies/activities.        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can be found in the SPSA. 
No changes will be made to this goal.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Budget Summary 
 
Complete the Budget Summary Table below. Schools may include additional information, and adjust the table as needed. 
The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the Consolidated Application (ConApp). 
 
Budget Summary 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application $298,968.00 

Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA $298,968.00 

Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI $0 
 
Other Federal, State, and Local Funds 
 
List the additional Federal programs that the school includes in the schoolwide program. Adjust the table as needed.  
 
Note: If the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program, this section is not applicable and may be 
deleted. 
 

Federal Programs Allocation ($) 

startcollapse  

Title I       $298,968.00 
 
Subtotal of additional federal funds included for this school: $298,968.00 
 
List the State and local programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Duplicate the table as needed. 

State or Local Programs Allocation ($) 

startcollapse  
 
Subtotal of state or local funds included for this school: $ 
 
Total of federal, state, and/or local funds for this school: $298,968.00 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan 
 
The tables below are provided to help the school track expenditures as they relate to funds budgeted to the school. 
 

Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 

Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Funding Source  Amount 

Title I         298,968.00 
 

Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 

Budget Reference  Amount 

         288,968.00 
 

Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 

         Title I  298,968.00 

 
Expenditures by Goal 
 
startcollapse 

Goal Number  Total Expenditures 

Goal 2  15,000.00 

Goal 3  283,968.00 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
3 Classroom Teachers        

1 Other School Staff        

5 Parent or Community Members        

0 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 

Name of Members  Role 

Jennifer DeRaad         X Other School Staff        

Christina Gonzales         X Principal        

Selina Becerra         X Parent or Community Member        

Julie Duty         X Parent or Community Member        

Gloria Jaramillo         X Parent or Community Member        

Esperansa Lopez         X Parent or Community Member        

Cecelia Torres         X Parent or Community Member        

Erin Ferreira         X Classroom Teacher        

Barbara Infante         X Classroom Teacher        

Rachel Wills         X Classroom Teacher        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 

Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 

 

X English Learner Advisory Committee        

 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on April 17, 2024. 
 
Attested: 

 

 Principal, Christina Gonzales on 4-17-24 

 

 SSC Chairperson, Julie Duty on 4-17-24 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Instructions 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a strategic plan that maximizes the resources 
available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing student 
achievement. SPSA development should be aligned with and inform the Local Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP) process.  
 
This SPSA template consolidates all school-level planning efforts into one plan for programs funded 
through the Consolidated Application (ConApp) pursuant to California Education Code (EC) Section 
64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) as amended by the Every Student 
Succeeds Act (ESSA). This template is designed to meet schoolwide program planning requirements.  
 
California’s ESSA State Plan supports the state’s approach to improving student group performance 
through the utilization of federal resources. Schools use the SPSA to document their approach to 
maximizing the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. The implementation of 
ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded programs 
and align them with the priority goals of the school and the local educational agency (LEA) that are being 
realized under the state’s Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF).  
 
The LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the 
needs of students in order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The SPSA 
planning process supports continuous cycles of action, reflection, and improvement. Consistent with EC 
64001(g)(1), the Schoolsite Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish 
an annual budget, and make modifications to the plan that reflect changing needs and priorities, as 
applicable. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

 
For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below. 
 
Instructions: Table of Contents 
 

• Plan Description  
• Educational Partner Involvement 
• Comprehensive Needs Assessment 
• Goals, Strategies/Activities, and Expenditures 
• Annual Review 
• Budget Summary 
• Appendix A: Plan Requirements for Title I Schoolwide Programs 
• Appendix B: Select State and Federal Programs 

 
For additional questions or technical assistance related to LEA and school planning, please contact the 
CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office, at LCFF@cde.ca.gov.  
For programmatic or policy questions regarding Title I schoolwide planning, please contact the LEA, or 
the CDE’s Title I Policy and Program Guidance Office at TITLEI@cde.ca.gov. 
 
Plan Description 
Briefly describe the school’s plan to effectively meet the ESSA requirements in alignment with the LCAP 
and other federal, state, and local programs. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements:  
Schools eligible for CSI must briefly describe the purpose of this plan by stating that this plan will be used 
to meet federal CSI planning requirements. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements:  
Schools eligible for ATSI must briefly describe the purpose of this plan by stating that this plan will be 
used to meet federal ATSI planning requirements.   
 
 
Educational Partner Involvement 
Meaningful involvement of parents, students, and other stakeholders is critical to the development of the 
SPSA and the budget process. Within California, these stakeholders are referred to as educational 
partners. Schools must share the SPSA with school site-level advisory groups, as applicable (e.g., 
English Learner Advisory committee, student advisory groups, tribes and tribal organizations present in 
the community, as appropriate, etc.) and seek input from these advisory groups in the development of the 
SPSA.  
 
The Educational Partner Engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. Describe the process used 
to involve advisory committees, parents, students, school faculty and staff, and the community in the 
development of the SPSA and the annual review and update. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements:  
When completing this section for CSI, the LEA must partner with the school and its educational partners 
in the development and implementation of this plan. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements:  
This section meets the requirements for ATSI. 
 
 
Resource Inequities 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

This section is required for all schools eligible for ATSI and CSI.  
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements:  

• Schools eligible for CSI must identify resource inequities, which may include a review of 
LEA- and school-level budgeting as a part of the required school-level needs 
assessment. 

• Identified resource inequities must be addressed through implementation of the CSI 
plan. 

• Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required 
school-level needs assessment and summarize how the identified resource inequities 
are addressed in the SPSA. 

 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements:  

• Schools eligible for ATSI must identify resource inequities, which may include a review 
of LEA- and school-level budgeting as a part of the required school-level needs 
assessment.   

• Identified resource inequities must be addressed through implementation of the ATSI plan.  
• Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required 

school-level needs assessment and summarize how the identified resource inequities 
are addressed in the SPSA. 

 
Comprehensive Needs Assessment 
Referring to the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), identify: (a) any state indicator for which 
overall performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category AND (b) any state indicator for 
which performance for any student group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” 
performance. In addition to Dashboard data, other needs may be identified using locally collected data 
developed by the LEA to measure pupil outcomes.  
 
SWP Planning Requirements:  
When completing this section for SWP, the school shall describe the steps it is planning to take to 
address these areas of low performance and performance gaps to improve student outcomes. 
 
Completing this section fully addresses all SWP relevant federal planning requirements. 
 
CSI Planning Requirements:  
When completing this section for CSI, the LEA shall describe the steps the LEA will take to address the 
areas of low performance, low graduation rate, and/or performance gaps for the school to improve 
student outcomes. 
 
Completing this section fully addresses all relevant federal planning requirements for CSI. 
 
ATSI Planning Requirements:  
Completing this section fully addresses all relevant federal planning requirements for ATSI. 
 
Goals, Strategies/Activities, and Expenditures 
In this section, a school provides a description of the annual goals to be achieved by the school. This 
section also includes descriptions of the specific planned strategies/activities a school will take to meet 
the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific strategies 
and activities. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 
When completing this section to meet federal planning requirements for CSI, improvement goals must 
also align with the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
When completing this section to meet federal planning requirements for ATSI, improvement goals must 
also align with the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP. 
 
Goal 
Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to educational partners what the school plans to 
accomplish, what the school plans to do in order to accomplish the goal, and how the school will know 
when it has accomplished the goal. A goal should be specific enough to be measurable in either 
quantitative or qualitative terms. Schools should assess the performance of their student groups when 
developing goals and the related strategies/activities to achieve such goals. SPSA goals should align to 
the goals and actions in the LEA’s LCAP. 
 
A goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all strategies/activities are directed. 
A goal answers the question: What is the school seeking to achieve? 
 
It can be helpful to use a framework for writing goals such the S.M.A.R.T. approach.  
A S.M.A.R.T. goal is:  
 

• Specific,  
• Measurable,  
• Achievable,  
• Realistic, and  
• Time-bound.  

 
A level of specificity is needed in order to measure performance relative to the goal as well as to assess 
whether it is reasonably achievable. Including time constraints, such as milestone dates, ensures a 
realistic approach that supports student success.  
A school may number the goals using the “Goal #” for ease of reference.  
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal CSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal ATSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Identified Need  
Describe the basis for establishing the goal. The goal should be based upon an analysis of verifiable state 
data, including local and state indicator data from the Dashboard and data from the School Accountability 
Report Card, including local data voluntarily collected by districts to measure pupil achievement.  
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal CSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal ATSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that the school will use as a means of evaluating progress 
toward accomplishing the goal. A school may identify metrics for specific student groups. Include in the 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

baseline column the most recent data associated with the metric or indicator available at the time of 
adoption of the SPSA. The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator includes data reported 
in the annual update of the SPSA. In the subsequent Expected Outcome column, identify the progress 
the school intends to make in the coming year. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 
When completing this section for CSI, the school must include school-level metrics related to the metrics 
that led to the school’s eligibility for CSI. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
Completing this section as described above fully addresses all relevant federal ATSI planning 
requirements. 
 
Strategies/Activities Table 
Describe the strategies and activities being provided to meet the goal.  
Complete the table as follows: 
 

• Strategy/Activity #: Number the strategy/activity using the “Strategy/Activity #” for ease of 
reference. 

• Description: Describe the strategy/activity.  
• Students to be Served: Identify in the Strategy/Activity Table either All Students or one 

or more specific student groups that will benefit from the strategies and activities. ESSA 
Section 1111(c)(2) requires the schoolwide plan to identify either “All Students” or one or 
more specific student groups, including socioeconomically disadvantaged students, 
students from major racial and ethnic groups, students with disabilities, and English 
learners. 

• Proposed Expenditures: List the amount(s) for the proposed expenditures. 
Proposed expenditures that are included more than once in a SPSA should be indicated as a 
duplicated expenditure and include a reference to the goal and strategy/activity where the 
expenditure first appears in the SPSA. Pursuant to EC Section 64001(g)(3)(C), proposed 
expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the governing board or governing 
body of the LEA, to address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the state 
priorities including identifying resource inequities which may include a review of the LEA’s 
budgeting, its LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable. 

• Funding Sources: List the funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal, identify the Title and Part, 
as applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 

 
Planned strategies/activities address the findings of the comprehensive needs assessment consistent 
with state priorities and resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of the LEA’s 
budgeting, its LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 

• When completing this section for CSI, this plan must include evidence-based interventions and 
align to the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP.  

• When completing this section for CSI, this plan must address through implementation, identified 
resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of LEA- and school-level 
budgeting.  

Note: Federal school improvement funds for CSI shall not be used in schools identified for TSI or ATSI. In 
addition, funds for CSI shall not be used to hire additional permanent staff. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 

• When completing this section for ATSI, this plan must include evidence-based interventions and 
align with the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP.  



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

• When completing this section for ATSI, this plan must address through implementation, identified 
resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of LEA- and school-level 
budgeting.  

• When completing this section for ATSI, at a minimum, the student groups to be served shall 
include the student groups that are consistently underperforming, for which the school received 
the ATSI designation. 

 
Note: Federal school improvement funds for CSI shall not be used in schools identified for ATSI.  Schools 
eligible for ATSI do not receive funding but are required to include evidence-based interventions and align 
with the goals, actions, and services in the LEA’s LCAP. 
 
Annual Review 
In the following Goal Analysis prompts, identify any material differences between what was planned and 
what actually occurred as well as significant changes in strategies/activities and/or expenditures from the 
prior year. This annual review and analysis should be the basis for decision-making and updates to the 
plan.  
 
Goal Analysis 
Using actual outcome data, including state indicator data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the 
planned strategies/activities were effective in achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as instructed. 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal.  
 

● Describe the overall implementation and effectiveness of the strategies/activities to achieve the 
articulated goal.  

● Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or material 
difference between the budgeted expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the 
articulated goal. 

● Describe any changes that will be made to the goal, expected annual measurable outcomes, 
metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard, as applicable. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 

 
Note: If the school is in the first year of implementing the goal, the Annual Review section is not required 
and this section may be left blank and completed at the end of the year after the plan has been executed. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 

• When completing this section for CSI, any changes made to the goals, annual measurable 
outcomes, metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities, shall meet the federal CSI planning 
requirements.   

• CSI planning requirements are listed under each section of the Instructions. For example, as a 
result of the Annual Review and Update, if changes are made to a goal(s), see the Goal section 
for CSI planning requirements. 

 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 

• When completing this section for ATSI, any changes made to the goals, annual measurable 
outcomes, metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities, shall meet the federal ATSI planning 
requirements.   

• ATSI planning requirements are listed under each section of the Instructions. For example, as a 
result of the Annual Review and Update, if changes are made to a goal(s), see the Goal section 
for ATSI planning requirements. 

 
 
Budget Summary 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

In this section, a school provides a brief summary of the funding allocated to the school through the 
ConApp and/or other funding sources as well as the total amount of funds for proposed expenditures 
described in the SPSA. The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp. 
 
Note: If the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program, this section is not applicable and may be 
deleted. 
 
Additional CSI Planning Requirements: 

• From its total allocation for CSI, the LEA may distribute funds across its schools that are 
eligible for CSI to support implementation of this plan. In addition, the LEA may retain a 
portion of its total allocation to support LEA-level expenditures that are directly related to 
serving schools eligible for CSI. 

Note: CSI funds may not be expended at or on behalf of schools not eligible for CSI. 
 
Additional ATSI Planning Requirements: 
Note: Federal funds for CSI shall not be used in schools eligible for ATSI. 
 
Budget Summary Table 
A school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp should complete the Budget Summary Table as 
follows: 

● Total Funds Provided to the School Through the ConApp: This amount is the total amount of 
funding provided to the school through the ConApp for the school year. The school year means 
the fiscal year for which a SPSA is adopted or updated.  

● Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA: This amount is the total 
of the proposed expenditures from all sources of funds associated with the strategies/activities 
reflected in the SPSA. To the extent strategies/activities and/or proposed expenditures are listed 
in the SPSA under more than one goal, the expenditures should be counted only once. 

 
A school receiving funds from its LEA for CSI should complete the Budget Summary Table as 
follows:  

• Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI: This amount is 
the total amount of funding provided to the school from the LEA for the purpose of 
developing and implementing the CSI plan for the school year set forth in the CSI LEA 
Application for which funds were received. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Appendix A: Plan Requirements  
 
Schoolwide Program Requirements 
This School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) template meets the requirements of a schoolwide 
program plan. The requirements below are for planning reference.  
A school that operates a schoolwide program and receives funds allocated through the ConApp is 
required to develop a SPSA. The SPSA, including proposed expenditures of funds allocated to the school 
through the ConApp, must be reviewed annually and updated by the Schoolsite Council (SSC). The 
content of a SPSA must be aligned with school goals for improving student achievement.  
Requirements for Development of the Plan 

I. The development of the SPSA shall include both of the following actions: 
A. Administration of a comprehensive needs assessment that forms the basis of the 

school’s goals contained in the SPSA. 
1. The comprehensive needs assessment of the entire school shall: 

a. Include an analysis of verifiable state data, consistent with all state 
priorities as noted in Sections 52060 and 52066, and informed by 
all indicators described in Section 1111(c)(4)(B) of the federal 
Every Student Succeeds Act, including pupil performance against 
state-determined long-term goals. The school may include data 
voluntarily developed by districts to measure pupil outcomes 
(described in the Identified Need). 

b. Be based on academic achievement information about all 
students in the school, including all groups under §200.13(b)(7) 
and migratory children as defined in section 1309(2) of the ESEA, 
relative to the State's academic standards under §200.1 to: 

i. Help the school understand the subjects and skills for 
which teaching and learning need to be improved. 

ii. Identify the specific academic needs of students and 
groups of students who are not yet achieving the State's 
academic standards. 

iii. Assess the needs of the school relative to each of the 
components of the schoolwide program under §200.28. 

iv. Develop the comprehensive needs assessment with the 
participation of individuals who will carry out the 
schoolwide program plan. 

v. Document how it conducted the needs assessment, the 
results it obtained, and the conclusions it drew from those 
results.  

B. Identification of the process for evaluating and monitoring the implementation of 
the SPSA and progress towards accomplishing the goals set forth in the SPSA 
(described in the Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and Annual Review 
and Update).  
 

Requirements for the Plan 
II. The SPSA shall include the following:  

A. Goals set to improve pupil outcomes, including addressing the needs of student 
groups as identified through the needs assessment.  

B. Evidence-based strategies, actions, or services (described in Strategies and 
Activities) 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

1. A description of the strategies that the school will be implementing to 
address school needs, including a description of how such strategies 
will: 

a. Provide opportunities for all children including each of the 
subgroups of students to meet the challenging state academic 
standards 

b. Use methods and instructional strategies that: 
i. Strengthen the academic program in the school,  
ii. Increase the amount and quality of learning time, and  
iii. Provide an enriched and accelerated curriculum, which 

may include programs, activities, and courses necessary 
to provide a well-rounded education. 

c. Address the needs of all children in the school, but particularly 
the needs of those at risk of not meeting the challenging State 
academic standards, so that all students demonstrate at least 
proficiency on the State’s academic standards through activities 
which may include: 

i. Strategies to improve students’ skills outside the 
academic subject areas;  

ii. Preparation for and awareness of opportunities for 
postsecondary education and the workforce;  

iii. Implementation of a schoolwide tiered model to prevent 
and address problem behavior;  

iv. Professional development and other activities for 
teachers, paraprofessionals, and other school personnel 
to improve instruction and use of data; and 

v. Strategies for assisting preschool children in the transition 
from early childhood education programs to local 
elementary school programs. 

C. Proposed expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the 
governing board or body of the LEA (may include funds allocated via the 
ConApp, federal funds, and any other state or local funds allocated to the 
school), to address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the 
state priorities, including identifying resource inequities, which may include a 
review of the LEAs budgeting, it’s LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if 
applicable (described in Proposed Expenditures and Budget Summary). 
Employees of the schoolwide program may be deemed funded by a single cost 
objective.  

D. A description of how the school will determine if school needs have been met 
(described in the Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and the Annual 
Review and Update). 

1. Annually evaluate the implementation of, and results achieved by, the 
schoolwide program, using data from the State's annual assessments and 
other indicators of academic achievement; 

2. Determine whether the schoolwide program has been effective in 
increasing the achievement of students in meeting the State's academic 
standards, particularly for those students who had been furthest from 
achieving the standards; and 

3. Revise the plan, as necessary, based on the results of the evaluation, to 
ensure continuous improvement of students in the schoolwide program. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

E. A description of how the school will ensure parental involvement in the planning, 
review, and improvement of the schoolwide program plan (described in 
Educational Partner Involvement and/or Strategies/Activities). 

F. A description of the activities the school will include to ensure that students who 
experience difficulty attaining proficient or advanced levels of academic 
achievement standards will be provided with effective, timely additional support, 
including measures to: 

1. Ensure that those students' difficulties are identified on a timely basis; and 
2. Provide sufficient information on which to base effective assistance to 

those students. 
G. For an elementary school, a description of how the school will assist preschool 

students in the successful transition from early childhood programs to the school. 
H. A description of how the school will use resources to carry out these components 

(described in the Proposed Expenditures for Strategies/Activities). 
I. A description of any other activities and objectives as established by the SSC 

(described in the Strategies/Activities). 
Authority Cited: Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations (34 CFR), sections 200.25-26, and 
200.29, and sections-1114(b)(7)(A)(i)-(iii) and 1118(b) of the ESEA. EC sections 64001 et. seq. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Appendix B: Plan Requirements for School to 
CSI/ATSI Planning Requirements 
For questions or technical assistance related to meeting federal school improvement planning 
requirements, please contact the CDE’s School Improvement and Support Office at SISO@cde.ca.gov. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
The LEA shall partner with educational partners (including principals and other school leaders, teachers, 
and parents) to locally develop and implement the CSI plan for the school to improve student outcomes, 
and specifically address the metrics that led to eligibility for CSI (Educational Partner Involvement).   

The CSI plan shall:   

1. Be informed by all state indicators, including student performance against state-
determined long-term goals (Sections: Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual 
Measurable Outcomes, Annual Review and Update, as applicable); 

2. Include evidence-based interventions (Sections: Strategies/Activities, Annual Review 
and Update, as applicable) (For resources related to evidence-based interventions, see 
the U.S. Department of Education’s “Using Evidence to Strengthen Education 
Investments” at https://www2.ed.gov/fund/grant/about/discretionary/2023-non-regulatory-
guidance-evidence.pdf); 

Non-Regulatory Guidance: Using Evidence to Strengthen Education Investments 

3. Be based on a school-level needs assessment (Sections: Goal, Identified Need, 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Annual Review and Update, as applicable); 
and 

4. Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level 
budgeting, to be addressed through implementation of the CSI plan (Sections: Goal, 
Identified Need, Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities; 
and Annual Review and Update, as applicable). 

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(A), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(1) of the ESSA. 

Single School Districts and Charter Schools Eligible for ESSA School 
Improvement 
Single school districts (SSDs) or charter schools that are eligible for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, shall develop a 
SPSA that addresses the applicable requirements above as a condition of receiving funds (EC Section 
64001[a] as amended by Assembly Bill 716, effective January 1, 2019). 

However, a SSD or a charter school may streamline the process by combining state and federal 
requirements into one document which may include the LCAP and all federal planning requirements, 
provided that the combined plan is able to demonstrate that the legal requirements for each of the plans 
is met (EC Section 52062[a] as amended by AB 716, effective January 1, 2019). 

Planning requirements for single school districts and charter schools choosing to exercise this option are 
available in the LCAP Instructions. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Authority Cited: EC sections 52062(a) and 64001(a), both as amended by AB 716, effective January 1, 
2019. 

CSI Resources 
For additional CSI resources, please see the following links: 

• CSI Planning Requirements (see Planning Requirements tab): 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csi.asp 

• CSI Webinars: https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csiwebinars.asp 

• CSI Planning Summary for Charters and Single-school Districts: 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csiplansummary.asp 

  



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Additional Targeted Support and Improvement 
A school eligible for ATSI shall: 

1. Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting, which 
will be addressed through implementation of its TSI plan (Sections: Goal, Identified Need, 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities, and Annual Review and 
Update, as applicable). 

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(B), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(2)(c) of the ESSA. 

Single School Districts and Charter Schools Eligible for ESSA School 
Improvement 
Single school districts (SSDs) or charter schools that are eligible for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, shall develop a 
SPSA that addresses the applicable requirements above as a condition of receiving funds (EC Section 
64001[a] as amended by Assembly Bill [AB] 716, effective January 1, 2019). 

However, a SSD or a charter school may streamline the process by combining state and federal 
requirements into one document which may include the local control and accountability plan (LCAP) and 
all federal planning requirements, provided that the combined plan is able to demonstrate that the legal 
requirements for each of the plans is met (EC Section 52062[a] as amended by AB 716, effective January 
1, 2019). 

Planning requirements for single school districts and charter schools choosing to exercise this option are 
available in the LCAP Instructions. 

Authority Cited: EC sections 52062(a) and 64001(a), both as amended by AB 716, effective January 1, 
2019. 

ATSI Resources: 
For additional ATSI resources, please see the following CDE links: 

• ATSI Planning Requirements (see Planning Requirements tab): 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/tsi.asp 

• ATSI Planning and Support Webinar: 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/documents/atsiplanningwebinar22.pdf  

• ATSI Planning Summary for Charters and Single-school Districts: 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/atsiplansummary.asp 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 56 Stratford Elementary School 

Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs 
For a list of active programs, please see the following links:  

• Programs included on the ConApp: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/  
• ESSA Title I, Part A: School Improvement: https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/schoolsupport.asp  
• Available Funding: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/af/  

Updated by the California Department of Education, October 2023 
 



CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION #I-05-13-2024

BEFORE THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
CENTRAL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT,

KINGS COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

IN THE MATTER OF RESOLUTION ORDERING
GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER ELECTIONS;

CONSOLIDATION OF ELECTIONS;
SPECIFICATIONS OF THE ELECTION ORDER

WHEREAS, under Elections Code Sections 1302 and 10404.5 School Districts have
established the election day for governing board members as the same day upon which a
primary, municipal, or general election is held in the even numbered years; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors received a resolution from the Central Union
Elementary School District whose boundaries are located, in whole or in part, within Kings
County, establishing election of governing board members on the same day upon which the
statewide general election is held; and

WHEREAS, other elections may be held in whole or in part of the territory of the school
district and it is to the advantage of the district to consolidate therewith;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that an election be held within the territory included in
the district on the 5th day of November 2024, for the purpose of electing board of trustee
member{s} to the governing board of the said school district in accordance with the following
specifications:

SPECIFICATIONS OF THE ELECTION ORDER

1. The election shall be held on Tuesday, the 5th day of November 2024. The
purpose of the election is to choose three member{s} of the governing board of
this school district.

2. This governing board hereby requests and consents to the consolidation of this
election with other elections which may be held in whole or in part of the
territory of the district, as provided in Elections Code Section 10403.

3. The District has determined that the Central Union Elementary School District
will not pay for the Candidate’s Statement. The Candidate’s Statement will be
limited to 200 words.

4. Adopt A or B:

__X__ A. In the event of a tie vote, the winner of this election shall be
determined by lot at a time and place designated by the

Resolution #I-05-13-2024 Election Order



governing board.

______ B. In the event of a tie vote, the governing board shall call a runoff
election on the sixth Tuesday following the election at which the
tie vote occurred.

5. It is the desire of this Board that the county superintendent of schools publishes
the notice of election in the following newspaper, which is a newspaper of
general circulation that is regularly circulated territory: The Hanford Sentinel.

The foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of
Trustees of the Central Union Elementary School District on this 13th day of May 2024, by
the following vote:

AYE NO ABSTAIN ABSENT

Dale Davidson, Trustee Area 1

Jeff Gilcrease, Trustee Area 2

Sarah Strait, Trustee Area 3

Vacant, Trustee Area 4

Ceil Howe, III, Trustee Area 5

I, Sarah Strait, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the Central Union Elementary School
District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced, passed and
adopted by the Board of Trustees at its meeting held on May 13, 2024.

Sarah Strait, Clerk
Board of Trustees
Central Union Elementary School District
Kings County, California

Resolution #I-05-13-2024 Election Order



NOTICE TO COUNTY ELECTIONS OFFICIAL OF ELECTIVE OFFICES
TO BE FILLED AND TRANSMITTAL OF MAP AND BOUNDARIES

Central Union Elementary School District
(Name of District)

TO THE COUNTY CLERK OF KINGS COUNTY
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the elective offices of the District to be filled as the
General District Election to be held Tuesday, November 5, 2024 - are as follows:

NAME OF OFFICE TRUSTEE
AREA ELECTED BY

DIVISION NO.
OR AT-LARGE

NAME OF INCUMBENT OR
APPOINTEE

ELECTED OR
APPOINTED?

MO. / YR.

TO BE ELECTED
FOR A SHORT

TERM (2YRS) OR A
FULL TERM (4YRS)

Board of Trustee 1
Division

Dale Davidson
Elected
11/2020

Full Term (4 years)

Board of Trustee 3
Division

Sarah Strait
Appointed
10/2023

Short Term (2 years)

Board of Trustee 4
Division

Vacant Full Term (4 years)

(1) A map showing the boundaries of the district and boundaries of the division of the district, if any, within this
county is attached hereto.

(2) The Candidate is to pay for the publication of a Candidate’s Statement of Qualification, pursuant to Elections
Code Section 13307.

Dated: May 13, 2024 _____________________________________
District Superintendent

15783 18th Avenue
District Address

559-924-3405
District Phone Number

NOTE: THIS NOTICE AND TRANSMITTAL SHALL BE MADE AT LEAST 125 DAYS BEFORE THE GENERAL
DISTRICT ELECTION AND SHALL EITHER BE DELIVERED IN PERSON OR MAILED BY CERTIFIED MAIL IN
TIME TO REACH THE KINGS COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION, 1144 W. LACEY BLVD., HANFORD, CA
93230.

Resolution #I-05-13-2024 Election Order



2024 Central Union Trustee Area 


	051324 Board Agenda
	Item 6a Spring2024IMPACTFinal
	Item 6b Ltr from KCOE re position budget
	Item 6d (1) Akers May_June Newsletter
	Item 6d (2) Stratford May June Newsletter
	Item 6d (3) Neutra Newsletter
	Item 6e Kings County Quarterly Compliance Report Ending 033124
	Item 7a 040824 Board Minutes
	Item 7c (1) SCO_Coverage explanation
	Item 7c (2) 2024-25 Akers PTC_SCO copy
	Item 7c (3) 2024-25 Central PTC_SCO copy
	Item 7c (4) 2024-25 Stratford PTC_SCO copy
	Item 7d 2024-25 ERS Agreement w TCOE_executed
	Item 7e 2324 Fingerprint Agr w KCOE
	Item 7f Akers piano donation
	Item 7g Central_KCOE Preschool MOU 24_25
	Item 7h CODESP Member Service Agr & Security Agr for 2425
	Item 7i 2024-25 Lozano Smith_Central Union Elementary School District Legal Services Agreement copy
	Item 9b Warrants April 2024
	Item 9c Fiscal Position Reports April 2024
	Item 9d (2) Resolution #H-05-13-2024 Developer Fee Adoption
	Item 9d (3) Central Union Dev Fee Study 2024
	Item 9e (1) 2425 SPSA Akers
	SPSA Title Page
	Table of Contents
	Plan Description
	Educational Partner Involvement
	Resource Inequities
	Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components
	California School Dashboard (Dashboard) Indicators
	Other Needs

	School and Student Performance Data
	Student Enrollment
	Enrollment By Student Group
	Enrollment By Grade Level
	English Learner (EL) Enrollment

	CAASPP Results
	English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students)
	Mathematics (All Students)

	ELPAC Results
	California School Dashboard
	Student Population
	Overall Performance
	Academic Performance
	English Language Arts
	Mathematics
	English Learner Progress
	College/Career Report

	Academic Engagement
	Chronic Absenteeism
	Graduation Rate

	Conditions & Climate
	Suspension Rate



	Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures
	Goal 1
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 2
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 3
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 4
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 5
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 6
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 7
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 8
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 9
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 10
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis



	Budget Summary
	Budget Summary
	Other Federal, State, and Local Funds

	Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan
	Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source
	Expenditures by Funding Source
	Expenditures by Budget Reference
	Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source
	Expenditures by Goal

	School Site Council Membership
	Recommendations and Assurances
	Instructions
	Instructions: Table of Contents
	Plan Description
	Educational Partner Involvement
	Resource Inequities
	Comprehensive Needs Assessment
	Goals, Strategies/Activities, and Expenditures
	Goal
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities Table
	Annual Review
	Goal Analysis
	Budget Summary
	Budget Summary Table

	Appendix A: Plan Requirements
	Schoolwide Program Requirements
	Requirements for Development of the Plan
	Requirements for the Plan

	Appendix B: Plan Requirements for School to CSI/ATSI Planning Requirements
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Single School Districts and Charter Schools Eligible for ESSA School Improvement
	CSI Resources
	Additional Targeted Support and Improvement
	Single School Districts and Charter Schools Eligible for ESSA School Improvement
	ATSI Resources:

	Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs

	Item 9e (2) 2425 SPSA Central
	SPSA Title Page
	Table of Contents
	Plan Description
	Educational Partner Involvement
	Resource Inequities
	Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components
	California School Dashboard (Dashboard) Indicators
	Other Needs

	School and Student Performance Data
	Student Enrollment
	Enrollment By Student Group
	Enrollment By Grade Level
	English Learner (EL) Enrollment

	CAASPP Results
	English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students)
	Mathematics (All Students)

	ELPAC Results
	California School Dashboard
	Student Population
	Overall Performance
	Academic Performance
	English Language Arts
	Mathematics
	English Learner Progress
	College/Career Report

	Academic Engagement
	Chronic Absenteeism
	Graduation Rate

	Conditions & Climate
	Suspension Rate



	Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures
	Goal 1
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 2
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 3
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 4
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 5
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 6
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 7
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 8
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 9
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 10
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis



	Budget Summary
	Budget Summary
	Other Federal, State, and Local Funds

	Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan
	Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source
	Expenditures by Funding Source
	Expenditures by Budget Reference
	Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source
	Expenditures by Goal

	School Site Council Membership
	Recommendations and Assurances
	Instructions
	Instructions: Table of Contents
	Plan Description
	Educational Partner Involvement
	Resource Inequities
	Comprehensive Needs Assessment
	Goals, Strategies/Activities, and Expenditures
	Goal
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities Table
	Annual Review
	Goal Analysis
	Budget Summary
	Budget Summary Table

	Appendix A: Plan Requirements
	Schoolwide Program Requirements
	Requirements for Development of the Plan
	Requirements for the Plan

	Appendix B: Plan Requirements for School to CSI/ATSI Planning Requirements
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Single School Districts and Charter Schools Eligible for ESSA School Improvement
	CSI Resources
	Additional Targeted Support and Improvement
	Single School Districts and Charter Schools Eligible for ESSA School Improvement
	ATSI Resources:

	Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs

	Item 9e (3) 2425 SPSA Neutra
	SPSA Title Page
	Table of Contents
	Plan Description
	Educational Partner Involvement
	Resource Inequities
	Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components
	California School Dashboard (Dashboard) Indicators
	Other Needs

	School and Student Performance Data
	Student Enrollment
	Enrollment By Student Group
	Enrollment By Grade Level
	English Learner (EL) Enrollment

	CAASPP Results
	English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students)
	Mathematics (All Students)

	ELPAC Results
	California School Dashboard
	Student Population
	Overall Performance
	Academic Performance
	English Language Arts
	Mathematics
	English Learner Progress
	College/Career Report

	Academic Engagement
	Chronic Absenteeism
	Graduation Rate

	Conditions & Climate
	Suspension Rate



	Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures
	Goal 1
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 2
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 3
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 4
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 5
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 6
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 7
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 8
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 9
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis


	Goal 10
	Title and Description of School Goal
	LCAP Goal to which this School Goal is Aligned
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Annual Review
	SPSA Year Reviewed: 2023-24
	Analysis



	Budget Summary
	Budget Summary
	Other Federal, State, and Local Funds

	Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan
	Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source
	Expenditures by Funding Source
	Expenditures by Budget Reference
	Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source
	Expenditures by Goal

	School Site Council Membership
	Recommendations and Assurances
	Instructions
	Instructions: Table of Contents
	Plan Description
	Educational Partner Involvement
	Resource Inequities
	Comprehensive Needs Assessment
	Goals, Strategies/Activities, and Expenditures
	Goal
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities Table
	Annual Review
	Goal Analysis
	Budget Summary
	Budget Summary Table

	Appendix A: Plan Requirements
	Schoolwide Program Requirements
	Requirements for Development of the Plan
	Requirements for the Plan

	Appendix B: Plan Requirements for School to CSI/ATSI Planning Requirements
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Single School Districts and Charter Schools Eligible for ESSA School Improvement
	CSI Resources
	Additional Targeted Support and Improvement
	Single School Districts and Charter Schools Eligible for ESSA School Improvement
	ATSI Resources:

	Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs

	Item 9e (4) 2425 SPSA Stratford
	Item 9f (1) Resolution #I-05-13-2024 Election Order Specification.docx
	item 9f (2) 2024 Trustee Map



